
1 
 

State of Hawaii Elections Commission 
Permitted Interaction Group 

Report on Purported Big Island Ballot Discrepancy 
September 29, 2025 

Jeffrey M. Osterkamp, Chair/Commissioner 
Clare McAdam, Member/Commissioner 

Kahiolani Papalimu, Member/Commissioner 
 

This permitted interaction group, at the request of the full State of Hawaii Elections Commission, 
hereby reports on its investigation into a purported discrepancy of more than 19,000 ballots 
between two different means of calculating ballots received by the County of Hawai‘i (the 
“County”) for the 2024 general election. 

In short, we find a complete lack of credible evidence to support the claim of a significant ballot 
discrepancy. The claim—which depends on a comparison between the State-certified vote totals 
and the postal receipts for the ballot envelopes—is unfounded, because the County does not have, 
and has never claimed to have, complete records of the postal receipts. Further, neither the State 
of Hawai‘i (the “State”) nor the County purports to rely on postal receipts to validate vote counts, 
so they cannot reasonably be expected to have compiled this information. Instead, the State and 
the counties rely on their own tabulations of return identification envelopes. The Big Island’s 
envelope tally closely matches its ballot count. 

We also reject any contention that the County is obligated to produce its confidential voter files in 
order to rebut an erroneous analysis. We have witnessed an unfortunate presumption in some 
quarters that any allegations of electoral wrongdoing are accurate unless disproven. As these 
allegations lack an apparent basis, we do not believe that the County is required to take additional 
steps.  

Background 
Based on records from the County, the State reported receiving 76,595 mail-in ballots, and 
included that number in its certified totals of the 2024 general election. (Appendix 1.)1 The Big 
Island’s count of return identification envelopes was 76,587, an eight-ballot difference. (Appendix 
2, p. 6.) However, Commissioner Ralph Cushnie represented that receipts of United States Postal 
Service (“USPS”) Business Reply Mail (“BRM”) Big Island mail-in envelopes totaled just 57,553. 
Accordingly, in the March 19, 2025 Regular Meeting of the Elections Commission, Commissioner 
Cushnie moved to form a permitted interaction group to investigate elections results discrepancies 

 
1 The 76,595 mail-in ballots, together with 7,091 in-person ballots, comprised the Big Island “total 
turnout” of 83,686. 



2 
 

on the Big Island. (Appendix 3 at p. 5.) Commissioners Osterkamp, McAdam and Papalimu were 
appointed to the PIG. (Appendix 3 at p. 6.) 

We are and were unaware of any purported Big Island elections results discrepancies other than 
the claims put forth by Commissioner Cushnie. Nevertheless, in a July 11, 2025 letter from our 
chair to Hawai‘i County Clerk Jon Henricks, we requested, among other things, “[a]ny complaints 
received by your office concerning purported Hawai‘i Island election ballot reporting 
inconsistencies, including with respect to a claimed 19,000 vote surplus.” (Appendix 4.)  

In an August 1, 2025 letter, Mr. Henricks responded by identifying no “complaints,” but, 
apparently in the interest of transparency, he provided copies of email messages from three 
individuals requesting information about the purported 19,000 ballot discrepancy. (Appendix 5.) 
Mr. Henricks summarized his analysis of that issue as follows: 

Our office was aware that concerns of discrepancies arose from an erroneous 
analysis utilizing Business Reply Mail (BRM) statements to determine the amount 
of ballot packet envelopes received by the County of Hawai'i via USPS. The County 
does not use BRM statements to reconcile ballot envelope counts. The process used 
to reconcile relies solely on cross checks with the voter registration system and the 
ballot counting system.  

(Appendix 5 at p. 1, #2.) 

On August 31, 2025, however, Commissioner Cushnie repeated his claim in an email to the Office 
of Elections. (Appendix 6.)2 Commissioner Cushnie attached several documents, including 
apparent printouts of the daily USPS records of Big Island BRM envelopes (Appendix 7) and a 
spreadsheet that purports to tabulate the ballots received by the Big Island per day, both by dropbox 
location and by mail (Appendix 8). 

Analysis 
Following a review of the above-referenced records and an interview of Mr. Henricks, this 
permitted interaction group has determined that no credible evidence exists to support the claim of 
a significant discrepancy in the Big Island general election totals. The USPS receipt totals plainly 
are incomplete. Further, as Mr. Henricks confirmed, the County has never relied on BRM receipts 
for its ballot count, so did not attempt to fully compile them. The BRM receipt tabulations provided 
to the County therefore are not, and were never intended to be, an accurate characterization of the 
County’s mail-in votes. 

The Big Island, like other counties, tabulates ballots by entering the information into the statewide 
voter registration system (“SVRS”), a database that tracks registration and voting. Through the 
SVRS, the number of return envelopes can be compared to the number of voted ballots. In the 
words of Chief Election Officer Scott Nago: 

 
2 Commissioner Cushnie incorrectly stated in this email that “[t]he State reported counting 76,595 
ballots.” (Appendix 6.) The State actually reported 76,595 mail-in ballots, but a total ballot count 
of 83,686. (Appendix 1.) 



3 
 

[T]he counties receive, validate, and track return identification envelopes, from 
voters using the statewide voter registration system. From there, the validated 
return identification envelopes are transferred to the State-operated counting 
center to open, process, and count. As voted ballots are processed at the counting 
center, our office compares the number of return envelopes accounted for in the 
statewide voter registration system to the number of voted ballots counted by the 
voting system. 

(Appendix 2 at p. 2.) 

Further: 

The [SVRS] tracks the issuance of ballots for both mail and in-person voting. In 
terms of mail voting, the return identification envelope includes a barcode with a 
unique identifier associated with each voter. Return identification envelopes are 
scanned by the county clerks as part of the validation process and the statewide 
voter registration system is updated to reflect the receipt of the return identification 
envelopes. The system can also track other situations. For example, it can track if a 
previously validly issued ballot needs to be invalidated, such as when a voter 
changes address and requires a new ballot associated with the contests in their new 
community to be issued to them and the previously issued ballot to be invalidated. 

(Appendix 2 at p. 2.) 

Mr. Nago’s explanation indicates that the State already compiles totals of the ballot envelopes as 
a safeguard. Commissioner Cushnie, despite having access to those totals, sought out a separate 
source for tabulating ballot envelopes. However, the BRM receipt totals presented by 
Commissioner Cushnie are substantially incomplete, so do not allow for a valid comparison. 

The BRM records encompass October 17, 2024 through November 5, 2024 and include two 
separate tallies: “Qualified BRM” and “High-Volume Qualified BRM.” (Appendix 7.)3 Excluding 
Saturdays and Sundays, the relevant period includes 14 days. (Appendix 8.) Based on collections 
of both Qualified BRM and High-Volume Qualified BRM each day, 28 separate subtotals were 
necessary to result in a complete tally. But 10 of the 28 subtotals are absent: 

Date Qualified BRM High-Volume Qualified BRM 

10/17/2024         ?         ? 

10/18/2024         ?         1,306 

10/21/2024         2,208          ? 

10/22/2024         ?         3,640  

 
3 The BRM records do not include the envelopes deposited in County dropboxes—represented by 
Mr. Cushnie to total 27,912—or ballots completed in-person. 



4 
 

10/23/2024         2,230          2,597  

10/24/2024         1,710          1,876  

10/25/2024         1,697          1,782  

10/28/2024         ?         2,691  

10/29/2024         ?         1,943  

10/30/2024         ?         1,732  

10/31/2024         ?         1,373  

11/1/2024         ?           783  

11/4/2024        170          1,470  

11/5/2024         90             343  

 
Mr. Henricks, when interviewed for this report, stated that, although the County had received 
partial BRM totals from the USPS, it had not attempted to compile of them, and that as a result, 
the BRM numbers did not represent a reliable total. Again, as he stated in his August 1, 2025 
response to our records request: “The County does not use BRM statements to reconcile ballot 
envelope counts. The process used to reconcile relies solely on cross checks with the voter 
registration system and the ballot counting system.” (Appendix 5 at p. 1.) 

Moreover, even if the County or the State chose to collect all of the available BRM receipt totals, 
it is highly questionable whether they could rely on them. According to an October 10, 2023 Audit 
Report by the Office of Inspector General entitled “Business Reply Mail Operations,” the USPS’s 
BRM records system is not trustworthy. (Appendix 9.) In a section entitled “What We Found,” the 
Inspector General cited “processing delays, insufficient data, and incomplete close-out 
procedures,” and concluded that “BRM data was also unreliable as … daily processed and 
unprocessed volumes were not captured in any system.” (Appendix 9 at p. 1.) 

Further, it is not credible to suggest that only 57,553 mail-in ballots were cast in the Big Island 
2024 general election. Together with the 7,091 ballots cast in-person, the result would be a total 
turnout of just 64,644, or less than 48%, far below historic precedent. In presidential elections 
since 1996, Big Island turnout has averaged 65%, and has never fallen below 58.4% in that time. 
(Appendix 10.) The actual 2024 Big Island turnout of 62% (Appendix 1) aligns both with precedent 
and the 2024 statewide turnout of 60.7% (Appendix 11). Accordingly, this permitted interaction 
group does not believe that common sense warrants accepting incomplete and unreliable USPS 
data as indicative of a “discrepancy” in the Big Island voting totals. 

Finally, we cannot endorse the idea that the County is required to take further steps to disprove the 
unfounded allegations discussed above. We are aware of assertions that Hawaii Administrative 



5 
 

Rule (“HAR”) § 3-177-453 requires the County to disclose “records”—beyond the tabulation 
already provided—of ballot envelopes, but that is incorrect. Section 3-177-453 provides only that: 

(a) The chief election officer or designated representative shall maintain a complete 
count of marksense ballots. All ballots shall be safeguarded to prevent mishandling 
or misuse. 

(b) The clerk shall maintain a complete and current count of all marksense ballots 
issued, spoiled, and received in their county. The accounting of marksense ballots 
by the clerk shall be recorded on forms prescribed by the chief election officer. 

(Appendix 12.) Nothing in the cited rule requires counties to produce ballot envelopes to the 
public. Further, this permitted interaction group rejects the notion that unfounded allegations and 
an erroneous analysis should force the County to do so. 

Conclusion 
As commissioners, it is appropriate to identify problems that need resolution, but it is also our 
responsibility not to unnecessarily feed mistrust in voting or otherwise harm the system we 
oversee. Elections succeed because the citizenry trusts the process. When we encourage voters to 
pursue conspiracies or to believe that government workers are hiding ballots or creating new ones, 
we significantly damage the system on which our democracy depends. This permitted interaction 
group does not pretend that any election is perfect, but can assure the public that, at least in the 
case of these allegations, the claims of a significant voting discrepancy have no apparent basis. 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX 1 



GENERAL ELECTION 2024 - State of Hawaii - County of Hawai'i
November 5, 2024

SUMMARY REPORT 
Final 

Page 1

Printed on: 11/13/2024 at 06:34:02 pm

President and Vice President

(D) HARRIS, Kamala D. 
For PRESIDENT
WALZ, Tim 
For VICE PRESIDENT

52,163 62.3%

(R) TRUMP, Donald J. 
For PRESIDENT
VANCE, JD 
For VICE PRESIDENT

28,748 34.4%

(G) STEIN, Jill 
For PRESIDENT
WARE, Rudolph
For VICE PRESIDENT

955 1.1%

(L) OLIVER, Chase 
For PRESIDENT
TER MAAT, Mike 
For VICE PRESIDENT

492 0.6%

(SL) DE LA CRUZ, Claudia 
For PRESIDENT
GARCIA, Karina 
For VICE PRESIDENT

337 0.4%

(S) SONSKI, Peter 
For PRESIDENT
ONAK, Lauren
For VICE PRESIDENT

128 0.2%

Blank Votes: 777 0.9%
Over Votes: 86 0.1%

U.S. Senator

(D) HIRONO, Mazie K. 54,691 65.4%

(R) MCDERMOTT, Bob 22,747 27.2%

(G) POHLMAN, Emma Jane Avila 1,600 1.9%

(W) BILLIONAIRE, Shelby Pikachu 1,479 1.8%

Blank Votes: 3,092 3.7%
Over Votes: 77 0.1%

U.S. Representative, Dist II

(D) TOKUDA, Jill N. 53,501 63.9%

(R) BOND, Steve 21,346 25.5%

(L) TOMAN, Aaron 1,625 1.9%

(N) MEYER, Randall Kelly 1,086 1.3%

Blank Votes: 6,070 7.3%
Over Votes: 58 0.1%

State Senator, Dist 3

(D) KANUHA, Dru Mamo 13,112 63.1%

(R) SULLIVAN, Kurt (Sulli) 6,273 30.2%

Blank Votes: 1,388 6.7%
Over Votes: 15 0.1%

State Representative, Dist 3

(D) TODD, Christopher L.T. 5,821 61.1%

(R) WILSON, Kanoa 2,793 29.3%

(L) MARTIN, Austin D. (Shiloh) 276 2.9%

Blank Votes: 629 6.6%
Over Votes: 10 0.1%

State Representative, Dist 4

(D) ILAGAN, Greggor 6,573 66.3%

(R) HO, Keikilani 2,825 28.5%

Blank Votes: 513 5.2%
Over Votes: 10 0.1%

State Representative, Dist 5

(D) KAPELA, Jeanne 5,737 56.0%

(R) OYAMA, Ashley 3,466 33.8%

(L) FOGEL, Frederick F. 300 2.9%

Blank Votes: 730 7.1%
Over Votes: 16 0.2%

State Representative, Dist 6

(D) KAHALOA, Kirstin 6,221 55.3%

(R) MADISON, Sylvie M. 3,891 34.6%

Blank Votes: 1,123 10.0%
Over Votes: 5 0.0%

State Representative, Dist 7

(D) LOWEN, Nicole 4,920 52.2%

(R) DALHOUSE, Timothy A. (Tim) 3,953 41.9%

Blank Votes: 548 5.8%
Over Votes: 6 0.1%

State Representative, Dist 8

(D) TARNAS, David A. 6,331 59.4%

(R) PERREIRA, Monique CobbAdams 3,822 35.8%

Blank Votes: 505 4.7%
Over Votes: 8 0.1%

Molokai Resident Trustee

ALAPA, Luana 25,528 30.5%

NIHIPALI, R. Kunani 19,796 23.7%

Blank Votes: 38,300 45.8%
Over Votes: 62 0.1%

Kauai Resident Trustee

AHUNA, Dan 23,869 28.5%

LINDSEY, Laura A. 20,100 24.0%

Blank Votes: 39,666 47.4%
Over Votes: 51 0.1%

At-Large Trustee

AKINA, Keli'i 32,743 39.1%

AHU ISA, Lei 17,536 21.0%

Blank Votes: 33,353 39.9%
Over Votes: 54 0.1%

Mayor, County of Hawai'i

ALAMEDA, C. Kimo 44,165 52.8%

ROTH, Mitch 35,560 42.5%

Blank Votes: 3,897 4.7%
Over Votes: 64 0.1%

Councilmember, Dist 5, County of Hawai'i

KANEALI'I-KLEINFELDER, Matt 4,309 50.5%

RODENHURST, Ikaika 3,265 38.3%

Blank Votes: 944 11.1%
Over Votes: 8 0.1%

Councilmember, Dist 9, County of Hawai'i

HUSTACE, James E. 5,182 53.4%

EVANS, Cindy 3,726 38.4%

Blank Votes: 793 8.2%
Over Votes: 4 0.0%

CON. AMEND.: Marriage

YES 43,973 52.5%

NO 32,749 39.1%

Blank Votes: 6,621 7.9%
Over Votes: 343 0.4%

CON. AMEND.: Senate Confirmation Process for Judicial 
Appointments
YES 49,774 59.5%

NO 21,318 25.5%

Blank Votes: 12,529 15.0%
Over Votes: 65 0.1%

HAWAI'I: County Council Vacancy in Office

YES 56,218 67.2%

NO 16,203 19.4%

Blank Votes: 11,196 13.4%
Over Votes: 69 0.1%

HAWAI'I: Mayoral Appointment of Department Heads

YES 58,183 69.5%

NO 15,230 18.2%

Blank Votes: 10,212 12.2%
Over Votes: 61 0.1%

HAWAI'I: Term of Office for the Cost of Government 
Commission
YES 28,951 34.6%

NO 42,467 50.7%

Blank Votes: 12,210 14.6%
Over Votes: 58 0.1%

REGISTRATION AND TURNOUT

TOTAL REGISTRATION 135,077

TOTAL TURNOUT 83,686 62.0%

MAIL TURNOUT 76,595 56.7%

IN-PERSON TURNOUT 7,091 5.2%

***********************************************
GENERAL
***********************************************

(G) - GREEN PARTY (G)   (S) - SOLIDARITY PARTY (S)   (R) - REPUBLICAN PARTY (R)   (D) - DEMOCRATIC PARTY (D)   (N) - NONPARTISAN BALLOT (N)   (L) - LIBERTARIAN PARTY (L)   (SL) - PARTY 
FOR SOCIALISM AND LIBERATION (SL)   (W) - WE THE PEOPLE (W)   (I) - INDEPENDENT (I)   (NL) - NO LABELS (NL)

::=:::::::::::=========~::=:::::::::::=========~ 

::=:::::::::::=========~..._____-



APPENDIX 2 



SCOTT T. NAGO 
CHIEF ELECTION OFFICER 

STATE OF HAWAII 
OFFICE OF ELECTIONS 

802 LEHUA AVENUE 

PEARL CITY, HAWAII 96782 

elections.hawaii.gov 

March 17, 2025 

Chair Curtis and Members of the Elections Commission 
c/o Office of Elections 
802 Lehua Avenue 
Pearl City, HI 96782 

Dear Chair Curtis and Members of the Elections Commission: 

Our office has heard various concerns related to the handling of ballots by the 
county clerks prior to their receipt at our State counting center. They have come in the 
form of lawsuits, correspondence with our office, and correspondence with the Elections 
Commission taking issue with various aspects of what these concerns term "chain of 
custody." In response, our office would like to provide an overview of the roles of the 
Office of Elections and county clerks, and the associated transfer of materials from the 
county to the State. 

I. ROLES OF THE OFFICE OF ELECTIONS AND THE COUNTY CLERKS 

The roles and responsibilities in the administration of elections in Hawaii are 
divided between State and county offices. 

The Office of Elections is a State agency administratively attached to the 
Department of Accounting and General Services that provides support to the Chief 
Election Officer. See HRS § 11-1.5. As provided for in Article IV, Section 3, of the Hawaii 
State Constitution, the Legislature has established specific statutory responsibilities of 
the Chief Election Officer that are found in Title 2, HRS. 

At the county level, there are the county clerks who are appointed by their 
respective county councils and have duties and responsibilities based on their county 
charters, along with specific state laws, a significant portion of which involve the conduct 
of elections. 

The regularly scheduled primary election and general election are considered 
combined federal, state, and county elections in which federal, state, and county 
contests, along with questions, appear on the same ballot. Since 2020, all elections are 



Elections Commission 
March 17, 2025 
Page2 

required to be conducted by mail, with accommodations for voting in person at 

designated voter service centers. See HRS§§ 11-101 and 11-109. 

The duties and responsibilities of the Office of Elections and county clerks in 

these types of elections are primarily summarized in HRS§§ 11-110(b)(1)(A) & (8). 

Specifically, "[t]he counties shall be responsible for voter registration, absentee voting, 

voter service centers, places of deposit, and the mailing and receipt of ballots," while 

"[t]he State shall be responsible for the printing and counting of ballots. Id. The counting 

of ballots occurs at State counting centers operated by the Office of Elections. See

HRS § 16-41. One of the benefits of the roles and responsibilities of election officials 

being divided is that it naturally establishes checks and balances of the processes such 

that there is no single entity completing all tasks and reconciliation. 

As an example, the counties receive, validate, and track return identification 

envelopes, from voters using the statewide voter registration system. From there, the 

validated return identification envelopes are transferred to the State-operated counting 

center to open, process, and count. As voted ballots are processed at the counting 

center, our office compares the number of return envelopes accounted for in the 

statewide voter registration system to the number of voted ballots counted by the voting 

system. 

II. TRANSFER BETWEEN COUNTY AND STATE

As provided for in HRS§ 11-102, election officials "mail a ballot package by non­

forwardable mail to each registered voter[,]" except for those who are "identified as 

having an outdated or non-deliverable mailing address." The ballot package itself 

includes: (1) the ballot, (2) return identification envelope; and (3) secrecy sleeve. Voters 

are also able to choose to vote at a voter service center. See HRS§ 11-109. 

The statewide voter registration system tracks the issuance of ballots for both 

mail and in-person voting. In terms of mail voting, the return identification envelope 

includes a barcode with a unique identifier associated with each voter. Return 

identification envelopes are scanned by the county clerks as part of the validation 

process and the statewide voter registration system is updated to reflect the receipt of 

the return identification envelopes. The system can also track other situations. For 

example, it can track if a previously validly issued ballot needs to be invalidated, such 

as when a voter changes address and requires a new ballot associated with the 

contests in their new community to be issued to them and the previously issued ballot to 

be invalidated. 



Elections Commission 
March 17, 2025 
Page 3 

For in-person voting, the issuance of a ballot to a voter at a voter service center 
is tracked by the statewide voter registration system. The voter directly casts the ballot 
in the voting machine, which scans it and drops it into a secure ballot box. Ballots 
issued at a voter service center are simultaneously considered received for purposes of 
the statewide voter registration system in terms of crediting the voter with having voted. 

This tracking mechanism in the statewide voter registration system effectuates 
the language of HAR§ 3-177-453(b) (i.e. "The clerk shall maintain a complete and 
current count of all marksense ballots issued, spoiled, and received in their county. The 
accounting of marksense ballots by the clerk shall be recorded on forms prescribed by 
the chief election officer). In other words, the "form" is electronic in that the county clerks 
interact with the statewide voter registration system for purposes of tracking the 
issuance, receipt, and spoiling of ballots. 

The validated return identification envelopes are transferred by the county clerks 
to the State for purposes of opening and counting at the State counting center, along 
with the ballots that were already processed by the voting machines at the voter service 
centers. The amount of return identification envelopes and voter service center ballots 
are known values due to the previously mentioned statewide voter registration system 
that the county clerks interact with to track the ballots. 

While the transfer of return identification envelopes and voter service center 
ballots is the responsibility of the county clerks, we seek to work collaboratively with 
their offices to conduct honest and efficient elections. As an outline, first, the county 
clerks secure the voted materials (e.g., return identification envelopes, voted ballot 
containers). Second, they transfer these items using Official Observers as witnesses to 
the State counting center. This typically involves a handoff at the county clerk's office to 
a team of election officials and Official Observers who take custody of the items. 

To emphasize, the counties know the exact number of ballots transferred to the 
counting center, due to the previously noted statewide voter registration system. In 
terms of the documentation of the transfer, each county does it in their own way (e.g. 
some additionally indicate in their documentation the number of envelopes in their 
documentation, while others do not). The documentation itself consists of either the 
counties using the State's multi-purpose Certification of Sealing/Unsealing form, which 



Elections Commission 
March 17, 2025 
Page4 

is a form used within the State's counting center, or creating its own paperwork to 
accompany the ballots.1 

At the counting center, the return identification envelopes are opened, and the 
voted ballots are scanned by the vote counting system and securely stored. However, 
this does not apply to those having invalid ballot conditions. Invalid ballot conditions 
which stop a ballot from being counted, such as the envelope or secrecy sleeve is 
returned without a ballot or the voter returned two voted ballots (e.g. two household 
members accidentally enclose both of their ballots in a single return identification 
envelope) are tracked. Ballots invalidated at the counting center are not counted and 
are securely maintained by the Office of Elections. 

2024 General Election Seal Certification Forms 

The documents related to the transfer of ballots from the county clerks to our 
State counting centers are enclosed. 

The County of Hawaii used the State's Certification of Sealing/Certification of 
Unsealing form to transfer materials to the State counting center. The form is a 
multipurpose form that can be used for various containers and associated content. The 
Certification of Sealing/Certification of Unsealing documents reflect the documents that 
a reasonable search of our records have produced that could have been used in 
connection with the transfer of ballots from the county to the State counting center. All of 
them have been provided, and they have been bates stamped HAWAII 001 to HAWAII 
114. 

The County of Maui used the State's Certification of Sealing/Certification of 
Unsealing form to transfer materials to the State counting center. The form is a 
multipurpose form that can be used for various containers and associated content. The 
Certification of Sealing/Certification of Unsealing documents reflect the documents that 
a reasonable search of our records have produced that could have been used in 

1 The Certificatlon of Sealing/Unsealing form addresses various procedural matters and is found on pages 
33, 51, 57, 83, 100, 108, and 125 of our 2024 Counting Center manual. Counting Center, Office of 
Elections, https://elections.hawaii.gov/wp-content/uploads/2024-Counting-Center-manual.pdf, Accessed 
12 Mar. 2025. For example, seals are used in conjunction with the documentation of the sealing and 
unsealing of the following: (1) ballot transport containers (BTCs); (2) discard boxes; (3) equipment 
transport containers (ETCs); (4) security cages; (5) voted ballot containers (VBCs); (6) written vDrive 
cans; and (7) other containers. The contents of these items could include the following: (1) certified 
results; (2) County USB archives; (3) defective ballots; (4) duplicate ballot stock; (5) invalidated ballots; 
(6) test ballots; (7) test results; (8) unprocessed control packets; (9) vDrives (blank); (10) vDrives (test & 
accumulation); (11) vDrives (written & audit); (12) Verity Transmit devices; (13) voted ballots (counted); 
(14) voted ballots (uncounted); and (15) other ltems. 



Elections Commission 
March 17, 2025 
Page 5 

connection with the transfer of ballots from the county to the State counting center. All of 
them have been provided, and they have been bates stamped MAUI 001 to MAUI 036. 

Our review of these documents reflected that some of the documents concerning 
the transfer of validated mail ballots, as opposed to voter service center ballots, that we 
expected to see were not present and may have been misplaced due to human error. 
We contacted the County of Maui, and it confirmed the process by which it would use 
the Certification of Sealing/Certification of Unsealing document each time it sealed 
validated return identification envelopes for transfer. Likewise, we confirmed with 
counting center staff that they unsealed the containers and filled out the Certification of 
Sealing/Certification of Unsealing forms as they had in prior elections. The forms 
ultimately should have been placed in the cut seals envelope, but our search of those 
envelopes does not reflect the forms. 

We would emphasize that this human error appears to have resulted from the 
volume of forms and documents handled in the course of the election and is not 
indicative of a systemic issue or breach in the security of the ballots. Election processes 
are purposefully layered for redundancies. In this and all instances related to the 
security of the handling of the return envelopes, the county clerks maintain a record of 
the number of envelopes accepted through the statewide voter registration system on a 
regular (e.g., daily) basis. Likewise, our office tracks the number of voted ballots 
counted by the voting system on the dates of counting. 

The County of Kauai used their own forms for the transfer of mail ballots, while 
using the State's Certification of Sealing/Certification of Unsealing forms for voted 
ballots from the voter service centers. As such, the county created forms, and all of the 
Certification of Sealing/Certification of Unsealing forms have been provided. They have 
been bates stamped KAUAI 001 to KAUAI 023. 

The City and County of Honolulu used their own forms for the transfer of mail 
ballots and voter service center ballots. They have been bates stamped CITY 001 to 
CITY 159. The documentation of ballots associated with the transfer of mail ballots 
involved two forms. The first is their seal certification form. To the extent the form 
indicated a security cage or another container held uncounted ballots from its AIPA 
location, there was a corresponding form entitled "Mail Ballot Transfer Form," which 
would repeat the name of the container, indicate the number trays, and state the 
number of envelopes. This would be followed by a sheet of paper indicating each 
individual tray and how many envelopes were in each tray. Otherwise, the seal 
certification form was used to transfer voted ballots from its voter service centers. The 
form would indicate if the location was Honolulu Hale, Kapolei Hale, Kaneohe District 



Elections Commission 
March 17, 2025 
Page6 

Park, or Wahiawa District Park. Please note that in relation to Seal No. 2456635 (CITY 
156 to CITY 159), while it was originally sealed using the City's form, the unsealing of it 
was documented on the State's form. Otherwise, the unsealing of the City's ballots at 
the State counting center was done using the original form that had been used to 
document the initial sealing. 

2024 General Election Over/Under Report 

Throughout the election, officials regularly track the number of return 
identification envelopes accounted for in the statewide voter registration system and the 
number of voted ballots counted by the vote counting system. The final reconciliation, or 
the Over/Under Report, of the 2 systems is compiled after each election in relation to 
the certification of the results. The 2024 General Election Over/Under Report is 
enclosed. 

The reconciliation process in which we compare the number of ballots received 
and validated by the county clerks as documented in the statewide voter registration 
system against the number of ballots our office counted is one of the safeguards we 
follow to ensure chain of custody - or the handling, accounting, and security of the 
ballots. The information in the statewide voter registration system as to who voted is 
supported by the signed return identification envelopes for all voters who voted by mail 
and the in-person applications signed by all voters who voted in person. Likewise, the 
election results are supported by the actual ballots that have been preserved. We would 
note that the accounting of mail ballots is adjusted to address invalid ballot conditions 
that were recorded during the ballot opening process at the State counting centers. 

As a summary of the 2024 General Election Over/Under report, the table below 
provides a cumulative comparison on the number of return envelopes received by the 
county clerk (i.e., Adj. Mail Total, Walk Turnout) as compared to the number of ballots 
counted at the State-operated counting centers (i.e., Mail Pree. Report, In-Person Pree. 
Report): 

Adj. Mail Total Mail Pree. walk Turnout In-Person Pree. 
Report Report 

County of Hawaii 76,587 76,595 7,091 7,091 

County of Maui 57,681 57,713 5,860 5,860 

County of Kauai 27,050 27,075 3,484 3,491 

City and County of Honolulu 321,734 321,695 22,698 22,716 



Elections Commission 
March 17, 2025 
Page7 

Total (Statewide) 

Ill. CONCLUSION 

483,052 483,078 39,133 39,158 

Recently, the issue of election integrity has been raised by some who allege what 
they see as "chain of custody" concerns. The processes by which Hawaii election 
officials maintain "chain of custody" come in many shapes and forms, all of which have 
merit and credibility. Our election officials, at all levels, work with the utmost integrity and 
dignity to ensure secure and accurate elections. 

Among the allegations is a concern that there is a lack of transparency in 
the transfer of materials from the county to the State. However, any discussion 
regarding any alleged risks or opportunities for tampering with our elections first 
requires an understanding of how our elections operate and the procedures and 
safeguards that are in place. For example, when someone seeks to review and 
challenge a single process in isolation, they might not appreciate that the election 
has to be viewed in totality and that a check may already have been applied or 
will be conducted later in the process to address the issue they are concerned 
about. The layered safeguards and intentional checks election officials implement 
as part of their election processes are meant to work together to prevent and 
identify issues. 

These processes include division of responsibilities between the county clerk and 
State Office of Elections as well as the tracking, accounting for, and securing ballots by 
hundreds of county and State election officials and volunteers, statewide. As we strive 
for excellence with each election, we will continue to work with the county clerks to 
refine the process of transferring materials between entities. 

Finally, we would emphasize that there are provisions to file election contests 
with the Hawaii Supreme Court to resolve anomalies that challenge the accuracy and 
integrity of the results. Specifically, complaints in such cases are required to "set forth 
any cause of causes, such as but not limited to, provable fraud, overages, or 
underages, that could cause a difference in the election results." See HRS §11-172. 
Allegations regarding "chain of custody" must necessarily allege provable fraud, 
overages, or underages that could cause a difference in the election results. 



Elections Commission 
March 17, 2025 
Page 8 

If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me at (808) 453-VOTE 
(8683). 

Enclosures 

Very truly yours, 

SCOTT T. NAGO 
Chief Election Officer 



APPENDIX 3 



�

�������	
������

��	�
����	�� � �������
��������������

� �� ����������� �!!��"�#�!�$��#�%%!��!�$��� 
&'()�*�+�,(-.+�
��)&',�/0�)1���-��)&/'*��/

&**&/'�� 
��������������2���3���.
���4�
4�	�����*�����	���5678��1�9����+�:�
�;�*���4��
�������������	
������

��	�<��=�9����>�������	���������?�4
�	���	�������:����	@���	�������	����?7��������

��	��
��	�.���	;�	��3��� 
��������4���
��������� A?��	�.	;���	�� .	����.B4�	��� +��C���4
�	���� D�@@��?�E49�;���� ������
�.;���� D�@@��?�/
���F��C�� E������	����C����4�� �*4CC����*��@@��	�.���	;�	��3��D��;�	����	���A�C�����	���@�����.����	�?�,�	�����<.,=�D�G�����.�����F���/@@�����@��������	
��*�����'�����/@@�����@��������	
��.���	�*��4��	����/@@�����@��������	
�.4����)�		��/@@�����@��������	
��� � �+/���A&',*��&7� ��������/�;���H��3����7�7I�����)������4���������	���@������������	
������

��	�9�
������;������;���>?��������4���
7����

MJCttAEl. CURTIS 
a.ECTKmS COMMISSION CHAIR 



�

�������	
������

��	�
����	�� � �������
��������������

���� �����������	���������	����	������� �� ��!��"�������#����� $������%��
���������������	
������

��	�&����'��
�	��������������	��&���������(��'���	���������

��	���)� 	����������

��	���*
���+��'��	���������������	�������"���������	�������

��	���, &�����	���������������	�������"�-������������� $''��.����������/�����	�
�	 ��
����������0�	 ��1���������������	��!��"�������#����� �����

��	���
�$������.�������''��.��������	 ��
��2��������	�&�
�
���	����%1������

��	���� 
�	����!��"�������#�������

��	���� 
�	�����.���������	��������	 ��
��������3�����4�����$���	�3�� ��	�����	��$ ����2�		����������
���������	���
��2��������	�&�
�
���	����%1������

��	���$	����	��	��567789:� 	�	��� 
�1�	���	�������(� 
����%
�	�����������

��	���, &�����	�������

��	���)� 	���!��"�������#�� �� �����

��	���$; �	����.���������	��������	 ��
�����	�� ���<���'�
���������%��
������������
��� ����	���������	
������

��	=���������

��	���)� 	�>
������	����������"���'���������	�������������	��������%�'����
�	���
+��������2��������	�&�
�
���	����%1������

��	���� 
�	����	��567789:� 	�	��� 
�1�	���	�������(� 
����%
�	�����������

��	���, &�����	�������

��	���)� 	���!��"�?�����#����@�� ���� 	������	
�A������
'�	��	���������.������������������!��"�������#�� �����

��	���
�$������.�����������.������ 	������	
�A������
'�	��	�������������������2��������	�&�
�
���	����%1������

��	���, &�����	��B68C9:�	���	�������(� 
����%
�	�����������

��	���)� 	���!��"�������#�� )�3"���, &�����
�$�����*
���+��'��� ���
��4*"�$	����	��$; �	���� 
�	������'���� ������ �����

��	���� 
�	�����.���������	�����������	���������.���	����
� 

�����&�����	����� 	������	
��2��������	�&�
�
���	����%1������

��	���$	����	��	��B68C9:�	���	�������(� 
����%
�	�����������

��	���)� 	���!��"�������#�� )�3"���$	����	��$; �	���� 
�	������'���� ������4*"�, &�����
�$�����*
���+��'��� ���
��@�� 
�����
����� %�����������!��"�������#�����



�

�������	
������

��	�
����	�� � �������
��������������

���� ������
���� �
�!���"������#���$��%�������&���������� ��
 ��
��"�����' �����"�()��*�"�������������+�	������������	�$��%�*�����&��� '	�,����

��	��-��.�������
����	,� ���	�����������

��	����.�����	��	.�
������	���""���������-���	�
��������	���������	��

 �
���/������	��"�� 
���,��	����
���-�	���
��	�0�������� 	�
�0��1��	������� 	���
��	������
�������2�����)��1�����-��.�������
����	,��3-��

�	����	���	
��0� ������,
��	������ ����-����

�"���)�
�������*��	���������/��"����� 	������	�"��������#""�����"��������	
���
�1�����
��	��	
�
��	���
��	���������	��"�� 
���,�-����� ��
�� ��	���������	
-�������	��	����	���	���"�0�����
�� ���	�����������

��	������-��.������ 	������	��	���.��
������	�" � ����������	
���4������5�
�-��.�������
����	,��������6�	�����������

��	�"���
���	��	��- 0�����	- ���	��"����	����������

�"���������-���	�
�������	��"��������������	���.�	���	���	��	��-�	��	����.��1���	��������
�������	��"�- 0������ 
���	�����	
-���	�,���7����)��/
�-��.�������
����	,�-��
�	��	��"��������	���.���	�����������6�	������ 
���"�-��
����0�	
�"���0������
��������������	��������-����
����������	�
�� ���,���	��
�������������
�"���������-���	�
���.��0��	���	�������

����	������������������	
�����"�� � ��	����8���0,�9�����	�����-��.�������
����	,��3-��

�	��"� 
������	��.����������/��"�-�����

��	��������	�0���
���������6��������	"� �	����"�-���,���	������	���������
����.��-����

���	���		� 	���������������	��"���	�1�-���������-���,������#��	��:	��,�����,�����������	�������� ���	��
,
������ '		
�����(������	�-��.�������
����	,��������6�	������1��/	�

�
��	�(�1���;
��������	�����	��"�� 
���,������������������
���"�0��������
���-�	���
��	�7� �����	����������	����������

��	�����	.�
��������	�������

�-���	�����"�� ���	��. �	���0������
��	�����
,
������)� ����
	�/���
��"�����0� ������"��� ����������	������������	�������
��	��-����� ���������
��	��������<���	������������	�� ���	�����������

��	�����	.�
��������	���	"��������-���	���1�����������	���1
���=���	����	����
��"�����0� ���

 �
�1������������	��"�� 
���,��
��	�� ���.���"������	���	���������/��"����	
-���	�,��	������ 	��0����,��	�(�1���;
��������	�-����

���""���	��
�.������������	�����	
�"�����-��.���	����2�		�( 	��-��.�������
����	,��3-��

�	��"� 
������	��.����������/��"������	��	�����"���������-���	���������	������	��"�� 
���,�.�������	
����

�	���""�������0
��.��
���	��������
�������"����������	���1
��-����� ����,��	�
� ���� 	�,��



�

�������	
������

��	�
����	�� � �������
��������������

���	�������	������������
����	�����������	����	���	
���� ���������!�	�����	��"�� 
������	��������	
�������	��"����	��	��
�������	��	���������#�	�����
��$���
 ����������� ���	��
�
���%��&�	�
�������������������
����	��
����	����	���	
���� ���������!��"�����	��"�� 
�������� ��	�����	�"����������	��	������
�� ���	���	��	��
�������	��	�����������	�
��������
�
����"�������������	
����	��%�������	����������������������
����	���'���

�	��"� 
������	����������������(
���	���	
�����	������	�������

��������������	������������"��� 
������ ������""�����
��	�� ���	������ 	��������%��)�����!�
������
������������
����	���'���

�	��"� 
������	�������������	�
���� ������	��"�� 
������	���������	������� ��
��������	����	������$��	���������""�����
�$���������������
�	��������� 	��������	���������#�������� ���	������������
�
�����	�*�$���%��
����	�+�
#�����#!�������������
����	��, �
���	�	����$������������	
�$���������"����$���� �������������	��"�� 
������	���������#���� ������""�����
�"���	�����
��	�	���������� ����(
���	���	
%�� +����	�����
���	������������
����	�����
�	����	���	
���� ������������	��"�����*�$������	
��� ���	��������	�����������	��"������	��	�������
��	���������!�	�����	��"�� 
�����������	��"������� 	����������	���	��
�������	%��*� 	�	�������������������
����	���'���

�	����	���	
���� ���������	��	����������������"��������� 	��$������	�
�����������������#�������������"�����	���	��� �������
����	����	������	�������� 	���������"���-�����.���%�� )�		�* 	������������������	�����
����	����, �
��	������������""�������������	�������������������������������������
�����
�	�����������
���, �
��� ����	���	
������""���
���������	�����	��"�� 
������	"�������	�"��������
� ���� 	�������!(
��""���%�� /�������������������
����	�����
�	����	���	
���� ������"��� ������"����$���������������	������

�
��, �
���	��������������	
������

��	(
��������	�����	��
������
���$� ���"����������
�"���"�� ���	�����"�%��
����*����������������
����	�������	��"����������	�
�
������"���
���	�� ��	��"���	��-�����.������������	��	��$�������!���������
��������	���������'�
���	��
�� ��	���������	
��	�*�$�����������"��������0��������	
%��)�		�"������1 �	���
��"������� ��������	��"�� 
������

 ���	�����	������"�����(
�������	���������, �
��	���	��	��
�������	��	���������������	��������	��
 ������	����"���
���!���	�2��������	���������������
���	��������34%�



�

�������	
������

��	�
����	�� � �������
��������������

����	�
�������������������
����	��
�������	������������ �!�������"�	��������
��
����
�����	�#��������	��!����	���	���	�������

���	���  ���������������	�������	���������	$�������

��	�����
�	������������
�����	�������������������������
� ������������%�	������������	$�&��������	�!�
�
���	������������

��	���'	����	��	��()*+,-�	���	�������.��
�����
�	���� ������

��	���/��	�$�0��123��$�$4�� /�51���'	����	��'6��	�����
�	������������������781�9�!�����
�'�����8
���"����������
��:;;;$�<'��2#�3�#3�8  �������������	�
��'

��	�&�
"�=��������>������	��:��������?��������	��=������;	��
�������	�0��1@���$�$4����� �����

��	�����
�	������������ �����������������	��������	�������A�;%B�����	��
�����������	�� ���
������������	�
��	�9������	���������	
���
���
���
�����	���
��	�����C���;
��	�$�&��������	�!�
�
���	������������

��	�������������	��D)EE*,-�	���	�������.��
�����
�	���� ������

��	���/��	�$�0��1@@��$�$4�� /�51���'	����	��'6��	�����
�	����
�'�����8
���"��������������������
������781�9�!����>������'%�F����	����	���.����	������������

�� � ����	�����;%��	��������5�	
��	��G�!$�&����;%�����!
�������������
�����	��
��������	�����
�	�� �	��	�
�����������
������� �	�����������	���	���������������
������	�����������$�H��	����;%���	�����
���
��	��
�������	��������
�	�
� �	��	�
��	���������	�����	
������
��
�6��	�������	����	�����������

��	�!�����	���������������������������	���	������
��
�6��	�������	�� ����!
�����$����	������� ��������������;%����
�	��������
��������
�����	����!��
$�'	��
�����	����6��
�
��������������;%�!�����	�������������
�	����������������

��	� ��������������	��������	���!�������������

��	I
��.�
��	��
�����	����!��
$�&��
����	
������;%���		����	�����������
�����	��������	�
������
��	
�
$�5�����	������
��	
���
��������������	����	��#��������������	�$�� '������	���������	��	����������!�����	�	#�����

��	�������
���	��������������	����;%�������!�����	��������
����������������$�&��������

��	���
���� �	������
������ ������������J
�������������	�����	��	�	#�����

��	����������	�
�� ��������;%$��



�

�������	
������

��	�
����	�� � �������
��������������

�����

��	������������������������	��������������������
������������� �����	�!��������	������

��	��
"�#��������	�$�
�
���	�����!������

��	���%&��	���	��'()*+,�	���	�������-��
�����
�	�����������

��	���.��	�"��/��0�1��"�"2�� .�30���%	����	��%&��	�����
�	����4�$�����
�%�����5
���6����������
������750����������������

��	�����
�	�����8�����������	�������

��	��
�5
���6�����
�%������	�������������������� ���	8�
������	���������	���
���
���
�����	���
��	�����9����
��	�"�#��������	�$�
�
���	�����!������

��	�������������	��:(;;)+,��	�	����
�!�	���	�������-��
�����
�	�����������

��	���.��	�"�/��0�<��"�"2�������

��	�����
�	�����8�����������	�������

��	���.��	��������

��	���%&��	����	��=�	�
�!�4������������� ���	8�
������	����������	������
���!��������	�
��	���	!��������������������
��	�4����"�#��������	�$�
�
���	�����!������

��	���%	����	��	��:(;;)+,�	���	�������-��
�����
�	�����������

��	���.��	�"�/��0�1��"�"2�� .�30���%	����	��%&��	�����
�	����4�$�����
�%��������������������
������750�5
���6������>"� ?�������������	��@������	��3��	����������������������������������	�/��0����"�"2��� #����@�A�
����8�������
����	!��������B�	�����������

��	�����	�����
��	�	����������������������	�����������	�
��	��������8���	������
�	��������
��������!�	���	��
�����	����$	�����
�	��8����
"��C���!	�����
���	����8�������
����	!��������B�	�������������
����������	��	���	��8�����
������
$�!����������

��	��	���8�������	��
�����	������	�������$�	��������D
�8����
������������������	�������������������
�
������������������	��������	���"��4��	����!��	����8�������
����	!��������B�	��������
�6�������
�������
���	���	������������	�
��������	������
�	��������$�	������������������
��	���
�����	���	������
�����		��������	����
�����8�����������������

��	"��E�����6�
������
����8�������
����	!��-���

�	�����
������	�$�������������

��	D
�����
��	
���������B�	��������	�������
���������6�	��������

������	������	
���������������	����6�	�����
�����	���������������
"��3����!�9�����	��������8�������
����	!��-���

�	�����
������	�$�������������

��	D
������	
���������B�	���������������
�����������	���	�������6����



�

�������	
������

��	�
����	�� � �������
��������������

������	���������
��	������
�������	
�������	������������	���������	�������������
��������� �����!��"�������� ����������
����	#��� ��
�$�	�������� ����	��������	
����	���	���	
���	��%�����������	
������  ��	���
��
����
����������	������ �������	��  ����	��#�����  �#���	���������	��������������
�
�������������
�#��	������  ��	���	�
!��&�	�#�'�����#� ����������
����	#��( ��

�	�����
������	���������������	�)
����*���� ������ ����	���������$��������������
)
�������
�� ���	����������������������	���	�������� �� ��)
���	���	
������ ���#��	����	��!�� +������'���	���
� ����������
����	#������	���������������������
�!������
������
�	�������������� ���	�����
���	����
������	�����	
 ���	�#��	������������	� ����

���	��
�  ������,�� ��������
�������
��	������

�	�����
���

��
!��-�	�
�#�.���� ����������
����	#��( ��

�	���	������	�#������������	�������	���	���������������������	����������
��	������������ ���	��	����������
�����
��	
����������� �������	�
!��/�		�0�	�� ����������
����	#���%��
��	��������������������� ���	������������	������
���#����������������� �� ����������#��������������
������
���
��*�	�#��������	�����������	���������#!��/�

�������#�� ����������
����	#��( ��

�	�����
������	���������������	�)
���	�������������$�	���������*���������	�������#��	����
 �	
���	�

�������� �� ��)
���	���	
���	�����������������������������
�������	�������������
!��.����1��*
� ����������
����	#��� ��
�$�	�������������������������	��  ��	��������
���������������������2�����	
�
��������������� �	�	����������������	���	����	
���������	��,�����)
�����
���������!�������

��	�����
�	���������������������1� ��#�3����	�#�4�	������	
����1������
	�*5
�%��
���	���������
������������6�����+�������������#��	��������	�������������
����������!�7��������	���
�
���	�����#������

��	���3	����	��	��89:;<=�	���	�������(��
�����
�	�����������

��	���>��	�!�?�@��� !�!A�� >�6@���3	����	��3%��	�����
�	������ �����������+B@�.�������
�3�����B
���*�� �������
��C!� 3�2���	��	��?�@�D� !�!A����������������
���2���	������������	������@�D� !�!���



�

�������	
������

��	�
����	�� � �������
��������������

��
����������
������� ���!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!��"�#�����$�����%���������	
������

��	�&����������



APPENDIX 4 



Jeffrey M. Osterkamp 
Chair, Permitted Interaction Group 

Hawai'i Island ElecUon Ballot Issues 

Jon Henricks, County Clerk 

STATE OF HAWAII 
ELECTIONS COMMISSION 

July 11 , 2025 

Hawai'i County Office of the County Clerk 
Elections Division 
25 Aupuni Street, Suite 1502 
Hilo, HI 96720 

Dear Mr. Henricks: 

The State of Hawai'i Elections Commission has approved the creation of a 
Permitted Interaction Group to review complaints concerning purported Hawai'i Island 
election ballot reporting inconsistencies. As the chair of the Permitted Interaction Group, 
I hereby request that you provide the following documents: 

1) Any complaints received by your office concerning purported Hawai'i Island 
election ballot reporting inconsistencies, including with respect to a claimed 
19,000 vote surplus. 

2) Any analysis or substantiation of the above-referenced complaints. 

3) Any determinations that one or more of the above-referenced complaints lack 
merit or substantiation. 

4) Any responses to the above-referenced complaints by your office or any other 
governmental entity. 

I respectfully ask that all such records be provided electronically to the Elections 
Commission at elections.commission@hawaii.gov. Alternatively, the records may be 
transmitted to the Elections Commission , c/o Office of Elections, 802 Lehua Avenue, 
Pearl City, HI 96782. In either case, please specify that the records are to be directed to 
my attention. 



Jon Henricks, County Clerk 
July 11, 2025 
Page 2 

Thank you for your assistance in this matter. If you have any questions, please 
call the Office of Elections at (808) 453-8683. 

JO:rd 
EC-25-003 

Sincerely, 

Jeffrey M. Osterkamp 
Chair, Permitted Interaction Group 
Hawai'i Island Election Ballot Issues 

c: Michael Curtis, Elections Commission Chair 



APPENDIX 5 



JON HENRICKS 
County Clerk 

August 1, 2025 

County of Hawai'i 
Office of the County Clerk 

25 Aupuni Street, Suite 1402 • Hilo, Hawai'i 96720 
(808) 961-8255 • Fax (808) 961-8912 

State of Hawai'i Elections Commission 
Via email: elections.commission@hawaii.gov 

Re: PIG - Hawai'i Island Election Ballot Issues 

Commissioner Osterkamp: 

AARON BROWN 
Deputy County Clerk 

Please see below responses to the Permitted Interaction Group's July 11, 2025, request 
for information regarding complaints of election ballot reporting inconsistencies. 

1) Any complaints received by your office concerning purported Hawai'i Island 
election ballot reporting inconsistencies, including with respect to a claimed 
19,000 vote surplus. 

Attached are emails received from the following individuals, which could be 
characterized as inquiries as opposed to complaints but are being provided given 
the context of the PIG's review: 

• Dalene McCormick (11/24/24) 
• lkaika Kailiawa-Smith (1/6/25) 
• Keikilani Ho (1/7/25) 

Additionally, Elections Commissioner Ralph Cushnie registered his concerns via 
phone call. 

2) Any analysis or substantiation of the above-referenced complaints. 

Our office was aware that concerns of discrepancies arose from an erroneous 
analysis utilizing Business Reply Mail (BRM) statements to determine the amount of 
ballot packet envelopes received by the County of Hawai'i via USPS. The County does 
not use BRM statements to reconcile ballot envelope counts. The process used to 
reconcile relies solely on cross checks with the voter registration system and the ballot 
counting system. 

Hawai'i County is a,1 Equal Opporllmity Provider and Employer 



Page 2 of2 

3) Any determination that one or more of the above-referenced complaints lack 
merit or substantiation. 

See response to Item 2. 

4) Any responses to the above-referenced complaints by your office or any other 
governmental entity. 

Responses are contained within the thread of the emails referenced in Item 1. 

Additionally, I had a substantial phone conversation with Elections Commissioner 
Ralph Cushnie, who obtained via UIPA the Business Reply Mail statements our office 
received during the 2024 General Election. 

Sincerely, 

a,~ 
Hawai'i County Clerk 



Saiki, Cori 

From: Saiki, Cori 
Sent: Wednesday, January 8, 2025 4:14 PM 
To: 
Cc: Henricks, Jon; Brown, Aaron 
Subject RE: Chain of Custody Documents 

Hi Dalene: 

Hope all Is welt with you. Hope you had a very Happy New Year. 

The BRM receipts you reviewed were provided to us by USPS. USPS doesn't always provide us with receipts which 
Is the difference in the envelope count you are Inquiring about. Our office manually counts all election envelopes 
received daily via USPS, drop boxes, email, and voter service centers. Be assured we can account for all 
envetopeswe received. 

On another note, envelope counts will never match with the state's summary report. The summary report is 
ballots counted. As you know, envelopes opened at counting center may come in empty, with more than one 
ballot in an envelope, or contain a wrong election ballot (primary ballot in a general election envelope) which will 
all play a part in the reconciliation process. For example, if 1 O envelopes were received by our office but one 
envelope was empty, summary report will show only 9 ballots were counted. 

Thank you, 
Cori 

From: 
Sent: Tuesday, January 7, 2025 3:43 PM 
To: Saiki, Cori <Corl.Salkl@hawalicounty.gov>; Henrlcks,Jon <Jon.Henrlcks@hawalicounty.gov> 
Subject: Re: Chain of Custody Documents 

Aloha Cori and Jon, 

Happy New Year, I hope you both had an amazing holiday season. I wanted to reach out for some 
thoughts on mall In ballots and the data you sent me. We complied this data along with the records 
of business reply mail that was received by the USPS and the numbers are off by quite a bit. The 
total I received from your report was 27,913 drop box ballots and the USPS provided a total of 
29,479 mail In ballots so the total mail In count for 10/17 to 11/6 should be 57,392 but the office of 
election report Indicates a total mall In volume for Hawan County at 76,595, thats a difference of 
19,203. What could be causing this discrepancy? 

Dalene McCormick 
Chair, West Hawaii GOP 

1 



From: Saiki, Cori <Cori.Saikl@hawaiicounty.gov> 
Sent: Tuesday, December 3, 2024 9;44 AM 
To: 
Cc: Henricks, Jon <Jon.Henricks@hawailcounty.gov> 
Subject: RE: Chain of Custody Documents 

Good Morning Dalene: 

Hope you had a great Thanksgiving. 

Attached are the chain of custody documents you requested for the drop boxes. Also, the documents being used 
to transfer ballot envelopes to Counting Center Is the Seal Certification Forms which are turned over to the State. 

Thank you, 
Cori 

From: Saiki, Corl 
Sent: Wednesday, November 27, 2024 4:28 PM 
To: 
Cc: Henricks, Jon <Jon.Henricks@hawaiicounty.gov> 
Subject: RE: Chain of Custody Documents 

Hi Dalene: 

Yes, we received your email and are working on your request. Hope you have a Happy Thanksgiving. 

Thank you, 
Corl 

From: 
Sent: Tuesday, November 26, 2024 8:21 PM 
To: Saiki, Corl <Corl.Salki@hawaiicounty.gov> 
Subject: Fw: Chain of Custody Documents 

Hi Corl, 

Let me know if my original email is sufficient for you to gather this documentation or if you need any 
clarification. Happy to set up a phone call If needed. Thanks for your efforts. 

Dalene McCormick 
Chair, West Hawaii GOP 

From: Henricks, Jon <Jon.Henricks@hawaiicounty.gov> 
Sent: Monday, November 25, 2024 8:58 AM 
To: Saiki, Corl <Cori.Saiki@hawaiicounty.gov> 

Subject: RE: Chain of Custody Documents 

Cori, 
2 



Please assist with Dalene's request detailed in her email below. 

Thank you, 
Jon 

Jon Henricks 

County Clerk 
County of Hawai'I 
25 Au pun I St Room 1402 
Hilo, Hawai'l 96720 
(808) 961-8580 

From: 
sent: Sunday, November 24, 2024 5:29 PM 
To: Henricks, Jon <lon.Henricks@hawaiicounly.gov> 
Subject: Chain of Custody Documents 

Hey John, 

I have been in touch with some of my neighbor Island counterparts and they have collected "chain of 
custody11 documentation and are suggesting I do the same for the Big Island. Can you send me the 
report or documents you use to record the number of ballots you pick up at the post office and at the 
drop boxes. I just need this for collection during the general election. Does the signature verification 
process yield reports of what you send over to the counting center? If so, that would be helpful, 
otherwise I can get those counts from Aulii. I appreciate your help. Let me know if there Is 
something you need other than this email request. Thanks 

Dalene McCormick 
Chair, West Hawaii GOP 

3 



Saiki, Cori 

From: Henricks, Jon 
Sent: Tuesday, January 14, 2025 10;23 AM 
To: Saiki, Cori; 

Brown, Aaron Cc:. 
Subject: RE: Big Isle Envelope count 

Aloha Mr. Kailiawa•Smith, 

Please feel free to call me if yol! would like to discuss. 

Regards, 
Jon 

Jon Henricks 

County Clerk 
County of Hawai'i 
25Aupuni St Room 1402 
Hilo, Hawai'i96720 
(808) 961-8580 

From: Smith Family 
Sent: Wednesday, January 8, 2025 5:24 PM 
To: Saiki, Cori <Cori.Saiki@hawaiicounty.gov> 
Subject: Re: Big Isle Envelope count 

Ok thank you, If the states ballots reported counted ballots shouldn't that number be lower the then 
county's reported numbers due to empty envelopes, more then one ballot ext.? If the county sends the 
state only verified ballots how does the state have 19 thousand more ballots then the county? 

on Wed, Jan 8, 202s at 4:36 PM Saiki, Cori <Cori.Sajki@hawajicounty.gov>wrote: 

Aloha: 

The BRM receipts you reviewed were provided to us by USPS. USPS doesn't always provide us with receipts 
which is the difference in the envelope count you are inquiring about. Our office manually counts all election 
envelopes received daily via USPS, drop boxes, email, and voter service centers. Be assured we can account for 
all envelopes we receive. 

1 



On another note, envelope counts win never match with the state's summary report. The summary report is 
ballots counted. Envelopes opened at counting center may come in empty, with more than one ballot in an 
envelope, or contain a wrong election ballot [primary ballot in a general election envelope)which will all play a 
part in the reconciliation process. 

Mahalo, 

Tfk (808) 961-8211 

From: Smith Family 
Sent: Monday, January 6, 2025 12:31 PM 
To: Clerk-Council <clerk-coundl@hawaiicountv.gov> 
Subject: Big Isle Envelope count 

Good afternoon, my name i~ lkaika kailiawa-smith, I am trying to find out where the state got an extra 
19,042 ballots from. The drop boxes and the receipts from the county do not match the amount of 
ballots counted. Could you please inform me if I am missing something. When it comes to the general 
IBRM you will find the pages •in question if your scroll down. Thank you for you time. I look forward to 
hearing from you. This count is only for the county of Hawaii. 

2 



Saiki, Cori 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Cc: 
Subject: 

Aloha Ms. Ho, 

Henricks, Jon 
Tuesday, January 14, 202S 10:23 AM 
keikilani kealoha; Saiki, Cori 
Brown, Aaron 
RE: Please review and confirm important information 

Please feel free to call me If you would like to discuss. 

Regards, 
Jon 

Jon Henricks 

County Clerk 
County of Hawal'I 
25Aupunl StRoom 1402 
Hilo, Hawai'l 98720 
(808) 981-8580 

From: keikilani kealoha 
Sent: Wednesday, January 8, 202S 9:12 PM 
To: Saiki, Corl <Corl.Salkl@hawallcounty.gov> 
Cc: Henricks, Jon <Jon.Henrlcks@hawailcounty.gov>; Brown, Aaron <Aaron.Brown@hawaJlcounty.gov> 
Subject: Re: Please review and confirm important Information 

Aloha Ms. Saiki, 

This is good news. Would you please send the records that support your claim that your office can 
account for all the envelopes received by the county during the 2024 General Election? This is great 
to hear. 

As you mentioned I envelopes that are empty or contain more than one ballot would be removed from 
the total count - so the number of mail in ballots reported should be equal or less than the number of 
envelopes collected by the county. 



My supporters will be happy to see proof that the election was conducted properly. 

Thank you so much for helping to resolve this issue, and for your quick response. I appreciate you. 

Have a beautiful day. 

Sincerely, 

Keikilani Ho 

On Wed, Jan a, 2025 at 4:32 PM Saiki, Corl <Corl.Salkl,@hawajicounty.goy> wrote: 

Aloha Ms. Ho: 

The BRM receipts you reviewed were provided to us by USPS. USPS doesn't always provide us with receipts 
which is the difference in the envelope count you are Inquiring about. Our office manually counts all election 
envelopes received daily via USPS, drop boxes, email, and voter service centers. Be assured we can account for 
all envelopes we receive. 

on another note, envelope counts will never match with the state's summary report. The summary report is 
ballots counted. Envelopes opened at counting center may come in emp_ty. with more than one ballot in an 
envelope, or contain a wrong election ballot (primary ballot in a general election envelope) which will au play a 
part in the reconciliation process. 

Thank you, 

Ce,u,l;,aik.i, 

~~~,, 

Tdt. (808) 961~8!l11 

&n.a1k rek:H&kl@bguaguc~.pu, 

2 



From: keikllani kealoha 
Sent: Tuesday, January 7, 2025 11 :08 AM 
To: Clerk•Council <clerk•council@hawaiicountv.gov> 
Subject: Please review and confirm important information 

: Dear Mr. Henricks, 

Attached is a summary spreadsheet compiling data from the Hawai'i County 2024 General Drop Box 
Collection Data sheets and Business Reply Mail receipts for mail return ballot envelopes along with the 
state final summary report for the County of Hawai'i. 

The Data shows that there were57,553 Mail in Ballot Envelopes collected by the County of Hawai'i. 

• The State report shows there were 76,595 Mail in Ballots reported by the State (of Hawai'i). 

Please look at this information and let me know if there is anything missing. 

. . 

• According to this information there were 19,042 more mail in votes counted by the State then Collected 
by the County via drop boxes and from the USPS. 

I look forward to your prompt reply. 

Sincerely, 

Keikilani G. Ho 

Candidate for State House of Representatives, District 4~ Puna (2024 Hawai'i State Elections) 

3 



APPENDIX 6 



1

 

 

 
 

On Tue, Sep 2, 2025 at 8:23 AM OE.Elections.Commission <elections.commission@hawaii.gov> 

wrote: Hi Chair Curtis, 

Forwarding email below from Commissioner Cushnie. 

Thanks, 

Ray 

From: Ralph Cushnie (EC)   
Sent: Sunday, August 31, 2025 1:31 PM 



2

To: OE.Elections.Commission <elections.commission@hawaii.gov> 
Subject: [EXTERNAL] FW: Big Island evidence of ballots being inserted electronically. 

  

Hello Raymond or whomever is reading this e-mail. Please put this on the next meeting agenda and 
distribute to the rest of the commissioners especially Jeffery Osterkamp and Claire McAdam. Please let 
the public see this documentation.  

  

The State reported counting 76,595 ballots. 

  

The County has a record of collecting 27,912 ballot envelopes from drop boxes across the Big Island. 
They also provided receipts from the USPS for 29,641 ballot envelopes. For a total of 57,553 ballot 
envelopes received.  They can not account for 19,042 ballot envelopes. 

  

The County of Hawaii’s reason for the discrepancy is that the USPS did not send receipts for 19,042 
envelopes worth over $13,000. 

  

I recently sent a UIPA records request to get the communication from Hawaii County to the USPS to get 
missing invoices. There has been no communication. 

  

The state claims that 76,595 envelopes were signature verified and counted. They have provided a one-
page electronic print out with no back up documentation. 

  

The 19,042 ballots were added electronically into the SVRS Statewide Voter Registration System with no 
paper records. Read Scott Nago’s March 17 letter(OE-25-042) to the elections commission page 3 
second Paragraph. 

  

Sincerely,  

  

Ralph Cushnie 

  



APPENDIX 7 



First-Class Mail 

P.S. 3582-C Business Reply Postage 

COST CENTER: Cost Canter 14-1900-0321 HILO, HI 

COUNTY OF HAWAII-ELECTIONS 
25AUPUNI ST STE 1502 

Cumnt 
lhlllne•· 
Coohicl: 

EPS 5234,089.07 

CORI SAIKI 

HILO. HI 96720-4245 
Wh«ra luulld: n/a 

Con,n1~n~. 

P001t.hlllin~: Cost C1mler 14-1900-0321 HILO, HI POoTPll<Tll!t: Cost Center 14-1900·032I HILO. HI -·------L-------·--·---

BRM lnvolco Type: Hlgh-Volumn Qualified BRM 

IMall!ng Data: 10/18/2024 

I Final! 
I TRANS# 2024292143950488M) 

S. e.q#l ___ De.scrip .. !Ion j Wc.~:!t't .I .Nu~fller 1 •• Po;;;go .J' ~~11~:f.r~;. ] P. osraoc-l 
. L. . .. . .i.9':!!.1.cc-sl__ ... Pieces '-- ~io.r.o_ . . Charm. " . 

[§l]Postcards I! au on O 537II 0 03~(7foool 

81~~tters up to 3.5 II 3 s!GI 0.1011! o.D3~1 ~ 
[][JI Postage Duo !! ou oU o.ooon O oo§j O ODO) 

Total Po.-;~gJ! • ______ j.. ... • __ . __ ... __ ... .. .. -·- _ " " ,, ·-·· - _ . ... .. . .. _ .!9!!2..c5~: 

jCtJstome:r Reference ID II 

The above amount has been deducted from your advance deposit account. 
Clerk Initials: DPY 

https://wv,1\v,uspspostalone.com/BRM\Veb/qbrmPrint.do?prinl=Print 

Page 1 of 1 

Clp§& Wlndpw 

DATE: 10118124 

10/18/2024 



USPS PostalOnc! 

Business Reply Postage 

Company: COUNTY OF HAWAlf-ELECTIONS 

Address: 25 AUPUNI ST STE 1502 
HILO, HJ 96720-4245 

PO of Malling: 14-1900-0321 HILO, HI 

----·-----

Type of BRM Invoice: Qualified BRM 

Malllng Data: 10/21/2024 

Currant 
Bol1mce: 
Contact: 

Clork Initials: 1MB 

Final 
TRANS# 2024294160306948M 

https://w\",'W.uspspostalone.comiBRMDashboard/print-invoice.html?imbaSeqNo=463452 

Page 1 of I 

Duplicate Copy 

DATE: 10120/24 

10/21/2024 



First-Class Mail Page 1 of J 

Cloe• Wlndqw 

P.S. 3582 - C Business Reply Postage 

COST CENTER; Cost Canter 14-1900-0321 HILO, HI RECF:•. 1tiihe: 10122124 

'24 OGT 22 p 7 :1 4 

COUNTY OF HAWAII-ELECTIONS 
25 AUPUNI ST STE 1502 

EPS $226,492.67 

HILO. HI 96720--4245 
Wllor• l&....,d, n/a 

Ca,n.....,tw· 

POofMllllhig: Cast Canter 14-1900.0321 HILO, HI POofPel'fflU. CostCenter14-1900,032t 1-ilLO, HI 

BRM Invoice Type: High-Volume Quallffed BRM 

!Malling Data: 10/22/2024 

I ~nail 
I TRANS# 20242961424011 JBMI 

I . I Wei(lhl Hol I Numb~r i -Postage 1 · -Per P1~e I ! 
.~~~L D~~~~~o~ __ 1_ -· 10?~~~10} ___ Pi:~es J __ P~=~e. L -·~~;1~;~ __ J~~~laQe j 
~IPo,tcards 71 ijl Oil O 537!C O o@n 0.0001 

Ell~~~ers up to 3.5 II 3 31 ~II O 70711 0 0301[ 2~ 

[][II Postage Duo ii ojl on o.oooJI O ooon O 0001 
Tot.ii Post;igo: ) - - S2,682 681 

_,, ....... , ........ ,....._,_-.•••• ... , ....... , • .,... •• ,_?"•NM"•.•~.,....,.. •<W•• .,..., •• ,,.,. ......... ..,.•••••¥•• , ... , .. ,....,. •,_,-• •--• ''"•••••..,.,,,••-• •----•• --•• .... , . .,,..., . ......,, ................. , ........ ,............... ••• ••-••..;;.,J 

jcuslomer Reference 10 !I 

The above amount has been deducted from your advance deposit account 
Cieri< lnltlals; JSM 

https://www.uspsposlalone.coin/BR1v1Wcb/qbrmPrint.do?print=Print 10/22/2024 



USPS PostalOnc! 

Business Reply Postage 

Curr11nl 
Bl!lanc•: 
contact 

Compa11v: COUNTY OF HAWAII-ELECTIONS 

Addra11: 25 AUPUNI ST STE 1502 
HILO. HI 96720-4245 

EPS 5222.188 78 

CORI SAIKI 

PO of Mallli,g; 14-1900.0321 HILO, HI PO orPam1lt: 14-1900.0321 HILO, HI 

Type of BRM Invoice: Quallfled BRM 

Malllng Date: 10/2312024 

Final 
TRANS#202429710000153BM 

• ~ ~---.=--=-..::::-·- Wuighr Not N ==..;.. f r;, =-=--:.... Per Plec~1 -====--:-

r ~~~~Jr:scrlptlo~][{O~~~~SJf u:i~~:s 
0j~er~~ic~[ H~~::~o _j[_ Pnstnga __ l 

[~~te~~~s~i.-,o 1· -·~:~oo-][ 22~0Jf ~0.10;][-sa.~o- ·JE·~21~t~ 
~otal Postago: I -S1,621 211)] 

Customer Reference ID: IMBAccountlng 

Clerk Initials: 1MB 

https://www.uspspostalone.com/BRMDashboard!print-invoice.html?imbaScqNo=465968 

Page I of 1 

Duplicate Copy 

DATE: 10/23124 

10/23/2024 



First-Class Mail 

Business Reply Postage 

COST CENTER: Cost Center 14•1900•0321 HILO, HI 

COUNTY OF HAWAll•ELECTIONS 
25AUPUNI ST STE 1502 
HILO, HI 96720-4245 

CUIHIII 

Ollll'ICt'. 
c_,: 

EPS $222,188.78 

CORI SAIKI 

Wh10 l&Mlld'. n/a 

Co11:111Cnita. 

PO oUhullng: Cost Center 14-1900·0321 HILO, HI PO er Parmll: Cost Center 14-1900-0321 HILO. HI ----------· 

BRM lnvolce Typo: Hlgh•Volume Qualified BRM 

IMalllng Date: 10/23/2024 

I Final! 
I TRANS#202429715192~31BMI 

Seq# 0!Hlr.rlptlon I Over of i p11r ! Handling J Pos{agc ! · 1 · ! Welo11t Nol I Number I Postage j Per Piec.o I ! 

fo1j~ost~ds. - - ii JOunctfS) ·o1r Piou:sok~~I •• • Cha~Q~yzjj- -o~oool 

[~Jl~;~ers up to 3 5 11 3 slr~11 0.10111 0.03011, ,913.9891 

~I Postage Duo U ~I OU O.OOOU 0.000)1 0 oooj 
Tcllal Postage;·-· __ .L _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ __ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ __ S!;913 9~ 

!Customer Rererence ID II 
The above amount has been deducted from your advance deposit account 

CIGrk lnltlals: JSM 

https://www.uspspostalone.com/BRMWeb/qbrmPrinLdo'lprinl=-Print 

Page 1 of 1 

~1g11Wlndt1W 

DATE: 10/23/24 

10/23/2024 



USPS PostnlOne! Page 1 of2 

.;,;sf/ff. DNITED ST/JTES 
lfl!.iiJI PDSTAL SERVJCE,r, I Personal Proffitt I b!mW!! I 

Restticlerl Inrorn,a1i0-n 
BMl:·U 

BRM Dashboard Search> BRM Dashboard Results> BRM Transiiclinn Oatilils 

Message 
Cantor 

Account 
Manageme 

B11lance an 
Fcos 

Mall.DAT & 
Address: 

Mail.XML PO or 

25AUPUNI ST STE 1502 
HILO, HI 96720-4245 
14-1900·0321 HILO, HI 

BRM Transaction Details 

Cumint EPS $219,031.62 
Balanca: 
Contact: CORI SAIKI 

POol 
Pormlt: 

14-1900-0321 HILO. HI 
Metrics Malling: -~------·---·-·--•--· 
Custom~r 
ASSl$UlllCll 

Dashboard 

Reports 

Trnnsactiomi 

Select 
Acceptance 
Uni! 

Unpaid Mail 
(Updolc) 

Unpaid Mail 
(Add ltam) 

Nonprofit 

Seamlu:.s 
Accllp1ancc 
lnr.ontlvo 
Roµort 

6t-1fU Adm,n 

Ccrtiflcallon 
Tool 

Data Admln 
Consolr. 

Error 
Mapping 
A!lrnin 
Con.s;olc 

Five 0;,iy 
DehvE!'ry 

Type of BRM Invoice: auallfled BRM 
Final 

TRANS# 2024298100002878M 

Clerk Initials: 1MB 

Print j Back To Reau Its I Finalize At Current Rate 

Vcrificalion Asscrssmont Summary • •• • • 

Verification Method Mailpiece Review.Weight 
Verification 

Verification Required· Yes 
Sample Size. 69 

Veril'ymg Employees lnillals JSM 

Continue To Verification 

TOday'& Dale: 
10/24/2024 

https://www.uspspostalone.com/BRMDashboard/brm-dashboard-decai ls.html?i mbaSeqN ... I 0/24/2024 



First~Class Mail 

P.S. 3582-C Business Reply Postage 

COST CENTER: Cost CBf'ltar 14-1900.0321 HILO, HI 

c...,, ........ : 
Ac:kil-.aa: 

w,,..,. Jas...,d: 

Co1nm1nts. 

l'OotMIIIU11ir. 

Cum111 EPS $219,031.62 
~ ........ 

COUNTY OF HAWAll•ELECTIONS ContlM:I: CORI SAIKI 
25 AUPUNI ST STE 1502 
HILO. HI 96720-4245 
nla 

Cost Center 14•1900-0321 HILO, HI POcf Pa,.1111; Cost Center 14·1900-0321 HILO. HI 
·-·--·-··--· 

BRM lnvok:11 Type: High.Volume Qualined BRM 

IMaillng Date: 10/24/2024 I 
Final! 

I TRANS# 202429B1424312BBMI 

• I j Weight Nol j Nurnb~r I Postau~ 1 • 

.Saqt,t, __ Oi:scrlptlon _ _..1 .,_(O~~~t.) .. _ ,_,Pi::es -·· Pr::e J_ 
Par Piece ! 11 
Handling j l1ostllga 
Cha!9_C! ,_ . .J _________ I 

@]Postcards II ~[ oil 0.53711 o.o3~[ o.oool 

81,LeHers up to 3.5 
OZ. II 3 ~1~]1 070711 0.03~11,3B2.6121 

[]fill Postage Due 71 ~r--~1 o.oo~I ooo~[ooool 
Total Post..:!J,tt>:_ ... ,._. . i-.. ~-- ·---··-------·-··-·•-·• ............. ~ .... -~ ...... , ..... ,, .............. _., _______ ,..,,. ,..,.. ....... _ J!:3J2~6~j 

!cuslomer Reference ID 11 

The above amount has been deducted from your advance deposit account 

Clerk Initials! JSM 

https:/ /www.uspspostnione.com/BRMWeb/qbrmPrint.do?print=Pri nt 

Page l of 1 

c1oeoWlndow 

DATE: 10/24/24 

~~ ,-. 

10/24i2024 



USPS PostalOne! 

Business Repjy Postage 

Company; 

AcldrGss; 

PO ol Malllrl'!I: 

COUNTY OF HAWAll•ELECTIONS 
25AUPUNI ST STE 1502 
HILO. HI 96720-4245 
14-1900-0321 HILO, HI 

Type of BRM hwok:e: QualiflGd BRM 

Malling Date: 10/2512024 

1,1 Line 11· •I 
I I O~s'"r1·ntion II j, Seq# 11 .. '' , 

'i·I c4 l,1 Letters up to 3.5 J1 
I i oz. - d 

Weight Not Over 
{Ounces} 

1.000 

CU1Stomer Reference ID: IMBAccounting 

Currant B■lanc■: EPS S216,415.29 ...,4 
CootacL CORI SAIKI <.: 

PO of Permit; 
COUf.!T-' : ' v 

14-1900-0321 HILO,H[LEGirC>,, 

1
1

1
1 Number of 1

1
! 

_ Pieces I 

1697 

Cleric Initials: 1MB 

r 1 i,. V ·• t;;,_;;.,-:".i 1 

Final 
TRANS# 2024299100002628M 

Postaga p-er II Per Pk!ce Handling 
Piece !I Charge II Postage II 

S0.707 'I ! $0.020 

-$1,233.72011 

https://v.•v,r,.v.uspspostalone.com/BRMDashboard/print-in\'oice.html?imbaSeqNo:;;:;467613 

Page J of I 

Duplicate Copy 

DATE: 10/25124 

10/25/2024 



First-Class Mail 

P.S. 3582- C Business Reply Postage 

COST CENTER: Cost Center 14-1900·0321 HILO, HI 

"24 OCT ?5 Al 1 :46 

CDff'IP,lny: 

AddrK■: 

COUNTY OF HAWAll 0 ELECTIONS 
25AUPUNI ST STE 1502 
HILO. HI 96720-4245 

Current EPS S216,415.29 
lhl1nu: 

Where loaued: nfa 

c ......... ,, ... 
PO 011o111111n11: Cosl Center 14-1900-0321 HILO, HI POoJP1t111II: Cost Center 14-190()..0321 HILO. HI -----

BRM Invoice Type: High-Volume Qualified BRM --
[Malllng Dalo: 10/25/2024 I 

I Finaij 
I TRANS# 202429914161198BMI 

· · ., · · · · · 1 Woighl Not I Numbej· Postage 1· ••• Per Picco r .. - . i 
of por L H,mdling I Postage I 

.Soq# . DD!JCrlption .,.. (Oe~~~sl .. _, Piocos Piece --~~ar.9.e _ .L .. __ __! 
[fil]IPostcards 71 oll oil -053711 0 03011 0.0001 

Gl~~ers up to 3.5 II 3•5IGI 0,70711 0 030,11.313.3341 

@[JI Postllgo Due II ~II 011 o.ooon 0009)1 00001 

1at~.f.~S'i!.f!O: L. ·-- ··-·· ,. ·-·· ......... ... -.,. _ $1.31_3 31J 

jcustomer Reference ID 11 

The above amount has been deducted from your advance deposit account. 
Clerk Initials: JSM 

hllps://ww,v. uspspostalone.com/BRMWeb!qbrmPrint.do?print"""Print 

Page 1 of I 

CIQ!9 Wlndgw 

DATE: 10125124 

10/25/2024 

j 
f 
f 

I 
I 

.! 
f 
I 



• tJSPS PostalOne! - . 

Comp1rty: 

Add1U.s: 

BRM Postage {First.Class Mall) 

COUNTY OF HAWAII-ELECTIONS 
25AUPUNI ST STE 1502 
HILO, HI 96720-4245 

WhttotlHPttd: n/a 

rer 29 Al 1 :oa 

Comments: OU!fiY f': : :.•r: 

Page 1 of 1 

PO or Mlllun11: Cost Center 14-1900-0321 HILO, HI l'O or Pcrm1c Cost Center 1.fil9btl,o:32Ji!!l::C~4·H}a i!J --·-·--- ------- ______ __,,.,.,,.,~~~-~-----vuvn I 1 ._,, HAW Mi 
The followlng postage and por piece fees (If appllcableJ have been charged to lhls account. 

BRM Invoice Type: High-Volume QUllllflad BRM 

IMalll!!i Data: 10/28/2024 I 
I Finalj 
I TRANS#202430215142205B~ 

Seq,,. J. Weight Not I; Numtwr j Post.-igeJ·· 
• I • ~ Por Piece 

De&criptlon Over ' of I per ~~:;~~g ·-· --~~~~g.e . . (0!-!_~_CI!!!) __ Pi!!Ces _! Piece 

[fil]~ostca;;; ·-· 
II 011 011 0.537}1 0.03~1 o.ooot 

G~:tlers up lo 3.5 II 
3.51~1 o.101JI 0,03~11,983,263 

(fill Postage Due II oll 9]1 oooo![ 000~1 ooool 
_Total Poa~~G!: --·· .J .. _ ......... , --.-,n 

,,$1,983.27J 

!customer Reference 10 ,, 
Clerk lnltlals: ALL 

Print I ~~~ Tran,sac~on On The S~me A~count.J 

Tho above enterad data have bun submitted to the System Successfully. CIiek "Print" button to got prlntablo copy of this 
transaction. 

https://www.uspspostalone.com/BRMWeb/brmPostageReview.do 10/28/2024 



. USPS PostalOnc! 

eomi,.,ty: 
Allllrr.lll: 

BRM Postage (Flrst~Class Mail) 

RECE;V£~: 

EPS $210.20124 

COUNTY OF HAWAll•ElECTIONS 
25AUPUNI ST STE 1502 
HILO, HI 9672().4245 

29 Alt :oa 
Whe•o lnuod: n/a 

C<>m.,._.r,!11,: 

PO of M<11tm1r. Cost Center 14-1900·0321 HILO, Ht 
·v '"'l ':°tf. 

PO or p,m,,11. Cost eenil[C(soo'..o~i.1~~(~Q;.HI 
eGt:m; t ;,~ r:J,;/Ali 

The following postage and per piece rees (if applicable) have been ch11rgcd to lhls account. 

BRM Invoice Type: High-Volume Quallned BRM 

JMalllng Dato: 10/29/2024 

I Final! 
l "TRANS#202430314475779BM] 

J • I Woight Not I Number l PostilQe 1 • Per Piece i I 
Sct1j. Ocscrlptlo~-.J _(o~;~:~l_L p,::esJ _ pr;:_e_J __ 8-~~:;;~= .. J~,°.~ta_g:. 

@DE os1cards JI oH DI\ o 537U o o@I o oooj 
[ o4]~:llers up lo 3 5 JC 3,slGI o 70711 O 03~8 

[fill Postage Due U on ojl 0 oogC O oooj/ 0 ooo] 
Total _Pootaae:._ ___ _J ··-·· _ --·· ~-- _ __ .. __ __ . _""_., _____ S1,431.9aj 

!customer Reference ID II I 

Clork Initials: ALL 

Print I New Transac::tion On The Same Account 

Page I of I 

The above enterod data have been submitted to the Syshtm Successfully. CIiek "Print" button to get printable copy or this 
transaction. 

ht1ps://www.uspspostalone.com/BRMWeb/brmPostageReviev,1.do 10/29/2024 



USPS PostaJOne! Pagel of 1 

BRM Postage (First-Class Mailt 

RECflVE:S 
~..':.~! EPS $207,629 31 

Com~y: 

Adclrn,: 
COUNTY OF HAWAII-ELECTIONS 
25AUPUNI ST STE 1502 
HILO, HI 9672~245 

OCT 30 AlO :57 
n/a 

Commenls: 
PO or Mnlllno: Cost Cenler 14-1900-0321 HILO, HI PO of Pnnnl1; 

------ ·--·--------·---·--· 
The following postage and per piece fees (if appllcableJ have benn charged to lhls account 

BRM Invoice Typt: High-Volume QuallRod BRM 

!Malling Oata: 10/30/2024 I 
I Final! 
[ TRANS# 202430414411796BMI 

J J Weight Not 1•· Number Postage I Per Piece I I 
So,_ Dlacriptlon , {O~~:st_ : P,::aa P'::.e J ____ H£~1:~~- LPos~~~ 

lli HPostcards n oH on O 5331 0 03011 0.0001 

G;!~lersuplo35 I 3.511~11 0.1031 003~8 

@ Postage Due I ofl on 0.00¢41 0.00@1 0.0001 

Total i,;'oat~g!: __ J _ _ • ··-····-.. --··-. _ • ··•-··•-·•-··-·· ___ ,____ ___ _ $1.276.4aj 

jcustomBr Reference 10 !I I 

Clerk Initials: ALL 

Print l New Transaction On The Same Account 

Tha above anterec:f data have been submitted lo the System Successfully. CIiek "Print" button to get printable copy of this 
transaction. 

https://www .uspspostalone.com/BRMWeb/bnnPostageRcview.do 10/30/2024 



USPS PostaJOne! 

ComJ>a'11' 

Arldr .. s· 

BRM Poslage (First-Class Mall) 

COUNTY OF HAWAII-ELECTIONS 
25 AUPUNI ST STE 1502 
HILO, HI 95720-4245 

Opoofn0 
&IMto, 
Contact'. 

RECF''.•f"' 
EPS $205,56113 

CORI SAIKI 
A11 :03 

WltetG lnuod: nla 

C<:>mm.1\1>.: '. 
PO DIMalllnq: Cost Center 14-1900-0321 HILO, HI roof Pttnnll: Cost CerlJlrB6.'.i19"oo:o:;2ttt\l,Q.;Ht 

---------------------·-co-1.Thl'i ·': ~l,•.w,;d 
The following postage and per piece foes {if applicable} havo been charg~d to this account 

BRM Invoice Type: High-Volumo Quallflod BRM 

!Malling Date: 10/31/2024 : I 

I Final! 
I TRANS# 202430514 5440878 Ml 

Seq#! j Wolght Not j Number l Postage I Pt:rPlcr.c 
j I Das.<:riptlon Over ! ot ! per j rlnndllng 

J~o~~a~c 
' . _,_JO~n_Cf:'S~ l__Pmcea.J __ ,£'.i~~!!._. Chat510 

-~,· -·· .,J, -....... , 
[]}]!Postcards II oJI 011 o.sJ1II -··003~1 00001 

[o4 ]j;~tters up to 3 5 11 351G[ 01011 0 03~11.011.0011 

[fill Posta~eDu~ ![ 011 ojj ooo~I 000~1 00001 

T9'ta.,I flo<Jl!!P!: __ .L .. ,~u.•-;,Y··"S"' .,,,_. ,,_., ..._, .. ,,.....,._._,,- --- '><-", 
- ...... _ ......... ~1\011.~oj 

~slomer Reference ID II 

Clerk Initials: ALL 

Print I New Tnane.ction On Th& Same Account 

Page l of 1 

The above entered data have been submitted to the System SuccessfuHy. CIiek "Print'' button to get printable copy of &his 
transacUon. 

https :/ /www. uspspostal one.com/BRM Web/brmPostageRevi ew .<lo l0/3] /2024 



USPS PostalOne! 

BRM Postage (First-Class Mall) 

COUNTY OF HAWAII-ELECTIONS 
25 AUPUNI ST STE 1502 
HILO, HI 96720-4245 

Opetllln11 
llallanc•, 
Conlacl: 

EPS $203.787.33 

Wl,ara luUDd: nJa 

Commc"u.' 
PO 01 M1t1P1111: Cost Center 14-1900-0321 HILO, HI POctl'om>lt: Cost Center 14•1900-0321 HILO, HI 

The following postage and per piece fees (if applicable} have berm charged to U1ls account. 

BRM Invoice Type: High-Volume Quallfled BRM 

IMal~lng Date: 11/01/2024 : ] 
I Final! 

I TRANSU202430614353070BMI 

l • 1·· 
.. .. I .... ,. . 1 · . . Weight Not ! Numbnr Posl/lge I Por Ploce • 

Soq# . Oosetiptlo11 • 
{9~:~~L.J Pl:os . ···- .!i~_J, ____ ~;::~;9-___ , P-~stagel ·-··-J_ -·- . ·-·-···-·-· •. 

~~ostcards II 011 oll 053711 0.03§11 0.0001 

EJ Letters up to 3.5 g~a3! 0 707I~-0 577.071 0~ 

[067 Postage Due o! D oooj 0. 0.000 

:rotal.P~t~D!:--~•--J,_ ···--··----·-+ . ___ .....,, ________ ..., ______________ ---- ---- ... - -- -·-- - ~u-.21j 
lcustomar Reference ID II I 

Clark Initials: ALL 

Print j New Transaction On The Same Account 

Page I of I 

The above entered data have been submitted to Ute System Successfully. CIiek "Print" button to got printable copy of this 
traosacUon. 

https://www.uspspostalone.com/BRMWeb/brmPostageRcview.do 11/1/2024 



USPS PostaJOnc! 

ButlneN Reply Postage 

curront 
Balance: 

)' 1'll•ELECTIONS 

Addntu: 25 AUPUNI ST STE 1502 

Pagel of 1 

Duplicate Copy 

REC5'.l\rf 
DATE: 11103124 

EPS S202.436.00 
"24 NOV -4 AlO :34 

HILO, HI 96720-4245 
POcfMP11"1g: 14-1900-0321 HILO, HI POQrPom,lt: 14-1900-0321 HILO, HI 

Type of BRM Invoice: Quallflltd BRM 

Malling Date: 11/04/2024 

Cleric lnltlals: 1MB 

Final 
TRANS#202430816051090BM 

https://v,/\V\\:,uspspostalone.com/BRMDashboard/print-invoice.html?imbaSeqNo=472883 11/4/2024 



First~Class Mail 

P.S. 3582-C Business Reply Postage 

COSi CENTER: Cost Canter 14-fl!~~ !'flt.O, HJ 

NOV -4 AlO :J4 

Wh01aluued: 

Cotnn,on~, 

Curnnt 
llaloo~•: 

EPS $202,436.00 

PO oIMnlllflV- Cost Cenler 14-1900·0321 HILO, HI POorPormu, Cost Center 14·1900,0321 HILO. HI 

BRM Invoice Type: High-Volume Qualified BRM 

!MalUng Data: 11/04/2024 I 

I Final! 

! TRANS# 202430912352725BMI 

I,' ' '' ' l Weiohl Notj'' ·' Nurnbiu I .. .. ·· 1 . .. .. . . J. . . l Postage! Per Pioco 

. pr:;e_ -· -· --~~~·:~;~0 
. ' p~~~~: _seq# ~-- Description ___ .... iO~~~~sJ • pl~osJ 

[::fil]IPoslcards ll ~I ol! 0 53711 003011 o.oooj 
Bl~~ors up lo 3.5 II 3-~GI 0 70711 o.o30il1,os3.39ol 
[§[II Postago Due II m all 000~1 a 0001! 0 0001 

Tola I_ PoS~QO:_ ·-•-" 1---·--·- - ·-··------••«-"< ........ """''"'-., --~' •·=···, - ~··--- -·- $1.083 391 

!customer Referenca ID 11 

The above amount has been deducted from your advance deposit account 
Clerk lnitlals: JSM 

htlps:/ /www. uspsposlalone .comiBR MW c b/q brmPrin t .do'?prinl =Print 

I 

Page 1 of J 

CloMWlndow 

DATE: 11/04/24 

11/4/2024 



USPS PostnlOne! Page 1 of 1 

Duplicate Copy 

Business Reply Postage 

REC::!Vf:!: 
DATE: 11/D4124 

Current 
Balance: 
Contact: 

EPS $202.436.~4 NOV -4 AlO :34 
CORI SAIKI 

Comp11ny: COUNTY OF HAWAII-ELECTIONS 

Ac1dra11: 25AUPUNI ST STE 1502 
HILO, HI 96720-4245 

COUNTY Ci.:Ji;,\ 
ELECT IC/-<: or-., ·sr, N 

POolP1m1lt: 14•1900-0321 HILo;:roUHTY ':f i-lAiiAli PO of M,illlng: 14-1900-0321 HILO, HI 

Type of BRM Invoice: Qualified BRM 

Malling Date: 11/04/2024 
Final 

TRANS# 2024309110002958M ,~~:~1r~e c;::;:11~~i~ht N~I 7r;,:b~r of][ Post?ye l[--~c:in:\~t;-,~ostagE'l 
[:~~- I 5 fl :J~~~::_°~~~2JL Pl.eces per P1ec~J __ Cha_r~e _ [ _____ J 
r-~~-lfe~~~soi t0J[~~~o--Jt._a __ ][ $0.707 Jl--~0.020 JI~ 
~,!_!'~aoe:-==-=·JC-=---""""""'-,,,.,, . .,.-,...._,,,,.. ...... =-....... -==--=--=-=--'="-=---====<--,,;;;,s.a2~1 

Customer Roferimce ID: IMBAccountlng 

Clerk lnltlals: 1MB 

https://www.uspspnstalone.com/BRMDashboard/print-invoice.html?imbaSeqNCr"'473402 11/4/2024 



First-Class Mail Pagel of I 

ClosgWlndow 

P.S. 3582-C Business Reply Postage 

COST CENTER: Cost Center 14•1900-0321 HILO, HI DATE: 11105/24 

Curnml EPS 5201,287.18 
Dal■~•: 

Compa11y: COUNTY OF tlAWAll•ELECTIONS Conlo,:1: CORI SAIKI 
Acldrr.ls: 25 AUPUNI ST STE 1502 

HILO. HI 96720-4245 
Whtr11nued: n/a 

C<»nn..,ni.: 
PO<>f Malllng: Cost Center 14-1900-0321 HILO, HI l'Oal Permll: Cost Center 14-1900,0321 HILO. HI 

--~------

BRM Invoice Type: High-Volume Quallfled BRM 

!Malling Date: 11/05/2024 7 
I 

... 
Final! 

I TRANS# 202431012094814BMI 

Soq/ 1-~~~~i~~~t::;::rJ -~~~:.:u L Per Piece I Postao~! Oo~criptlon Handhno 
___ ___! ___ ·--· CII!!'.(!!. . I 
@?JIPostc;uds II oil oll 0537JI oo~[ o.oool 
Glj:Letters up to 3.5 

oz II 3.51□1 0.70711 0.03011252.7911 

[][JI Postaie Duo II oll 011 000~1 000011 00001 

Total Post.lg!: -· i _ $25_2-?.!J ... ..,,, ......... ~. .. -•••"""••••=••••...,, ...... •-~•.•T-••'-''W0."••-••,,.,..• •--~ " 

!customer Reference ID 11 

The above amount has been deducted from your advance deposit account. 

Clerk Initials: JSM 

https://www.uspspostalone.com/BRMWeb/qbrmPrint.do?print=Print l 1/5/2024 



USPS PostalOne! 

Business Reply Postage 

Addross: 25 AUPUNI ST STE 1502 
HILO. HI 96720-4245 

PO ol Malling: 14• 1900-0321 HILO, HI 

---·--·-·----

Type of BRM Invoice: Quallfiad BRM 

Malling Date: 11105/2024 

Currant 
Balance: 
contact; 

EPS S201.28718 

CORI SAIKI 

Final 
TRANS# 2024310110002888M 

r L~[~ -.. :~ 1-~,., •••• gr::.:-:~:.:.1 ~~,~= J. .. ~.1 
r;:1~~d:::::09J[5~ JCo~:·JL::~:· J~ 
f!?~rPo!ttagc:_ ·-· ..J.L~~.=-..,.,,-..;..-.....,,,..;.:_-...:..-:-..:..-:-.=-=="---;;:.,.--,...:.-;,.,-..... _ ...... _ .. -~ . ~~~~] 
Customer Reference 10: IMBAccountlng 

Clerk lnltlals: 1MB 

https://www.uspsposlalone.comiBRMDashboard/print-invoice.html?imbaSeqNo=474 I 27 

Page I of I 

Duplicate Copy 

DATE: 11/05/24 

11/5/2024 



APPENDIX 8 



En
ve

lo
pe

 C
ou

nt
s 

Co
lle

ct
io

n 
Da

te
 

1 Hawaii County Bui

1 Hilo Office

1 Hilo Voter Service

2 Kohala Police Stat

2 Laupahoehoe Poli

2 Waikoloa Village A

2 Waimea Police Sta

3 Kona Office

3 Kona Voter Servic

3 West Hawaii Civic 

3 Yano Haul

4 Keau Police Statio

4 Naalehu Drivers Li

4 Pahoa Drivers Lice

USPS 1

USPS 2

USPS 3

TOTAL

TO
TA

L 

Envelope Transfers 
from Hawaii County 
to State Counting 

State Summary 
Report

1
10

/1
7/

20
24

19
3

    
    

   
55

    
    

    
  

2
    

    
    

    
5

    
    

    
    

13
    

    
    

  
17

    
    

    
  

9
    

    
    

    
34

    
    

    
  

4
    

    
    

    
18

    
    

    
  

6
    

    
    

    
48

    
    

    
  

40
4

    
    

   

2
10

/1
8/

20
24

30
0

    
    

   
14

    
    

    
  

13
    

    
    

  
4

    
    

    
    

21
    

    
    

  
46

    
    

    
  

14
    

    
    

  
57

    
    

    
  

5
    

    
    

    
29

    
    

    
  

7
    

    
    

    
54

    
    

    
  

1,
30

6
    

   
1,

87
0

    
   

3
10

/1
9/

20
24

15
1

    
    

   
17

    
    

    
  

9
    

    
    

    
14

    
    

    
  

41
    

    
    

  
51

    
    

    
  

13
    

    
    

  
27

    
    

    
  

11
    

    
    

  
60

    
    

    
  

39
4

    
    

   

4
10

/2
1/

20
24

54
2

    
    

   
38

    
    

    
  

36
    

    
    

  
12

    
    

    
  

39
    

    
    

  
12

6
    

    
   

56
    

    
    

  
14

9
    

    
   

26
    

    
    

  
33

    
    

    
  

35
    

    
    

  
15

9
    

    
   

2,
20

8
    

   
3,

45
9

    
   

5
10

/2
2/

20
24

39
1

    
    

   
44

    
    

    
  

11
6

    
    

   
22

    
    

    
  

13
    

    
    

  
44

    
    

    
  

66
    

    
    

  
29

    
    

    
  

10
1

    
    

   
13

3
    

    
   

20
    

    
    

  
41

    
    

    
  

16
    

    
    

  
12

6
    

    
   

3,
64

0
    

   
4,

80
2

    
   

6
10

/2
3/

20
24

45
5

    
    

   
27

    
    

    
  

12
0

    
    

   
30

    
    

    
  

14
    

    
    

  
45

    
    

    
  

55
    

    
    

  
15

    
    

    
  

13
6

    
    

   
12

5
    

    
   

34
    

    
    

  
40

    
    

    
  

15
    

    
    

  
12

7
    

    
   

2,
23

0
    

   
2,

59
7

    
   

6,
06

5
    

   

7
10

/2
4/

20
24

27
2

    
    

   
11

    
    

    
  

10
7

    
    

   
19

    
    

    
  

12
    

    
    

  
39

    
    

    
  

51
    

    
    

  
14

    
    

    
  

79
    

    
    

  
61

    
    

    
  

15
    

    
    

  
35

    
    

    
  

24
    

    
    

  
12

2
    

    
   

1,
71

0
    

   
1,

87
6

    
   

4,
44

7
    

   

8
10

/2
5/

20
24

25
4

    
    

   
16

    
    

    
  

12
1

    
    

   
15

    
    

    
  

16
    

    
    

  
29

    
    

    
  

63
    

    
    

  
9

    
    

    
    

13
6

    
    

   
71

    
    

    
  

39
    

    
    

  
25

    
    

    
  

19
    

    
    

  
96

    
    

    
  

1,
69

7
    

   
1,

78
2

    
   

4,
38

8
    

   

9
10

/2
6/

20
24

14
9

    
    

   
34

    
    

    
  

20
    

    
    

  
10

    
    

    
  

18
    

    
    

  
57

    
    

    
  

44
    

    
    

  
48

    
    

    
  

25
    

    
    

  
20

    
    

    
  

16
    

    
    

  
67

    
    

    
  

50
8

    
    

   

10
10

/2
8/

20
24

58
0

    
    

   
44

    
    

    
  

14
2

    
    

   
34

    
    

    
  

16
    

    
    

  
21

    
    

    
  

14
2

    
    

   
4

    
    

    
    

12
6

    
    

   
18

4
    

    
   

38
    

    
    

  
72

    
    

    
  

14
    

    
    

  
14

6
    

    
   

2,
69

1
    

   
4,

25
4

    
   

11
10

/2
9/

20
24

41
6

    
    

   
26

    
    

    
  

17
4

    
    

   
30

    
    

    
  

11
    

    
    

  
40

    
    

    
  

10
5

    
    

   
24

    
    

    
  

19
0

    
    

   
13

8
    

    
   

31
    

    
    

  
38

    
    

    
  

19
    

    
    

  
11

9
    

    
   

1,
94

3
    

   
3,

30
4

    
   

12
10

/3
0/

20
24

39
4

    
    

   
35

    
    

    
  

16
8

    
    

   
33

    
    

    
  

10
    

    
    

  
33

    
    

    
  

88
    

    
    

  
11

    
    

    
  

18
9

    
    

   
16

3
    

    
   

37
    

    
    

  
50

    
    

    
  

16
    

    
    

  
10

5
    

    
   

1,
73

2
    

   
3,

06
4

    
   

13
10

/3
1/

20
24

41
8

    
    

   
40

    
    

    
  

15
3

    
    

   
38

    
    

    
  

14
    

    
    

  
53

    
    

    
  

11
1

    
    

   
16

    
    

    
  

15
3

    
    

   
13

7
    

    
   

47
    

    
    

  
80

    
    

    
  

19
    

    
    

  
10

9
    

    
   

1,
37

3
    

   
2,

76
1

    
   

14
11

/1
/2

02
4

47
5

    
    

   
13

    
    

    
  

22
1

    
    

   
40

    
    

    
  

18
    

    
    

  
30

    
    

    
  

11
2

    
    

   
3

    
    

    
    

20
7

    
    

   
11

7
    

    
   

49
    

    
    

  
54

    
    

    
  

21
    

    
    

  
11

9
    

    
   

78
3

    
    

   
2,

26
2

    
   

15
11

/2
/2

02
4

37
5

    
    

   
16

0
    

    
   

41
    

    
    

  
18

    
    

    
  

50
    

    
    

  
15

0
    

    
   

7
    

    
    

    
12

8
    

    
   

17
3

    
    

   
52

    
    

    
  

86
    

    
    

  
36

    
    

    
  

10
9

    
    

   
1,

38
5

    
   

16
11

/3
/2

02
4

-
    

    
    

17
11

/4
/2

02
4

1,
39

1
    

   
30

    
    

    
  

38
6

    
    

   
73

    
    

    
  

22
    

    
    

  
11

1
    

    
   

32
0

    
    

   
18

    
    

    
  

32
4

    
    

   
37

1
    

    
   

11
1

    
    

   
21

2
    

    
   

47
    

    
    

  
32

6
    

    
   

16
2

    
    

   
1,

47
0

    
   

8
    

    
    

    
5,

38
2

    
   

18
11

/5
/2

02
4

1,
27

5
    

   
46

7
    

    
   

17
5

    
    

   
10

0
    

    
   

23
2

    
    

   
74

2
    

    
   

47
8

    
    

   
57

5
    

    
   

33
4

    
    

   
57

0
    

    
   

17
8

    
    

   
72

9
    

    
   

34
3

    
    

   
90

    
    

    
  

6,
28

8
    

   

19
11

/5
/2

02
4

91
1

    
    

   
50

2
    

    
   

1,
06

8
    

   
2,

48
1

    
   

20
11

/6
/2

02
4

24
    

    
    

  
11

    
    

    
  

35
    

    
    

  

21
(U

nc
ur

ed
)

-
    

    
    

22
 C

ur
ed

 
-

    
    

    -
    

    
    

TO
TA

LS
8,

94
2

    
   

39
3

    
    

   
2,

87
1

    
   

63
8

    
    

   
30

4
    

    
   

83
2

    
    

   
2,

29
2

    
   

23
9

    
    

   
2,

31
6

    
   

3,
65

5
    

   
88

0
    

    
   

1,
43

0
    

   
49

9
    

    
   

2,
62

1
    

   
-

    
    

    
21

,8
18

    
7,

81
5

    
   

8
    

    
    

    
57

,5
53

    
57

,5
53

    
-

    
    

    
76

,5
95

    
O

ve
ra

ge
29

,6
41

    
19

,0
42

    

IJ 



APPENDIX 9 



�������������	��
��������
���������
����


���	��

�������������������������������� �!�"��
���
���	��
�#$%&'��()*#&�+,-./0-�+1������2'%*#&�3.4�+.+,



�����������	
���
�
��	��
�������	���������������������

������������ �� !"#$%&'()*+()*,-�............................................................................................................................................../0�1234�5�6�................................................................................................................................../78� �7��9:6�.............................................................................................................................../78� �7��;�5�6�......................................................................................................................../<�1�==��6� :��!�.................................................................................................................../>&?@-A(,,?+�B%,,%&�........................................................................................................................CD%-E+,-�.....................................................................................................................................................FG� 4�651 :��HI�J�1 :K��.........................................................................................................F0�1234�5�6�.................................................................................................................................F;:�6:�3L�0<M�IN�4� :�����O���1 :K���!!���5�6�0��G=N4�K�6�....................PQ4�1�!!:�3�9���R!���6�9� ��...................................................................................P7�428�54�9� ��...............................................................................................................S���!�TI5 !�.........................................................................................................................SQ�! ���U�4K:1��Q�4!N�1 :K�!���6�G=N�1 !�......................................................S<�1�==��6� :���V/�...................................................................................................W<�1�==��6� :���VC�..................................................................................................WM���3�=�� X!���==�� !�.................................................................................................WOK��5� :������M���3�=�� X!���==�� !�..................................................................YZ[[%@\(]%-�........................................................................................................................................̂_NN��6:̀�_L�_66: :�����G���4=� :���............................................................................aU1�N����6�M� 8�6���3R�..........................................................................................aQ4:�4�_56: ���K�4�3��................................................................................................/b_NN��6:̀�0L�M���3�=�� X!���==�� !�...................................................................//"#@,?],�c@d#&A?,(#@�.............................................................................................................../F

�IeO< �_0fO�I;��Ig�Og�U hGihfGih�U <OUjf�U _QQOg9G�OU



����������	�
���
�����
�	������	�
�	����
��	��������	�� �

����������� !"#$%&'()*+,-./�.-0-12,3�-45.-//-6�0710-.1/�8+29�29-�2+:-,+1-//�*16�071/+/2-103�7;�29-�<7/2*,�=-.>+0-?/�@A/+1-//�B-5,3�)*+,�C@B)D�/-.>+0-E�F�GHIJKLH�MNKLN�HOFPQHG�RSFQKTHU�VFKQHIG�WX�YIXJKUH�F�IHLKYKHOW�MKWN�F�071>-1+-12E�5.-5*+6�:-2976�;7.�.-5,3+1Z�27�*�:*+,+1Z[�\9-�<7/2*,�=-.>+0-�5.70-//-6�7>-.�]̂_�:+,,+71�@B)�5+-0-/�Z-1-.*2+1Z�̀âa�:+,,+71�+1�IHJHOSH�KO�TGLFQ�bHFI�cdcce�fYHIFWKXOFQQbg�hij�KG�FLLHYWHU�WNIXSkN�17.:*,�09*11-,/�C-[Z[E�0*..+-.�5+0l�A5D�29-1�->-12A*,,3�+/�/-12�27�*�,70*,�;*0+,+23E�89-.-�07A12+1ZE�>-.+;3+1ZE�m+,,+1ZE�6-,+>-.3�C7.�5+0l�A5DE�*16�729-.�0,7/-n7A2�5.70-6A.-/�700A.[�o;;-02+>-�75-.*2+71/�*.-�0.A0+*,�27�-1/A.+1Z�@B)�>*,A-�;7.�29-�<7/2*,�=-.>+0-E�:*+,-./E�*16�0A/27:-./[pq r�ps�tu(fSI�XPvHLWKJH�MFG�WX�HJFQSFWH�WNH�HwwHLWKJHOHGG�Xw�WNH�xXGWFQ�yHIJKLHzG�@B)�75-.*2+71/[�{-�.->+-8-6�@B)�57,+0+-/�*16�5.70-6A.-/E�*1*,3|-6�UFWFg�XPGHIJHU�XYHIFWKXOG�FW�}}�vSUkVHOWFQQb�GHQHLWHU�GKWHGg�FOU�VHW�8+29�<7/2*,�=-.>+0-�/2*;;�*16�@B)�:*+,-./[pq r�ps�~%&'(<7/2*,�=-.>+0-�:*+,-./�*16�29-+.�0A/27:-./�>*,A-�@B)�/-.>+0-E�mA2�YIXLHGGKOk�UHQFbGg�KOGSwTLKHOW�UFWFg�FOU�KOLXVYQHWH�LQXGH�XSW�5.70-6A.-/�9+16-.�75-.*2+71*,�-;;-02+>-1-//�*16�0A/27:-.�/*2+/;*02+71[�{-�7m/-.>-6�@B)�6-,*3/�;7.�1-*.,3�̂�_E___�5+-0-/�8+29�/7:-�6-,*3-6�7>-.�̂]�6*3/�*2�-+Z92�7;�̂̂�;*0+,+2+-/[�@B)�6*2*�8*/�*,/7�A1.-,+*m,-�*/�6-,*3/�8-.-�172�.-57.2-6�5.+7.�27�7A.�7m/-.>*2+71/�C-40-52�*2�71-�;*0+,+23DE�.-,*2-6�87.l97A./�8-.-�172�.-07.6-6�*2�����/+2-/�1*2+718+6-E�*16�6*+,3�5.70-//-6�*16�A15.70-//-6�>7,A:-/�8-.-�172�0*52A.-6�+1�*13�/3/2-:[��+1*,,3E�.-�A+.-6�0,7/-n7A2�5.70-6A.-/�8-.-�172�071/+/2-12,3�LXVYQHWHU�FW�OKOH�wFLKQKWKHGg�IHGSQWKOk�KO�JHIKTLFWKXO�FOU�UFWF�IKG�GexXGWFQ�yHIJKLH�XwTLKFQG�FL�OXMQHUkHU�WNHGH�KGGSHG�FOU�FWWIKPSWHU�WNHV�WX�GWFwTOk�FOU�GHIJKLH�YIKXIKWK�FWKXO�LNFQQHOkHGg�FOU�GbGWHV�QKVKWFWKXOGe�{9+,-�8-�.-07Z1+|-�297/-�+//A-/E�8-�m-,+->-�29-�m.7*6-.�75-.*2+71*,�HwwHLWKJHOHGG�YIXPQHVG�IHGSQWHU�wIXV�KOGSwTLKHOW�VFOFkHVHOW�FOU�7>-./+Z92[�\9-�<7/2*,�=-.>+0-�m-Z*1�07..-02+>-�*02+71/�*16�+1+2+*2-6�*�87.l+1Z�Z.7A5�27�*A27:*2-�5.70-//-/�*16�-19*10-�2.*+1+1Z[�o1/A.+1Z�GSwTLKHOW�VFOFkHVHOW�FOU�XJHIGKkNW�FOU�HONFOLKOk�GbGWHVG�MKQQ�NHQY�/2.-1Z29-1�@B)�>*,A-�;7.�29-�<7/2*,�=-.>+0-E�:*+,-./E�*16�0A/27:-./E�YFIWKLSQFIQb�FG�SOWKVHQb�YIXLHGGKOk�LXSQU�UHQFb�HQHLWKXO�VFKQg�OXOYIXTW�671*2+71/E�7.�729-.�.-0+5+-12�.-5,+-/[�s!%��s'( ru%'��H�IHLXVVHOUHU�VFOFkHVHOW�UHJHQXY�GWIFWHkKHG�WX�HOGSIH�GSwTLKHOW�:*1*Z-:-12�*16�7>-./+Z92�7;�@B)�75-.*2+71/E�5*.2+0A,*.,3�.-,*2-6�27�2+:-,3�5.70-//+1ZE�.-07.6+1Z�*00A.*2-�@B)�6*2*�C-[Z[E�6-,*3/E�>7,A:-/E�*16�87.l97A./DE�*16�07:5,-2+1Z�0,7/-n7A2�5.70-6A.-/�*16�07:5,-2-�/3/2-:�-19*10-:-12/�27�:7.-�-;;-02+>-,3�2.*0l�@B)�75-.*2+71*,�6*2*�*16�-/2*m,+/9�5.70-//-/�;7.�*//-//+1Z�.-,*2-6�5-.;7.:*10-[

����� ����������������� ���������� ������� ����������



����������	�
���
�����
�	������	�
�	����
��	��������	��

���������� �!"��"�
#$%&'()�*+,�-+-./0/123456/�7128� �9:;<=�>9?@AB#�;<@9�C?9D<B9=E,�?9EA<:�F�C#DE�#GG<@9�#C9?AE<#=D721/8��� � �HIJKLJ�MN�OPJQRSL�B(TU%V�AWWXW%YZ%�<ZWT($%&)�[(Z()Y\����]&)�?(%YX\,�>Y)̂(%XZ_�F�DUTT\V�>YZY_(̀ (Z%a6bc0de8�� � �AUfX%�?(T&)%�g�hUWXZ(WW�?(T\V�>YX\�#T()Y%X&ZW�i?(T&)%�=Ù '()�-.j+klj?-mnEoXW�)(T&)%�T)(W(Z%W�%o(�)(WU\%W�&]�&U)�YUfX%�&]�hUWXZ(WW�?(T\V�>YX\�#T()Y%X&ZWpqr�JssSrtuJPr�Pvr�tRRsrSJPuRK�JKL�tRwSPrxurx�sSRyuLrL�z{�{RwS�xPJQN�|}�{Rw�vJyr�JK{�~wrxPuRKx�RS�Z((f�YffX%X&ZY\�XZ]&)̀Y%X&Z,�T\(YW(�$&Z%Y$%��&Wo�hY)%�(Z,�BX)($%&),�?(%YX\,�&)�̀(�Y%�l+.j-mkj-*++pA%%Y$ò (Z%$$����C&W%̀YW%()�[(Z()Y\�@&)T&)Y%(�AUfX%�?(WT&ZW(�>YZY_(̀ (Z%

����� ���!������������� ����!����� ����!�� ����������
OFFICE OF INSPECTOR GENERAL 

UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE 



����������	�
���
�����
�	������	�
�	����
��	��������	�� �

��������� !"#$% &"�'()*+% &,+-./0�123415�31202650�5.2�1207850�49�471�0289:/6/5/;52<�=>?@A�BC�ADE�F>G@HEGG�IEJKL�M=@K�NFIMO�PJEQ=A@BHG�NRQBSETA�U>VWEQ�XYZ[\]Ô�P>Q�BWSETA@_E�̀=G�AB�2a;87;52�5.2�2992b5/a26200�49�5.2�c405;8�d21a/b2e0�fgh�4321;5/460i�d22�j3326</k�j�941�;<</5/46;8�/6941l;5/46�;m475�5./0�;7</5ino%pq!"$�#rDE�FIM�GEQ_@TE�EH=WKEG�s>=K@tE?�V=@KEQG�AB�JQB_@?E�;�12b/3/265�u/5.�;�b46a26/265v�3123;/<�l25.4<�941�1238w/6x�54�;�l;/8/6xi�fgh�3/2b20�b;6�/6b87<2�JBGAT=Q?Gy�KEAAEQGy�z=AGy�J=QTEKGy�BQ�EKETA@BH�W=KKBAGy{�;6<�b;6�2/5.21�m2�|/105:}8;00�h;/8~�41�c1/41/5w�h;/8~��022�|/x712�{�i��6<21�fghv�5.2�l;/821v�645�5.2�b7054l21v�3;w0�5.2�125716�3405;x2i�-.2�c405;8�d21a/b2�314b2002<�4a21��{��l/88/46�fgh�3/2b20�;6<�12b41<2<���]]�V@KK@BH�@H�FIMZQEK=AE?�QE_EH>E�@H�tGT=K�LE=Q�N��O�X[XX̂FIM�=CCBQ?G�WEHEtAG�AB�V=@KEQGy�ADE@Q�T>GABVEQGy�=H?�5.2�c405;8�d21a/b2i�|41�l;/8210v�fgh�314a/<20�3405;x2�b405�0;a/6x0�46�8;1x2�a487l20�u.26�;�b7054l21�12034602�/0�645�;00712<i�fgh�;804�499210�5.2�b7054l21�x12;521�b46a26/26b2�;6<�b405�0;a/6x0�mw�645�622</6x�54�3;w�125716�3405;x2v�07338w�;�l;/83/2b2v�41�;<<�;�125716�;<<1200i�fgh�/0�702<�mw���/12b5�l;1�25210�022�/6x�54�26b471;x2�41<210i�g202;1b.210�022�/6x�071a2w�12034602�<;5;i�c7m8/0.210�048/b/5/6x�07m0b1/35/460i�f70/620020�b4882b5/6x�12b2/350�41�<4b7l2650�914l2l384w220i�UBHJQBtA�BQ�=H@�=A@BHG�AB�BWA=@H�?BH=A@BHĜ��KETA@BH�BCtT@=KG�CBQ�V=@KZ@H�W=KKBAĜ-.2�c405;8�d21a/b2�12b2/a20�12a2672�914l�5.2�3405;x2�46�m45.�5.2�475m476<�3/2b2��54�5.2�b7054l21��;6<�46�5.2�1257162<�fghv�;0�u288�;0�;�321:3/2b2�922�46�5.2�1257162<�fghi�h;/8210�l705�;338w�941�;�321l/5�54�3;15/b/3;52�/6�5.2�fgh�314x1;lv�;6<�5.212�u212�;m475��]\y[[[�=TA@_E�JEQV@AG�=G�BC��>HE�X[XŶX�� ��������������������������� �¡¢����£¤��¥����£��¡¢¢¡�¦���� ¢���§��̈¢¢��©�§�©�¡¦�§�ª���¢��̈¢��¢���¡�¦��ªª¡��©�«����©�¦��������������¬�©�̈¢�­��¥¡���̈©�®̄ °��¢���¡�¦�� ¡̈¢±�²���̈¢¢��¢���¡�¦��̈¢¢��©�̈���� ¡̈¢�§��©¡¦��®̄ °¤�����̈¢¢���� ¢���§��̈¢¢��©�©�¦��������������¬�©�̈¢�­��¥¡���̈��� ����©©�§�̈��̈��¡¦¡�����ª��¡�©�³́¢̈©©�©��¥¡���¢�¥�¢©±�� �� ���¡���¦�¡�¢�©�̈�©�¦§������§¡©��¡�����̈¦��¦¢¡�¡��§�¦�������ª�®̄ °� ¡���©�̈¦§� ̈µ� ��³ ¡������̈���©��¦¢µ��¦������¦�§� ¡���©±�¬���¡����¢§��©�̈�������� ̈µ�̈¦�̈¦¦�̈¢� ���¡��ª�������©����¡©�©��¥¡��±£� ¬�©�̈¢�¦�¶�¡©�����¬�©�̈¢�­��¥¡��·©�̈���� �̈�§�©µ©����ª���� ¦̈̈�¡¦��̈¦§������§¡¦��®̄ °���̈¦©̈��¡�¦©¤�¡¦�¢�§¡¦��§� �©¡�©¤�̈����¦���̈ ¢̈¦��©¤�¥�¢���©¤�¡¦¥�¡��©¤��¡¢¢¡¦�¤���ª�¦§©¤�̈¦§��� ���¡¦��̧®̄ °�§̈ �̈�ª���¦�¦³¬�©�̈¢�¦�¶��¦¡�©�¡©������§�§�̈¦§���̈��§�� ¦̈�̈¢¢µ¹±º� �� �©���ªª¡�����̈��̈��� �©�� ¡̈¢�ª������©�����©�̈¦§��ªª��©����̈¡¢�©��¥¡��©������©�����©�̈¦§��̈¦§¢�©����¡��� ¡̈¢¤�����§��©�¦����ªª���§�¢¡¥��µ±

»&q$!+�¼½�n¾¿�ÀÁoÂÃÄ+Å

ÆB>QTEÇ�È̂Æ̂�RBGA=K�ÆEQ_@TE�PCtTE�BC�ÉHGJETABQ�ÊEHEQ=K�NPÉÊO�GA=CĈh;6w�265/5/20�5.147x.475�5.2�c405;8�d21a/b2�625u41��.;a2�1203460/m/8/5/20�941�fgh�4321;5/460i�Ë4b;8�c405;8�d21a/b2�05;99�b46<7b5�;�a;1/25w�49�312:l;/8/6x�fgh�314x1;l�;b5/a/5/20v�07b.�;0�12a/2u/6x�l;/821�321l/5�;338/b;5/460v�;00/x6/6x�5.2�l;/821�;�321l/5�67lm21v�;6<�/63755/6x�5.2�321l/5�;bb4765�@HCBQV=A@BH�@HAB�RBGA=KPHEÌ̂��PJEQ=A@BH=KKLy�FIM�265210�5.2�c405;8�d21a/b2�0w052l�5.147x.�5w3/b;8�l;/8�;bb235;6b2�b.;66280��2ixiv�07b.�;0�b;11/210�3/b�/6x�/5�73�;846x�;�14752�41�b7054l210�<1433/6x�/5�BCC�=A�=�KBT=K�JBGA�BCtTEÔ�FIM�ADEH�zB̀ G�ADQB>�D�ADE�c405;8�d21a/b2e0�314b200/6x�625u41��54�/50�<205/6;5/6x�C=T@K@ALy�G>TD�=G�=�JBGA�BCtTEy�?EK@_EQL�>H@Ay�BQ�tH=HTE�05;5/46��Í76/5Î�iÏ�j5�5.;5�<205/6;5/6x�76/5v�c405;8�d21a/b2�125;/8�05;99�Ð�fgh�b821�0�41�84b;8�l;6;x2l265�Ð�321941l�;�a;1/25w�49�4321;5/460�07b.�;0�

ÑÒÓÔ� ÕÖ×ØÔ�ÒÙ�ÑÒÚÕÔÚÕÛ ÜÝÞÜØÝÞÜÕÛ �ÔÛßØÕÛ ÖààÔÚáÝÑÔÛ
111111 

111111 

1,,.,t;3~!t/,E~~~EPL Y MAIL 
POSTAGE WILL ee PAIOBY AOORESSEE 

RUSH 
FIRST CLASS MAIL 

BUSINESS REPLY MAIL 
FIAIIT-cull IWL Pl!AMIT NO. 

POSTAGE WILL BE PAID av ADOAESSEE 

NOl'OSTACE 
NECESSARY 
IFMAIL£0 

INTHE 
UNTTfOSU,TfS 

NO POSTAGE 
NECcSSARY 

IFMAILED 
INTHE 

UNITED STATES --
--

NO POSTAGE 
NECESSARY 

IF MAILED 
INTHE 

UNITED STATES 



����������	�
���
�����
�	������	�
�	����
��	��������	�� �

���������� �!"��#��� �$�%�&'��"((����$''�)����*+, �-./012-.3�4.546-.3�2757�-.58�98:570;.4<=���$>��>$������#"�&�(�$�"��#$��(#��>%�?"���>>"��"%�@�'��#"�A$�>��� �)"'�@B�����@��#"�&"'A���$�������-:�/1664.5�7.2�C7:�:1DE/-4.5�D1.2:�58�F7G�5C4�$&&>��$?>"�&�(�$�"�$�%�@""( �$�%���)��������#"�/8:5�58�5C4�F46H-5�7//81.5=��'">"$(���I%">�)"'���J�*+,�����#"�A$�>"'�K�#�(����>%�"��$�>��#"�A$�>"'�&��L�����&�@'�A��#"�'�%"(���$�"%�������'�?"����%">�)"'"%�?B��#"��$''�"'M�$�%�)$>�%$�������A&>"������#'���#��>�("N����8F4675-8.:=�7.2��&"'@�'A����%$�>B�&�(�N&'��"((����%���A"��$�����7.2�O46-E/75-8.�7/5-8.:�-./012-.3P�Q/8HF045-.3�5C4�R.2S8DST7G�U08:4S;15�64F865V�!#��#�%���A"��(�*+,�)�>�A"(��#$��!"'"�&'��"(("% ���)���"% �$�%�(�$�"%W�Q'"��'%����$�B�*+,�%">$B(X�����#"�Y">�)"'B�Z��%������[�(�$>�\$�����KYZ[M�'"&�'�W�Q'"��'%������''"(&��%����*+,N'">$�"%�!�'L#��'(W

]� _̂̀ �abcdefg�hcij�ckglmmcnceki�mlkog�pf�eqrcfeo�meeg�hcdd�jbse�ijecf�abcdrceneg�jedo�bi�ije�mbncdcit�lkicd�ije�bnnplki�cg�rfprefdt�rbcou�̀bcdefg�gjpldo�ve�kpicmceo�ijbi�rceneg�bfe�veckw�jedo�bko�rpgibd�eardpteeg�gjpldo�rdbne�ije�ifbkgbnicpk�ck�b�rekockw�gibilg�ck�xpgibdykeuz� _̂̀ �fenecseo�vt�b�lkci{g�egibvdcgjeo�rfpneggckw�nli|pmm�icae�}cueu~��fcicnbd��kift��cae��������gjpldo�ve�febot�mpf�oedcseft�pf�rcn��lr�ijbi�obtu�̂_̀ �fenecseo�bmief�bk�pmmcne{g�����cg�ip�ve�rfpneggeo�mpf�oedcseft�pf�rcn��lr�kp�dbief�ijbk�ije�keqi�vlgckegg�obtu��jek�abcd�bffcseg�rfcpf�ip�ije�lkci{g�����vli�cg�kpi�febot�mpf�oedcseft�pf�rcn��lr�ijbi�obt~�ci�cg�npkgcoefeo��oedbteo��bko�cg�fe�lcfeo�ip�ve�ferpfieou�� �dijplwj�kpi�rfpneggeo�icaedt~�ijege�vbddpig�hefe�oedcsefeo�rfcpf�ip�ije�ibvldbicpk�pm�ije�edenicpk�fegldigu

,$�>"'(�!"�'"�"��>B�(&�L"�!��#�"�&'"(("%�����"'�(�!��#�����A">B�*+,�("')��" ����>�%����*+,�&�"�"(��#$��$&&"$'"%����?"�%">$B"%�?B�A�>��&>"�!""L(�K?$("%�����#"��$��">>$�����%$�"�����#"�A$�>&�"�"��'���(��A"'���A&>$���(MW��@@"���)"��&"'$����(�$'"��'���$>����"�(�'����*+,�)$>�"�@�'��#"���(�$>��"')��" �A$�>"'( �$�%��#"�'���(��A"'(W����������������������� �¡¢¢�£��¤���¥¥�¦�§ �����̈©���¤����(�$>��"')��"�A$�>"'(�$�%���(��A"'(�)$>�"�*+,�:46O-/4V�ª15�F68/4::-.3�2407G:V�-.:1DE/-4.5�2757V�7.2�����A&>"�"��>�("N����&'��"%�'"(�#��%"'��&"'$����$>�"@@"���)"�"((�$�%���(��A"'�($��(@$�����W«��£�¥¥����¬� �­¥�����¬���®"��?("')"%��"$'>B�̄°± ±±±�&�"�"(��@�%">$B"%�*+,�$��"��#���@�̄̄�@$��>���"(�!"�)�(��"% �!��#�(�A"�F-4/4:�2407G42�ªG�8O46�²³�27G:�́:44�µ-3164�¶·̧�,$�$�"A"���$�%�(�$@@�$>(��$�L��!>"%�"%�%">$B(�F6-86�58�816�O-:-5:V�¹-5C�8.4�8DE/4�H4.5-8.-.3�7ª815�º ±±±�&�"�"(��@�%">$B"%�*+,�">"������?$>>��(�%�'�����#"�&'")���(�!""LW»���§���¼½�¡¾�©� �¥��¢�¬� �­������
¿ÀÁÂÃÄÅÆ�ÇÈÅÉÅ�ÃÊËÌÂÁÍÎÅÏ�ÐÁÍÉÑ�ÒÓÔ�ÕÓÕÒ�Ö×�ÏÁØË�ÃÍÈÊÍ�ÌÊ�ÙÚÛ�ÌÅÁÂ�ÊÜËÅÍÝÁÌÈÊÞß
¿ÀÁÂÃÄÅÆ�àÅÌÌÅÍ�áÍÁØ�ÄÁÜÅÄÄÅÏ�âÃÍÈÄ�ÒÔ�ÕÓÕÒ�Öã�ÏÁØË�ÃÍÈÊÍ�ÌÊ�ÙÚÛ�ÌÅÁÂ�ÊÜËÅÍÝÁÌÈÊÞßä816/4P�;åæ�8ª:46O75-8.:�75�5C4�UC-/738�U4.5�U766-46�ç..4è�98:5�;DE/4V�åéV�7.2�U762-::�U800-.:�µ-.7./4�ä575-8.V�åéV�8.�çF6-0�êV�¶ë¶³̧

ìíîïð ñòóôï�íõ�ìíöñïöñ÷ øùúøôùúøñ÷ ðï÷�ôñ÷ ò��ïö�ùìï÷

SU.EBF DBCS 84■1 



����������	�
���
�����
�	������	�
�	����
��	��������	�� �

������������������ �!�"�#�$ !�%&��� &�'(��&���)*�)+,-./-0�123�0-456,7�8-�9):;59;-0�<5=).�123�<5>4-.,�5:0�.-/>-8-0�?),;54�@-./>9-�*59>4>;6A,B-9>C9�� &� ��!� �"�&���D�E�!"�(��F�����G��F!����H�(����&�I� I�( ���'�%�������!#�"! ����� &�! I� �!��� IJ��K�LME���(N!I�D�O���"���(�N!�F�&� ��!� �"�� &�*59>4>;6A,B-9>C9�0-456-0�<5>4�05;5�>:�PQR�5:0�*)S:0���(N!I��� &�(�"!�'!"!�J�!��%���'���&�� �����K�""�F! $T�UVWXYZW[�\Y]X�VŶY�_]̀WXZ�ab[WccWdeĉW[�fec�gYh]X]̂]Wi�j]i]̂W[k�O�!"��F���'��(N�&� ��("J�lmnonnn��!�I����K�&�"�J�&�LME�&%(! $��%(�N!�!��o�� "J�� ���!��m���&��(�N!�%�"J�(���(��&�5:6�0-456-0�123�/)4S<-�*.)<�p9;)+-.�qrqq�S:;>4�;s-�ptu�/>,>;,�>:�vB.>4A356�qrqwx�v44�);s-.��!������&�y�(��(���(��&�&�"�J��! �z{|�'��F�� �p9;)+-.�qrqq�5:0�)S.�>:0>/>0S54�/>,>;,x�v,�,;5;-0���("!�(o�}����"�~�(N!I����"!IJ�(��%!(���LME�&�"�J�&�N�"%#������'���II%(���"J�(�I�(&�&�! �z{|D�UVWXYZW[�\Y]X�VŶY�_]̀WXZ�ab[WccWdeĉW[��Ŷ]ebYXXZk�}����"�~�(N!I�� ��!� F!&��z{|�&�������F�&��l�o��l�&�"�J�&�LME��!�I���'��F�� �p9;)+-.�qrqq�5:0��S:-�qrqwx��s-,-�:S<+-.,�F�(��"!G�"J�% &�(�����&����m����(I� ���K�������&�"�J�&�N�"%#�������o��l��F�(��(���(��&�+-;8--:�vB.>4��S:-�qrqw�+6�):46�;8)�*59>4>;>-,���{�(&!���{�""! ���! � I��~���!� �� &�{�!I�$��{� ��{�((!�(��  �H���Yf̂Wc��%(�N!�!��D�~��KK�����������F��K�I!"!�!����IG �F"�&$�&�������(!�(�����%(�N!�!��o����J�F�(�� ���(�I�(&! $�&�"�J��� &����(��&�&�! $�����K��(F�(&D�������������O���"���K�% &��!#!"�(�&����(�"!�'!"!�J�I� I�( ��8s-:�.-/>-8>:��123A.-45;-0�8).�s)S.,x��5;>):54�05;5�+-;8--:�p9;)+-.�qrqq�5:0��S:-�qrqw�,s)8-0�������"��K�lD��#!""!� �F�(G��%(���""�I���&����LMED������� %#'�(��F�(��"!G�"J�% &�(�����&����y�(���n��F�(G��%(��F�(��(�I�(&�&������m�K�I!"!�!�����K�I!"!�!���;s5;�9S<S45;>/-46�B.)9-,,-0�)/-.�qr�<>44>):�B>-9-,��K�LME��ln���(I� ���K�����"�LME�N�"%#���&%(! $������;><-x�p*�;s),-�*59>4>;>-,�.-B).;>:���-.)�8).��s)S.,�*.)<�p9;)+-.�qrqq�;s.)S�s��S:-�qrqw��Up:-�*59>4>;6�.-B).;-0�B.)9-,,>:����<>44>):�123��!�I��o�U� ����(�K�I!"!�J��� ��F��N!�!��&�������}��� !H�E�! �?),;�p*C9-�7�.-B).;-0�B.)9-,,>:�� x¡�<>44>):�123��!�I��o�� &¢� £¤¤¥�¦§̈§©¤ª�«¬­©®̈ ¤̄°�±£²°�³­©®­�́µ¥¤́§µ¶�·°̧¹º�¥©µ®µ»�©ª�¼©¶½¾΅®­¿¹� ÀÁ¤Â§�¹Ã°ÃÃÃ�¤Ä�§­µ�µÅ¥µ®§µ¶�¹Æ¢°Æ¢º�®Ç¤»µ½¤Â§»¿�ÈÄ�§­¤»µ�¹Ã°ÃÃÃ°�¤ªÇÉ�·¢°ÊÃÃ�­̈¶�ª̈ ´́̈ §©Ëµ�µÅ¥Ç̈ª̈§©¤ª»�Ä¤́�³­É�§­µÉ�³µ́µ�©ª®¤¼¥Çµ§µ¿·Ã�¬̈ ¶́©»»�¬¤ÇÇ©ª»�Ì©ª̈ª®µ�¦§̈§©¤ª�̈ª¶�¬­©®̈ ¤̄�¬µª§�¬̈ ´́©µ́�ÀªªµÅ�́µ¥¤́§�®Ç¤»µ¤Â§�¶̈ §̈�Í¤©ª§ÇÉÎ�§­µ́µÄ¤́µ°�³µ�®¤ª»©¶µ́µ¶�§­µ»µ�»©§µ»�̈»�¤ªµ�Ç¤®̈§©¤ª�«́µ¶Â®©ª̄�§­µ�»©§µ»�µ́Ë©µ³µ¶�§¤�·Ã²�Ä¤́�§­©»�̈ª̈ÇÉ»©»¿

�UqÏ�);s-.�*59>4>;>-,�.-B).;-0�B.)9-,,>:��)/-.�lnnonnn��!�I��DÐÑ�ÒÓÔÕ��ÒÖ-�.-/>-8-0�×Ø�qrqw�6-5.A;)A05;-�Ùp9;)+-.�qrqq��S:-�qrqw��:5;>):54�5:0�*59>4>;6A,B-9>C9�05;5�):�;s-�I�#�"��� �����K�I"���Ú�%���(�I�&%(��D�M�$�(&! $� ��!� �"���(K�(#� I�o�&�������F�&������ ��("J��nonnn�(��%!(�&�I"���Ú�%��������(I� ����F�(�� ���I�#�"���&D�~��KK��H�"� ��!� ��K�(�������! I�#�"����I"���Ú�%����lnol�l��K����� ��("J�lmo�nn�! I�#�"����I"���Ú�%��������! I"%&�&�� ��H�"� ��!� �o�F�(��5;;.>+S;-0�;)�5�/5.>-;6�)*�.-5,):,7�>:94S0>:��,;5*C:�����(��$��o�#� �$�#� ���N�(�!$���!��%��o�� &������LME��(�I���! $�F��� ������(!�(!�JD�O����� �(�N!�F�&�,B-9>C9�05;5�*).�;s-�*59>4>;>-,�8-�/>,>;-0�5:0�*)S:0�! I�#�"����I"���Ú�%���(�I�&%(������ ! ���K�����ln�K�I!"!�!��DlnÛ�Ò��Ñ�ÜÓ�ÝÞßÓ�ÛÓ�ÒàÓß�ÞÝÓÒ��áâ�ãäà�ß�Ò?),;54�@-./>9-�)*C9>54,�59�:)84-0�-0�B.)9-,,>:��&�"�J�o�&�"�J�&�N�"%#��� &�F�(G��%(�&����!��%��o�� &�! I�#�"����I"���Ú�%��D�å�I�"�� &����&�%�(��(��<5:5�-<-:;�5;;.>+S;-0�;s-<�;)�,;5*C:�7�,-./>9-��(!�(!�!y��!� o�� &��J���#�"!#!���!� �I��""� $������K�""�F�T�Uæçèéêëìí�p*C9>54,�,;5;-0�;s5;�;s-,-�)B-.5;>):54�5:0�05;5�,s).;*544,�5.),-�0S-�;)�,;5*C:��I� ��(�! ��o��%I����� �����N! $����KK��(�! �&��(����!$ �&�����(�I����LME�F�� ������(!#�(J����KK�F���� ����!(�&�J��KK��(�� �"��N�D���(��H�#�"�o�#� �$�#� ����� ! ���K�ll�K�I!"!�!���F��N!�!��&�&!&� ������!$ ���'�IG%���(��(�! �����(����KK����9)<B4-;-�123�B.)9-,,>:�x�t:�;s-,-�>:,;5:9-,7�123�F�%"&� ���'���(�I����&�% �!"������(!#�(J�I"�(G��(��%( �&D

î�ïðñòó�ôó�õö÷ó��ó���ó��ò����	
			��ñó�ó÷�õ
��óò��ó���������ñ���õ����ñ÷ñ�÷
�õ�ò��õ�ó�÷ñ�ó�ð�����ó�ñõ�÷ò���ó�õ��ó�������óò��ó�������õò��ó�
�õ�����õöó���	������ñò��ðó������ñ÷ñ�÷�ñ�����ñò������	������ !" #$%&!'�('��)#!)#* +,-+&,-+#* "!*.&#* $//!)0,�!*



����������	�
���
�����
�	������	�
�	����
��	��������	�� �

��������������� !�"#$%&'()�*+,-.�,/',�+,/-0�0-,'&(�1234567189�58:�;57<�241=39978>�?1@<:�1A63867;39�65B3�2471476C�1D34�67;3<C�EFG�241=39978>H�5==@4563�:3<5C3:�EFG�58:�?14BI1@4�645=B78>H�58:�=18:@=678>�=<193J1@6�241=3:@439K�L3�5<91�A1@8:�,/',�+#$%&'()�',�M�+#�NN�#'%&(&,&-)�?3�D79763:�:7:�816�B81?�6I56�:3<5C3:�EFG�9I1@<:�O3�4321463:�14�5=B81?<3:>3:�:3<5C3:�EFG�?59�816�4321463:�78�PQRK��STU�VW�X�W������ U!�"#$%&'()�8163:�EFG�9C963;�<7;76567189�43<563:�61�645=B78>�B3C�EFG�:565�83=39954C�61�5<<1?�;585>3;386�D797O7<76C�7861�EFG�241=39978>K�Y14�3Z5;2<3H�6I3�9C963;�?59�@85O<3�61�645=B�6I3�5;1@86�1A�78=1;78>�EFG�D1<@;3�5447D78>�56�6I3�@876�18�5�>7D38�:5C�58:�=1;2543�76�61�I1?�;@=I�?59�241=3993:K�[5D78>�6I3�5O7<76C�61�43D73?�6I79�78A14;56718�?1@<:�241D7:3�;585>3;386�?76I�;143�=<5476C�7861�6I3�5;1@86�1A�:3<5C3:�EFG�58:�<1=567189�I5D78>�1234567185<�799@39K\I3�]1965<�̂34D7=3�I59�5<435:C�78767563:�6I3�A1<<1?78>�5=67189�61�I3<2�7;241D3�EFG�241=39978>H�67;3<78399H�58:�:565_�� àb�cdefgedhij�\I3�]1965<�̂34D7=3�58:�<35:78>�klm�n'&(-0)�%0-',-.�'�o+&*,�p+0q&*r�r0+stuu�78�vt0&(�wxwy�,+�#+%s)�+*�klm�&))s-)�z�)s%/�')�5@61;5678>�;143�241=39939�58:�38I58=78>�6457878>�{�61�78=43593�EFG�@95>3�58:�7;214658=3K��|}~�~���V�����W���� !�\I3�]1965<�̂34D7=3�'**+s*%-.�'�m'��wxwy�t0+n+,&+*�,+�/-(t�&nt0+�-�klm�-#$%&-*%��'*.��&)&�&(&,����/-�l-t(��m'&(��m�v���*,-((&r-*,�m'&(�k'0%+.-�v%%+s*,&*r��]41;16718�241D7:39��@5<7AC78>�;57<349�:79=1@869�7A�6I3C�78=14214563�96567=�14�93475<7�3:�O54=1:39�7861�6I374�EFGH�?I7=I�543�5=67189�6I56�I3<2�5@61;563�;58@5<�5923=69�1A�6I3�=1@8678>�58:�78D17=78>�241=39939K��|}~�STU�VW�� �� �VWV �U!�k��,/-�-*.�+#�wxwy��6I3�]1965<�̂34D7=3�4321469�76�?7<<�7;2<3;386�5�:59IO154:�61�;143�3AA3=67D3<C�645=B�B3C�EFG�1234567185<�:565H�78=<@:78>�:57<C�5447D78>�58:�241=3993:�D1<@;39KLI7<3�?3�43=1>87�3�6I193�799@39�58:�=1443=67D3�5=67189H�6I3�O415:34�1234567185<�3AA3=67D38399�t0+�(-n)�0-)s(,-.�#0+n�&*)s#$%&-*,�n'*'r-n-*,���� �����������������������������  �¡¡���¢����£¤�¥��¦�§��̈©�ª�«¬�­�®̄°±̄²�³́ µ±¶̄µµ�®̄ ·̧¹�º»±̧�¼½¾¿̄µµ̄µÀ�®́ ¸̄µ�»¶Á�®̄ Ấ »̧Ã±¾¶µÄ

58:�1D3497>I6�A14�389@478>�67;3<C�241=39978>H�A1<<1?78>�21<7=739�61�5==@4563<C�43=14:�:3<5C3:�;57<�58:�?14BI1@49H�58:�=1;2<3678>�=<193J1@6�241=3:@439K�Q18678@3:�EFG�241=39978>�:3<5C9H�:565�7863>476C�241O<3;9�ÅO16I�:3<5C3:�;57<�58:�?14BI1@4�:565ÆH�58:�9C963;�<7;76567189�?1@<:�ÅuÆ�83>567D3<C�7;25=6�EFG�;57<34�58:�=@961;34�3Z234738=39H�25467=@<54<C�59�@867;3<C�241=39978>�%+s(.�.-('��-(-%,&+*�n'&(��*+*t0+$,�.+*',&+*)��+0�+,/-0�0-%&t&-*,�0-t(&-)Ç�'*.��w��/&*.-0�,/-�È+),'(�É-0�&%-Ê)�D797O7<76C�7861�EFG�934D7=3�58:�1234567185<�234A14;58=3H�78=<@:78>�7:3867AC78>�21638675<�1234567185<�>529H�?35B839939H�14�D@<8345O7<76739K�Ë+*,&*s-.�%(+)-Ì+s,�.-$%&-*%&-)�p+s(.�0-)s(,�&*��-0&$%',&+*�'*.�:565�479B9�43<563:�61�?I36I34�EFG�1234567189�p-0-�%+nt(-,-.�.'&(����*�%+*%(s)&+*��&*)s#$%&-*,�;585>3;386�58:�1D3497>I6�1A�EFG�1234567189�58:�9C963;�<7;76567189�543�2@6678>�]1965<�̂34D7=3�43D38@3H�=1969H�58:�O458:�59�5�64@963:�934D7=3�241D7:34�56�479BKÍÎÏÐÑÑÎÒÓÔÕÖÐÒ�×Ø¥������  ����¡���ÙÖÏÎ�ÚÛÎÜÖÓÎÒÕÝ�ÍÎÕÔÖÞ�ß�ÚÐÜÕ�àááÖÏÎ�àâÎÛÔÕÖÐÒÜ¤�������©��¡��¡�ã����¡�����̈����̈ää�����¡� ���ã� ��¡�����������ã�¡��ä�å̈ �������æ�©���������©���¡����¤�©��¡��̈����������¡���¡��¡� ����©��������ã¤���������ã����̈��¡��å̈ �������æ�©����������¡��¢�çãç¤�������¤����̈ ��¤�����è��¦��̈��£¤������� ©��¡��ã������é�̈¡�©�����̈���çÍÎÏÐÑÑÎÒÓÔÕÖÐÒ�×ê¥������  ����¡���ÙÖÏÎ�ÚÛÎÜÖÓÎÒÕÝ�ÍÎÕÔÖÞ�ß�ÚÐÜÕ�àááÖÏÎ�àâÎÛÔÕÖÐÒÜ¤��� ©��¡�����¡� �������� ��¡��¡�� �����ää��¡������¡���¦�å̈ �������æ�©���������©���¡��������¡��������¡�ë�����©���������ä�����������ã�����¡���©��ä�� ����çìíîíïðñðîòóô�õöññðîòôm'*'r-n-*,�'r0--.�p&,/�,/-�$*.&*r�'*.��+,/�43=1;;38:567189H�O@6�6I3C�:795>433:�?76I�6?1�583=:1639�78=<@:3:�78�6I3�432146K�Y7496H�?I343�6I3�432146�;3867183:�;57<349�=18=3489�5O1@6�@867;3<C�EFG�934D7=3H�78=<@:78>�6I56�91;3�273=39�5223543:�61�O3�:3<5C3:�OC�;@<672<3�?33B9H�;585>3;386�43�@3963:�6I3�96563;386�O3�43;1D3:�14�43?14:3:�')�*+�'..&,&+*'(��)t-%&$%�%s),+n-0�&*#+0n',&+*�?59�78=<@:3:K�̂3=18:H�?I343�6I3�432146�;3867183:�6I56�EFG�1234567185<�799@39�÷?1@<:�83>567D3<C�7;25=6�EFG�;57<34�58:�=@961;34�3Z234738=39H�

ø���������	
����
�����	��	
��	��������	����	������������
�������
����������������������
�������	����	�	������ !"#$���%���&!�&!' ()*($)*(!'  �'+$!' ",,�&-)��'



����������	�
���
�����
�	������	�
�	����
��	��������	�� �

����������� ��!��"��#$� ���%�$!!�"&��%��'�'$�� �()(*+,-.�/0,)1�.-.23-4+�5-.0+,-.61�-3�-+7(3�3(*,2,(.+��$���$!89�#�"�&$#$"���$:�$!�$'��;$��$<$�$"�$�+-�()(*+,-.�/0,)�=(�3(/->(5�-3�05?@6+(5�+-�A/0,)BC�D�"�&$#$"��<$����;$��"�$"��%<��;$�E$�F��&$�G%��'���$��$���<��!$�!$"!$�%<�����#8�G;��$���H"%G�$'&�"&��;$��$�%���!���$'��;$�%F!$�E$'�'$�� $'�$�$���%"�#����G�!�'$��E$�$'����%���%��;$���F�����%"�%<��" �$�$���%"��$!���!IJ$&��'�"&��$�%##$"'���%"�K8�#�"�&$#$"��!���$'��;$ �;�E$����$�' ��"�����$'�!����$&�$!��!!%����$'�G��;�LJD�G%�H&�%��!8�'�!;F%��'!8��"'�! !�$#�$";�"�$#$"�!��%��#��%E$���#$��"$!!�%<�LJD���%�$!!�"&��"'�������� �%<�LJD�E%��#$8�G%�H;%��!��"'���%�$!!�"&�'$�� !8��"'���%!$M%�����%�$'��$!I�N.�6@=6(O@(.+�5,6*@66,-.61�/0.0P(/(.+�Q@3+7(3�*)03,4(5�+7(6(�-.P-,.P�6+30+(P,(61�6+0+,.P�+7(R�S,))��$�<%�#�F$��$��%E$�!�&;��%<���#$� ���%�$!!�"&8�#%�$��������$� ����%���$�G%�H;%��!��"'��%#���$��;$#��%�G%�H�%�'8��"'�$";�"�$�E�!�F���� ��"�%�LJD�'$�� !��"'���%!$�%����$�<%�#�"�$IT(P035,.P�3(*-//(.50+,-.�U1�/0.0P(/(.+�6+0+(5�+7(R�03(�4.0),V,.P�+7(�5(>()-2/(.+�-Q�+7(�LJD�'�!;F%��'8�G;��;�G����#%�$�$<<$���E$� �����H�%�$����%"���'�����"'��$�<%�#�"�$I�W;$����&$��,/2)(/(.+0+,-.�50+(�,6�X0.@03R�YZ1�U[U\B]$$�̂��$"'�_�L�<%��#�"�&$#$"�̀!��%##$"�!��"��;$���$"���$� Iabcdecfghi�hj�kciclmnmifop�qhnnmifpr7(�sNt�*-.6,5(36�/0.0P(/(.+u6�*-//(.+6��$!�%"!�E$��%�F%�;��$�%##$"'���%"!8��"'��%��$���E$�0*+,-.6�67-@)5�3(6-)>(�+7(�,66@(6�,5(.+,4(5�,.�+7(��$�%��IJ$&��'�"&�#�"�&$#$"�̀!�'�!�&�$$#$"��G��;��;$��$�%��̀!�'$!������%"�%<�#���$���%"�$�"!��F%���'$�� $'�LJD8�G$��;%!$��%�!�##���v$�#���$��LJD��%"�$�"!�G;��$�����%�����$� ��$���"�"&��;$��"%" #�� �%<��"'�E�'����#���$�!I�J$&��'�"&�#�"�&$#$"�̀!�'�!�&�$$#$"��G��;��;$��$�%��̀!�'$!������%"�%<��%�$"�����$�$���%"�#����'$�� !��$!����"&�<�%#�LJD�%�$����%"����!!�$!8�G$���$��$���"�"&��;�!�E$�F��&$�F�!$'�%"�$�$���%"�#����F$�"&���H$ �LJD�!$&#$"���"'�w%!����]$�E��$�!��<<���H"%G�$'&�"&��!!%����$'�'$�� !�'���"&�%���%F!$�E���%"!Ix))�3(*-//(.50+,-.6�3(O@,3(�sNt�*-.*@33(.*(�=(Q-3(�*)-6@3(B�y-.6(O@(.+)R1�+7(�sNt�3(O@(6+6�S3,++(.�*-.43/0+,-.�S7(.�*-33(*+,>(�0*+,-.6�03(�*-/2)(+(5B�z,+7�sNtu6�3(>,(S�-Q�6@22-3+,.P�5-*@/(.+0+,-.���%�"'��;$�w%!����]$�E��$̀!�"$G� �'$E$�%�$'�

!����$&�$!��!!%����$'�G��;�LJD�G%�H&�%��!8�'�!;F%��'!8��"'�! !�$#�$";�"�$#$"�!8�G$��&�$$��%���%!$��$�%##$"'���%"�K��!��#��$#$"�$'���%"�+7(�3(2-3+u6�,66@0.*(B�T(*-//(.50+,-.�U�67-@)5�.-+�F$���%!$'��"��;$�w%!����]$�E��$̀!�<%��%GM�������H�"&�6R6+(/�@.+,)�+7(�sNt�23->,5(6�S3,++(.�*-.43/0+,-.��;����;$��$�%##$"'���%"���"�F$���%!$'I
{|}~� ����~�|��{|��~��� ���������� �~����� ���~���{~�



�����������	
���
�
��	��
�������	���������������������

�������������������� �����!�"�#$�%�&"'(#!�"��))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))*+�"���#���,�!-"�"$"./�))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))*0'�"'��1��!�2"3�'#.��))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))45���������6 �,#�#.�(��!7��2"((��!��)))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))44
289:; <�6=:�8>�28?<:?<+ @%A@=%A@<+ ;:+B=<+ �00:?C%2:+



����������	�
���
�����
�	������	�
�	����
��	��������	�� �

���������������� �!�"#�$�%!&'" �!�()*+,�-./�0,12*/*3*45678�9:;<=>?@<�ABC�>9�<@BD7B><�>E<�<FF<=>?@<G<CC�9F�>E<�HIJKLM�NOPQRSOTJ�UVW�IXOPLKRIYJZ�[I�LSSI\XMRJ]�ÎP�9:;<=>?@<_�A<̀�aVOQRObOc�HIJKLM�NOPQRSO�XIMRSROJ�LYc�XPISOĉ POJ�POMLKOc�KI�UVW�IXOPLKRIYJ�dOZeZf�XPISOJJRYef�]LYcMRYef�RYQIRSRYef�OKSZgZ�ahGBDij<k�lmn�9o<8B>?9GBD�kB>B�F89p�q9C>BD6G<r�F98�st�uvuu�BGk�i<B8w>9wkB><�st�uvux�yz7G<{_�RYSM̂cRYe�QIM̂\OJf�UVW�LSKRQO�XOP\RKJf�LYc�K]O�Ŷ\|OP�I}�cL~J�UVW�KPLYJLSKRIYJ�bOPO�YIK�XPISOJJOc�|~�MISLKRIYZ�a�YLM~�Oc�YLKRIYbRcO�cOML~Oc�UVW�}PI\�K]O�����8<o98>_�E97C<k�A?>E?G��GF98p<k��?C?:?D?>i_�F89p�6=>9:<8�uvuu�>E897�E�z7G<�uvux��a�YLM~�Oc�UVW�SMIJO�ÎK�SI\XMRLYSOf�SL̂ JOJ�}IP�YIYSI\XMRLYSOf�LYc�UVW�LJJISRLKOc�A98�E978C�GB>?9GBDDi�F98�6=>9:<8�uvuu�>E897�E�z7G<�uvux�F89p�>E<�q9C>BD��<8@?=<�C��G><8o8?C<��LKL��LPO]ÎJO��XXMRSLKRIY�N~JKO\�VOXIPKRYe�J~JKO\JZ�a�IYĉ SKOc�IY�JRKO�I|JOPQLKRIYJ�I}�UVW�9o<8B>?9GC�B>����;7k�p<G>BDDi�C<D<=><k�FB=?D?>?<C�

YLKRIYbRcO�K]LK�OYSI\XLJJOc�LMM�}ÎP�cOMRQOP~�LYc�POKLRM�LPOLJf�MLPeO�UVW�QIM̂\O�MISLKRIYJf�LYc�YOLP|~�J\LMMOP�QIM̂\O�MISLKRIYJZ�NOO�[L|MO���}IP�K]O�}LSRMRKROJ�QRJRKOcf�HIJKLM�NOPQRSO��POLf�LYc�I|JOPQLKRIY�cLKOJZ�̂ PRYe�K]OJO�JRKO�QRJRKJf�bO�cOKOP\RYOc�K]O�L\ÎYK�I}�UVW�IY�]LYc�dŜPPOYK�LYc�XOYcRYegf�LJJOJJOc�RKJ�XPISOJJRYe�KR\OMRYOJJf�RYKOPQRObOc�UVW�JKL}}�LYc�\LYLeO\OYKf�LYc�I|JOPQOc�JKL}}�SI\XMOKRYe�K]O�XPISOJJRYe�LYc�RYQIRSRYe�I}�UVW�KPLYJLSKRIYJZVOQRObOc�cLKL�}PI\�K]O�HIJKLM�NOPQRSOTJ��̂ JKI\OP�����J~JKO\�KI�MOLPY�L|ÎK�RYJKLYSOJ�b]OPO�ŜJKI\OPJ�PLRJOc�RJĴOJ�IP�SIYSOPYJ�L|ÎK�UVW�IXOPLKRIYJ�LYc�JOPQRSOZ�G><8@?<A<k�q9C>BD��<8@?=<�E<Bk�7B8><8C�9F�=?BDC�L|ÎK�XOPKRYOYK�RJĴOJ�POMLKRYe�KI�UVW�IXOPLKRIYJ�RYSM̂cRYe�S]LMMOYeOJ�bRK]�UVW�IXOPLKRIYJ�LYc�LSKRIYJ�K]O�HIJKLM�NOPQRSO�XMLYJ�KI�KL�O�IP�]LJ�KL�OY�KI�LccPOJJ�K]O\Z�G><8@?<A<k�;7k�p<G>BDDi�C<D<=><k�lmn�pB?D<8C�>9�cRJŜJJ�K]ORP�UVW�IXOPLKRIYJf�RJĴOJ�LK�HIJKLM�NOPQRSO�MISLKRIYJf�]Ib�K]O~�\IYRKIP�K]ORP�UVWf�LYc�K]ORP�IQOPLMM�HIJKLM�NOPQRSO�RYKOPLSKRIYJZ�-�3,����(�1,��-./��-1,������1,/�1*����, ¡,�¢£0��+, -1�*.�¤¥¦§ §̈©ª«ª¬­ ®§¬¦�¤¬¬¦̄°¦°±�� &"#��&�"�²� "�#�"���³�#�́�&µ�¶��&" �!�· !̧#�� ¹�$º¹�»!· �¶%%�¼� ��&�#�½¹�¾¿¾À±"&��··�±!##��·�Á��"�¼��Â " �!� ��&�#�Ã¹�¾¿¾À±Ä�¼"Å!�±�� �±"&&��&������ ��&�#�Ã¹�¾¿¾Àº!!��±"&&��&������ ��&�#�Ã¹�¾¿¾À� #"� �¼��&�"�²� "�#�"���³�#�́�&µ�¶��&" �!�· º"�Ä"'ÆÂ�"Ç&!!È¹�É³¹�»!· �¶%%�¼� É"µ�Ê¹�¾¿¾ÀË"Å�&· !Ì�¹�É³¹�»!· �¶%%�¼� É"µ�Í¿¹�¾¿¾ÀÂ!Î Ä�&���&�"�²� "�#�"���³�#�́�&µ�¶��&" �!�· ³!&"́�##�¹�Ï�¹�»!· �¶%%�¼� É"µ�ÍÍ¹�¾¿¾ÀÐ�· »"¼��&�"�²� "�#�"���³�#�́�&µ�¶��&" �!�· »Ä!����¹��Ñ¹�É"���»!· �¶%%�¼� É"µ�ÍÒ¹�¾¿¾À»Ä!����¹��Ñ¹�±"¼ Î·�»!· �¶%%�¼� É"µ�ÍÒ¹�¾¿¾À±�� &"#��&�"�²� "�#�"���³�#�́�&µ�¶��&" �!�· ³"µ !�¹�¶Ë¹�É"���»!· �¶%%�¼� É"µ�¾À¹�¾¿¾À±��¼���" �¹�¶Ë¹�É"���»!· �¶%%�¼� É"µ�¾Ó¹�¾¿¾À�978=<̀�sB=?D?>?<C�ÔB>B:BC<�BGk�6�Õw�<G<8B><k�:BC<k�9GwC?><�9:C<8@B>?9GC�BGk�kB><C�B>><Gk<k�

±¶Ö×² Ø�Ùº×�¶Á�±¶ÚØ×ÚØÂ Ë$ÏËº$ÏËØÂ ²×ÂÛºØÂ �»»×Ú³$±×Â



����������	
���
	����	���
������
���
�	�����
	�������
�� ��

��	������ ��	 !"#	$�%&�%'(���	(��" 	&%�'	)$%"*	+,-./0,	12+.34-	5657	89	:22.-;:924	<8+,	0494-:==>	(���$ ��	?�@�%�'�� 	(��" "�?	# (��(%�#	(��	"��*����	#��!	 �# #	�&	"� �%�(*	��� %�*#	(#	A�	���#"��%��	����##(%B	����%	 !�	�"%��'# (���#C	D!�#�	# (��(%�#	%�E�"%�	 !( 	A�	$*(�	(��	$�%&�%'	+,4	:/;8+	+.	.3+:89	F/GH2849+I	:JJ-.J-8:+4	4K8;4924	+.	J-.K8;4	:	-4:F.9:3=4	3:F8F	G.-	./-	H9;890	:9;	2.92=/F8.9F	3:F4;	.9	./-	:/;8+	.3L42+8K4M	N4	34=84K4	 !( 	 !�	�@"�����	�O ("���	$%�@"��#	(	%�(#��(O*�	3:F8F	G.-	./-	H9;890	:9;	2.92=/F8.9F	3:F4;	.9	./-	:/;8+	.3L42+8K4M	N4	;8F2/FF4;	./-	.3F4-K:+8.9F	:9;	2.92=/F8.9F	<8+,	P:9:04P49+	.9	Q4J+4P34-	RI	5657I	(��	"��*����	 !�"%	��''�� #	A!�%�	($$%�$%"( �CS9	J=:99890	:9;	2.9;/2+890	+,4	:/;8+I	<4	.3+:894;	(�	����%# (��"�?	�&	 !�	"� �%�(*	��� %�*	# %�� �%�	%�*( ��	 �	TUV	 �	!�*$	�� �%'"��	 !�	�( �%�W	 "'"�?W	(��	�X �� 	�&	��%	(��" 	$%�����%�#C	��	%�@"�A��	 !�	'(�(?�'�� 	��� %�*#	&�%	�@�%#��"�?	 !�	$%�?%('	(��	'" "?( "�?	(##��"( ��	%"#Y#C	)��" "��(**BW	A�	(##�##��	 !�	"� �%�(*	��� %�*	��'$���� #	(��	����%*B"�?	$%"��"$*�#W	(��	A�	�� �%'"���	 !( 	 !�	G.==.<890	+,-44	2.PJ.949+F	<4-4	F8098H2:9+	+.	./-	:/;8+	.3L42+8K4Z	2.9+-.=	:2+8K8+84FI	89G.-P:+8.9	:9;	��''��"�( "��W	(��	'��" �%"�?C��	��@�*�$��	(��" 	A�%Y	 �	��#�%�	 !( 	A�	(##�##��	 !�#�	��� %�*#C	T(#��	��	 !�	A�%Y	J4-G.-P4;I	<4	8;49+8H4;	F8098H2:9+	89+4-9:=	2.9+-.=	;4H2849284F	<8+,89	+,4	2.9+4[+	.G	./-	.3L42+8K4M	1/-	%���''���( "��#W	"&	"'$*�'�� ��W	#!��*�	��%%�� 	+,4	<4:\94FF4F	<4	8;49+8H4;	G.-	G/+/-4	J-.0-:PFM��	(##�##��	 !�	%�*"(O"*" B	�&	��'$� �%]?���%( ��	;:+:	G-.P	+,4	̂.F+:=194_I	S9G.-P4;	̀8F838=8+>I	a� �%$%"#�	b( (	�(%�!��#�W	)$$*"�( "��	cB# �'	U�$�% "�?W	d(�"*" "�#	b( (O(#�W	(��	e�# �'�%	fgh	#B# �'#	A!��	$�%&�%'"�?	��%	�( (	(�(*B#"#C	��	(##�##��	 !�	%�*"(O"*" B	�&	 !�	�( (	OB	�"#��##"�?	 !�	;:+:	<8+,	,4:;i/:-+4-F	:9;	̂.F+	1GH24	P:9:04P49+	A!�	�#�	 !"#	�( (	 �	�@�%#��	�$�%( "��#	(��	$�%&�%'(���C	��	�� �%'"���	 !�	�( (	A�%�	F/GH2849+=>	-4=8:3=4	G.-	+,4	J/-J.F4	.G	+,8F	-4J.-+Mjklmk	noplq	rmstkuvtw,4	1Sx	;8;	9.+	8;49+8G>	:9>	J-8.-	:/;8+F	.-	-4K84<F	-4=:+4;	+.	+,4	.3L42+8K4	.G	+,8F	:/;8+	<8+,89	+,4	=:F+	HK4	>4:-FM

yz{|} ~���|	z�	yz�~|�~� ��������~� }|���~� ���|���y|�



���������	
�����
����������������

������������������ ���!��� "�!�����!�"��������#$%&'(%�#) ��

�*+,- .�	/,�*0��*1.,1.2 3453/453.2 -,26/.2 �77,184�,2
AIL ANO POST OFF OPERAT 

HEAoouA!n-E:ftS 

.,,;;; UNITEDSTIJTE 
POSTIJL RVICE 

JOHN CIHOTA 
DIRECTOR, AUDIT SERVICES 

SUBJECT: Managem nt R sponse: Busin ss R ply Mail (BRM) Op rations 
(23-087-DRAFT) 

Thank you for providing th Postal Serv1c w h an opportuni to revi w nd comment 
on h indings nd r comm ndations con ain d in th dra r port - Busin ss R ply 
Ma,/ Operations. 

Finding #1 : BRM Operat ional Effectiveness Could Be Improved : 
Whil Management agrees with Finding #1 as a ol , i d isagrees w h o anecdotal 
statements mad in th audit r port: 

1. Th rt stat s, · Mail rs w r c ntl i ress d c s w ith 
s rvic , including a ar layed by 

mul w (bas d on h c mai ustom r 
com nt anag m nt had t nt b or r word d, 
as no sp informa ion was ostal Serv to comments 
shared by customers w h h O ice o lnspec or G neral (OIG). 

2. The report states, · con 1nued BRM processing d lays, da a in egri probl ms 
(both delayed mail and workhour data), and system lim1ta ions would negatively 
impact BRM mail r and custom nences, particularly as un roe ssing 
could d lay lection mail, nonp tions, or other r ci • r 
Managemen had requ st d h e ion mail plac d 
with simply t d •mail.. Man t int nt oft was 
to er a a f ns of alarm, t all El cbo ii in th 
r port was d d prior to th tabulation el ction r s. 

Following ar anagement's comments on he o (2) recomm ndations: 

Recommendation #1 : 
We r commend the Vice President. Retail & Post O ice Operations. develop strategies 
to ensure su 1cient management and oversight of Business Reply ail operations, 
particularly rela d to tim ly processing. r cord ing accurat Busin ss R ply Mail da a 
( .g., delays, volum s, and workhours), and completing close-out proc dur s. 

~75 L'E l'V.ZAS 

W~-.Cl'TONOC 20260 



����������	
���
	����	���
������
���
�	�����
	�������
�� ��

����� �� !�	�"	��#��#�$ %&'%!&'%�$ ��$(!�$ �))�#*&��$
-2-

Management Response/Action Plan: 
Management agrees with this recommendation. he Postal Service has already initiated 
the following stra egies acknowledged by the OIG in i s report o improve timeliness of 
BR processing, accuracy of BRM volume, workhours and processing delays, and close­
ou procedures. 

• BRM Workgroups o automate more processes and enhance training. 
• BRM Dashboard to enhance visibili and effectively track key BRM operational 

data. 
• BRM System Enhancemen s. 

Therefore , Management requests closure of this recommendation. 

Target lmplemen ation Date: N/A 

Responsible Official: NIA 

Recommendation #2: 
We recommend the Vice President Retail & Post Office Opera ions, comple e system 
enhancements to more effectively track Business Reply Mail operational data and 
es ablish processes or assessing related performance. 

Management Response/Action Plan: 
Managemen agrees with this recommendation. Management is finalizing the 
development of the BRM dashboard, which will more effec ively track operational data and 
Business Reply performance. 

Res onsible Official: Manager, Retail & Pos O ice Operations 

E-SI NED TRACY.R RAY ONO 
on -10-02 15 14 59 EDT 

Tracy R. Raymond 
on behalf o Elvin Mercado 

47Sl'E>¥ PI..Az.t.SW 

W~OC20260 



����������	
���
	����	���
������
���
�	�����
	�������
�� ��

�������	� 	!"�	��#	$��%"�&	��'	()*+	,�#- .	/�%%�0	� 	��	 ��"�%	�&�0�#1 .	2��3	"�,�#-&'.4567	89:;<	=>??	@;:AA;B	+:CD?E;9?B	F+	GGGHIJGHGH	K5H6L	GMNJG4HH/�#	-&'"�	"�O�"#"& P	Q%&� &	&-�"%	Q#&  R� Q �"S.S�!	9:	TUCC	K5H6L	GMNJG4HH

VWXYZ [\]̂Y	W_	VẀ [Ỳ [a bcdb̂ cdb[a ZYaê[a \ffỲ gcVYa

OFFICE OF 

INSPECTOR 
GENERAL 



APPENDIX 10 



������������	
�����
	�	���������

�������	���������

�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� !"�#�$!���%&�%����"�&�'����())�� !�*���+$�"�))�,(-�����./00000000000000000000000000000000000000010000000000000000000000000000000000000001000000000000000000000000000000000000000���

2��	%�
������

2��	�����%����%����1
	�	��������2

	�3�����������%����%����1�����
��2

	�
���������������%����%���������������������������������&&/&%�&&/&1�����������������������������&&/&%�&&/&1�����������������������������&&/&%�&&/&���������������������������������������1���������������������������������������1���������������������������������������425����
�	��%���������������3.3�3���6/&1425���������7�������
�
��������6���.�/81425����������2��
�
����������9�&�����/34�5��2���%:������������������9�����3�/814�5���������
��
	��������������.���3&/314�5�������	�����������/������3�����9�/34��5�����	%����	���������������9.���&/31���*�!;��$"�<�������������������8���8/&1���*�!;��$"�<�����������������36����6/�4�5����2��%��2�:�������������368����6/�1���=����$"�<������������������������&/&1���=����$"�<������������������������&/&4�5��������%7�����
�����������633���&/8100000000000000000000000000000000000000010000000000000000000000000000000000000004��5������
�%	���:
�
����������&3���&/31
	�	��������2

	�9����������8%���8%���81�����
��2

	�

��������������%����%����4	5����
��
�
%	
	�
������������6����&/�1�����������������������������&&/&%�&&/&1�����������������������������&&/&%�&&/&���*�!;��$"�<������������������6����3/91���������������������������������������1������������������������������������������=����$"�<������������������963���&/.1425������:�������
���/���������&�����/&1425����
	���2�	�22���/�������9��9����/&00000000000000000000000000000000000000014�5����	���
�����������������3.98��3./814�5��
�
��������
����/�������333.��9./&�/
/�������2

	�3������������%����%����1���*�!;��$"�<������������������&�����/31���*�!;��$"�<�����������������39����6/&�����������������������������&&/&%�&&/&1���=����$"�<��������������������3���&/&1���=����$"�<������������������������&/&���������������������������������������10000000000000000000000000000000000000001000000000000000000000000000000000000000425���
�:����	
��	/���������3�368���8/&1
	�	��������2

	�6����������8%���8%���81�����
��2

	�


�������������%����%����4�5���
����	���7�/�����������6&�.��3./�1�����������������������������&&/&%�&&/&1�����������������������������&&/&%�&&/&4�5��:������7���
��/���������3&&8���6/&1���������������������������������������1���������������������������������������4�5���������������������������..&���9/�1425�����:�
�������	��/��������6������/�1425�����:�:
��7���
����������9993����/�4��5�	�����������2������������8������/.14�5�����2�������	������������3�6.��9&/314�5��������������������������3��9��6�/����*�!;��$"�<����������������36�����6/�1���*�!;��$"�<�������������������9���./�1���*�!;��$"�<�����������������3�8���9/9���=����$"�<��������������������.���&/�1���=����$"�<��������������������&���&/&1���=����$"�<��������������������3���&/&00000000000000000000000000000000000000010000000000000000000000000000000000000001000000000000000000000000000000000000000
	�	��
�����2

	�3����������.%���.%���.1
	�	��������2

	������������&%���&%���&1�����
��2

	�
���������������%����%���������������������������������&&/&%�&&/&1�����������������������������&&/&%�&&/&1�����������������������������&&/&%�&&/&���������������������������������������1���������������������������������������1���������������������������������������425����	
�������
����2�������9�&���.�/&14�5��������������������������69������/&1425���������������
/��/������39�9��68/�4�5�����2��
	����	�:/��������9969���8/61425�����������
��������������9393��6&/�14�5���
��
���������	/��/��������.��98/����*�!;��$"�<������������������8�����/�1���*�!;��$"�<�����������������9�6���6/614�5��7���
��2���������/�������68&����/.���=����$"�<��������������������3���&/&1���=����$"�<������������������������&/�1���*�!;��$"�<������������������9����3/.00000000000000000000000000000000000000010000000000000000000000000000000000000001���=����$"�<������������������������&/�
	�	��
�����2

	�9����������8%���8%���81
	�	��������2

	������������.%���.%���.1000000000000000000000000000000000000000�����������������������������&&/&%�&&/&1�����������������������������&&/&%�&&/&1�����
��2

	����������������9%���9%���9���������������������������������������1���������������������������������������1�����������������������������&&/&%�&&/&425�����
�����2��������������&.66���6/31425��	����
��2��
2��/��������6�&����9/91���������������������������������������4�5���
	>�����2����������������3���9&/�14�5����2����		���
�:���������9&�.��6&/31425��
�
	��������������������������9./3���*�!;��$"�<�����������������8�.����/31���*�!;��$"�<�����������������6�9����/614�5�������������	��������������.9��3�/8���=����$"�<������������������������&/&1���=����$"�<��������������������3���&/&14�5����
�������7��
�����������6.8��38/&000000000000000000000000000000000000000100000000000000000000000000000000000000014�5�����

	
������������������������3/�
	�	��������2

	������������6%���6%���61����

�����������������������%����%����1���*�!;��$"�<�������������������9���3/������������������������������&&/&%�&&/&1�����������������������������&&/&%�&&/&1���=����$"�<��������������������3���&/&���������������������������������������1���������������������������������������1000000000000000000000000000000000000000425��	�:��
����2�
��	��/������688����/�1425������
�
����
	������������8&.��9�/31�����
��2

	��
�������������&%���&%���&4�5����	��

����	������/������83.��39/�14�5�����:��:�
:��������������������99/&1�����������������������������&&/&%�&&/&���*�!;��$"�<������������������8����./614�5����	���7
�����������������.36��39/31������������������������������������������=����$"�<������������������������&/&14�5����2��
�������������������9�9���&/814�5��
��	��������7�����/�����3�&���9�/�00000000000000000000000000000000000000014�5���2�����7���	�������������9�����&/814�5��7����
����7��
�����������8����99/3���������������������������������������1���*�!;��$"�<�����������������6�&���3/�1425��	����2���
	�����
��������668��3�/9���������������������������������������1���=����$"�<�������������������9&���&/�1���*�!;��$"�<�����������������3�6���6/����������������������������������������10000000000000000000000000000000000000001���=����$"�<������������������������&/&�������������������������������������������������������������������������������1000000000000000000000000000000000000000



������������	
�����
	�	���������

�������	���������

������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� !"#�$�%"���&'�&����#�'�(����)**��!"�+���,% #�**�-).� ���/011111111111111111111111111111111111111121111111111111111111111111111111111111112111111111111111111111111111111111111111�����
��3

	��

�������������&����&����2����������

�����������������&����&����2���
	
	�	
���������3���	�����&����&���������������������������������''0'&�''0'2�����������������������������''0'&�''0'2��3������
����
����
3��������''0'&�''0'���������������������������������������2���������������������������������������2���������������������������������������4�5��������3
��6���������������/���7�0/2
��
�������������80������������97��:'0'2;���
��
���������3�����
�������:/��770/435������
�����
���	0�����������:��7:092�8�8�������
8������������������'�����0�2�
����
����
3�����������������//���::0:���+�"<��%#�=�����������������:������0�2�8����
��		�������������������7������092���+�"<��%#�=�����������������'/�����0'���>� ��%#�=��������������������'���'0'28�������������

��0�����������7'�����0/2���>� ��%#�=��������������������9���'0'1111111111111111111111111111111111111112������
	��������33�����8������7:/���70�2111111111111111111111111111111111111111�����
��3

	��


�����������7&���7&���72���+�"<��%#�=�����������������:9/���70:2���
	
	�	
���������3���	�����&����&���������������������������������''0'&�''0'2���>� ��%#�=��������������������:���'0�2������	
���������������������''0'&�''0'���������������������������������������21111111111111111111111111111111111111112���������������������������������������4�5��	������60����	

��������:'�'���:0'2������8���
������������������&����&����2������	
���	�����

����
������/����7:0�435��
����
�����6
������������7�9����0�2�����������������������������''0'&�''0'2�������3����
	����������������99���7:074��5���������	�����3�����������9����:0/2���������������������������������������2���+�"<��%#�=�����������������/9����:0����+�"<��%#�=������������������'����70�28��������
�
�80��
�0���������:�7���:�0�2���>� ��%#�=��������������������9���'0'���>� ��%#�=��������������������'���'0'28�
�
���������8�8��80���������:9'����0721111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111112���������������0��0�����������'::����0�2����

�����	�����������������&����&���������
��3

	�
?��������������&����&����2���
�
��3������8��������������/�:���90'2�����
��	�����
�
	
����������''0'&�''0'�����������������������������''0'&�''0'2��@������
��60��
�0�����������77����70�2������������������������������������������������������������������������������2
�
	����������0��6�0����������7�'���70�2�
�
	�	��7����
��������
����::�7�����0�4�5�������6������������������:':����70�2���������3��
0����8�������������/����072��	
��������	���
������������'7�9���'0/4�5������
��������0�����������:����7�072���+�"<��%#�=������������������'����:072���+�"<��%#�=�����������������7������0/���+�"<��%#�=������������������7:���70:2���>� ��%#�=������������������������'0�2���>� ��%#�=�������������������:����'0����>� ��%#�=������������������������'0'211111111111111111111111111111111111111121111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111112����������8�
����������������&����&����2����

�����	�����������������&����&�����������
	�3��	�
�������������&����&����2�����������������������������''0'&�''0'2��������
�����
��������������''0'&�''0'�����������������������������''0'&�''0'2���������������������������������������2������������������������������������������������������������������������������28��������
����������
��������:'����:70�2���������
��	����������
�����:/�9��7/0���	�������������	�
0���������:�79��7/0�2�
		������	�������������������7�����/0�2������
����������
�����������9:::��:�07��?�������	��0����������������9����7:0:2�����3�������		���

�

�������������70/2���+�"<��%#�=����������������9:�9����0����+�"<��%#�=����������������7�:�����0�2���+�"<��%#�=������������������/7���:0�2���>� ��%#�=������������������������'0'���>� ��%#�=��������������������7���'0'2���>� ��%#�=������������������������'0'21111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111112111111111111111111111111111111111111111�������	���������������������&����&����2���
	
	�	
���������3���	�����&����&���������������������������������''0'&�''0'2����
��������
������3��������''0'&�''0'���������������������������������������2�������������������������������������������
�����������
������������7�����7/0�2��	���������3
���������
����:'7/:���'0�8����
@
��8
��@�����3���������������7092����
��������
������3��������:�������09��	
��������
����8
�������������'����092���+�"<��%#�=�����������������:/'����0�8����
��3������80�������������7'9���70�2���>� ��%#�=�������������������:����'0�8
�
�

������8�80�������������:�����:0�2111111111111111111111111111111111111111����������������
���������������:����092���
	
	�	
���������3���	�����&����&����8�8
�
���������������0���������:�����0�2
���������
	�����6��	
�������''0'&�''0'�������������
����
������������77����0�2������������������������������������������+�"<��%#�=������������������7�����0'2���
�������
�����������
����:�/�����70����>� ��%#�=��������������������:���'0�2���
	�����6��	�����������������:9����0:1111111111111111111111111111111111111112���+�"<��%#�=�����������������7�9����09���������������������������������������2���>� ��%#�=������������������������'0'���������������������������������������2111111111111111111111111111111111111111



������������	
�����
	�	���������

�������	���������

������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� !"#�$�%"���&'�&����#�'�(����)**��!"�+���,% #�**�-).� ���/01111111111111111111111111111111111111112���

	��	
�����3�	�����	���������������2���������������������������������������2************************���������������2���������������������������������������2************************���������������2���������������������������������������2	�	������

	��	
��000000����/�4/'������2���������������������������������������2	�	���	�����	00000000000�����'5�5��/'062���������������������������������������2������
��	�	�����	000000�������������0�2���������������������������������������2������������	
���
	00000�������������0�2������������	
���
	00000�������������0�2������������	
���
	00000��������4����0�2���������������������������������������2���������������������������������������2���������������������������������������2���������������������������������������2����
��	���	�����	000000�����'�'�����0�2���������������������������������������2������������	
���
	00000�����'�'�����0�2������������	
���
	00000�����'6//����0�2������������	
���
	00000�����'656����042���������������������������������������2���������������������������������������2���������������������������������������2���������������������������������������2���������������������������������������2���������������������������������������2���������������������������������������2���������������������������������������2���������������������������������������2���������������������������������������2���������������������������������������2���������������������������������������2************************���������������2���0��������

�������
�
���������������2************************���������������2	�	������

	��	
���������������46������2���������������������������������������2��	�	���	�����	000000000�����6�55���5042���������������������������������������2������
��	�	�����	000000�����/'6����'0�2���������������������������������������2����
��	���	�����	000000������6�6����0�21111111111111111111111111111111111111112



�����������	
��
��
��������������������������������������������������� �!�"���������#��$�� �!�"�����%��&���'(������)*+����,,� 	
�-���.���,,/////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////�����0������0�%���������0��� ���1�2���3�2�40�5����6���&����� �7(2'� ��174��5&#�!6�!���$ �'(��� ��1�4��5��0��6��0#8� 9(2�9 �1�4��5&��"��6���%��� �'2 �1�4� 5&#�!����6 ����� ��' �1�4��5�!������6 ��:��� �� �1�4��5!������6���0!�&�� �� �1���&���8�%���� 99� �1����%���%���� 2' �1�/////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////��#1�1�������� ���1�2���3�2�40�5�8�8�(�0�
	�-�81 �9(��� 22194��5�������(�;�<
 ��(927 �91�4��5�����(���)�	��1 ''� �1�4��5������(��-�=
�;�33��= '�� �1�4��5������(�0�>	
 ��9 �12��&���8�%���� �(�9� �1'���%���%���� �2 �1�/////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////��#1�1�������������%����?0��@ ���1�2���3�2�40�5���8(����A=���B�*��� �7(�77 ��1�4��5 ������(��)AA �7(��7 ��124��50#C#����(���D��
E���181 �(9�2 �17��&���8�%���� �(��2 21����%���%���� �� �1�/////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////������������������?0��@ ���1��'��3��'40�5����##��(�0�>	
��1 ��(��2 �71�4��5�F����$(���)-�4&�D��	���)=5 2(�9� �219��&���8�%���� ��� �1����%���%���� 9 �1�/////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////������������������?0��@ ���1�����3���40�5��%��(��

��D�4�

=5 ��(��� 2�1�4��5 #;�8�"�(����- 9(2�� �21���&���8�%���� '2� 919���%���%���� 9 �1�/////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////��������������������%����?0�9@ ���1�����3���40�5!���(�!�-�
��!1 �(99� �'1�4��5���0(���+��� �('�7 ��1�4��5����(�%	�G	
	��4�	

=5 �('�' ��194��5��0�����(�����
 7�� 717��&���8�%���� �7' 91����%���%���� � �1�/////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////��������������������%����?0��@ ���1�����3���4��5"!����(���)-�81 9(��� ��1240�5��&���(�%	�G	
	� �(7�� 921���&���8�%���� ��2 �1����%���%���� � �1�/////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////��

�!�������%������������4�5 ���1�2���3�2��8���(���D�
���1�1 '(��� �1�8���8�"�"����(���=
�-
A��1 '(��� 91'"��!�F�(�;�<
�01(��% '(��� 91'����8(��	-	-�
	�&1 '(��2 912����0��(��AD�-
�81 �(9�9 �12��0�(���-�
	 9(��� �1'0�����(��1� ��
E<= �(��9 �12����(��<��-�A�48�-����B�5 �(�29 �1�8���#(�8�B���0�>	
�;�1 �(7�2 �1�&���0�(���
	��1 �(7�� �178�������(�;�
�� �('�' �178�����F�(�8	
�F)�&�=
 �(29� �1'���(��	E<��
 �(�9� �1���������(�&�+ �(��7 �19&����(�&�>��-=��1 �(��� �190�������(�0�
	A����<��-�
	 �(��� �1��#�������(��-�	A��#-)-�
	�$ �(9�� �1������"��0(��-	E��#1��).
)	 �(9'7 �1�"���(�;	**= �(9�' �1�&#�8�(���
���1�81�48	
	5 �(9�2 �1��%���(�8	*��8��
) �(9�� �1�8����!���8��(�;�

	3�� �(�9� �1������(�;�A�
��1 �(��� �17!#&&��0(���-����-	
� �(��� �1'���8(�&��
�
�����4�B	�
�5 �(��9 �1'�&��#(��)-�
���1 ��' �12��������(�!���	����-	*� ��2 �12!������(���-.<�4!�
�5 7�9 �1�8�#!���(��	B� 7�� �1�8����8���(���>�--� 1 7�7 �1����&�0$(�����G��4�-�<�5 7�' �1�8���8��(��	�E<�--���� 7�7 �1��8���(����=
�8�)�<	 '29 �1�"���(��
D	
���1�1 2�� �19�&��(�&)
 2�9 �19��!���0��(���=A�
����-- 2�2 �19����(� ��
E	A�8��)� �92 �19��0�8��(��<��*�	
��!1 97� �1�8#��#(��1 929 �1�������(����
�
�8�
� 92� �1�!���(��<�*�A��181 92� �1�8����!���8��(�0�*	��	)A 9�9 �1������(�0)A�	
 ��� �1� ���F�(��<��-�8�-�	�-�<��
� �'9 �1�������(��	E<��-�4&	G��	B�5 �2� �1���"���8(���	E�8))�-�<� �2� �1�$��(��<�*�A��1 ��� �1���&�$(�;�<
��1 ��� �1��������(�%	E����4#*	5 ��7 �1���0����(���	�-�

��1�81 �79 �1���������(�"�-�����1 ��9 �1���#�0���%���� 2�(�2� ��17���%���%���� ��7 �1�/////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////���!�������%�����!#�4�5 ���1�2���3�2�!��(��-�=��
 ��(29' �71���8�����(�%	EB=�!�-� '(2�� �91��!������(��	E<��
 �(92� ��12�#����(���

 �('�� �1�"���!��(����G ��� �17��&���8�%���� ��(7'� ��1����%���%���� �� �1�/////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////��

�!�������%�����#��4�5 ���1�2���3�2����(��<��-�A��1 ��(9�7 ��1�!��(���)	A 2(�99 ��1�8�����#(���* �(29� '1�8��!#���#(���B	��1 �(�79 21��#��(�;	**= �(��2 91���#&&(���
�>	�>��4��<)�5 �(��� 91������!��(���G����1 �(��� �1�����8��(��
D��
��1 �(��� �1���&���8�%���� ��(��7 ��1����%���%���� �9 �1�/////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////���!�������������4�5 ���1�2���3�2����������(�0�
���8��-� �(�'9 �'1'��������(�!�)
�
	 2(�92 ��1������(�0����D��1�8�
�B�
)	 �(��' 91�"��"��F���(�!��-�
	��1��1 �('�7 �1��8�#(��)E= �(2�� �1����8���(�8�

��<��1 �(2�� �1���&�����(��<)�A��
 �(92' �1�8�F�#"����"�����(��	

� �(��9 �12�����(���
E=�4��<�B)5 �(�92 �19���(�&�	�
��B�
� �(��� �198���(������ �(�2� �1����#��(�01�8��-��40���	�5 2�' �1�8�!#�(����	G�4&�5 2�2 �1�����8(�8�)	-� �9' �1�8�����(�;�=�;�=�4;�335 9�� �178��#�(�%1�!�-�*�
� 9�� �17�����(���A��1 �'� �1'!�#�#(�"�>� �2� �1'������0��(�8�)	�;�E<�
�
 ��7 �1�8������(� ��
B-	
 �92 �1���&���8�%���� �7(�2� ��1����%���%���� �'� �1'/////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////���!����!�"����4�5 ���1�2���3�2���������(�!�

�<�48	<�-�
	5 ��(�7� ��17!�8�(����<)���1 7(��7 �'1�0������#:(��	

��81 '(��9 �91�8#���F�(��	-��
��1 9(��� 71�!���(�8�	
���;1 �(�2� 912��&���8�%���� �2(��' ��12���%���%���� �� �1�/////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////���!����8�#���4�5 ���1�2���3�2������#��(�0�
 �(7�� ��1�&��������(�;��
��-�	�8��-� �(72� ��1������(��-�	A��8�
��B)���)�) �(7�� '12����(���

=��1���)B�
� �(2�� '1������(�;�*�A�8�.)-� �(��� 21���&���8�%���� �9(9�9 9'1����%���%���� �� �1�/////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////���!��������8���4�5 ���1�2���3�2�8����!�(���*)�-��1(�;�1 ��(�9� ��12���!�0�(���-�����$1��		.		 ��(�9� ��1���&���8�%���� �9(299 971����%���%���� � �1�/////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////����$�������#��$�� �!�"��� ���1�2���3�2�4��58��(�!���= ��(�7� 9�1�40�5!����!#!(� ��
��1 �9(�7� ��1�4��5&��8(�8�	B� ��(��9 ��1���&���8�%���� �(�'� �1����%���%���� ' �1�/////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////��4��5��/����!��F���� 4��5��/��������#����40�5��/�0������� 4��5��/�!�"���������4��5��/���&�������� 4��5�/����#������"4��5��/������������ 4� 5�/��� ���4���5��/����#&�����



�����������	
��
��
��������������������������������������������������� �!�"���������#��$�� �!�"�����%��&���'(������)*+����,,� 	
�-���.���,,/////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////��#�������&�����!�"����01��2 ���3�4��5�461�7����!��1���11(�&�++8�9��
 �(�:� 4'346��7;�� �(�9	*�6�<;��5�7 �(�4' ��3:��&���;�%���� ��: �3����%���%���� � �3�/////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////����#�������&�����!�"����01��2 ���3�4��5�461�7�� ���;(����8 �('�� :'3�6��7!���;���(����=�
��3�6���=�7 �(>4� ��346��7�%���(���?�� ��> �43>��&���;�%���� �>� �3����%���%���� 4 �3�/////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////����#�������&�����!�"����01�42 ���3�����5���6��79���&���(�9)-	� �(��' ��3'6��7����������(�9�@
 �(��' :�3���&���;�%���� ��� �3����%���%���� � �3�/////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////����#�������&�����!�"����01�'2 ���3�'��5�'61�7������!��(���
A8 �(4�� ��3�6��7��$���1�(����8 �(��4 ��3���&���;�%���� ��� �34���%���%���� � �3�/////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////����#�������&�����!�"����01�>2 ���3�:��5�:6��7�$���(��)��	B :(�44 ':3�6��7�����#�!���(��
�6��3��
7 >�' ��3���&���;�%���� �>� ��34���%���%���� � �3�/////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////����#�������&�����!�"����01��2 ���3�4��5�46��7��������  (���
	
?��
 �(�'� �>3�61�7�;���(��

	� �(��> ��3:6��7��C�����(���

8 �(�:� ��3���&���;�%���� ��� �3>���%���%���� � �3�/////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////��&����B��1����!�"����6�7 ���3�4���5�4�"�����&�(�!��+�����3 ��(4�> :�3�D#�������1�%���(���
	 �4(��� ��3���&���;�%���� �(��4 �>3����%���%���� : �3�/////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////��&����

�1������#��6�7 ���3�4���5�4��$���(�"	--	�*�6&	--7 �(�4' �>3�#��;�(���8����3 4(>>4 ��3:��;��(�1E	?@� 4(>'� ��3:&�#�1���(�&�	�
�;3 �(4>� '3��������(�%	

	� �(��: 43���&���;�%���� ��(�>� :�34���%���%���� �� �3�/////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////��&���'�@�1����;�#���6�7 ���3�4���5�4�!���(��@��E��
 �>(��> �43���;��!���(��	�B)?	 ��(��� ��3:��&���;�%���� ��(:�� :�3'���%���%���� � �3�/////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////���������#�����������1������#!���� ���%������� ���3�4���5�4�$�� �:(��� 4'3��� ��(�>� ��34��&���;�%���� :(��: >3>���%���%���� �> �3�/////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////��

�������#�����������1����������������F���%��" ���3�4���5�4�����������$�� ��(:�4 ��3��� ��(��� ��3���&���;�%���� �(��� ��3����%���%���� �� �3�/////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////���������#�����������1��������������1������� ���3�4���5�4������$�� ��(�'� 4�3��� ��(��� ��3'��&���;�%���� '(��4 �:3����%���%���� �� �3�/////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////��!�"�����!���������������������������� ���3�4���5�4�$�� �4(�:: ��3��� ��(�': ��3>��&���;�%���� :(:�4 >3>���%���%���� �� �3�/////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////��!�"�����!����������������1���������#�!����$ ���3�4���5�4�$�� �4(�4� ��3'�� �'(��4 �:3���&���;�%���� 4(4�' ��3����%���%���� � �3�/////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////��!�"�����!������� �������������� ���3�4���5�4�$�� �>(��: �434�� �4(��� ��3���&���;�%���� �(>�' ��3:���%���%���� �� �3�/////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////��!�"�����!�������1����������� ���%���������� ���3�4���5�4�����������$�� �4(��� ��3��� ��(��� �'3���&���;�%���� �(:�4 ��34���%���%���� �� �3�/////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////��!�"�����!�������!��1��%���� �&���1���1 ���3�4���5�4������������$�� ��(��� 4�3>�� ��(��4 �43���&���;�%���� �('�� ��3����%���%���� �� �3�/////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////��!�"�����!��������� ��$�����1������<���  ��� ���3�4���5�4�$�� ��('�> �>3��� ��(��� �'3���&���;�%���� '(:�� �:34���%���%���� �� �3�/////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////��!�"�����!�������D#��� ���������� �1�������� ���3�4���5�4�!��1�$�� �4(>>> '�3��� '('�� ��3���&���;�%���� 4(:�� ��3'���%���%���� 4 �3�/////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////��!�"�����!��������������1��������� ���3�4���5�4�$�� :�(��� >:3��� �(�4� �3>��&���;�%���� �(��� ��3����%���%���� �� �3�/////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////��

!�"�����!�������"�����1��������� ���3�4���5�4�$�� �'(��� '�3:�� '(4>� ��3���&���;�%���� 4(:�� ��34���%���%���� �� �3�/////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////��!�"�����!������������$����������� ���3�4���5�4�$�� ��(��' �'3'�� �:(��4 �'34��&���;�%���� '(:�: �:3'���%���%���� �' �3�/////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////��!�"�����!������������� ���%������������������ ���3�4���5�4�$�� ��(��� :�3��� �>(4:� �43���&���;�%���� '(�4: �:3:���%���%���� �4 �3�/////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////��!�"�����!�������!�"������1�%��������������$ ���3�4���5�4�$�� ��(�:> 4�3'�� ��(��> ��3���&���;�%���� '(4�' �:3����%���%���� �� �3�/////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////��!�"�����!���������#��$���#���������������� ���3�4���5�4�;���$�� �>(::� '�3��� 4(�>' ��3���&���;�%���� 4(��: ��3����%���%���� �� �3�/////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////��!�"�����!���������D#�����������������&���!�� ���3�4���5�4�$�� ��(��' �'3��� ��(4�> ��34��&���;�%���� 4(��� ��3����%���%���� > �3�/////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////��!�"�����!���������1��� ���!��� ���3�4���5�4�$�� �:(�4� 4'3��� >(>�� �'3���&���;�%���� '(��4 ��3����%���%���� ' �3�/////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////��!�"�����!�����������1���$�� �&���1�G����������� ���3�4���5�4����&����� ������1����������$�� ��(''� 4�3��� ��(��4 ��3���&���;�%���� '(��4 �:3����%���%���� �� �3�/////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////�����������������1��#���#��������������������������#���#�����������#���#���&��������#���#� :'3'��3�
������� 4�3>HHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHH :�(�:�:�(�':&�&�������������&�����������&�&����������� ��(��'��(�4�

��(�4>:�(�:���(��'
>:(:����&�����������

/////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////��6��7��/����!��<���� 6��7��/��������#����61�7��/�1������� 6��7��/�!�"���������6��7��/���&�������� 6��7�/����#������"6��7��/������������ 6� 7�/��� ���6���7��/����#&�����



��������	�
���
���

���
�
��
������������������	��

��������	�����������������	��� !	"��#����$��

�%%&'!()��*++(,-�,��.,/%%�*++(,-�,��.,/ ��0��123456378�976�:5;3�123456378 <�	�<�=>?@�,,-$�A	B��&C&	���,��'>�!/ ��$��DD
CDE��$
���FC
E=,?G*��$���	�0��HC&	���,��'>�!/=�?�.GG$�>�"���&	���,��'>�!/ ��� 
CDE��� 
C�E=)?G(>!(,'@$�+��B����&	���,��'>�!/ �<DG���I�J	��K
 �D."���J	��K
 
C
E
C�ELMNMN3798O2 <�	�<�=>?'!.*-�$�>������@C ��$F�
<�C�E��$�F��
C
E=,?�(J(��.$����=)?+())(!$�A��� �$�<� �C�E�$��
 �C�E=!?G,�H�,$�A�� �$

�G���I�J	��K
 ��."���J	��K
 
C
E�C�ELMNMP3Q234378985R3S�T548U <�	�<�=>?�(��$��� �<$D�VD�CVE�V$�D<��C
E=,?�(GG(,>$�+�I� �$�F�G���I�J	��K
 ��."���J	��K
 
C
E�C
EN8983�N3798O2S�T548W ��	���=,?H�()�!$����� V$DD��
C
EV$
<D�DCVE=>?&.X$����"�� �V�G���I�J	��K
 <."���J	��K
 
C
E�C�EN8983�P3Q234378985R3S�T548U V	�V=>?��(!�$�A��� =)�K���? �$F��<�C�E�$VF���C�E=,?J(!!(//($��B��	��=>�+���	? �F�G���I�J	��K
 �."���J	��K
 
C
E�CDEN8983�P3Q234378985R3S�T548W V	�V=>?/�*A'$������	��@C�=�����? �$DVDD�C�E�$��<�<C
E=,?�+'/�$�(�� �<�G���I�J	��K
 
."���J	��K
 
C
E�CVEN8983�P3Q234378985R3S�T548Y V	�V=>?�()�$���������C �$��V��CVE�$V���<C<E=,?A.,>(!$�G�����&C=)?/,'�)'($�>����K �D� �C<E�
<G���I�J	��K
 �."���J	��K
 
C
E�C<EN8983�P3Q234378985R3S�T548Z ��	���=>?��,@��$�,	#���=G	#? �$FVFD�CDE�$D�F��CVE=,?/(GG(>($�����B����=>�����? ���G���I�J	��K
 �."���J	��K
 
C
E�C�EN8983�P3Q234378985R3S�T548[ V	�V=>?�,��!$�A	KB�� �$��<��C�E�$D�D��C
E=,?A�,!'�(!$�+��I �V�G���I�J	��K
 �."���J	��K
 
C
E�CDEN8983�P3Q234378985R3S�T548\ F	�F=>?�J(!�$����� �$D<���C�E�$��F��C<E=,?�(!G.,!$�ACH������=G���? ���G���I�J	��K
 �."���J	��K
 
C
E�C
E

]48�T3Q928̂3789_�N;̀OO_�T54825;8�N398ab9c955d <�	�<�H(/(!(G�$����#�����C �F$F�
�VC<E�F$<<F��C�E>(J'���e*'!/(!($�!���� �
$�D�G���I�J	��K
 V."���J	��K
 
C
E�<CVE\8̀�T3Q928̂3789_�N;̀OO_�T54825;8�N398af9g95d <�	�<��.X$�+�00�� ��$D�
�VC�E��$D<F��CDE!(@(��'+($�+��K�0� ��$D�<G���I�J	��K
 D."���J	��K
 
C
E�<C�Ehi8�j92k3hl2g4833 <�	�<�(�.)'.!($�������� ��$F<F�VC�E�$F���
C�E�'))$�@���=G��)�m��?@(H�).$�&���I���@� �$��
 FCVE�$�

 <CDE�(G�-$�A	B��)C�=@�	��? �V$DV�G���I�J	��K
 ��."���J	��K
 
C
E��C
Eb9c955�P3456378�l2g4833 <�	�<�@(+(@(H'H..)�$�,� �	��K�!C ��$�
���C�E<$�����C�E>�)(��,*n$�)�����@C�(.$�)	��K D$F�V��CFE�$F<< FC�E!�)�.!$�>��I��@'!'+(@(��/.�@�>()�$�@�B�� �$F�< �CVE�$<V� �CFEG*,@�$�A��I��=@�B		I���?��*!$�@���I	 �$��V �C�E�<$�DDG���I�J	��K
 �F."���J	��K
 
C
E�
C�Eopq�irsqTtN3ug9_�i449g_8 <�	�<�-�� ��$���D�C�E�D$����FCDE!. �$VF�G���I�J	��K
 V."���J	��K
 
C
E�
C�Eopq�irsqTt1gv_5;�P5k̀8�8O�w7xO2̂985O7 <�	�<�-�� �V$��FD<CVE��$V����C�E!. �$<
�G���I�J	��K
 ��."���J	��K
 
C
EVCFEopq�irsqTtP5k̀84�Ox�i;;g436�j9c <�	�<�-�� �<$����<C�E��$D�
�
CFE!. D$V<<G���I�J	��K
 �D."���J	��K
 
C
E��C
Eopq�irsqTty3_O7z�12O43;g85O74 <�	�<�-�� �F$�V��VC�E��$<���<C�E!. <$D�DG���I�J	��K
 D."���J	��K
 
C
E��C�E

!��#���/	�J	���&	�
,��'�/,(/'.!�(!>�/*,!.*/%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%��!�,()/./()�,��'�/,(/'.!/./()�/*,!.*/(G��!/���/*,!.*/ F<$F����C�E�
CVE�,��'!�/�/*,!.*/ �<$VV�DDC
E�V$D���F$�<
.J�,��(��/*,!.*/%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%.J�,��(��G())./���(�/��/��.!�,���'.!()�!>��.!�,���'.!()�,��'>�!/'() 





=>?�{>�+.�,(/ =�?�{�,��! =)?�{)'G�,/(,'(! =!?�{!.!�(,/'�(! =,?��,��*G)'�(!

I I 

I I 



��������	�
������
����
������
��
���������������������� �!�����	"�#�$���� �#�$�����	%��&��	'��(����)����
**+�����!,--��.�������**!,--��.������� ��/���012345267�865�94:2�012345267 �;��	"��;<=>��?�-�)�?���@A���?�=��)�B	� ���)
�C�;�D�E���)
�����D�E<�>�-@����)�B	F���������)�!���F<�>���=��)���G�F������H���H)�-��� ���C ��DCE��I� ��DIE<�>�?���)�?	(�������)�J�&����D<�>�-@K����.)��&��F��������-����)��	L� ��C; ��DIE��
I ��DIE<�>�?��=J��)��F%@A�����!���)�=����GG��D �I�;?G��A�M	��L
 ����'���M	��L
 ��D�E��D�ENO�P2Q123267874R2S�T437�UU �;��	"��;<=>�#�����)�-�V�� ���)�
���CD�E��I)�I
��CD�E<�>��M��!)��	/���?D<�>�-�����)��G	&��BD�<B�""> ��)��� ��D
E��)��� ��D;E<�>��!���!#��)�!F�%� ��)I��?G��A�M	��L
 �I
�'���M	��L
 ��D�E�;DCEO7872�O2687W1S�T437�X ����	"���<=>���K�-���)�=$�/F��.D ���)C;����D�E�;)����I�D�E<�>�#���)�����#D!D ��)��I?G��A�M	��L
 ����'���M	��L
 ��D�E��D;EO7872�P2Q123267874R2S�T437�X ����	"���<=>���K�!#�-�)�-��A�-D ��)
�����DIE��)I�����D�E<�>��++��?�K��)�!��'����D �
�I?G��A�M	��L
 �I�'���M	��L
 ��D�E�CD�EO7872�P2Q123267874R2S�T437�Y 
��	"�
<=>��!,B�)��G�"�	��<�G�"�> �;)C�
�;CD;E��)��I���D�E<�>���M���!)�=�������<-	���> ���I?G��A�M	��L
 ���'���M	��L
 ��D�E��D�EO7872�P2Q123267874R2S�T437�Z 
��	"�
<=>�#���#���)�+�&���D ��)I�����DCE��)��C���DIE<�>�?��!)�+��� �;��?G��A�M	��L
 ����'���M	��L
 ��D�E��D;EO7872�P2Q123267874R2S�T437�[ 
��	"�
<=>���++-��)�=���& ��)�����;D�E��)I;
���D�E<�>�!-��#)����& ��
;?G��A�M	��L
 ����'���M	��L
 ��D�E��D�EO7872�P2Q123267874R2S�T437�\ 
��	"�
<=>��M��!)�����& ��)������D�E�I)��;�I�D�E<�>�=������,H)��	��G��<-�A�%G�> �;;�?G��A�M	��L
 ����'���M	��L
 ��D�E�;D;EX37�T2Q817]2678̂�O:_WŴ�T43714:7�O287�à8b844c �;��	"��;J�����?�)�#��(����!D ��
)I�����D�E��;)�;����D�E!��?���)�BD�J�GG����<?�GG> ���)���?G��A�M	��L
 ��C�'���M	��L
 ��D�E���D;E\7_�T2Q817]2678̂�O:_WŴ�T43714:7�O287�d̀8e84c �;��	"��;��f)�-�//�� ��C)�����ID�E��)��� �CD;E+���#���)�����& �I�)�CC?G��A�M	��L
 ����'���M	��L
 ��D�E���D
E

gh7�i81j2g�k1e3722 �;��	"��;��������)�#�%���� ���)����I�D�E���)�;����D�E#��=�)�#�G����!D-DK�����)��	G����D �C);�����D�E��)�
I ��D;E���,�l�)�!	G ���)II�?G��A�M	��L
 ����'���M	��L
 ��D�E�IID�Ea8b844�P2345267�k1e3722 �;��	"��;���=!�.)�?	(�KD ��C);�I���DIE��I)�����CD�E-�.��!)�J�GG����<J�GG&> ���)I�;?G��A�M	��L
 ��
�'���M	��L
 ��D�E�I�D�Ed8e84�P2345267�k1e3722 �;��	"��;�����,��)�=	��G��?D ��;)�;
���D�E�IC)C
�?G��A�M	��L
 ���'���M	��L
 ��D�E��CD�EmŴWn84�P2345267�k1e3722 �;��	"��;�,�=.)�J���� ���)�����IDCE���)CC���ID
E-��#�=�)��	G�����.D������� �I�)�C�?G��A�M	��L
 ����'���M	��L
 ��D�E���DIEm8oW1S�pWe67o�Wq�a8b844 �;��	"��;K����)�?�GG& �I;)I�
���D�E��;)������DCE������)�KD���/�G ��)I�
?G��A�M	��L
 ����'���M	��L
 ��D�E�ID�EpWe6:4̂]2]r21S�T437�Z ���	"�����!#�)�=����L�<+��LF> �I)�����CD;E��)C
C�I�D�E?�����)������L�<���&> ��;�?G��A�M	��L
 ���'���M	��L
 ��D�E�;D;EpWe6:4̂]2]r21S�T437�s ���	"��������)����G&��D ��)��;���D�E�I)������D
E!�+���K)����&�!D �II�?G��A�M	��L
 �I�'���M	��L
 ��D�E��D�EpWe6:4̂]2]r21S�T437�t ;��	"�;�����J���)�K�GG& �I)�����;D�E�I)����ICD�E#��#�)�=�((�� �C
;?G��A�M	��L
 ���'���M	��L
 ��D�E���D
Epuv�puvw�pW63747e74W68̂�pW6R2674W6�xe2374W6 �;��	"��;.�! ���)I���IID�E���)�;����D�E�� �I)��
?G��A�M	��L
 �I��'���M	��L
 ��D�E��D�Epuv�hmyvTw�hj2�xe8̂4q4:874W6�qW1�zWR216W1 �;��	"��;.�! ���)
����CD�E���)
���;�D�E�� �I)�I�?G��A�M	��L
 �I��'���M	��L
 ��D�E��DIE

a8b844w�{465b815�865�i22b815�0̂86646j�pW]]4334W63 �;��	"��;.�! �I
)������DCE���)I;��IIDIE�� ��)�C�?G��A�M	��L
 �I��'���M	��L
 ��D�E�CD
Ea8b844w�U6474874R2�865�P2q21265e] �;��	"��;.�! �I�)�;���
D�E���)C�;�I�D�E�� ���)���?G��A�M	��L
 ��;�'���M	��L
 ��D�E��;D�Ea8b844w�uqq4:2�Wq�7_2�i2j43̂874R2�he547W1 �;��	"��;.�! ��
)��C���D�E��;)�
����D�E�� ���)���?G��A�M	��L
 ��C�'���M	��L
 ��D�E��;DIEa8b844w�p4R4̂�865�p14]468̂�0268̂7423 �;��	"��;.�! �I�)C�����DCE���)
���I�D�E�� �C)���?G��A�M	��L
 �I��'���M	��L
 ��D�E���D�Ea8b844w�iWb237�i8b�y6qW1:2]267�014W147o�Wq�p8668r43 �;��	"��;+�� �I�)�
C��ID�E���)C���I
D�E�����!� ��)�
;?G��A�M	��L
 ����'���M	��L
 ��D�E�
DIE����!����������=��,���,�********************************************************************************�����������������!��������������,���,��?!�������,���,� �CC)II;�ICD;E��
D�E����������,���,� ��;)��
��;D;E�IC)�;���;);
;�M��!��!��,���,�********************************************************************************�M��!��!�?�����!���!��!��������!!�������=�������!!��������!�=������ ������ ��D�E��

<�>� ����!���,���� <=>�|�=�-����� <�>�|������ <�>� ���=����=��� <�>�|���?�������� <�>�|���������!�� <�>� ����,?�����



��������	�
�����
��
��
������
��
��������������������
��
���������	�������������������	��� �!	"��#���$%�
��
&&'(!)*��+,,)-.�-/�0-1&&�+,,)-.�-/�0-1 ��2���34567859:�;98�<7=5�34567859: ����	����>?@�0A),)%�A���BC���A(?/!%�D	� ���%

����E�F���%����
�E�F>-@�-0,!/.%�,������-.)!%�����>*@�D0�!�0!%���� ����-).%�D���G��E ���� ��E
F��
H ��E�F>�@��1/(!%�D�������0!I)*)%��J��� ����A���C�K	��G
 �
�0"���K	��G
 ��E�F��E�FLM�M59;:N4 ����	����>?@��(-0!0%�,�O�� ���%�H��$HE�F���%������E�F>-@�*(!�*/%�*���� ��

A���C�K	��G
 ��$0"���K	��G
 ��E�F��E�FLM�P5Q45659:;:7R5S�T76:�U ����	����>?@��)AA)-?%�1��G� ���%�����HE�F���%��H���E�F>-@��-0V*/.%�I���C� �
%$��A���C�K	��G
 ���0"���K	��G
 ��E�F��E�FM:;:5�M59;:N4S�T76:�U ���	���>?@�-+?/-,)!%�-�GG����/E ���%�H����E�F��%����
�E�F>-@��,(1�%�?�� ��*�� ��%��HA���C�K	��G
 ���0"���K	��G
 ��E�F�$E�FM:;:5�M59;:N4S�T76:�W �
��	���
>?@��-//!%�D	GJ ���%������E�F��%��
�
�E�F>-@�*)'-)!�/%�D����-E ����A���C�K	��G
 ��0"���K	��G
 ��E�F��E�FM:;:5�M59;:N4S�T76:�X ����	����>?@��0*0,0!%�,����� ��%H
H�$�E�F��%������E$F>�@��-//!V/**%�I��� ��%�$HA���C�K	��G
 ���0"���K	��G
 ��E�F�HE�FM:;:5�P5Q45659:;:7R5S�T76:�W ���	���>?@�0!(��(%�-�BJ�����EIE ��%������EHF�
%H�
���E�F>-@��)�)(%�,�������>!�BJ#��@>*@�'0�/*%�'������BC�'E �H$� ��E$F��$�A���C�K	��G
 ���0"���K	��G
 ��E�F��E�FM:;:5�P5Q45659:;:7R5S�T76:�Y H��	��H>?@��0'',)!%�?��� ��%�$��$�E
F�
%$�����E�F>-@�A)1/,)!%�?�"� ����A���C�K	��G
 ��0"���K	��G
 ��E�F�$E�FM:;:5�P5Q45659:;:7R5S�T76:�Z ���	���>?@�*0V/!%�!�B	�� ��%��$�$�E�F�
%�H��
�EHF>-@�/A/-1%�-	 ��
�A���C�K	��G
 �
0"���K	��G
 ��E�F�$E
F[;\;77�P567859:�]4̂6:55 ����	����*(!?�/.%�-	#����IE �
�%�����
E�F�H%H$����E�F,/./-�%�V�������>V��� @,(-)!?)%�/�����*E�E �$%��� ��E�F�
�%��$A���C�K	��G
 �
�0"���K	��G
 ��E�F���EHF

_;̂;7�P567859:�]4̂6:55 ����	����)�+!)%�?�� ��%�
$���E�F��%��� �$EHF�)��/�0%��������A+-I/%�D�BC���I�J		C��� ��%
�� ��E�F��%��H ��EHFI)�)V)�'+%�I�����.)?)0%�*������IE�>-����@ �
%�$
 ��E$F�
%��� ��E�F�0,-0.%��J��	��)E�V)(!%�A��� �I�������C�J�C� �
%
�� ��E�F��%��� �
E�F�)!10�%�?E�I���C	)*A)0%�*�#�������GG� ��%��� ��EHF�H�
 ��E�F)*)*/,�V0-1�(!�10!%�I�	���)�+1%�-	�G	��IE �
$� ��E�F��
%$�HA���C�K	��G
 ���0"���K	��G
 ��E�F���E�FǸaNb;7�P567859:�]4̂6:55 ����	����,)��)?0%��	������>������@ �
H%������E�F���%���A���C�K	��G
 ��0"���K	��G
 ��E�F���E�Fcd:�e;4f5c�]4̂6:55 ����	����)�0*(0!)%�������� ���%
���
�E�F�$%$�����E�F*//%����-(11/%�V����� ��%$�
 �HE�F��%��� ��EHF)I(!)%�I���g�,)I/I)+%�I������DE �
%H�� ��E�F�
%H�� ��E�F*(!�0*!%�*��B��	������� �
�%�H�A���C�K	��G
 ���0"���K	��G
 ��E�F���E�Fh[d�<;=;9=ij�̀;̂7 ����	����*(!?�/.%������������ ���%�����HE�F��%$H� ��E�FI)!/%�?�����	���C�g�I)�+%�I�g����	C� ��%��� �$E�F��%��
 �$EHF�0,/�%�?	��������)+%��������E �
%��� ��E�F�
%��� ��E�F?+/.%�-	G�),0-(!%�D	J�����I�������J�� ��%�H$ �
E�F��
%���A���C�K	��G
 �
�0"���K	��G
 ��E�F���E
F;̀iN4S�kN̂9:i�Nl�[;\;77 ����	����I/!0(%�A��� ���%H�$���EHF���%�$H���E$FI(,%����� ��%$��A���C�K	��G
 ���0"���K	��G
 ��E�F�
E�F34N65=̂:79f�d::N495iS�kN̂9:i�Nl�[;\;77 ����	����-01�%�,��BJ �
H%������E�F�
H%��
���E
F)��(?)%�*��B	�� ��%
H�A���C�K	��G
 ��H0"���K	��G
 ��E�F���E�FkN̂9=7am5mn54S�T76:�o H��	��H�0(!?/p1/-%�K������ ��%H$����E�F�
%�
���HE�F.)�0!�%��J��G�� ��
�A���C�K	��G
 ��0"���K	��G
 ��E�F��E�FkN̂9=7am5mn54S�T76:�X ���	���(*)�)!%����22	� ��%������E
F�
%�$����E�FA*)�%�'��� �
��A���C�K	��G
 ��0"���K	��G
 ��E�F��EHF

kN̂9=7am5mn54S�T76:�Z H��	��H'0-?%�A����� ��%
�$��HE�F��%��
���E�F?)K(?%�,�����>,�����	G@ ����A���C�K	��G
 �
0"���K	��G
 ��E�F�$E�FkN̂9=7am5mn54S�T76:�q ���	���V(**/%�,��2���� ��%�H$���E�F��%��
���E�F��(,)0I)%�0��"���>�	�� @ �H�
A���C�K	��G
 ��0"���K	��G
 ��E�F���E�Fkhr�d̀ srTj�P5a;:79f�:N�T;m6�;98�P5654RN746 ����	����./� ���%������E�F�
�%�
$���E�F!0 ��%���A���C�K	��G
 ���0"���K	��G
 ��E�F���E�Fkhr�d̀ srTj�P5a;:79f�:N�P5:7458�t̂8f56 ����	����./� ��
%������E�F�
�%
H���HE�F!0 �$%���A���C�K	��G
 �
$0"���K	��G
 ��E�F���E$Fou�[dvdwxwj�P5=N486�;98�̀55:79f6�hQ59�:N�:y5�3̂na7= ����	����./� ���%$�$�$
E�F���%H���
�EHF!0 �H%��$A���C�K	��G
 ��$0"���K	��G
 ��E�F���E�FUu�[dvdwxwj�3̂na7=�d==566S�hQ59�MQ;=5S�;98�r;:̂4;a�P56N̂4=56�345654R;:7N9�ẑ98 ����	����./� ���%������E�F�
�%�$����E�F!0 ��%$
�A���C�K	��G
 ���0"���K	��G
 ��E�F��
E�FWu�[dvdwxwj�3̂na7=�d==566S�hQ59�MQ;=5S�;98�r;:̂4;a�P56N̂4=56�345654R;:7N9� ����	����./� ��$%��
��$E�F���%��
���E�F!0 ��%���A���C�K	��G
 �
�0"���K	��G
 ��E�F��
E�FXu�[dvdwxwj�s6:;na76y79f�MQ5=7;a�ẑ986 ����	����./� ���%��
�
�E$F���%����$�EHF!0 ��%�H$A���C�K	��G
 ���0"���K	��G
 ��E�F���E$FYu�[dvdwxwj�sa7f7n7a7:i�lN4�P5876:47=:79f�kNmm7667N9546�:N�n5�k;9878;:56�lN4�kN̂9:i�����	����./� ���%�$��$
EHF���%����

E
F!0 ��%���A���C�K	��G
 ���0"���K	��G
 ��E�F���E�FZu�[dvdwxwj�s6:;na76y79f�;�{;m5�;̀9;f5m59:�d8R76N4i�kNmm7667N9 ����	����./� ���%�H���HE$F���%��$���E�F!0 �$%$�HA���C�K	��G
 ��H0"���K	��G
 ��E�F���E�F
>-@���-/�+A*(�)!����������������������������������������>�@�|��-//!����������������������������������������>!@�|�!0!�)-1(�)!����������������������������������������>*@�|�*(A/-1)-()!����������������������������������������>?@�|�?/,0�-)1(�



��������	�
�����
��
��
������
��
��������������������
��
���������	�������������������	��� �!	"��#���$%�
��
&&'(!)*��+,,)-.�-/�0-1&&�+,,)-.�-/�0-1 ��2��
-/�(�1-)1(0!�)!3�1+-!0+1&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&�/!/-)* ����%�
�101)*�-/�(�1-)1(0! �$�4
5�$�%6�
101)*�1+-!0+1 ���465��
%�6$�������-/�(!�1�1+-!0+1 ���4�5���%�
$������)7�/!1//�1+-!0+1

8-9���-/�+7*(�)!����������������������������������������8�9�:��-//!����������������������������������������8!9�:�!0!�)-1(�)!����������������������������������������8*9�:�*(7/-1)-()!����������������������������������������839�:�3/,0�-)1(�



��������	�
������
��
������
�
��

����������������������
����� �����	!�"�#����$��	%��&�	!�"�#�����	'��(���)*��
��++,����� -..��/�������++ -..��/������� ��0���123456378�976�:5;3�123456378 �<��	!��<=>?��������*�"�@@��&���A����*���� ���*��B ���C�D��E*�
� ���C�D=�?���-.�*�>	��@��FC��������*�.�GH��@��C=�?� ����*�F�@@���I���A�*��J��% ��*)�� ��C<D��*�E
 �<CED=�?�F�"� ��*����&���K��>*�I�@@=�?��� ���*�>����@@��C���I��>��/*� G	����C �E)� ��C�D��*���I@��L�M	��N
 �<
�'���M	��N
 �
C
D��CEDOPQP�Q3798R2 �<��	!��<=>?� �"��S*�I���� ��E*

< �E�C�D���*E�� ��BC<D=�?��������*�F	H�=�?����� ��*�F	&�FC ��*�B� ��C�D��*�E� ��CBD=�?�A�A� A�*�.�GH��@��C=�?���-,,��*�F	H��.C�=��0H%? ��E� �
C�D��*B)�I@��L�M	��N
 ��
�'���M	��N
 �
C
D��C�DOPQP�T3U234378985V3W�X548�YY �<��	!��<=>?���II��>*��%@N� ���*
�E �EEC<D���*��< ��EC<D=�?�A���"-�*���0�@���%@��� �<*�B)I@��L�M	��N
 ��<�'���M	��N
 �
C
D��C<DQ8983�Q3798R2W�X548�Z�:9;97;[ B��	!�B=>?�A�"���*�A���@�\� ���*�)) �)�CED��*)�� ��
C�D=�?�������,,*�A��(��@& ��*�
EI@��L�M	��N
 ���'���M	��N
 �
C
D��CBDQ8983�Q3798R2W�X548�] �
��	!��
=>?��->��.��*��%NN�@@��C ���*��� �E�C�D��*�)) ���C<D=�?�,����*�,������GL�,C ��*
��I@��L�M	��N
 ���'���M	��N
 �
C
D�EC
DQ8983�T3U234378985V3W�X548�Z B��	!�B=>?���A� "�.�*�.��L�.C �E*�B� �E<C�D��*B�� ��)C)D=�?�/�-��*�I&�	� �EEBI@��L�M	��N
 �<�'���M	��N
 �
C
D�EC�DQ8983�T3U234378985V3W�X548�̂ E��	!�E=>?���� "�*���GH����"CAC ��*�)� ��EC)D��*<<< ���C�D=�?��� ������*�A��@	H�=�?�������,,*����0	�& �)�< �)CBD�EEBI@��L�M	��N
 �E�'���M	��N
 �
C�D�)C�DQ8983�T3U234378985V3W�X548�_ ���	!��=>?� ���I-���M���-��*�F	&��C ��*)�� ��EC�D��*��E ���C�D=�?�F��� *��%���=�?� ���"�� *�.	L� ���) �EC�D�B

I@��L�M	��N
 �E�'���M	��N
 �
C�D��
C�DQ8983�T3U234378985V3W�X548�̀ )��	!�)=>?��������*���GH�����C ��*�E� ��)C<D��*E�� ��BC�D=�?��� �*�.�GH��@��C ��*�
�I@��L�M	��N
 �
�'���M	��N
 �
C
D���C�D

Q8983�T3U234378985V3W�X548�a ���	!��=>?���K��*���G	@���C ��*
�< ���CBD��*)B� �<�C<D=�?������*�I�%G���C �<��I@��L�M	��N
 ���'���M	��N
 �
C
D�<C)DQ8983�T3U234378985V3W�X548�b ���	!��=>?��M�� *�����& ��*B<� ��BCED�<*�)� �<�C
D=�?����A��/*�F�!!��&�=F�!!? ��<
I@��L�M	��N
 ���'���M	��N
 �
C
D��C<Dc9d955�T3456378�e2f4833 �<��	!��<���> �/*��	(����AC�=I	(? ��B*�B< ���CED���*��� �<�C
D��� A*�.�@�@����IC ���*
BEI@��L�M	��N
 ����'���M	��N
 �
C
D���C�Dg8hi92j3�e2f4833 �<��	!��<�A���*�A�@�\� ���*�E� �<EC�D���*)�< �<�C�D��������*�"�%���� ��)*���I@��L�M	��N
 �B�'���M	��N
 �
C
D��)C�DkRf7;5lm3mn32W�X548�̂W�kRf78[�Ro�c9d955 ���	!��������/*� %N���= %�? ��*<BB ���CBD�<*

B �<EC�DA����*�.	����.C"C ��B)I@��L�M	��N
 ���'���M	��N
 �
C
D�EC�DkRf7;5lm3mn32W�X548�_W�kRf78[�Ro�c9d955 ���	!���"���*���@��� �<*�
� ��BC�D��*)�� ���CED������*�.���� ��
�I@��L�M	��N
 ���'���M	��N
 �
C
D�)C)Dkpq�grsqXt�uf2[�e259l4�57�k5V5l�k9434 �<��	!��</� �<
*B�� ���CBD��E*)<� ���C�D�� �E*�
�I@��L�M	��N
 ��B�'���M	��N
 �
C
D��
CBDkpq�grsqXt�X54UR4585R7�Ro�sv;344�T3V37f34 �<��	!��</� �<<*E�E ���C�D��<*�

 �<�C�D�� �)*E��I@��L�M	��N
 ��<�'���M	��N
 �
C
D��<C<DcgwgYxYt�svU97657j�Q;RU3�Ro�8y3�kRf78[�Ro�c9d95z5�{37329l�1l97 �<��	!��</� ��<*��< ���C�D���*)
B ��<CBD�� �E*
��I@��L�M	��N
 ����'���M	��N
 �
C
D��
CED

���� ����������>��-���-�++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++������� ���<*
)<���������� ������� ��)C�D���*
���������-���-� ��<C�D���*�E
����������������-���-� �<�C
D�<B*����������I �������-���-�

=�?����������������������=�?����������� �����������������=>?���>�.���������������������=�?����.������� "��������������������=�?������ ���-������������������=�?������-I�������������������=�?�����I��������



��������	�
������
�����������
��
�����������������������������������	���� ����!��	"��#�	���� �����	$��%���&'�����(()������*++��,�������((�*++��,������� ��-���./0123045�643�7280�./0123045 �9:;�<�:����������� �=>'
&� �??@&A��?'>B
 �&�@CA9�;���*+���������9�;�D���������������� ��'��
 ��@�A�>�= ��@BA9�;���EF������E��F��9��;����������<�����: ���� ��@�A��&C ��@�A9�;�<���F���������+��� �
C�<G��H�I	��J
 �=&�$���I	��J
 ��@�A��@>AKLML�N0O/01045652P0Q�R215�SS �9:;�F�����'�F���G�T��9F��; �=='

C �?�@BA���'>B
 ��&@?A9�;��F���'�D	�9�;��������'�+�UV�GG���	J� ��'C
� ��@>A��'
=� ��@�A9�;����+���E��*�'�D	���V��9�;�<*��*�'��	� �B&= ��@�A��C& ��@&A9��;���*))��'�D	V��9��-V"; �?'C>�<G��H�I	��J
 �=?�$���I	��J
 ��@�A�
@&AM5650�M0465W/Q�R215�X �9:;�����<*���I���*��'�D	# ��C'��= �?
@>A�C'?BC ���@CA9�;�F�����'��	���@ ��'�=?<G��H�I	��J
 �?�$���I	��J
 ��@�A�B@>AM5650�N0O/01045652P0Q�R215�Y �9:;���F����+�'�+��H�+@ �>'>=� �?>@�A�&'CB
 ��?@BA9�;�����'��	��������"�G��� �?&
<G��H�I	��J
 �=�$���I	��J
 ��@�A�C@BAM5650�N0O/01045652P0Q�R215�X �9:;���::'��V��J�	ZV����@�@ �B'==� �

@&A��'=>B ���@BA9�;�+�+��F��'�:�$����V� '���@ ��'���<G��H�I	��J
 �C�$���I	��J
 ��@�A�B@>AM5650�N0O/01045652P0Q�R215�[ �9:;�������'���UV�����@F@ �>'��> �??@
A�&'�?= ��=@
A9�;��*����'��"J�� �B&B<G��H�I	��J
 �=�$���I	��J
 ��@�A�
@?AM5650�N0O/01045652P0Q�R215�\ �9:;�������'����--	� �
'>�� �?=@>A��'BC& ��?@CA9�;����+��D'��	Z��9�G	V�G���;9�;���*+��'�:�J�	�����	�� ��'&>C ���@
A�
&�<G��H�I	��J
 �&�$���I	��J
 ��@�A�?@�AM5650�N0O/01045652P0Q�R215�] �9:;�F�����'�D����� �>'&CC �?>@CA��'?&? ��&@CA9�;�����'�+�UV��G��@�9+�H�;9�;�:��F��'����G�GG��D	V���� �>C& �?@BA��'&

<G��H�I	��J
 �&�$���I	��J
 ��@�A���@&A6̂_622�N0123045�̀/a1500 ����:��,'�F�	G� �&B'��> �CC@�A��
'B=� �&�@=A+����*��'�����H�G� ���'?�
<G��H�I	��J
 ��&�$���I	��J
 ��@�A��C@CA

bWcWd62�N0123045�̀/a1500 ������'��"��� �&�'��� �&=@�A��&'�&� ��?@�A+����:�'��	G�����9���Z��; �&C'C&=<G��H�I	��J
 ��B�$���I	��J
 ��@�A�&>@BAe5fg6/h0�̀/a1500 ��F���'�F�G�T� �&�'��C �&?@&A��
'>�B �&�@CA��*i�'�F�	�� ��>'==&<G��H�I	��J
 ����$���I	��J
 ��@�A�&�@�Ab6jW/Q�kWa45j�Wl�̂6_622 �����'�+��UV �=�'C�� �=?@BA�&='B&& �C�@?A+��i�'��H��H� ��'�&
<G��H�I	��J
 ��
�$���I	��J
 ��@�A��@=AkWa482cm0mn0/Q�R215�YQ�kWa45j�Wl�̂6_622 �F�+<���'�����V����@ �C'??
 �=�@�A�&'>== �C�@�A,�����'�:	����U �?�&<G��H�I	��J
 �&�$���I	��J
 ��@�A�?@>AkWa482cm0mn0/Q�R215�]Q�kWa45j�Wl�̂6_622 �F������T��F����)��:��'�+��� �C'&=
 �C
@CA�&'B
> �C&@&A��:���*���'��H��H� �>CB<G��H�I	��J
 �?�$���I	��J
 ��@�A�B@�AêoeSpSq�̀08r4286cQ�g24ha21528Q�s�t/6mm65286c�N0P212W41�Wl�5r0�kr6/50/ �,�� �=
'?�? �?=@�A��>'CB
 ���@BA�� ���'CB�<G��H�I	��J
 ��=�$���I	��J
 ��@�A��C@�AêoeSpSq�kWa482c�b00524h�gW8652W41 �,�� �?>'&B� �

@�A���'&CB ���@>A�� �>'>CB<G��H�I	��J
 ��>�$���I	��J
 ��@�A���@�AêoeSpSq�R0O6/5m045�Wl�N0106/8r�s�R0P0cWOm045 �,�� �??'=�� �
=@�A���'�== ���@&A�� ���'�&=<G��H�I	��J
 �?�$���I	��J
 ��@�A��&@?AêoeSpSq�ea5rW/25j�Wl�.Wc280�s�u2/0�kWmm2112W41 �,�� �?='&?
 �
&@>A��C'��? ��=@>A�� �B'�>B<G��H�I	��J
 �&?�$���I	��J
 ��@�A���@CAêoeSpSq�̀0/m1�Wl�kWa482c�b0mn0/1 �,�� �&
'&?� �C�@�A�C�'&B
 �C
@>A�� �>'>��<G��H�I	��J
 ��B�$���I	��J
 ��@�A���@�A

êoeSpSq�.anc28�e88011Q�vO04�MO680Q�s�w65a/6c�N01Wa/801�./010/P652W4�ua43 �,�� �C?'�C� �=�@�A�&�'?=
 �&=@
A�� ���'
>C<G��H�I	��J
 ��=�$���I	��J
 ��@�A���@�AêoeSpSq�R2182Oc240�Wl�kWa482c�b0mn0/1 �,�� �
�'�>
 �>�@CA�
'?=
 �>@?A�� �>'>C=<G��H�I	��J
 ��B�$���I	��J
 ��@�A���@�AêoeSpSq�R0O6/5m045�Wl�S4lW/m652W4�̀08r4WcWhj �,�� �&&'�&C �&
@=A�C�'�
= �C?@=A�� ��C'�?><G��H�I	��J
 �&��$���I	��J
 ��@�A��?@�AêoeSpSq�x156nc21rm045�Wl�6�R216150/�s�xm0/h048j�ua43 �,�� �C='CB
 �=�@&A�&�'=�� �&?@
A�� ���'=?C<G��H�I	��J
 ��
�$���I	��J
 ��@�A���@BAêoeSpSq�.anc28�e88011Q�vO04�MO680Q�s�w65a/6c�N01Wa/801�./010/P652W4�b6245046480�ua43 �,�� �&B'��� �CC@�A�&
'��C �C�@BA�� ���'C=&<G��H�I	��J
 �&��$���I	��J
 ��@�A��C@�AêoeSpSq�b64365W/j�kr6/50/�N0P20_1 �,�� �?�'&&� �?B@�A��&'��� ��C@BA�� ��C'�?�<G��H�I	��J
 ��=�$���I	��J
 ��@�A��=@BAêoeSpSq�kW/OW/652W4�kWa410c �,�� �?�'B�� �
�@�A��&'B
� ��=@>A�� ���'?B
<G��H�I	��J
 ��B�$���I	��J
 ��@�A��&@�AêoeSpSq�̂6_62p2�u2/0�R0O6/5m045 �,�� �=�'B=� �=>@?A��&'��C ��?@�A�� ��&'C�&<G��H�I	��J
 ����$���I	��J
 ��@�A��=@�AêoeSpSq�b0mn0/1r2O�W4�yW6/31�s�kWmm2112W41 �,�� �C�'��� �C
@CA�&&'�&� �&
@=A�� ��&'&&=<G��H�I	��J
 �&��$���I	��J
 ��@�A��=@�AêoeSpSq�k6O256c�ya3h05�s�k6O256c�./Wh/6m1 �,�� �?�'�B> �?B@�A��C'�&= ��?@�A�� ��&'�?�<G��H�I	��J
 ��=�$���I	��J
 ��@�A��=@�A
9�;�����<��������������9�;���������������9:;���:�+���������������9�;�����������������������9��;����+�����������������������9�;����������*������������9�;������*<�������������9�;�������������



��������	�
������
�����������
��
�����������������������������������	���� ����!��	"��#�	���� �����	$��%���&'�����(()������*++��,�������((�*++��,������� ��-���./0/1213�45678�59�:;<=>? �,�� �@�'A@B �@CDAE��B'@FA ��
D
E�� ���'�
CGH��I�J	��K
 ��@�$���J	��K
 ��D�E���DBE���������������L��*���*�((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((������� ���
'&FA������������������ �@CD@E�AA'@�A�������*���*� �@BDCE�A&'C
�������+�����*���*� �&D@E�F'@&
�����������������*���*�

M�N�����G��������������M�N���������������MLN���L�+���������������M�N�����������������������M��N����+�����������������������M�N����������*������������M�N������*G�������������M�N�������������



APPENDIX 11 



������������	
����
���������������������������������������������
��� !!��"���#��	�$�%�&�� #�'��(#��%�����%)�((*(+*�
������
,)�()
,�-�./0123045�643�7280�./01230459:;�����
���<���&��:=�$���#���
:��	>��?��	���$���@
���#���
:��	 +(+�
�� �A=AB9�;�	� !#��:�%�&��C=�$���#���
:��	@������C:�$���@
���#���
:��	 (A+�,,( +D=(B9�;��	�
���C�&&�$���#���
:��	>������E��&-F$���@
���#���
:��	 ��+GD 
=GB9�;���
@�����F�H��$���#���
:��		���!��	��!�I��$���@
���#���
:��	 ��D++ 
=�B9��;�:������� ?���&�E����$���#���
:��	����
���<���%��$���@
���#���
:��	 (�A�
 
=�B9�;�����<
��#�����$���#���
:��	���<����E��%$���@
���#���
:��	 A+, 
=�BJ&�%I�@���H) ��
(
 (=
B�����@���H) ��� 
=(BKLML�M0465N/9:;��
������!�O���<= +���(A� ,�=(B9�;�!�:��!�		��J�� (,
�
D� +
=DB9>;�J
��
���
�����F�&�P�#�I�QFE A���� (=GB9�;�#���!���������C�%�����&� G��D
 (=,BJ&�%I�@���H) (A�DD� +=GB�����@���H) D
( 
=(BKLML�R0S/01045652T0U�V215�W9:;��������� (,���+D ,�=+B9�;������"��#����QI��= ,��+D+ ��=,BJ&�%I�@���H) ���,,A A=
B�����@���H) (�+ 
=(BKLML�R0S/01045652T0U�V215�WW9:;�	�< :���C�&&��= (,,���( ,(=�B9�;�J��:������� D���D( �D=AB9�;�	�!��������% ���AD (=DB9�;�!�"������%��&&�<�&&P +�A+D (=�BJ&�%I�@���H) �
��,, D=�B�����@���H) +G� 
=(BM5650�M0465N/U�V215�X9:;�<�� ����:�E�!��� (+�((� ,+=(B9�;�� ��
@����<E���9�E&&�; ,��D+ +
=�BJ&�%I�@���H) (�+GG ,=DB�����@���H) (� 
=(BM5650�M0465N/U�V215�Y9:;�!�<��@�"���%'EH��=<= ((���G �D=�B9�;�>��<�����F��&� ,�A
� +�=+BJ&�%I�@���H) (��DD D=GB�����@���H) (�� 
=DBM5650�M0465N/U�V215�Z9:;�:���
	����P%%�#E�&�%� (��GA� ,,=�B9�;�!�������������P ��A+
 ��=GBJ&�%I�@���H) ��
,( G=,B�����@���H) +D 
=�BM5650�M0465N/U�V215�[\9:;�!��
>�<
���F���%�"= (��DGA ,�=,B9�;�:�JJ����F����� ��+G
 �D=�BJ&�%I�@���H) (��AG G=(B�����@���H) �� 
=(B

M5650�M0465N/U�V215�[Y9:;����$��	���J��%��% (,���� ,A=,B9�;�J��<!����#�� ��A
, ��=
BJ&�%I�@���H) (��,� �=+B�����@���H) (D 
=(BM5650�M0465N/U�V215�[]9:;�<
:��
��!�QF�&&���= (+�D
, ,(=DB9�;��@��
�������& ,�AG, +(=�BJ&�%I�@���H) (��(
 ,=GB�����@���H) A 
=
BM5650�M0465N/U�V215�\\9�;�:����	�������%�F� ,�G�A �+=(B9:;���	���������Q��HE�'� ��D�� ��=+BJ&�%I�@���H) +(A �=�B�����@���H) (� 
=(BM5650�M0465N/U�V215�\X9�;��>���J��%��% (
��A� �
=+B9:;����$����J�% A��A� ��=(BJ&�%I�@���H) A�
 �=�B�����@���H) �( 
=(BM5650�R0S/01045652T0U�V215�X9:;�	�::���F��H��-F����=	= ��G�( ,(=(B9�;�>
������<�%�� ��DA+ �A=+B9�;�!��	
����EH��%�:=�9�F�&�F; �D, �=ABJ&�%I�@���H) ,�A ,=,B�����@���H) (
 
=(BM5650�R0S/01045652T0U�V215�̂9:;�
����������''�� ,��D+ ,,=+B9�;�����<��I�&�%� ��G�� �G=�BJ&�%I�@���H) �(+ �=�B�����@���H) (
 
=(BM5650�R0S/01045652T0U�V215�_9:;�<�#�����C��%%� ��D+D �,=
B9�;��"�!����HF&�P +��,, ++=GB9�;�$������$������QI�$= +

 �=ABJ&�%I�@���H) D+
 D=(B�����@���H) (, 
=�BM5650�R0S/01045652T0U�V215�Y9:;�<��������<��H��% ,���( ��=+B9�;�!�:
������P&����!= +�GA( +�=,BJ&�%I�@���H) (�(�+ (
=
B�����@���H) � 
=
BM5650�R0S/01045652T0U�V215�Z9:;���>������Q�&� ��A�
 ��=�B9�;�:���� ����	����FP��=�9	��; +�A�+ �(=ABJ&�%I�@���H) ��G �=GB�����@���H) , 
=(BM5650�R0S/01045652T0U�V215�]9:;�	�������:������= ,�++( �A=�B9�;�#����
����!�%�̀E����������H +�G�� +�=GBJ&�%I�@���H) �
� �=DB�����@���H) G 
=(BM5650�R0S/01045652T0U�V215�[[9:;��!�	���	���O�9	=�����; ,�,�D �D=�B9�;����
�����&��%��=�9��&P; +���( +
=�BJ&�%I�@���H) (��,, (
=AB�����@���H) (�
 (=+B

M5650�R0S/01045652T0U�V215�[\9:;�"�!���
	���<P&��	= D�DA� �A=,B9�;�C��������:�% +�(AD ��=�B9�;��"���������!= G�( ,=�BJ&�%I�@���H) (��
, A=�B�����@���H) �, 
=�BM5650�R0S/01045652T0U�V215�[X9:;�#��#����!�F�%� D�(D� ,�=,B9�;��:�!���Q��� ���DD �+=,BJ&�%I�@���H) (�(D
 (
=DB�����@���H) (, 
=(BM5650�R0S/01045652T0U�V215�[̂9:;�����������&&� ��+
+ �(=�B9�;���!�	������<�&&P�C= +�++G +A=ABJ&�%I�@���H) D(( G=�B�����@���H) G 
=(BM5650�R0S/01045652T0U�V215�[_9:;���<�! ��������%��<= ,�,�, ,�=DB9�;�!����?��:������= ��,A� �,=�BJ&�%I�@���H) A++ A=(B�����@���H) D 
=(BM5650�R0S/01045652T0U�V215�[Y9:;��@��
����EI���= ,��DA ,+=DB9�;�"�:��������� ��G�G �G=
BJ&�%I�@���H) G�� G=+B�����@���H) , 
=(BM5650�R0S/01045652T0U�V215�[Z9:;�!��
<�>���:�P%�����9:��; ,���
 ,+=GB9�;�C� ����!�QF��&��= ��,+G �,=(BJ&�%I�@���H) (�
(
 (
=
B�����@���H) � 
=
BM5650�R0S/01045652T0U�V215�\a9:;���<�:������:
��		
��	�%� D���, ,+=�B9�;�����!��������%%���= +�+,� �G=(BJ&�%I�@���H) (�
++ G=,B�����@���H) G 
=(BM5650�R0S/01045652T0U�V215�\[9:;���"�!���C�QIH�%�:= G�(�A D(=�B9�;�����������C��&&� ���A( �(=ABJ&�%I�@���H) D�D ,=,B�����@���H) G 
=(BM5650�R0S/01045652T0U�V215�\\9:;������		���%�����	�IEP� G���D D�=+B9�;�
!�! ����C�����P��= ���D� (A=�BJ&�%I�@���H) A�
 G=(B�����@���H) G 
=(BM5650�R0S/01045652T0U�V215�\̂9:;�	�!�������% ��AD+ ,�=�B9�;���:�������C�&&��%�	= ��G,� +
=
BJ&�%I�@���H) D(( D=�B�����@���H) A 
=(BM5650�R0S/01045652T0U�V215�\Z9:;�	�<��� ��
��C�%%� D�A�G ,,=+B9�;��
!��!��'����� = +��
( �A=+BJ&�%I�@���H) �(+ �=+B�����@���H) (
 
=(B9�;���������#��	"�9�;���9�;������
:��
	"�#��	"�9�;���9�;�����# J�
����#��	"�9�;���9:;���:�!����	
��#��	"�9:;���9�;������#��	
����J����	�9�;���9�;����
J��	��
���#��	"�9�;���9��;���#��	"�$������
��
�!���:��
J���	
���9��;���9>;���>��	���#��#���9>;���9
;���
�:�#��:��	�9
;���9��;��������J����9��;

i-------------1'-----_-_-----'-----, 
~ :::::::::::::::========~ 

:::::::::::::::========~---------li-------------t 
i-------------1'-----_-_-----'-----, 

~ :::::::::::::::========~ 



������������	
����
���������������������������������������������
��� !!��"���#��	�$�%�&�� #�'���#��%�����%(�))*)+*�
������
,(�)(
,�-�./0/1�21341516/0/7819�:75/�;<=>?�� ���"��
@��@�������A���& ��
,B ,�C�D=�?�E��# ������&��E�FG���� )�H�� +
CBDI&�%@�J���K( �B� �C�D�����J���K( , 
C)D./0/1�21341516/0/7819�:75/�LM=>?�	�!#�����G��&�N��%%�������% +�+HO ,�CBD=�?��P
�����#C�!C )��)� �BCHDI&�%@�J���K( +�H ,C+D�����J���K( � 
C
D./0/1�21341516/0/7819�:75/�LQ=>?�
��
"�!�����%�� ���OH ,�COD=�?�J��>�P����%RN��C ���
� �HC�DI&�%@�J���K( �
� �COD�����J���K( � 
C)D./0/1�21341516/0/7819�:75/�L;=�?���
!
P �����%���!FK�KG� ���H, �OC�D=>?��
 ��!�R�G�#��@�&��E�� ���)B �,CODI&�%@�J���K( ��H �COD�����J���K( )
 
C)D./0/1�21341516/0/7819�:75/�LS=>?�	�E�"�!������'' ,�B�
 ,�C�D=�?�> #
������FK��

 +�),) �HCBDI&�%@�J���K( ,)O �CBD�����J���K( � 
C
D./0/1�21341516/0/7819�:75/�LT=>?������
����	��KG B�OO
 ,+C
D=�?�E�� !������	�N&�� ��
,, �HC�DI&�%@�J���K( )�
O+ OCOD�����J���K( )� 
C)D./0/1�21341516/0/7819�:75/�LU=�?�����#��!�	� !�	�����F��% B�OO, ,BCOD=>?��P�V����&�W�%����E�@F�%��X� +��)B �,CBDI&�%@�J���K( �,, �C�D�����J���K( )� 
C)D./0/1�21341516/0/7819�:75/�L<=�?�#
��
�E���&�Y�G ��O)� �OC)D=>?���������������N ��O
) �,CHDI&�%@�J���K( �BO �CHD�����J���K( )+ 
C)D./0/1�21341516/0/7819�:75/�SM=�?���"����>���ZF&�� ��+

 �HC�D=>?�!��	
��P����K� +�B+, ��C
D=V?� � $�� ����G��K���%�#C ��+ �CHDI&�%@�J���K( +)
 +C,D�����J���K( )) 
C)D./0/1�21341516/0/7819�:75/�SQ=�?��������>������C��


 ���O� ��CHD=>?�����E��Z�G%��C��


 +�B�
 +HC�DI&�%@�J���K( �O� �CBD�����J���K( )) 
C)D./0/1�21341516/0/7819�:75/�S;=�?�����
���>����%� ��B
� ��C�D=>?�#��
����%�G�%N�!�@�%� +�,�, �)C+DI&�%@�J���K( +,H �C�D�����J���K( )B 
C�D

./0/1�21341516/0/7819�:75/�S[=�?�! ���E����G��K +�)�+ �BC�D=>?�>���	���>�K�����F'FK�� ��H)� ��C�DI&�%@�J���K( �
, ,C+D�����J���K( , 
C)D./0/1�21341516/0/7819�:75/�S\=>?�#��� ������N��C ���+� ��C�D=�?���I�
����>�%��&�!�RG��& +�H�+ +HC,DI&�%@�J���K( �B, �CHD�����J���K( , 
C)D./0/1�21341516/0/7819�:75/�ST=>?�] 
���������% ��,), ��C)D=�?��� 
�����Z�G%�VC�=Z�G%%N? +��
� +BC�DI&�%@�J���K( B+) HC�D�����J���K( � 
C
D./0/1�21341516/0/7819�:75/�SU=>?�E
	���V�����K���C B��OB O
CHD=�?�>�
�"���KG������C�=E���? )�OH) )�CBDI&�%@�J���K( )�O�O )�C+D�����J���K( , 
C
D./0/1�21341516/0/7819�:75/�S<=>?�!�	�"���
���R�� O�O)) ,BC,D=�?� I��>���Z�K��G�=I��GE�FA? ��HOH �,C�DI&�%@�J���K( ��� �CHD�����J���K( + 
C
D./0/1�21341516/0/7819�:75/�[M=>?������!�@� H�OH) ,,C,D=�?��������"��	����GN�>C ���
, �BC,DI&�%@�J���K( ,B� �C,D�����J���K( )� 
C)D_̂̀_a07�2157b16/�c4d5/11���#����F�%� ),B�OB) +�C+D�
�
#��
���C�EF%�%� ))B��+� ��CODI&�%@�J���K( �+���,, ��CHD�����J���K( ��� 
C)De0d07�2157b16/�c4d5/11�� ����>�% ),
�
+
 +
C,D�
�>��"����F����C )�����) �+CBDI&�%@�J���K( �+O�)
+ ��C�D�����J���K( �,� 
C)Df/gh04i1�c4d5/11�E
����E�&�X� �

���� +BC�D�� �
������� )���+
� ��C
DI&�%@�J���K( )H��B
O +OC�D�����J���K( �O) 
C)D0̂j_49�k_d6/j�_l�m0n07o7���!�>����C�E��� ���),� ��CBD��	���!��RG +���,
 ��C�DI&�%@�J���K( +�BHO �COD�����J���K( ,� 
C)Dk_d6p7̀q1qr149�:75/�[9�k_d6/j�_l�m0n07o7E�����
X
�E��
�$��>����!��� ��+
H �
C�D��>��� ��	��
@��@� +��,� +BC+DI&�%@�J���K( H�� ))C)D�����J���K( B 
C)D

k_d6p7̀q1qr149�:75/�<9�k_d6/j�_l�m0n07o7� �	�����Z���K��C ��)B� �+C�D�J�������%�N +�O�, +BC�DI&�%@�J���K( OH+ BC�D�����J���K( � 
C
Dk_d6p7̀q1qr14�st05/�̂0d7u�
����
���G�%� �
�B)H ,�C�DI&�%@�J���K( ���O+, +�CBD�����J���K( 
 
C
Dk_d6p7̀q1qr14�sv15/�̂0d7u#��	
���	�������@�@��!��&� +��+O+ ��C)D��] 
�	���������%�=��&�? )��O

 �+C)DI&�%@�J���K( )����+ ��COD�����J���K( �H 
C
Dk_d6p7̀q1qr14�sv07̀dadgv07w11gv07a03du������&�R���C �B���, ��C�D$�����	��Z���K�=��G�&�? ���+�) +�C�DI&�%@�J���K( )��H+
 �
C+D�����J���K( +B 
C)Dk_d6p7̀q1qr14�se0wd̀d7uE�!���	�KG� �O��HO �+C+DE�!�E���������&���� ���)+O +�CBDI&�%@�J���K( )+�B,) �)CBD�����J���K( ,
 
C)Dk_d6p7̀q1qr14�s._d/w�̂0d7u���E��	�� �,���+ �)C,DE
����E�&&N�	�@�N� �,�+�, �)C�DI&�%@�J���K( )
�O�
 ),CHD�����J���K( �, 
C)Dk_d6p7̀q1qr14�ŝ0a0n0_gm07adgx070u  ���>�
������G� �O�O+
 �+C,DI���������� �)�O,O +�C�DI&�%@�J���K( )��
)
 ��C
D�����J���K( �B 
C)Dk_d6p7̀q1qr14�sy3p_d6/4ju� �
! ����"F@������E�KG��� +)�O,� �
C
D�� P��Z�R�&N%��C )B�+B, �BCHDI&�%@�J���K( )+�+,� �)C
D�����J���K( �
 
C)Dk_d6p7̀q1qr14�sh0607uZ������������ +H�
B, ,)C�DI&�%@�J���K( ����,H +BC�D�����J���K( 
 
C
Dk_d6p7̀q1qr14�ŝ_̀_a07u��V�
���$�����>�P��E��%� �O�)O� ��CBD#�����Z�G% �)�

, ++C)DI&�%@�J���K( )��++� ��C)D�����J���K( �� 
C)D
=�?���������#��	"�=�?���=�?������
>��
	"�#��	"�=�?���=�?�����# I�
����#��	"�=�?���=>?���>�!����	
��#��	"�=>?���=�?������#��	
����I����	�=�?���=�?����
I��	��
���#��	"�=�?���=��?���#��	"�$������
��
�!���>��
I���	
���=��?���=V?���V��	���#��#���=V?���=
?���
�>�#��>��	�=
?���=��?��������I����=��?

::=:::::::::::=========~::=:::::::::::=========~ 

::=:::::::::::=========~::=:::::::::::=========~ 

::=:::::::::::=========~::=:::::::::::=========~ 

::=:::::::::::=========~::=:::::::::::=========~ 

::=:::::::::::=========~::=:::::::::::=========~ 

::=:::::::::::=========~::=:::::::::::=========~ 

::=:::::::::::=========~i-------------1 



������������	
����
���������������������������������������������
��� !!��"���#��	�$�%�&�� #�'��(#��%�����%)�**+*(+�
������
,)�*)
,�-�./012345657689�./01:;�/<�=>0>?3�@�����	��A����$��)��B���A������C��%����#D��E�D *���(� BD�F��#�G���!�& *���
( ,DBFH�����
�������I&�ED *(�
�J ,D*FC �����������K�% *��(L� �DLF��MN����$�&�O�� *��(�� �DLFH ��

��H�-@H�� *���B, �DBF������N��$��%��%@�%@� *��
�* �D,FH���M�����KK **�J(( �D,FN����	���C�&&I�ND J�JBB �DBF�#
��N��������E�D�P�����Q ��J,� �DLFH���
�������MD�C@�OR ���
� �D�F� !!
������R���� ��*,
 *DJF��������E�OS@�&I%�PE�TT�Q (�(L, *D,F	��!����C��� (��J, *D�FC&�%T�A���K) BB�,J, (,D�F�����A���K) ,� 
D
F.UVW�XYZV[W\�Y>883>]6"�� �,L�
(L �*D(F�� �**�*�� �
D�FC&�%T�A���K) �
�LJ* BDLF�����A���K) ��*,� 
D�F.UVW�XYZV[W\�̂61>:6�./1<385>:3/1�_8/26̀ �̀</8�a0b323>4�Xcc/31:561:̀"�� (*,��,L ,
D,F�� *(*�B�J ��D�FC&�%T�A���K) B(�,(L *�D*F�����A���K) �
* 
D*FdXeXf?f\�./01:;�./01234�g>2>12;�31�U<<326"�� �,��*L ,BD�F�� *,��
( *JD�FC&�%T�A���K) **�*J, *(D�F�����A���K) ,J 
D*FdXeXf?f\�Y>;/8>4�Xcc/31:561:�/<�[6c>8:561:�d6>b̀"�� �L�*L( ,JD�F�� *���(
 *LD�FC&�%T�A���K) *
��*� *�D�F�����A���K) ,* 
D*FdXeXf?f\�h685�/<�U<<326�</8�:i6�./̀:�/<�j/k681561:�./553̀̀3/1"�� �L�J�* (�D,F�� ����,B �
DBFC&�%T�A���K) *���*
 *�D,F�����A���K) �L 
D*FYXlf\�̂>4>8;�./553̀̀3/1"�� (B�*�� �LD�F�� *,�
�� ��D�FC&�%T�A���K) *
�(
, *,D�F�����A���K) �( 
D*FYXlf\�f1b6c61b61:�̂:><<31]�</8�m/>8b�/<�Z:i32̀"�� (,�,�L �BD,F�� *,�J�
 �,D,FC&�%T�A���K) J�J�J *�D,F�����A���K) BL 
D*FYXlf\�m/>8b�>1b�./553̀̀3/1�h685̀"�� ����(� �
D
F�� �B�(J, �(D*FC&�%T�A���K) *
�,,L *,DLF�����A���K) �, 
D*F

=XlX?f\�_/4326�./553̀̀3/1�f1k6̀:3]>:3/1̀"�� �
�*,B ,,D
F�� ��J�� *,D*FC&�%T�A���K) ����* *BDLF�����A���K) (� 
D*F=XlX?f\�./̀:�./1:8/4�./553̀̀3/1�n6c/8:̀"�� *���*� �,D�F�� *
�
,� (�DJFC&�%T�A���K) ,��,L �
D�F�����A���K) �� 
D*F=XlX?f\�_07432�X226̀ 9̀�Uc61�̂c>26�o�V>:08>4�n6̀/0826̀�_86̀68k>:3/1�p01b"�� �*��*L B
D*F�� (�,BB *�D
FC&�%T�A���K) ����L *BDLF�����A���K) �( 
D*F=XlX?f\�̂086:;�m/1b̀"�� *��J�* ��D�F�� B�LJ
 ��DLFC&�%T�A���K) ,�B
� �*DJF�����A���K) (( 
D*F=XlX?f\�Zqr/<<323/�s/0:i�_/̀3:3/1�/1�./01:;�m/>8b̀�>1b�./553̀̀3/1̀"�� *B�(�J �,DBF�� B��L� �(DLFC&�%T�A���K) ��J�� *JD�F�����A���K) �L 
D*FdUVUtltl\�.435>:6�n6̀343612;�p01b"�� *BB�L,L �*D,F�� *(
�J,J (LD
FC&�%T�A���K) (���*� *
D�F�����A���K) (�J 
D*FdUVUtltl\�[6c>8:561:�/<�Z568]612;�Y>1>]6561:"�� �(��*�� ,BD�F�� B��
(L �
DJFC&�%T�A���K) (J�J�( **D,F�����A���K) �,L 
D*FdUVUtltl\�U26>1�̂><6:;�./553̀̀3/1"�� �
*�


 �LD�F�� *
��,�, (
DBFC&�%T�A���K) (B��,( *
DJF�����A���K) (�� 
D*FdUVUtltl\�̂>4>836̀�</8�./01234565768̀"�� �L���(* L�D,F�� (
��,J LDLFC&�%T�A���K) �J�
(B LD�F�����A���K) (B� 
D*F���
�	��	
�����N�	 ��� 		�	������
�	��	
�� L,
�L,L	�	���	 ��� 	 �����(, ,
DBF!�
��	 ��� 	 �L(�
BL �,D*F
��#������	 ��� 	 (J�*�L �D�F
uuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuu�������uuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuu

P�Q���������#��	"�P�Q���P�Q������
N��
	"�#��	"�P�Q���P�Q�����# C�
����#��	"�P�Q���PNQ���N�!����	
��#��	"�PNQ���P�Q������#��	
����C����	�P�Q���P�Q����
C��	��
���#��	"�P�Q���P��Q���#��	"�$������
��
�!���N��
C���	
���P��Q���PMQ���M��	���#��#���PMQ���P
Q���
�N�#��N��	�P
Q���P��Q��������C����P��Q

I I 
I I 

I 
===,-----------===========--,I 
===,-----------===========--,II=_-=========--, 
------ill===.-------==----==========: 

-----Ill-------

===,---------===========--,11---1 -­
-----111-----

I 



APPENDIX 12 



§ 3-177-453. Accountability and security of ballots., HI ADC § 3-177-453

 © 2025 Thomson Reuters. No claim to original U.S. Government Works. 1

West's Hawaii Administrative Code
Title 3. Department of Accounting and General Services

Chapter 177. Rules of the Office of Elections
Subchapter 10. Ballots

Haw. Admin. Rules (HAR) § 3-177-453

§ 3-177-453. Accountability and security of ballots.

Currentness

(a) The chief election officer or designated representative shall maintain a complete count of marksense ballots. All ballots
shall be safeguarded to prevent mishandling or misuse.

(b) The clerk shall maintain a complete and current count of all marksense ballots issued, spoiled, and received in their county.
The accounting of marksense ballots by the clerk shall be recorded on forms prescribed by the chief election officer.

Credits
Adopted July 26, 2020.

(Auth: HRS § 11-4) (Imp: HRS §§ 11-109, 11-152)

Current through register dated December 2024. Some sections may be more current. See credits for details.

Haw. Admin. Rules (HAR) § 3-177-453, HI ADC § 3-177-453

End of Document © 2025 Thomson Reuters. No claim to original U.S. Government Works.

WESTLAW 

https://www.westlaw.com/Browse/Home/Regulations/HawaiiRegulations?transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.UserEnteredCitation)&rs=clbt1.0&vr=3.0 
https://www.westlaw.com/Browse/Home/Regulations/HawaiiRegulations?guid=N7DC76FF07DF711DE99A8FE250C81D175&transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.UserEnteredCitation)&rs=clbt1.0&vr=3.0 
https://www.westlaw.com/Browse/Home/Regulations/HawaiiRegulations?guid=NBD5E9DA0E67811EAAECBA78085EACB7C&transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.UserEnteredCitation)&rs=clbt1.0&vr=3.0 
https://www.westlaw.com/Browse/Home/Regulations/HawaiiRegulations?guid=NBD74E4C0E67811EAAECBA78085EACB7C&transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.UserEnteredCitation)&rs=clbt1.0&vr=3.0 
https://www.westlaw.com/Link/Document/FullText?findType=L&pubNum=1000522&cite=HISTS11-4&originatingDoc=N236FE830E69A11EA918985EFB4322C03&refType=LQ&originationContext=document&vr=3.0&rs=cblt1.0&transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.UserEnteredCitation) 
https://www.westlaw.com/Link/Document/FullText?findType=L&pubNum=1000522&cite=HISTS11-109&originatingDoc=N236FE830E69A11EA918985EFB4322C03&refType=LQ&originationContext=document&vr=3.0&rs=cblt1.0&transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.UserEnteredCitation) 
https://www.westlaw.com/Link/Document/FullText?findType=L&pubNum=1000522&cite=HISTS11-152&originatingDoc=N236FE830E69A11EA918985EFB4322C03&refType=LQ&originationContext=document&vr=3.0&rs=cblt1.0&transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.UserEnteredCitation) 


STATE OF HAWAII
OFFICE OF ELECTIONS

802 LEHUA AVENUE

PEARL CITY, HAWAII 96782

elections.hawaii.gov

SCOTT T. NAGO
CHIEF ELECTION OFFICER

September 30, 2025

VIA EMAIL  

Ms. Ann Marie Hamilton

RE: ECC-25-001

Dear Ms. Hamilton,

This is in response to your correspondence dated August 20, 2025, which
appears to express a complaint against the Chair of the Elections Commission, Michael 
Curtis. You provided separate correspondence, dated August 22, 2025, related to the 
same subject. On September 23, 2025, you were informed that your correspondence 
was designated ECC-25-001 and that it had been forwarded to our office to provide us 
an opportunity to respond. Additionally, it was noted that ECC-25-001 would appear on 
Elections Commission meeting agenda when time allows as determined by Chair Curtis.
The following day, September 24, 2025, you took issue with the manner in which your 
complaint was being processed.

To the extent your three pieces of correspondence could be considered a 
complaint regarding an administrative act of the Office of Elections, and you are seeking 
something within the jurisdiction of the Elections Commission, the administrative rules of 
the Elections Commission provide our office with an opportunity to respond. HAR §§ 3-
170-6 & 3-170-8.

Your correspondence appears to assert that Chair Curtis has failed in his legal 
duties, actively colluded with this office - which is the subject of election complaints, 
misled the public about the powers of the Elections Commission, hindered 
investigations into serious election law violations, and demands the removal of Chair of 



Ms. Ann Marie Hamilton
September 30, 2025
Page 2 

the Elections Commission. The correspondence also takes issue with the initial handling 
of your correspondence, in that it was not acknowledged or included on the agenda for 
the meeting of the Elections Commission held on August 27, 2025.

 
We find that your complaint of general references to “chain of custody questions” 

or “various election process concerns” impacts our ability to formulate a response. It is 
our understanding that your “complaint should be drawn so as to fully and completely 
advise the office of elections and the elections commission in what respects the 
provisions of the law or rules have been, are being, or will be violated and should set 
forth in plain language the facts claimed to constitute the violation.” HAR § 3-170-7 
(Form of complaints). 

To the extent you are repeating complaints that have been raised in the past, our 
office has addressed in previous reports to the Elections Commission then there is 
already an established record of our position on such matters. 

 
Likewise, the enclosures to your August 20, 2025, correspondence of 

communication involving Chair Curtis do not reflect anything improper. Specifically, 
interacting with administrative support staff is necessary for purposes of accomplishing 
the duties and responsibilities of a chairperson of a board or commission.  

 
Administrative Support to the Elections Commission

We are concerned that your complaint appears to imply that Chair Curtis violated 
the law and that our office, in providing administrative support to the Elections 
Commission, has somehow witnessed these violations, along with the Department of 
the Attorney General. 

 
Consistent with HRS § 11-1.5, “The office of elections shall provide staff support 

to the elections commission, as requested by the elections commission.” Our support 
generally includes scheduling and conducting of the meetings of the Elections 
Commission. The Elections Commission is empowered to “act by a majority vote of its 
membership.” HRS § 11-7(d). Given this, during meetings the Elections Commission 
can make motions regarding what actions it wishes to take. 

 
Your complaint seems to focus on conduct outside of meetings associated with 

the conduct of the chair of the Elections Commission. We understand Chair Curtis as 
having the authority to call meetings and to set the agenda. Similarly, Chair Curtis 
serves as the representative of the Elections Commission in all administrative activities 
outside of a meeting. We serve as a resource for Chair Curtis outside of meetings. This 
has been the traditional function of the office for as long as the Elections Commission 
has existed. Likewise, we understand it to be the traditional role of any other agency 
that supports a board or commission.

 



Ms. Ann Marie Hamilton
September 30, 2025
Page 3 

Sunshine Law

As a board can only operate during duly noticed meetings, it is important to note 
that there are restrictions on the ability of board members to communicate outside of a 
meeting. Board members, such as those on the Elections Commission, are expected to 
familiarize themselves with the sunshine law, Chapter 92F, HRS. There is a series of 
training materials available on the website of the Office of Information Practices. These 
materials include a series on “Who Board Members Can Talk to and When.”  

 
Who Board Members Can Talk to and When: 

Quick Review: Who Board Members Can Talk to and When, Part 
1 (July 2018)

 Quick Review: Who Board Members Can Talk to and When, Part 
2 (August 2025)

 Quick Review: Who Board Members Can Talk to and When, Part 
3 (August 2024)

 Quick Review: Roundtable Discussions with Multiple Boards Subject to 
the Sunshine Law (March 2017)

https://oip.hawaii.gov/training/. 

These materials make clear that there are significant restrictions on 
communications by board members outside of a board meeting. We understand that 
these requirements apply to all members of the Elections Commission. This limits the 
ability of the various Elections Commission members to discuss substantive matters 
outside of a duly noticed meeting.

Further, when an Elections Commission member submits a correspondence or 
materials outside of a duly noticed meeting – seeking Chair Curtis or support staff to 
forward it immediately to the other members, we understand that this would be a 
violation of the sunshine law as it is a communication occurring outside of a meeting 
involving more than two members that concerns a board matter. As a result, Chair 
Curtis is frequently put in the position having correspondence to him from an Elections 
Commission member or members of the public that he cannot discuss with other 
members outside of a duly notice meeting.  

 
In addressing this situation, to which there is no perfect solution, he exercises his 

discretion to set the agenda and select what are relevant matters for consideration by 
Elections Commission as a whole, which is his apparent prerogative and responsibility.
Chair Curtis appears to have chosen a middle road approach, up to the present, by 
generally establishing a correspondence section on most agendas. This 
correspondence section includes a description and link to each piece of correspondence 
that was sent to the Elections Commission. The exception to this is when an agenda 

• 

• 

• 

• 



Ms. Ann Marie Hamilton
September 30, 2025
Page 4 

has already been set for a particular topic and matters such as correspondence and the 
approval of prior minutes are sometimes saved for a subsequent meeting when time 
permits.

Emails Submitted Between April 17, 2025, and May 30, 2025

Your complaint indicates that it is focused on Elections Commission emails 
between April 17, 2025, and May 30, 2025, which you have numbered 1 to 20. We 
understand that these emails were obtained by Commissioner Cushnie as part of 
records request he made under the Uniform Information Practices Act, which he then 
forwarded to you and you are now using as part of your complaint. You note that 
Elections Commissioner Cushnie sent emails that you have numbered 3, 4, 5, and 6.
Given the practice of Chair Curtis to include correspondence as part of duly noticed 
meetings, they were placed on the agenda of the meeting held on July 16, 2025.
https://elections.hawaii.gov/wp-content/uploads/2025-07-16-EC-Agenda-FINAL.pdf. 
Likewise, your complaint also emphasizes the complaint of Ms. Jennifer Hunt, that you 
have numbered 7. Again, her complaint, which appeared to be focused on the County of 
Maui, was placed on the agenda of the meeting held on July 16, 2025. Id.

As it relates to an email, identified by the number 8, from Chair Curtis to Chief 
Election Officer Nago and copied to Deputy Attorney General Jordan Ching, along with 
an Office of Elections staff member. The email expresses Chair Curtis’ initial reaction to 
the issue of chain of custody and how he initially thought he would address it at the 
upcoming meeting. The communication with this office and the Department of the 
Attorney General was proper, as it did not violate sunshine law and there is no 
prohibition on such communications.

Second, the communication was freely disclosed as part of a records request.
Chair Curtis has not sought to withhold any communication he has made in response to 
a records request. This is notable as we are not aware of any other Elections 
Commissioner member being asked to disclose their emails concerning board business.

 
Third, there is nothing inappropriate about the contents of the correspondence as 

Chair Curtis has not sought the agreement of another board member on a matter of 
board business outside of a duly notice meeting. Specifically, members can generally 
talk to non-members about possible board business. The real issue would have been if 
Elections Commission members started to communicate with each other outside of 
board meetings regarding a possible subject of board business. We do not understand 
you to be alleging that Elections Commission members have been interacting with each 
other about Elections Commission business outside of a duly noticed meeting.  



Ms. Ann Marie Hamilton
September 30, 2025
Page 5 

Second Part of Complaint – August 22, 2025

As to the second part of your complaint, which we see as your email, dated 
August 22, 2025, you appear to take issue with the handling of your initial email, dated 
August 20, 2025. Specifically, as previously stated, you indicated that it was neither 
acknowledged nor included on the agenda for the meeting of the Elections Commission 
held on August 27, 2025.

 
As a starting point, you acknowledge in your correspondence, dated August 22, 

2025, that you contacted our office and received confirmation that your correspondence, 
dated August 20, 2025, had been received. Given this, you were on notice of its receipt. 

Turning to the issue of placing it on the agenda, your correspondence was not 
received significantly before the deadline to file the agenda for the meeting scheduled 
for August 27, 2025. Specifically, the deadline to file the agenda was 6 days prior to the 
meeting. In other words, the agenda needed to be finalized by August 21, 2025.

 
By the time your correspondence had been received, the focus of the agenda 

had already been set for matters concerning the Kauai permitted interaction group.
Correspondence, which is typically a part of the agenda, was understood to be placed 
on the agenda for a subsequent meeting. This was consistent with the practice of Chair 
Curtis to ensure that all correspondence was eventually placed on a meeting agenda.

Third Part of Complaint – September 24, 2025 

As to your email dated September 24, 2025, you appear to take issue with the 
handling of your complaint in that it was first forwarded to the Office of Elections to give 
it the opportunity to respond.

As provided in HAR § 3-170-8, “[a]ll complaints will be forwarded to the office of 
elections will be given the opportunity to respond to the complaint in writing.”
Additionally, “[t]he response to the complaint shall be addressed to the complainant, 
with a copy to the response sent to the elections commission.” Id.

 
While we cannot speak for the Chair Curtis, it appears he may be operating from 

the premise that the rule must be followed (i.e. the Office of Elections is provided an 
opportunity to respond) and that the Elections Commission as a whole only operates in 
the form of a duly notice sunshine meeting. In other words, Elections Commission 
members, along with the general public, are given notice of a complaint when an
agenda containing an item concerning a complaint is posted in accordance with our 
sunshine law. To do otherwise, perhaps in his opinion opens up the possibility of board 
business being conducted by members outside of a duly noticed meeting in violation of 
sunshine law. To repeat, we can only hypothesize as to the position of Chair Curtis on 
this matter. 



Ms. Ann Marie Hamilton
September 30, 2025
Page 6 

This concludes our response to your complaint. Consistent with HAR § 3-
170-8, a copy of this response is being forwarded to the Elections Commission. 
 
      Very truly yours, 
       
       
       
       

SCOTT T. NAGO 
Chief Election Officer 

STN:AS:nn 
OE-25-117 

Enclosures 

cc: Elections Commission 



From:
To: OE.Elections.Commission
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Formal Complaint against Mike Curtis, Election Commission Chair
Date: Wednesday, August 20, 2025 7:50:13 AM
Attachments: EO and Election Commission emails 4-17 to 5-30-25.pdf

To the Hawaii Election Commission, Office of elections, and staff that is responsible for
communications with Commissioners:

Please accept this email as my Formal Complaint.  This is not a request for information. 
Please ensure that it is properly categorized for the next meeting Agenda (which may be
August 27th) as a Formal Complaint.

Please confirm receipt of this email complaint and confirm that this complaint and the
supporting documentation (in its entirety which consists of copies of 20 relevant emails of 27
pages at 450Kb) that I address in my complaint have been forwarded to ALL HAWAII
ELECTION COMMISSIONERS.

My name is AnnMarie Hamilton and I’m a concerned Hawaiian citizen from Kauai
County.  This is my complaint with the commission against Mike Curtis for malfeasance
and dereliction of fiduciary duty as the Chair of the Elections Commission. 

These are the foundational facts of my complaint:

I have attached in this complaint 20 emails dated April 17, 2025 through May 30, 2025
regarding correspondence regarding direct Election Commission business. 

These emails were obtained by Mr. Cushnie through a Freedom Of Information act aka
FOIA from the Office of Information Practices which is outline in email 1.

I have put these emails in date order and have numbered them for easy viewing and
reference.

I would like to draw your attention to emails from Ralph Cushnie that are numbered 3, 4,
5, and 6.  These are all requests by Mr. Cushnie for information and investigations
regarding various serious anomalies and inconsistencies in our electoral process.

 I would also like to refer you to email 7 from Jennifer Hunt who also filed a complaint for
serious anomalies and inconsistencies in our electoral process. 

And finally I would like to refer you to email 8 Title “Chain of Custody Questions” from
Mike Curtis, acting Elections Commission Chair to Scott Nago, acting Chief Elections
Officer. 

In this email #8 you will read that Mr. Curtis asks Mr. Nago
directly about how to respond to Mr. Cushnie’s and Ms. Hunt’s
various election process concerns against Mr. Nago. 

This #8 email is the foundational basis for my complaint against
Mr. Curtis in his capacity as an Elections Commissioner.
Referencing the email: Mr. Curtis asks Mr. Nago “What do you think is appropriate?”
regarding the Election Commission response to the many complaints the commission
has received from Mr. Cushnie and Ms. Hunt.

ECC-25-001



Mike Curtis then lists several “knee jerk reactions” which I assume he means possible
responses to their concerns. 

Mike Curtis goes on to state in the email to Scott Nago “a PIG/Task force could be used

with a commissioner from each island but I don’t think appropriate
here.”

Mike Curtis continues to address Mr. Scott Nago by stating “Requesting an AG
(Attorney General) analysis and response could be much more direct and
definitive”. 

And finally his last sentence to Mr. Nago states “Please advise”.
I would like to point out what is extremely obvious by this written email exchange
between Mr. Nago and Mr. Curtis the following:

There is COLLABERATION and COLLUSION involved
between the acting chair of the Elections Commission
which is the entity IN CHARGE of investigating election
complaints against Mr. Nago, who is the OBJECT of the
complaint.
This is fiduciary malfeasance and a direct violation of
the sworn fiduciary duty of the Election Commission by
the ACTING Election Commission Chair.
Further, I believe this direct communication between Mr. Curtis, acting Chair, and Mr.
Nago, CEO, is an attempt to thwart  or downplay the Hawaiian Public’s concern
about evidence that Hawaii is fraudulently certifying elections under Mr. Nago
WITHOUT the proper chain of custody documentation as well as not adhering to
many other election laws.

The duties of the Election Commission are simple and straightforward and outlined in
HRS _
§11-7.5  Duties of the elections commission.  The duties of the elections

commission are to:

(1) Hold public hearings;

(2) Investigate and hold hearings for receiving evidence of any
violations and complaints;

(3) Adopt rules pursuant to chapter 91;

(4) Employ, without regard to chapter 76, a full-time chief election officer,
pursuant to section 11-1.6;



     (5)  Conduct a performance evaluation of the chief election officer within two
months after the date a general election is certified;

     (6)  Hold a public hearing on the performance of the chief election officer and
consider the information gathered at the hearing in deliberations on
the chief election officer's reappointment; and

     (7)  Advise the chief election officer on matters relating to elections. [L 2004,
c 57, pt of §6; am L 2015, c 173, §2]

 
Mr. Curtis has erroneously and repeatedly misinformed the public about what the actual
job of the Hawaii Elections Commission is as he has repeatedly tells the public in these
election meetings that “our job as commissioners is “advisory” only”. 

In my opinion that is factually not correct and is an attempt at
gaslighting, deflecting, avoiding, and delaying investigations into
election laws not being followed by Mr. Nago who is an “at will”
employee of the Elections Commission.

“At will” employee in the state of Hawaii, means he can be terminated for any reason, or
no reason AT ANY TIME. 

The Hawaii State Election Commission has hiring and also firing authority over an
employee which also infers the Hawaii Election Commission also has vast investigative
authority over the Chief Election Officer in order to confirm the possible need for
termination of that employee.

Further, the  State of Hawaii Elections Commission has an obligation and fiduciary
duty to investigate, question, subpoena if necessary, force compliance, force
adherence to laws. and come to valid conclusions about the job the Chief Elections
Officer is doing running the Hawaii state elections AND if that employee is not following
his job duties or the law then you have a fiduciary duty to fire him and hire someone that
can do the job properly according to the Hawaii state election laws. 

The commissions job is not to hire someone  to run Hawaii’s elections that does not
do the job according to election law and then reward that person by continuing to
extend his employment, giving him pay raises, and doing zero investigations as is
being done with Mr. Nago. 

And doing this all over the very loud objections of the public and mounting
overwhelming evidence against Mr. Nago.

And the job of the Hawaii State Election Commission Chair certainly does not

include asking the Chief Elections Officer how the commission
should respond to a citizen’s or commissioner’s complaint against him as is
shown in these emails. 

These emails in my opinion are a smoking gun of evidence of malfeasance and
breaking fiduciary duty of the Election Commission as guardian of our state
Elections.



The Hawaii State Elections Commission is the one and ONLY state entity that is
empowered to investigate and make direct changes to our Chief Elections Officer in
order to facilitate and ensure the voting public’s trust in their state elections. 

It is not the state, county or even federal judges job to enforce election laws.  It is not we
the people’s job.  It is not the county and state politician’s job to enforce election laws.

 IT IS, however, the sole role of the Hawaii Election Commission to be the final judge and
jury and enforcement arm of Hawaii’s election laws through their investigative powers
and their supervisory employment of the State’s Chief Elections Officer.

That enforcement arm of election integrity begins and ends with the hiring, firing and
investigating and holding accountable the Chief elections officer.

I feel that this correspondence shows that Mr. Curtis sought Mr. Nago’s input in the
commission’s response to several different election process complaints in order to
possibly minimize and/or dismiss credible and legitimate concerns that were filed with
the commission regarding Mr. Nago’s performance as our Chief Elections Officer.

As we are all aware, Mr. Curtis as an Election Commissioner is tasked with investigating
complaints and concerns with Mr. Nago’s supervision and oversite of Hawaii’s state
elections.

 In this exchange Mr. Curtis is clearly asking Mr. Nago (the very person he is tasked with
hiring, supervising, investigating and possibly firing) how Mr. Curtis, the Election
Commission Chair should respond to Mr. Cushnie’s and Ms. Hunt’s complaints.

This blatant disregard for the important fiduciary duties of the Election Commission
Chair to the public and his fellow commissioners is extremely telling and troubling. 

Following election laws to the letter which includes proper documentation of Chain of
custody of ballots is the bedrock which all other elections laws stand on. 

Without documented Chain of Custody no election that can be certified.  

An election conducted without documented chain of custody is nothing more than a
“(s)election” by whomever is perpetrating and supporting the lack of adherence to
proper chain of custody and other election laws.

Further, in my opinion a critical component of facilitating election fraud through a lack of
chain of custody and other ballot security lapses is the accompanying deflection,
avoidance, and outright gaslighting perpetuated on the Hawaiian citizenry and
anyone that dares tries to bring this criminality to light. 

Myself and many others have been testifying about the lack of Chain of Custody in
Hawaii’s elections for years now, and only recently under intense public pressure the
commissioners were able to get enough votes to conduct its first investigations after
nine years that uncovered a disturbing lack of chain of custody on Kauai. 

This prolonged avoidance of conducting investigations into viable and substantive evidence of
illegality in our elections that have been brought before the commission is something that has
been very uncomfortable for myself to watch over several years of attending these meetings by
zoom.

But now that these emails between Mr. Curtis and Mr. Nago have been foiad and
exposed, this prolonged avoidance makes much more sense.  As these emails shows a



blatant disregard by the chair for the duties of the election Commission and it also
shows a blatant attempt to collude and collaborate with the Chief Elections Officer to
explain away or suppress or delay lack of chain of custody evidence being brought to
light. 

This is completely unacceptable to the people of Hawaii who have entrusted their
elections to this Elections Commission Board.

As a community of concerned citizens we’ve been blowing the whistle of the lack of
chain of custody for a very long time now.  Here we find the direct emails between Mr.
Curtis and Mr. Nago where Mr. Curtis is clearly taking a concerned citizens complaint
to the very person that complaint is against and asking him to help him draft a
response to those concerns.   This shows that Mike Curtis has a complete lack of
understanding of his duty as a commissioner and especially as a Chair of this Elections
Commission.

Personally, I am beyond offended by this email.  I am outraged. 

Mr. Curtis thought so little of the public’s viable and substantive “chain of custody” and
other election concerns that he attempts to engage the very person that is in charge of
election law adherence HIS OPINION of how the commission should respond to the
complaints.

I am outraged and frankly I have had enough of this gaslighting of our election process
concerns. 

I and the good people of Hawaii do not have to put up with this continuous and
maddening lack of accountability, lack of transparency, lack of investigations, lack of
anything remotely resembling enforcement of the election laws of our state.

Due to this blatant disregard for the duties of the election commission and specifically
the duties of Chair of the election commission

I firmly ask that the Commission make a motion to terminate Mr.
Curtis’ position as an election commissioner effective immediately.  
The reasons for this action are clear:

1. Mr. Curtis clearly does not understand his role as Chair

2. Mr. Curtis does not respect or understand the duties of a commissioner.

3. Mr. Curtis obviously does not respect or understand the role of the Hawaii Election
commissions important duties as the final enforcement arm of Hawaii’s election
laws in their role of employing, investigating and firing if necessary the Chief
Election Officer.

During the meeting of August 27th, I would like to ask the Commission to make a motion,
and 2nd the motion, and then take a vote to remove Mike Curtis from the election
commission entirely and vote in a new Elections Commission Chair, one that does
understand his job and his responsibilities to the voters of Hawaii.

I would advise that person nominated to be Elections Chair to be Ralph Cushnie. 

In my opinion Ralph Cushnie is the Election Commissioner that has done the most for
the people of Hawaii in bringing back trust, transparency and accountability to our



Hawaiian election process, and he does so bravely in the face of extreme opposition by
several fellow commissioners and especially current Chair Mike Curtis.

I believe that this is the only remedy for this situation and if trust and faith in the election
commission is to continue it must continue on a firm foundation of accountability and
transparency. 

Given this serious documented evidence of collusion and collaboration between The
Hawaii Election Commission Chair and his “at will” employee Chief Elections
Officer Scott Nago we cannot have that firm foundation as long as Mr. Curtis is involved
in the commission in any way.

Sincerely,

Kuokoa ola Loihi
Long live Freedom,

AnnMarie Hamilton

Kauai Citizen and concerned voter

Note:  Please contact me by email if you need further information for this complaint and I will
respond promptly.



From: OIP <ojp@hawaii.gov> 

Sent: Thursday, April 17, 2025 1:21 PM 
To: OE.Elections <elections@hawaii.goy>; Nago, Scott T <scotu.nago@hawaii,goy> 

Subject: Re: Notice of Appeal from Denial of Access to General Records (U APPEAL 25-32) 

Dear Mr. Nago: 

An ached is a letter dated April 17. 2025 from the Office of Infonnation Practices regarding a 
request for assistance we received from Mr. Ralph C'ushnie. Also attached are the Appeal 
Procedures and Responsibilities of the parties, Mr. C'ushnie's request to OIP and his record request 
to DAGS-ELEC'. 

Please contact our office if you have difficulty opening the attachments. 

Thankyou. 

Office of Information Practices 
State ofHawai'i 
No. 1 Capitol District Building 
250 S. Hotel Street. #107 
Honolulu 96813 
Ph: (808) 
Facsimile: (808) 
Email: oip,:a;,hawaii ~ov 



From: OE.Elections.Commission 

Sent: Thursday, April 17, 2025 3:52 PM 

To: Ching, Jordan AK 

Cc: OE.Elections.Commission 

Subject: FW: Re: Notice of Appeal from Denial of Access to General Records (U APPEAL 25-32) 

Hi Jordan, 

We received the email below from OIP regarding Commissioner Cushnie. Please advise. 

Thank you, 

Raymund de Vega 

Voter Services 

State of Hawaii, Office of Elections 

(808) 453-VOTE (8683) 



From: Ralph Cushnie (EC} 
Sent: Sunday, May 4, 2025 8:51 AM 
To: OE.Elections.Commission 
Cc: Peter Young 
subject: [EXTERNAL] Request to Place Formal Complaint on Upcoming Agenda and Documentati 
of Chair's Obstruction 

Dear Chair Curtis, 

I am formally requesting that the attached complaint, submitted pursuant to HAR§§ 3-

170-6 and 3-170-7, be placed on the agenda for the next duly noticed meeting of the 

Hawai'i Elections Commission. 

The complaint concerns the Office of Elections' failure to provide statutorily required 

ballot chain of custody documentation, and the refusal to release Statewide Voter 

Registration System (SVRS) records that the Chief Election Officer has publicly claimed 

satisfy those requirements. As a Commissioner, I have a duty to ensure compliance with 

HAR 13-177-453 and HRS§ 16-43, and to uphold the integrity and transparency of 
Hawaj'i's elections. 

It is deeply troubling th at after over a year of repeated attempts to obtain this 

information through proper channels, including formal UIPA requests, the Office of 

Elections continues to withhold key records or claim they are inaccessible. Even more 

concerning is the obstruction by the Commission itself in addressing this issue. 



I must document for the record that at the December 2024 meeting, you unilaterally 

removed me from participation after I made a lawful motion to subpoena these records. 

This action was taken without a proper vote, without justification under Commission 

rules, and without any finding of misconduct. Your removal of a sitting Commissioner for 

merely exercising his right to introduce a motion is a serious act of procedural 

obstruction and an affront to the Commission's oversight duties under HRS§ 11-7.5. 

Your continued refusal to agendize legitimate concerns regarding election transparency 

-coupled with actions taken to silence or remove dissenting Commissioners­

constitutes a pattern of obstruction that is now being formally noted and documented. 

Please confirm in writing that this complaint will be placed on the next agenda, and that 

Commissioners will be given a fair and open opportunity to discuss and act upon it, as 

required under HAR§ 3-170 and the Sunshine Law. 

Sincerely, 

Ralph Cushnie 



To: 
Chair Mike Curtis 

• Hawai'i Elections Commission 
• 802 Lehua Avenue 

Pearl City, HI 96782 

Subject: Request for Commission· Vote to Issue Subpoenas for Chain of Custody 
Documentation 

Dear Chair Curtis, 

Pursuant to my duties as a Commissioner and in furtherance of the Commission's oversight 
responsibilities under HRS § 11-7 .5, I respectfully request that the Elections Commission 
agendize and hold a formal vote to issue subpoenas to the County Clerks of all four counties 
and the Office of Elections. These subpoenas should compel the production of complete 
chain of custody documentation for ballots received during the 2022 and 2024 elections, 
including but not limited to: 

1. All records showing the date, time, and quantity of ballot envelopes received at drop 
boxes and USPS facilities; 

2. Logs, forms, or transmissions documenting the intake and reconciliation of those 
ballots into the Statewide Voter Registration System (SVRS); 

3. Any daily or cumulative forms required under HAR §3-177-453{b) showing the 
"complete and current count" of ballots received; 

4. Documentation of inter-agency transfers between county election offices and the State 
counting center; 

5. Any observer reports verifying receipt and processing of ballots at any point prior to 
signature verification. 

This request follows a year and a half of unanswered public records inquiries and shifting 
explanations from both the Office of Elections and county officials regarding who maintains 
these legally required records. Most recently, Chief Election Officer Scott Nago claimed that 
chain of custody documentation is maintained electronically within the SVRS. Yet when 
records from the SVRS were formally requested, the Office of Elections refused to produce 



them, citing internal policy without legal basis. The counties assert they do not control or 
maintain SVRS records. 

Given this impasse, the Commission must act decisively. Subpoena authority exists 
precisely for circumstances where transparency is obstructed and statutory compliance is in 
question. The clear intent of HAR §3-177-453 is to safeguard the integrity of Hawaii's vote­
by-mail process by requiring accurate and timely ballot counts throughout custody-not 
merely during signature verification. 

If the Commission is to fulfill its constitutional and statutory duty to oversee the 
administration of elections and ensure public confidence in our electoral system, it must now 
exercise its authority to compel disclosure. 

I request that this item be added to the agenda for the next scheduled meeting and that the 
Commission vote to authorize issuance of subpoenas pursuant to its oversight function. 

Sincerely, 
Ralph S. Cushnie 
Commissioner, Hawai'i Elections Commission 



From: Ralph Cushnie (EC) 

Sent: Sunday, May 4, 2025 2:06 PM 

To: OE.Elections.Commission 

Subject: [EXTERNAL] Request to Amend March 19, 2025 Meeting Minutes - Statement During 1 _ 
IV, and Request to Agendize Status of Motions 

To: 

Chair Mike Curtis 

Hawai'i Elections Commission 

802 Lehua Avenue 

Pearl City, HI 96782 

Subject: Request to Amend March 19, 2025 Meeting Minutes - Statement During 

Item IV, and Request to Agendize Status of Motions 

Dear Chair Curtis, 

-·> 
s 

I respectfully request that the official minutes of the March 19, 2025 regular meeting of 

the Hawai'i Elections Commission be amended to accurately reflect a commitment 

made during the discussion of Agenda Item IV: Communications & Correspondence, 

Received for the Record. 

During that portion of the meeting, you stated that the status of motions would be 

placed on the next meeting agenda. This statement was made in response to concerns 

raised regarding unresolved motions and public transparency. To ensure the record is 

complete and accurate, I request that this commitment be added to the minutes. 

Additionally, I formally request that the status of all motions made by Commissioners 

during previous meetings be placed on the agenda for the Commission's next 



regular meeting, as was promised. This includes, but is not limited to, motions relating 

to subpoenas, investigations, and public complaints received under HAR §3-170. 

Proper tracking and follow-up of Commission motions is critical to the integrity of our 

proceedings and our ability to maintain public trust in the oversight process. 

Thank you for your attention to these matters. 

Sincerely, 

Ralph S. Cushnie 



From: Ralph Cushnie (EC) 

Sent: Monday, May S, 2025 9:58 AM 

Cc: Peter Young 

Subject: [EXTERNAL] Request to Place Complaint on Next Commission Agenda - Certification 
Without Required Documentation 

To: 

Chair Mike Curtis 

Hawai'i Elections Commission 

c/o Office of Elections 

802 Lehua Avenue 

Pearl City, Hawai'i 96782 

Subject: Request to Place Complaint on Next Commission Agenda - Certification 

Without Required Documentation 

Dear Chair Curtis, 

I respectfully request that the attached formal complaint, submitted pursuant to HAR§§ 

3-170-6 and 3-170-7, be placed on the agenda for the next meeting of the Hawai'i 
Elections Commission. 

The complaint outlines serious legal and procedural concerns surrounding the 

certification of the 2024 General Election results for the County of Maui. Chief Election 

Officer Scott Nago has acknowledged that critical chain of custody documentation was 

discovered to be missing only after the election had been certified. This admission 



indicates that the certification was executed without the complete reconciliation 

mandated by HRS§ 11-155. 

Moreover, the complaint raises the issue of Mr. Nago's reliance on data from the 

Statewide Voter Registration System (SVRS) in the absence of any public records or 

observer-verified logs to confirm its accuracy. This lack of transparency makes 

meaningful oversight impossible and falls short of statutory requirements for verifiable 

election documentation. 

Given the significance of these issues, I urge that the Commission agendize this matter 

for discussion and vote to initiate a formal investigation in accordance with its oversight 

authority under HRS§ 11-7.5 and HAR§ 3-170. 

Please confirm receipt of this request and that the complaint will be scheduled for 

discussion on the next meeting agenda. 

Sincerely, 

Ralph S. Cushnie 

Commissioner, Hawai'i Elections Commission 



To the Hawaii Election Commission, Office of Elections, and Jazelle (and/or staff 
responsible for communications with Commissioners): 

Please accept this email as my updated Formal Complaint. This is not a request for 
information. 
Please ensure that it is properly categorized for the next meeting agenda as a Formal 
Complaint, along with the previous formal complaint submitted on February 19, 2025 (and 
miscategorized during the March 19, 2025 meeting). 

Please also confirm receipt of this email and confirm that both complaints and their 
supporting documents have been forwarded to .all Hawaii Election Commissioners. 

Background 

On February 19, 2025, I submitted a formal complaint regarding election integrity 
concerns. After receiving no acknowledgement, I followed up on March 10, 2025, 
requesting three specific actions: 

I. Acknowledge receipt of my complaint. 
2. Forward my complaint to all Election Commissioners. 
3. Place my complaint on the agenda for the next Commission meeting, March 19, 2025. 

On March 11, 2025, Jazelle responded: 

"My apologies for not responding sooner. We received your email and it has 
been forwarded to Chair Curtis and added to the agenda for the upcoming 
meeting." 

Despite this assurance, at the March 19, 2025 meeting, my Formal Complaint was 
miscategorized under "VI. Records Request; Refer to OIP: February 19 - Hunt," and was 
not addressed. I raised this issue during my testimony and twice thereafter. Despite these 
interventions, Chair Curtis did not correct the error and address my Formal Complaint. 



Given the timing - in light of other similar county complaints - this mishandling raises 
concerns of deliberate avoidance, not mere administrative error. 

Summary of Issues 

1. Lack of Required Chain-of-Custody Records (HAR 3-177-453): 
On March 17, 2025, the Chief Election Officer acknowledged in a letter to the 
Commissioners that Maui County lacked chain-of-custody records for ballots, 
citing "human error." 

2. Obstruction of Public Access to Records: 
Multiple formal and informal requests (including UIPA requests) for these 
critical Maui County chain-of-custody records were ignored or stonewalled. 

3. Misleading Public Information: 
The Office of Elections' public assurance that ballots are securely processed 
with full observation and reconciliation is not supported by facts on the ground 
in Maui County. 

4. Improper Handling of Formal Complaints: 
Mislabeling my complaint as a "records request" prevented it from being 
addressed appropriately. 

Evidence 

• Supporting documentation of my requests for chain-of-custody records/documents 
submitted with the February 19, 2025 Formal Complaint. 

• March 17, 2025 Letter: 
The Chief Election Officer admitted missing documentation: "Some documents 
concerning the transfer of validated mail ballots [ ... ] may have been misplaced due to 
human error." Despite this, the Office of Elections proceeded with election 
certification without these legally required documents. 

• Office of Elections Website Statements: 

"How do you ensure election officials don't throw away ballots? 

"Ballots are always transported and processed in the presence of Official 
Observers. Official Observers serve as the "eyes and ears" of the public and 
monitor that election officials are maintaining the security and integrity of the 
elections. Additionally, the number of ballots received and counted are 
reconciled at the end of each day to ensure there are no discrepancies." 
Claims of secure handling and reconciliation processes are contradicted by the 
lack of chain-of-custody records/ documentation and independent observation 

• The mischaracterization/mishandling of my Formal Complaint during the recorded 
March 19, Election Commission Meeting. 

Requested Actions 



I respectfully request that the Hawaii Elections Commission: 

1. Formally acknowledge receipt of both Formal Complaints in the public record. 
2. Investigate the non-compliance of Maui County with HAR 3-177-453 and the failure 

to maintain mandatory ballot chain-of-custody records. 
3. Examine the mischaracterization of my formal complaint at the March 19, 2025 

meeting, as a request for information, and take corrective action to ensure the public's 
complaints are properly processed going forward. 

4. Require an official response from the Office of Elections regarding: 
o How Maui County reconciled ballots without complete chain-of-custody 

records. 
o How the Office of Elections can ensure the validity of the Maui County ballots 

without reconciliation of ballots. 
o What measures will be implemented to prevent such violations and failures in 

future elections. 
5. Reassess election certification protocols in light of missing legal documentation. 
6. Strengthen transparency by ensuring that election integrity complaints are publicly 

addressed and not misrepresented, and these records are accessible to the public. 

Conclusion 

How did Maui County reconcile the ballots received and counted at the end of each 
day without the numbers verified on the records from each drop box, each day? The 
Office of Elections must answer this question 

Confidence in Hawaii elections is eroding because critical transparency measures are not 
being upheld. Public servants have a duty to follow both the letter and the spirit of election 
law. When chain-of-custody records are missing and public complaints are 
mischaracterized, public trust collapses. I urge the Commission to take immediate action to 
restore integrity, transparency, and accountability in our electoral process. 

Respectfully, 
Jennifer Hunt 



From: 
To: 
Cc: 
Subject: 
Date: 

Aloha Scott, 

MKhael Curtis 
Nago. ScottT 
Ojng. Jordan AK; de Vega, Raymund C: Michael Curtis 
[EXTERNAL] Cl1ain d OJ5lDdy questions 
Tuesday, May 6, 2025 9:11:20 AM 

I need to address this issue at a Commission Meeting. What do you think is 
appropriate? 

Following is my knee jerk reaction to Ms. Hall's Complaint, as well as several 
others. 

"h1 Person Precinct Voting Chain of Custody was clearly in place in transport from 
Clerks' Offices to Precinct Polling Places and back to Clerk/Election Offices and 
Counting Centers. Under control were Unvoted Ballots to Precincts, Voted & 
Unvoted Ballots to Clerks' Office & County Counting Centers. 

TI1e United States Postal Service "secm·ely" controls Delivery ofUnvoted Ballots 
and Renun of Voted Ballots. 

Chain of Custody concen1s will be addressed by Scott Nago, and each of the 
Cow1ty Clerks. as appropriate. 11 

The PIGffask Force could be used with a Commissioner from each island, but I 
don't think appropriate here. Requesting an AG analysis and response could be 
much more direct and definitive. 

Please advise. 

Aloha, 
mike 

Michael Curtis 



From: 
To: 
Cc: 
SUbject: 
Date: 

Vega. Raymund C 
RE: [EXTERNAL] Chain of Custody questions 
Tuesday, May 6, 20251:49:00 PM 

Dear Chair Curtis, 

While we concur with your understanding of the process and how various election materials 

are handled and by whom, our office will continue to refer to the documents and materials 

that we have already compiled as well as the previous litigation. However, we are not sure 

what additional actions and details would be appropriate or settle the matter of chain of 

custody for past elections. Let me know if you have any questions. 

Thanks, 

Scott 



From: 
To: 
Subject: 
Date: 

Re: fW: [EXffRNAL) Formal Carnplan to the Hawaii Election Convnission and Office c# Elections 
Tuesday, May 6, 2025 9!14:28 AM 

Aloha Ms. Hunt, 

Thank you for your persistence. Chain of Custody has a1ise11 as a major issue since 
converting to an all Mail In Ballot Election Syste111 in 2020. 

In Person Precinct Voting Chain of Custody was clearly in place in transpo11 from 
Clerks' Offices to Precinct Polling Places and back to Clerk/Election Offices and 
Counting Centers. Under control were Unvoted Ballots to Precincts, Voted & 
Unvoted Ballots to Clerks' Office & County Counting Centers. 

The United States Postal Service "securely" controls Delivery of Unvoted Ballots 
and Return of Voted Ballots. 

Chain of Custody coucenis will be addressed in a near future Hawaii Election 
Commission meeting. with your Complaint included in that Agenda item. 

Aloha, 
mike 

:Michael Curtis 

of th..._. rlliHrw-S 



From: 
To: 
Cc: 
Subject: 
Date: 

Aloha Ralph. 

Mjc:hael Cums (0\ 
Laura & Ralph Cushnie 
OE. Electjons.Comm1SS10n 
[EXTERNAL] Re: FW: Request for Commission Vote to Issue Subpoenas fur 0ai of Cusmdy llocumm:ation 
Tuesday, May 6, 2025 9:18:13 AM 

Thank you for your persistence. Chain of Custody has arisen as a major issue since 
converting to an all Mail In Ballot Election System in 2020. 

In Person Precinct Voting Chain of Custody was clearly in place in transport from 
Clerks' Offices to Precinct Polling Places and back to Clerk/Election Offices and 
Counting Centers. Under control were Unvoted Ballots to Precincts. Voted & 
Unvoted Ballots to Clerks' Office & Collllty Counting Centers. 

The United States Postal Se1vice "securely,. controls Delivery of Unvoted Ballots 
and Return of Voted Ballots. 

Chain of Custody concerns will be addressed in a near future Hawaii Election 
Commission meeting, with your Co111plaint included in that Agenda item. 

Aloha, 
mike 

Michael Curtis 

Hi Chair Curtis. 

.Elections.Commission 
wrote: 

Please see email from Commissioner Cushnie below. 

thank you. 

Voter Seivices 



On Tue, May 13, 2025 at 4:47 PM Chini_l, Jordan AK 

Hi Chair C'lutis. 

Thank you. 

Jordan A. K. Ching 

Deputy Attorney General 

Commerce and Economic Development Division 

Department of the Attorney General (Ka 'Oihana o ka Loio Kuhina) 

425 Queen Street 

Honolulu, Hawaii 96813 

Office: (808)­

Email: 

wrote: 

Confidentiality Notice: This email message (and any attachments) is for the sole use of the 
intended recipient(s). It may contain confidential and/or privileged information. It might also be 
protected from disclosure under the Hawai'i Uniform Information Practices Act (UIPA) or other 
laws or regulations. Any review, use, disclosure, or distribution by unintended recipients is 
prohibited. If you are not the intended recipient, please contact the sender immediately in a 
separate e-mail and destroy the original message and any copies. 



From: Michael Curtis 

Sent: Wednesday, May 14, 2025 6:43 AM 

To: Ching, Jordan AK 

Michael Curtis 

Subject: [EXTERNAL] Re: Re: Notice of Appeal from Denial of Access to General Records (U APPEAL 

25-32) 

Aloha Jordan, 

Aloha, 

mike 

Michael Curtis 

from Polpu Beach, the Leading Edge of the Known Universe• 



From: Ching, Jordan AK 
Sent: Wednesday, May 14, 2025 8:58 AM 

To: 
Cc: OE.Elections.Commission 
Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL] Re: Re: Notice of Appeal from Denial of Access to General Records {U 

APPEAL 25-32) 

Just as an FYI to everyone, I will be out of office from tomorrow May 15 to May 27, and may not 
be able to respond to emails during that time. If there is anything that requires immediate 

attention, please call our general line at 

Thank you again everyone, 

Jordan A. K. Ching 
Deputy Attorney General 
Commerce and Economic Development Division 
Department of the Attorney General (Ka 'Oihana o ka Loio Kuhina) 
425 Queen Street 
Honolulu, Hawaii 96813 
Office: 808 
Email: 

Confidentiality Notice: This email message (and any attachments) is for the sole use of the 

intended recipient(s). It may contain confidential and/or privileged information. It might also 

be protected from disclosure under the Hawai'i Uniform Information Practices Act (UIPA) or 

other laws or regulations. Any review, use, disclosure, or distribution by unintended recipients 

is prohibited. If you are not the intended recipient, please contact the sender immediately in a 

separate e•mail and destroy the original message and any copies. 



From: 
To: 
Cc: 
SUbJec::t: 
Date: 
Attachments: 

Hi Jordan, 

-
Thank you, 

OE.Elections.Commission 
Cbing Jordan AK; 
OE. Elections.Commission 
RE: [EXTERNAL] Re: Re: Notice of Appeal from Denlal of Access to General Records (U APPEAL 25·32) 
'lllldnesday, May 14, 2025 ~:00:08 AM 
Curtis OE communications· January 202s,pdf 

Raymund de Vega 
Voter Services 

State of Hawaii, Office of Elections 

(808} 453-VOTE (8683} 

Office: 
Email: 

Confidentiality Notice: This email message (and any attachments) is for the sole use of the 

intended recipient(s). It may contain confidential and/or privileged information. It might also 

be protected from disclosure under the Hawai'i Uniform Information Practices Act (UIPA) or 

other laws or regulations. Any review, use, disclosure, or distribution by unintended recipients 

is prohibited. If you are not the intended recipient, please contact the sender immediately in a 

separate e-mail and destroy the original message and any copies. 



From: 
To: 
Subject: 
Date: 

Hi Jordan, 

-
Thank you, 

OE.Elections.Commission 
OE Elections,Commissjon: Cbiog Jordan AK: 
RE: [EXTERNAL] Re: Re: Notice of Appeal from Denial of Access to General Records (U APPEAL 25-32) 

'Nettl....dar, ~ 14, 2025 11:0l:26 AM 

Raymund de Vega 
Voter Services 

State of Hawaii, Office of Elections 

(808) 453-VOTE (8683) 



From: Ching, Jordan AK 
Sent: Wednesday, May 14, 2025 11:11 AM 

To: OE.Elections.Commission 

Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL] Re: Re: Notice of Appeal from Denial of Access to General Records (U 
APPEAL 25-32) 

Thank you! 



From: 
To: 
Subject: 
Date: 

-
Thanks, 

Ray 

OE.Elections.Commission 
Chjng, Jordan AK: OE,Electjons,commission; 
RE: [EXTERNAL] Re: Re: Notice of Appeal from Denial of Access to General Records (U APPEAL 25-32) 
Wednesday, May 14, 2025 11:24:10 AM 



From: 
To: 
Cc: 
Subject: 
Date: 
Attachments: 

OE.Electiqns.Commjssiqn 
Michael Cums: Michael C Curtis. REALTOR: Ching, Jordan AK 
OE. Elections.Commission 
Records Requests - Communications between Chair Curtis and OE 
Friday, May 30, »as 3,16.:02 PM 

~ 

County council race. #1422,msg 
RE EXTERNAL Records Request for Office of Elections All communications between Mike Curtis and the office of 
ejections for the month of March 2025 #1375.msq 
RE EXTERNAL Records Request for Office of Elections AH communications between Mike Curtis and the office of 
elections for the month of December 2021 #1378.msg 
RE EXTERNAL Records Request for Office of Elections All communications between Mike Curtis and the office of 
elections for the month of October 2021 #1380.msg 
RE EXTERNAL Records Request for Office of Elections How many peoofe have signed up for automatic 
notifications of Elections Commissions meetings. #1329,msg 
RE EXTERNAL Records Request for office of Elections AH communications between Mike Curtis and the office of 
ejections for the month of October 2024 #1380.msg 
RE EXTERNAL Records Request for Office of Elections AH communications between Mike Curtis and the office ot 
ejections for the month of December 2024 #1378.msg 
RE EXTERNAL Records Request for Office of Elections AU communications between Mike Curtis and the office of 
elections for the month of March 2025 #1375,msg 
RE EXTERNAL Records Reouest for Office of Elections All communications between Mike Curtis and the office of 
elecuons for the month pf March 2025 #1375 msg 
RE EXTERNAL Records Request for Office pf Elections AH communications between Mike Curtis and the office of 
ejections for the month of October 2021 #1380.msg 
RE EXTERNAL Records Request for Office of Elections AH communjcatjons between Mjke Curtis and the office of 
elections for the month pf December 2021 #1378,msg 
UIPA 403 Forbidden Message - 1375 JPG 
UIPA 403 Forbidden Message - 1378.JPG 
UIPA 403 Forbidden Message - 1380.JPG 

Chair Curtis &Jordan, 

• 

• 

• 

0 

0 

a 



• 

• 

Thank you, 

Raymund de Vega 
Voter Services 

State of Hawaii, Office of Elections 

(808) 453-VOTE (8683) 



From: 
To: 
Subject: 
Date: 

Hi Raymund, 

Ching, Jordan AK 

OE Elections commissjon: MjchaeJ Cums: Michael c cums. REALTOR 
RE: Records Requests - Communications between Chair Curtis and OE 
Friday, May 30, 2025 4:14:13 PM 

Have a great weekend. 

Jordan A. K. Ching 
Deputy Attorney General 
Commerce and Economic Development Division 
Department of the Attorney General (Ka •oihana o ka Loio Kuhina) 
425 Queen Street 
Honolulu, Hawaii 96813 
Office: 808 
Email: 

Confidentiality Notice: This email message {and any attachments) is for the sole use of the 

intended recipient(s). It may contain confidential and/or privileged information. It might also 

be protected from disclosure under the Hawai'i Uniform Information Practices Act (UIPA) or 

other laws or regulations. Any review, use, disclosure, or distribution by unintended recipients 

is prohibited. If you are not the intended recipient, please contact the sender immediately in a 

separate e-mail and destroy the original message and any copies. 



From:
To: OE.Elections.Commission
Subject: [EXTERNAL] #2 Formal Complaint against Mike Curtis, Election Commission Chair
Date: Friday, August 22, 2025 10:02:25 AM

Hello Mr. Curtis:

THIS IS A COMPLAINT AGAINST MIKE CURTIS.  PLEASE FORWARD THIS TO ALL
COMMISSIONERS AND ADD IT TO THE AGENDA.

Please confirm it is received.

I am filing a 2nd formal complaint against you for the following:

1. As Chair and the receiver of election complaints you are attempting to ignore my first
complaint against you for malfeasance of fiduciary duty filed two days ago.  You have still
not confirmed it was received as was requested in the complaint.

My complaint was received as I confirmed it was by calling the Elections Office.  I was
told it was sent to you directly. 

And 2) it was not added to the agenda of the next election commission meeting.

I have also filed a complaint with the Hawaii State Ethics Commission about your conduct
regarding complaints against you and how you are censoring them from the other election
commissioners.

I look forward to testifying at the meeting about this situation regarding your continued
malfeasance and collusion behaviors as the acting chair.

Sincerely,

 

AnnMarie Hamilton

 



From: ANNMARIE HAMILTON
To: OE.Elections.Commission; annmariehamilton10@gmail.com
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Formal Complaint against Mike Curtis, Election Commission Chair
Date: Wednesday, September 24, 2025 9:47:14 AM

Aloha,

Let me rephrase my response:  Thank you for confirming receipt of my complaint, but I
must respectfully object to the way it is being processed.

Under HRS Chapter 92 (Sunshine Law), the Elections Commission is required to conduct
its business “as openly as possible” (HRS §92-1). Complaints submitted under HAR §3-
170 are matters before the Commission, not the Office of Elections, and they must be
made available to the public and to all commissioners in a timely and transparent
manner.

Forwarding my complaint exclusively to the Office of Elections for a response, while
withholding it from the Commission and the public until such time as “the Chair
determines,” violates the spirit and the letter of Chapter 92. The Sunshine Law requires
that:

All commissioners must have equal access to correspondence, complaints, and
materials before the body.

The public has the right to see complaints and responses docketed and discussed
as part of the Commission’s official record.

The Chair may not act as gatekeeper to suppress or delay items of Commission
business.

Accordingly, the Chair of the Elections Commission — not the Office of Elections —
must acknowledge and answer this complaint. The Office of Elections is the subject of
Commission oversight, not the arbiter of complaints against the Commission itself.

I therefore request that:

1. My complaint (ECC-25-002) be distributed immediately to all commissioners and
posted with the Commission’s meeting materials for public review.

2. The Chair, as the presiding officer, issue the formal response on behalf of the
Commission.

3. This item be docketed for the next scheduled Commission meeting, without delay
or suppression, in compliance with the Sunshine Law.

Please confirm that these Sunshine Law obligations will be met.

• 

• 

• 

mailto:annmarie@surfkauairealestate.com
mailto:elections.commission@hawaii.gov
mailto:annmariehamilton10@gmail.com


Sincerely,

AnnMarie Hamilton

 

From: OE.Elections.Commission <elections.commission@hawaii.gov> 
Sent: Tuesday, September 23, 2025 4:15 PM
To: annmariehamilton10@gmail.com; OE.Elections.Commission
<elections.commission@hawaii.gov>
Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL] Formal Complaint against Mike Curtis, Election Commission Chair
 

Aloha,
 
This is to confirm receipt of your formal complaint.  This, and your attached subsequent email,
have been assigned the following number: ECC-25-001.  It has been forwarded to the Office of
Elections to provide it the opportunity to respond.  It will appear on an Elections Commission
meeting agenda when time allows as determined by the Chair.
 
Thank you,
 
Office of Elections
(808) 453-VOTE (8683)
elections@hawaii.gov
 
From: annmariehamilton10@gmail.com <annmariehamilton10@gmail.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, August 20, 2025 7:47 AM
To: OE.Elections.Commission <elections.commission@hawaii.gov>
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Formal Complaint against Mike Curtis, Election Commission Chair
 

To the Hawaii Election Commission, Office of elections, and staff that is responsible for
communications with Commissioners:

Please accept this email as my Formal Complaint.  This is not a request for information. 
Please ensure that it is properly categorized for the next meeting Agenda (which may be
August 27th) as a Formal Complaint.

Please confirm receipt of this email complaint and confirm that this complaint and the
supporting documentation (in its entirety which consists of copies of 20 relevant emails of 27
pages at 450Kb) that I address in my complaint have been forwarded to ALL HAWAII
ELECTION COMMISSIONERS.

My name is AnnMarie Hamilton and I’m a concerned Hawaiian citizen from Kauai
County.  This is my complaint with the commission against Mike Curtis for malfeasance
and dereliction of fiduciary duty as the Chair of the Elections Commission. 

These are the foundational facts of my complaint:

I have attached in this complaint 20 emails dated April 17, 2025 through May 30, 2025

mailto:elections@hawaii.gov
mailto:annmariehamilton10@gmail.com
mailto:annmariehamilton10@gmail.com
mailto:elections.commission@hawaii.gov


regarding correspondence regarding direct Election Commission business. 

These emails were obtained by Mr. Cushnie through a Freedom Of Information act aka
FOIA from the Office of Information Practices which is outline in email 1.

I have put these emails in date order and have numbered them for easy viewing and
reference.

I would like to draw your attention to emails from Ralph Cushnie that are numbered 3, 4,
5, and 6.  These are all requests by Mr. Cushnie for information and investigations
regarding various serious anomalies and inconsistencies in our electoral process.

 I would also like to refer you to email 7 from Jennifer Hunt who also filed a complaint for
serious anomalies and inconsistencies in our electoral process. 

And finally I would like to refer you to email 8 Title “Chain of Custody Questions” from
Mike Curtis, acting Elections Commission Chair to Scott Nago, acting Chief Elections
Officer. 

In this email #8 you will read that Mr. Curtis asks Mr. Nago
directly about how to respond to Mr. Cushnie’s and Ms. Hunt’s
various election process concerns against Mr. Nago. 

This #8 email is the foundational basis for my complaint against
Mr. Curtis in his capacity as an Elections Commissioner.
Referencing the email: Mr. Curtis asks Mr. Nago “What do you think is appropriate?”
regarding the Election Commission response to the many complaints the commission
has received from Mr. Cushnie and Ms. Hunt.

Mike Curtis then lists several “knee jerk reactions” which I assume he means possible
responses to their concerns. 

Mike Curtis goes on to state in the email to Scott Nago “a PIG/Task force could be used

with a commissioner from each island but I don’t think appropriate
here.”

Mike Curtis continues to address Mr. Scott Nago by stating “Requesting an AG
(Attorney General) analysis and response could be much more direct and
definitive”. 

And finally his last sentence to Mr. Nago states “Please advise”.
I would like to point out what is extremely obvious by this written email exchange
between Mr. Nago and Mr. Curtis the following:

There is COLLABERATION and COLLUSION involved
between the acting chair of the Elections Commission
which is the entity IN CHARGE of investigating election
complaints against Mr. Nago, who is the OBJECT of the
complaint.



This is fiduciary malfeasance and a direct violation of
the sworn fiduciary duty of the Election Commission by
the ACTING Election Commission Chair.
Further, I believe this direct communication between Mr. Curtis, acting Chair, and Mr.
Nago, CEO, is an attempt to thwart  or downplay the Hawaiian Public’s concern
about evidence that Hawaii is fraudulently certifying elections under Mr. Nago
WITHOUT the proper chain of custody documentation as well as not adhering to
many other election laws.

The duties of the Election Commission are simple and straightforward and outlined in
HRS _
 §11-7.5  Duties of the elections commission.  The duties of the elections
commission are to:

     (1)  Hold public hearings;

     (2)  Investigate and hold hearings for receiving evidence of any
violations and complaints;

     (3)  Adopt rules pursuant to chapter 91;

     (4)  Employ, without regard to chapter 76, a full-time chief election officer,
pursuant to section 11-1.6;

     (5)  Conduct a performance evaluation of the chief election officer within two
months after the date a general election is certified;

     (6)  Hold a public hearing on the performance of the chief election officer and
consider the information gathered at the hearing in deliberations on
the chief election officer's reappointment; and

     (7)  Advise the chief election officer on matters relating to elections. [L 2004,
c 57, pt of §6; am L 2015, c 173, §2]

 
Mr. Curtis has erroneously and repeatedly misinformed the public about what the actual
job of the Hawaii Elections Commission is as he has repeatedly tells the public in these
election meetings that “our job as commissioners is “advisory” only”. 

In my opinion that is factually not correct and is an attempt at
gaslighting, deflecting, avoiding, and delaying investigations into
election laws not being followed by Mr. Nago who is an “at will”
employee of the Elections Commission.

“At will” employee in the state of Hawaii, means he can be terminated for any reason, or
no reason AT ANY TIME. 



The Hawaii State Election Commission has hiring and also firing authority over an
employee which also infers the Hawaii Election Commission also has vast investigative
authority over the Chief Election Officer in order to confirm the possible need for
termination of that employee.

Further, the  State of Hawaii Elections Commission has an obligation and fiduciary
duty to investigate, question, subpoena if necessary, force compliance, force
adherence to laws. and come to valid conclusions about the job the Chief Elections
Officer is doing running the Hawaii state elections AND if that employee is not following
his job duties or the law then you have a fiduciary duty to fire him and hire someone that
can do the job properly according to the Hawaii state election laws. 

The commissions job is not to hire someone  to run Hawaii’s elections that does not
do the job according to election law and then reward that person by continuing to
extend his employment, giving him pay raises, and doing zero investigations as is
being done with Mr. Nago. 

And doing this all over the very loud objections of the public and mounting
overwhelming evidence against Mr. Nago.

And the job of the Hawaii State Election Commission Chair certainly does not

include asking the Chief Elections Officer how the commission
should respond to a citizen’s or commissioner’s complaint against him as is
shown in these emails. 

These emails in my opinion are a smoking gun of evidence of malfeasance and
breaking fiduciary duty of the Election Commission as guardian of our state
Elections.

The Hawaii State Elections Commission is the one and ONLY state entity that is
empowered to investigate and make direct changes to our Chief Elections Officer in
order to facilitate and ensure the voting public’s trust in their state elections. 

It is not the state, county or even federal judges job to enforce election laws.  It is not we
the people’s job.  It is not the county and state politician’s job to enforce election laws.

 IT IS, however, the sole role of the Hawaii Election Commission to be the final judge and
jury and enforcement arm of Hawaii’s election laws through their investigative powers
and their supervisory employment of the State’s Chief Elections Officer.

That enforcement arm of election integrity begins and ends with the hiring, firing and
investigating and holding accountable the Chief elections officer.

I feel that this correspondence shows that Mr. Curtis sought Mr. Nago’s input in the
commission’s response to several different election process complaints in order to
possibly minimize and/or dismiss credible and legitimate concerns that were filed with
the commission regarding Mr. Nago’s performance as our Chief Elections Officer.

As we are all aware, Mr. Curtis as an Election Commissioner is tasked with investigating
complaints and concerns with Mr. Nago’s supervision and oversite of Hawaii’s state
elections.

 In this exchange Mr. Curtis is clearly asking Mr. Nago (the very person he is tasked with
hiring, supervising, investigating and possibly firing) how Mr. Curtis, the Election



Commission Chair should respond to Mr. Cushnie’s and Ms. Hunt’s complaints.

This blatant disregard for the important fiduciary duties of the Election Commission
Chair to the public and his fellow commissioners is extremely telling and troubling. 

Following election laws to the letter which includes proper documentation of Chain of
custody of ballots is the bedrock which all other elections laws stand on. 

Without documented Chain of Custody no election that can be certified.  

An election conducted without documented chain of custody is nothing more than a
“(s)election” by whomever is perpetrating and supporting the lack of adherence to
proper chain of custody and other election laws.

Further, in my opinion a critical component of facilitating election fraud through a lack of
chain of custody and other ballot security lapses is the accompanying deflection,
avoidance, and outright gaslighting perpetuated on the Hawaiian citizenry and
anyone that dares tries to bring this criminality to light. 

Myself and many others have been testifying about the lack of Chain of Custody in
Hawaii’s elections for years now, and only recently under intense public pressure the
commissioners were able to get enough votes to conduct its first investigations after
nine years that uncovered a disturbing lack of chain of custody on Kauai. 

This prolonged avoidance of conducting investigations into viable and substantive evidence of
illegality in our elections that have been brought before the commission is something that has
been very uncomfortable for myself to watch over several years of attending these meetings by
zoom.

But now that these emails between Mr. Curtis and Mr. Nago have been foiad and
exposed, this prolonged avoidance makes much more sense.  As these emails shows a
blatant disregard by the chair for the duties of the election Commission and it also
shows a blatant attempt to collude and collaborate with the Chief Elections Officer to
explain away or suppress or delay lack of chain of custody evidence being brought to
light. 

This is completely unacceptable to the people of Hawaii who have entrusted their
elections to this Elections Commission Board.

As a community of concerned citizens we’ve been blowing the whistle of the lack of
chain of custody for a very long time now.  Here we find the direct emails between Mr.
Curtis and Mr. Nago where Mr. Curtis is clearly taking a concerned citizens complaint
to the very person that complaint is against and asking him to help him draft a
response to those concerns.   This shows that Mike Curtis has a complete lack of
understanding of his duty as a commissioner and especially as a Chair of this Elections
Commission.

Personally, I am beyond offended by this email.  I am outraged. 

Mr. Curtis thought so little of the public’s viable and substantive “chain of custody” and
other election concerns that he attempts to engage the very person that is in charge of
election law adherence HIS OPINION of how the commission should respond to the
complaints.

I am outraged and frankly I have had enough of this gaslighting of our election process
concerns. 



I and the good people of Hawaii do not have to put up with this continuous and
maddening lack of accountability, lack of transparency, lack of investigations, lack of
anything remotely resembling enforcement of the election laws of our state.

Due to this blatant disregard for the duties of the election commission and specifically
the duties of Chair of the election commission

I firmly ask that the Commission make a motion to terminate Mr.
Curtis’ position as an election commissioner effective immediately.  
The reasons for this action are clear:

1. Mr. Curtis clearly does not understand his role as Chair

2. Mr. Curtis does not respect or understand the duties of a commissioner.

3. Mr. Curtis obviously does not respect or understand the role of the Hawaii Election
commissions important duties as the final enforcement arm of Hawaii’s election
laws in their role of employing, investigating and firing if necessary the Chief
Election Officer.

During the meeting of August 27th, I would like to ask the Commission to make a motion,
and 2nd the motion, and then take a vote to remove Mike Curtis from the election
commission entirely and vote in a new Elections Commission Chair, one that does
understand his job and his responsibilities to the voters of Hawaii.

I would advise that person nominated to be Elections Chair to be Ralph Cushnie. 

In my opinion Ralph Cushnie is the Election Commissioner that has done the most for
the people of Hawaii in bringing back trust, transparency and accountability to our
Hawaiian election process, and he does so bravely in the face of extreme opposition by
several fellow commissioners and especially current Chair Mike Curtis.

I believe that this is the only remedy for this situation and if trust and faith in the election
commission is to continue it must continue on a firm foundation of accountability and
transparency. 

Given this serious documented evidence of collusion and collaboration between The
Hawaii Election Commission Chair and his “at will” employee Chief Elections
Officer Scott Nago we cannot have that firm foundation as long as Mr. Curtis is involved
in the commission in any way.

Sincerely,

Kuokoa ola Loihi
Long live Freedom,

AnnMarie Hamilton

Kauai Citizen and concerned voter

Note:  Please contact me by email if you need further information for this complaint and I will
respond promptly.

 

 





STATE OF HAWAII
OFFICE OF ELECTIONS

802 LEHUA AVENUE

PEARL CITY, HAWAII 96782

elections.hawaii.gov

SCOTT T. NAGO
CHIEF ELECTION OFFICER

September 30, 2025

VIA EMAIL

Elections Commissioner Ralph Cushnie

RE: ECC-25-002

Dear Commissioner Cushnie,

This is in response to your correspondence dated September 22, 2025, which
appears to assert malfeasance by the Elections Commission Chair for failure to submit
the biennial report to the Legislature.

To the extent your correspondence could be considered a complaint regarding an 
administrative act of the Office of Elections, and you are seeking something within the 
jurisdiction of the Elections Commission, the administrative rules of the Elections 
Commission provide our office with an opportunity to respond. HAR §§ 3-170-6 & 3-170-
8.

Pursuant to HRS § 11-8.5, “[t]he elections commission shall develop and 
implement and elections review program” and submit a biennial evaluation to the 
Legislature “not less than twenty days prior to the convening of each regular session 
held in odd-numbered years.” As the 2025 legislative session convened on January 15, 
2025, the twentieth day prior to it was December 26, 2024.

Your correspondence appears to assert that Chair Curtis should be held 
responsible for the Elections Commission having not filed a biennial evaluation to the 
Legislature. However, we find that your assertion does not account for the various 
factors related to the conduct of boards and commission meetings and it is not clear 
how your correspondence distinguishes between the responsibility of Chair Curtis and 



Commissioner Ralph Cushnie
September 30, 2025
Page 2
 
 
the Elections Commission as a whole. Specifically, HRS § 11-7 provides, in part, that 
“[t]he [E]lections [C]ommission shall act by majority vote of its membership.”

Additionally, it is not clear in your correspondence how the Office of Elections is 
responsible for this alleged violation.

Finally, we would note, Elections Commission complaints “shall be made in 
writing and must be filed within 90 days from the date of the incident or occurrence.”
HAR§ 3-170-7. Specifically, it has been more than 90 days since the date a biennial 
evaluation to the Legislature was due, (i.e., December 26, 2024). 

This concludes our response to your complaint. Consistent with HAR § 3-
170-8, a copy of this response is being forwarded to the Elections Commission.

Very truly yours,
       
       
       
       

SCOTT T. NAGO 
Chief Election Officer 

 
STN:AS:nn 
OE-25-118 

Enclosure 

cc: Elections Commission 
 
 
 



From: Ralph Cushnie (EC)
To: OE.Elections.Commission
Cc: OIP
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Formal Complaint under HAR §3-170, Subchapter 2 – Malfeasance by Chair for Failure to Submit

Biennial Report to Legislature
Date: Monday, September 22, 2025 8:50:08 AM
Attachments: 2021-02-10-Supplemental-Biennial-Report.pdf

Dear Commissioners,
Pursuant to Hawaiʻi Administrative Rules (HAR) §3-170, Subchapter 2, I hereby file this
formal complaint regarding the Elections Commission Chair’s failure to fulfill a statutory
obligation under HRS §11-8.5.

I. LEGAL REQUIREMENT
HRS §11-8.5 requires the Elections Commission to:
“Submit the findings and recommendations from the biennial evaluation to the
legislature, not less than twenty days prior to the convening of each regular session held
in odd-numbered years.”
The Commission has historically issued Biennial Reports to the Legislature, including:

December 22, 2022 – Biennial Report
February 10, 2021 – Supplemental Biennial Report
January 21, 2021 – Biennial Report
December 26, 2018 – Biennial Report
December 28, 2016 – Biennial Report

No such report was submitted in 2025, despite the clear statutory mandate.

II. NATURE OF THE VIOLATION
By failing to submit the required biennial report, the Chair has:

1. Neglected a direct statutory duty under HRS §11-8.5(5).
2. Denied the Legislature critical findings and recommendations about the

performance of elections.
3. Undermined transparency, accountability, and the credibility of the Commission.

III. REQUIREMENT TO INCLUDE P.I.G. REPORTS
On August 27, 2025, the Commission received the Final Permitted Interaction Group
(P.I.G.) Report on Chain of Custody and 2024 Election Irregularities. This report
concludes that Hawaiʻi’s elections results based on electronic records are unverifiable.
Other issues include missing chain-of-custody records, unaccounted ballot
discrepancies, and suppression of complaints.
Because HRS §11-8.5 requires the Commission to review the operation and
performance of elections and make recommendations, the biennial report must include

ECC-25-002

• 
• 
• 
• 
• 



the P.I.G. report in full or by reference. The Chair’s refusal or failure to ensure its
inclusion constitutes suppression of material findings that the Legislature is entitled to
receive.

IV. FAILURE TO ADDRESS PRIOR REPORTS
In addition, the Legislature and the Commission have failed to address the February 10,
2021 Supplemental Biennial Report submitted by then-Chair F.M. Scotty Anderson,
which specifically recommended:

1. “Verifiable chain of custody of ballots at every stage of transportation and
handling;” and

2. “Ensure ballot tracking is in place for the 2022 Elections in coordination with the
United States Postal Service.”

Neither the Legislature nor the Commission has acted on these critical
recommendations, despite their clear relevance to the chain-of-custody failures and
ballot discrepancies documented in the 2024 General Election.

V. GROUNDS FOR MALFEASANCE
The Chair’s failure to submit the 2025 biennial report, and to ensure it included both the
2025 P.I.G. findings and prior Commission recommendations, constitutes malfeasance
in office. This is a willful neglect of duty in direct violation of law.

VI. RELIEF REQUESTED
I respectfully request that the Elections Commission, under HAR §3-170, Subchapter 2:

1. Accept and docket this complaint as a formal matter before the Commission.
2. Direct immediate preparation and submission of the overdue 2025 Biennial Report

to the Legislature.
3. Ensure that the Final P.I.G. Report dated August 27, 2025, and the February 10,

2021 Supplemental Biennial Report are included in the report by reference or in
full.

4. Formally censure the Chair for violating HRS §11-8.5.
5. Consider removal or replacement of the Chair if compliance is not immediately

achieved.
The Commission’s credibility depends on strict adherence to statute and rule. Failure to
submit the biennial report not only violates the law but obstructs the Legislature’s ability
to exercise oversight of elections in Hawaiʻi.

Sincerely,
Ralph Cushnie



malfeasance
wrongdoing or misconduct especially by a public official
 



 

 

STATE OF HAWAII 

ELECTIONS COMMISSION 

 
February 10, 2021 

 
 
 

 
The Honorable Ronald D. Kouchi  The Honorable Scott Saiki 

President and Members Speaker and Members of the 
of the Senate House of Representatives 

Thirty First State Legislature Thirty First State Legislature 
State Capitol, Room 409 State Capitol, Room 431 
Honolulu, Hawaii 96813  Honolulu, Hawaii 96813 
 
 
Dear President Kouchi, Speaker Saiki, and Members of the Legislature: 
 

For your information and consideration, I am transmitting a supplemental report 
to the “Elections Commission’s Biennial Evaluation of Elections Operation,” in 
accordance with Hawaii Revised Statutes §11-8.5. 

 
Should you have any questions, please contact me at (808) 453-VOTE (8683). 
 
      Sincerely, 

       
      F.M. SCOTTY ANDERSON 
      Elections Commission Chair 

 
SA:jk 
EC-21-002a 

 
Enclosure 
 
c: Legislative Reference Bureau Library 
 Hawaii State Public Library System- Publications Distribution Center 
 UH Manoa Hamilton Library- Serials Department 
 Governor’s Office 
 Lieutenant Governor’s Office 
 Legislative Auditor 
 Department of Budget and Finance 

F.M. SCOTTY ANDERSON 

ELECTIONS COMMISSION CHAIR 

~ ............ 



STATE OF HAWAII 

ELECTIONS COMMISSION 
F.M. SCOTTY ANDERSON

ELECTIONS COMMISSION CHAIR 

February 10, 2021 

Elections Commission’s Supplemental Biennial Evaluation of Elections Operation 

Pursuant to Hawaii Revised Statutes § 11-8.5, the Elections Commission submits 
the following supplemental report concerning the operation of elections. 

The Elections Commission recommends that the Legislature prioritize the 
following items: 

1) Verifiable chain of custody of ballots at every stage of transportation and
handling; and

2) Ensure ballot tracking is in place for the 2022 Elections in coordination
with the United States Postal Service.

Please note that the meeting minutes of the Elections Commission’s     
December 15, 2020 and January 21, 2021 meetings may be found at the 
following links: 

• December 15, 2020: https://elections.hawaii.gov/wp-
content/uploads/2020-12-15-EC-Regular-Mtg-Minutes-FINAL.pdf

• January 21, 2021: https://elections.hawaii.gov/wp-content/uploads/2021-
01-21-EC-Regular-Mtg-Minutes-FINAL.pdf

Should you have any questions, you may contact me via email at 
 Attn: Scotty Anderson. 

Respectfully submitted, 

F.M. Scotty Anderson
Elections Commission Chair

SA:jk 
EC-21-002 



STATE OF HAWAII
OFFICE OF ELECTIONS

802 LEHUA AVENUE

PEARL CITY, HAWAII 96782

elections.hawaii.gov

SCOTT T. NAGO
CHIEF ELECTION OFFICER

September 30, 2025

VIA EMAIL

Elections Commissioner Ralph Cushnie

RE: ECC-25-003

Dear Commissioner Cushnie,

This is in response to your complaint dated September 22, 2025, which appears
to seek to debate the legal interpretation of HAR § 3-177-453. Specifically, you make
reference to a letter submitted to the Elections Commission on March 17, 2025, and
response on April 30, 2025, to a Uniform Information Practices Act request both of
which you appear to argue are relevant to the appropriate legal interpretation of HAR §
3-177-453.

To the extent this could be considered a complaint regarding an administrative 
act of the Office of Elections, and you are seeking something within the jurisdiction of 
the Elections Commission, the administrative rules of the Elections Commission provide 
our office with an opportunity to respond. HAR §§ 3-170-6 & 3-170-8.

The position of the Office of Elections has already been established on HAR § 3-
177-453 in the context of litigation that you have been involved in and that you are 
currently appealing. Additionally, we have previously commented on HAR § 3-177-453 
to the Elections Commission and we have nothing to add to our previous submissions.

Additionally, we would note Elections Commission complaints “shall be made in 
writing and must be filed within 90 days from the date of the incident or occurrence.”
HAR§ 3-170-7. It has been more than 90 days since the records dated March 17, 2025, 
and April 30, 2025, that you reference in your complaint.



Commissioner Ralph Cushnie
September 30, 2025
Page 2

This concludes our response to your complaint. Consistent with HAR § 3-
170-8, a copy of this response is being forwarded to the Elections Commission.

Very truly yours,
       
       
       
       

SCOTT T. NAGO 
Chief Election Officer 

 
STN:AS:nn 
OE-25-119 

Enclosure 

cc: Elections Commission 



From: Ralph Cushnie (EC)
To: OE.Elections.Commission
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Formal Complaint
Date: Monday, September 22, 2025 5:07:32 PM
Attachments: Formal Complaint.pdf

Hello,

Please put my formal complaint on the agenda in accordance with HAR-3-170-
Subchapter 2

Sincerely,

Ralph Cushnie

ECC-25-003



To STATE OF HAWAl'I 

ELECTIONS COMMISSION 

FORMAL COMPLAINT 
Filed pursuant to HAR §3-170, Subchapter 2 

Complainant: 
Ralph Cushnie, Elections Commissioner 

Respondent: 
Office of Elections/ Chief Election Officer Scott T. Nago and Elections Commission 

I. INTRODUCTION 

This complaint is filed in accordance with HAR §3-170, Subchapter 2, concerning the 
administration of the 2024 General Election and subsequent representations made by the 
Chief Election Officer, Scott T. Nago. The subject matter involves contradictions between Mr. 
Nago's statements to the Elections Commission, the legal requirements of HAR §3-177-453, 
and disclosures made under Hawai'i's Uniform Information Practices Act (UIPA). 

II. BACKGROUND 

On March 17, 2025, Mr. Nago submitted a letter to the Elections Commission purporting to 
explain the respective roles of the State Office of Elections and the county clerks. In that 
letter, Mr. Nago stated: 

"As an example, the counties receive, validate, and track return identification envelopes, 
from voters using the statewide voter registration system ... The tracking mechanism in the 
statewide voter registration system effectuates the language of HAR §3-177-453(b) ... In 
other words, the 'form' is electronic in that the county clerks interact with the statewide 
voter registration system for purposes of tracking the issuance, receipt, and spoiling of 
ballots." 

He further asserted: "One of the benefits of the roles and responsibilities of election officials 
being divided is that it naturally establishes checks and balances of the processes such that 
there is no single entity completing all tasks and reconciliation." 

However, a UIPA Notice dated April 30, 2025, confirms that Chief Election Officer Scott T. 
Nago is the administrator of the Statewide Voter Registration System (SVRS) and that the 
system is "defined, maintained, and administered at the State level." 



111. LEGAL REQUIREMENTS 
HAR §3-177-453(b) clearly states: 
"The clerk shall maintain a complete and current count of all marksense ballots issued, 
spoiled, and received in their county. The accounting of marksense ballots by the clerk shall 
be recorded on forms prescribed by the chief election officer." 

HAR §3-177-453(a) further requires : 
"The chief election officer or designated representative shall maintain a complete count of 
marksense ballots. All ballots shall be safeguarded to prevent mishandling or misuse." 

These provisions establish dual responsibilities-counties must maintain their own 
independent accounting, while the Chief Election Officer must also maintain a statewide 
count. 

IV. CONTRADICTIONS AND GROUNDS FOR COMPLAINT 
1. Contradiction of Responsibility 
Mr. Nago claims that county clerks fulfill their statutory duty under HAR §3-177-453(b) by 
merely "interacting" with the SVRS. The UIPA response confirms that the SVRS is 
administered solely by the State, not the counties. Therefore, the counties do not 
independently control, maintain, or secure these records. 

2. Checks and Balances Undermined 
Mr. Nago states that dividing responsibilities ensures checks and balances. Yet, by 
centralizing control of the SVRS in his own office, Mr. Nago has effectively eliminated the 
counties' ability to maintain independent records as required by law. This creates the very 
"single entity" control he claims does not exist. 

3. Improper Documentation Practices 
Mr. Nago acknowledges that counties differ in their documentation, some not even 
indicating the number of envelopes transferred. Observers were not permitted to verify 
envelope counts, only the number of trays, further weakening the chain of custody. 

4. Failure to Comply with HAR §3-177-453(b) 
By substituting the counties' statutory obligation to maintain records with State-controlled 
electronic entries in the SVRS, the Office of Elections has violated the plain requirement that 
counties themselves "maintain a complete and current count" on forms prescribed by the 
Chief Election Officer. 

V. RELIEF REQUESTED 
Pursuant to HAR §3-170-7, the Complainant requests the Elections Commission to: 

1. Find that the Office of Elections has violated HAR §3-177-453(b) by substituting State­
controlled SVRS entries for county-maintained records. 



2. Direct the Chief Election Officer to prescribe and require counties to maintain their own 
independent chain-of-custody records, separate from the SVRS. 
3. Require immediate disclosure of all county-level forms documenting ballot issuance, 
receipt, spoilage, and transfer for the 2024 General Election. 
4. Mandate corrective measures to restore checks and balances by ensuring counties-not 
the State alone-maintain legally required ballot accountability records. 

r:;7:_::__. 
Ralph Cushnie 

Election¥(;;7· sioner 
Date: ;i..., 



From: Suzanne Manzon
To: OE.Elections.Commission
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Re: Elections Commission Meeting - October 1, 2025
Date: Thursday, September 25, 2025 8:40:38 PM

Aloha, I am concerned about integrity in elections.  One county had about 19,000
more ballots than envelopes.
Another county had about 3,000 more ballots without signatures.
We need more fairness and accuracy.  Otherwise we are allowing elected officials to
hold positions of power and not having just elections.
We are registered voters and need to have fair and just elections. 

Mrs. Manzon

On Thu, Sep 25, 2025 at 4:16 PM OE.Elections.Commission
<elections.commission@hawaii.gov> wrote:

Aloha,

 

Attached please find the agenda for the next Elections Commission meeting on October 1, 2025
at 10:00 AM.  It has also been:

 

Posted to the State Calendar
Posted to the OE website

 

Mahalo,

 

Office of Elections

elections.commission@hawaii.gov

(808) 453-VOTE (8683)

**************************************************************************
******
This email was scanned by the Cisco IronPort Email Security System contracted by the
Hawaii Dept of Education. If you receive suspicious/phish email, forward a copy to
phishing-report@k12.hi.us. This helps us monitor suspicious/phish email getting thru. You
will not receive a response, but rest assured the information received will help to build
additional protection.
**************************************************************************
******

• 
• 

mailto:suzanne.manzon@k12.hi.us
mailto:elections.commission@hawaii.gov
mailto:elections.commission@hawaii.gov
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https://calendar.ehawaii.gov/calendar/meeting/75856/details.html__;!!LIYSdFfckKA!2pAiDrr18azqGtoKfXYp-e7zz4N4lSjLRWTVM5a6Ml070vN5jLXETf-NdPcvm5YvgaxqJG0UsScoY_yCGzIYY3urxybOWxT3h0Jh$
https://elections.hawaii.gov/about-us/boards-and-commissions/elections-commission/
mailto:elections.commission@hawaii.gov
mailto:phishing-report@k12.hi.us


This is a staff email account managed by Hawaii Department Of Education School District.  This 
email and any files transmitted with it are confidential and intended solely for the use of the 
individual or entity to whom they are addressed. If you have received this email in error please 
notify the sender.



Aloha Election Commission, 09/23/25 

This is a request from the citizens of Hawai'i Nei. "We the People Demand" regarding 
voter fraud found and reported in Hawai'i Nei over the years and nothing done about it. 

Whistle blowers reported countess descriptiveness, false names, multiple votes, etc but instead of an 
investigation the concerns, the Whistle blowers were fired or removed from the precincts? 

So this Request is way over due: 

1. Resignation of Scott Nago. 
2. Resignation of Chair Curtis .. 
3. Count the votes with overseers. 
4. Chain of Custody at all Counties. 
5. New Election Chief Officer 
6. Independent Overseer of any Audits. 

We need Elections to be Fair, Honest and Just as We the People all deserve in our Free Republic. 

Mahalo, 

.. ,..,_, 
(.J" 
:c, 
::z ...... ...... 
k3 



From: Pikachu Billionaire
To: OE.Elections.Commission
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Shelby "Pikachu" Billionaire Testimony for the October 1, 2025 Elections Commission Meeting
Date: Saturday, September 27, 2025 8:57:30 PM

**Subject**: Shelby "Pikachu" Billionaire Testimony for the October 1, 2025 Elections 
Commission Meeting at 10am (Same time as the Honolulu City Council, which I will be attending 
and here is my testimony in advance, in case I am unable to make it on zoom)
Dear Esteemed Members of the Office of Elections Commission,
As Master Shelby "Pikachu" Billionaire, HRM, representing the Kingdom of The Hawaiian Islands 
and serving as Chairman of the Ohana Unity Party, I submit this detailed testimony and commentary 
on the agenda for the Elections Commission meeting scheduled for October 1, 2025. My remarks are 
rooted in a commitment to preserving the integrity of Hawaii’s electoral process, upholding the 
principles of aloha, ohana, and pono (righteousness), and ensuring that the voices of the people of 
Hawaii are heard. Below, I address each agenda item with specific recommendations and concerns, 
urging the commission to prioritize transparency, accountability, and public trust in our democratic 
institutions. --- **Item II: Introduction of New Commissioners** The Ohana Unity Party extends a 
heartfelt aloha to Commissioners James Apana, who is completing the term of Jeffrey Kuwada, and 
John Sabas, who is completing the term of Peter Young. The introduction of new commissioners is a 
pivotal moment for the Elections Commission, as fresh perspectives can strengthen the body’s 
commitment to fairness and integrity. I encourage Commissioners Apana and Sabas to approach 
their roles with a deep sense of responsibility to the people of Hawaii, particularly in addressing the 
serious concerns raised in this agenda. The Ohana Unity Party stands ready to support their efforts to 
ensure elections reflect the will of the people, free from irregularities or distrust. 
**Recommendation**: Provide a public forum or opportunity for Commissioners Apana and Sabas 
to share their visions for improving election oversight, fostering greater community engagement. --- 
**Item IV: Approval of Written Minutes** The approval of minutes from the meetings held on July 
16, July 30, and August 27, 2025, is not merely procedural but a cornerstone of transparency. Having 
reviewed the written minutes, video recordings, and summaries available at the provided links (e.g., 
July 16 minutes: https://elections.hawaii.gov/wp-content/uploads/2025-07-16-EC-Regular-Mtg-
Minutes.pdf, video: https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=zWvxtZwFKe8, and summary: 
https://elections.hawaii.gov/wp-content/uploads/2025-07-16-EC-Written-Summary.pdf, with similar 
resources for July 30 and August 27), I note that Commissioner Cushnie’s correspondence regarding 
the August 27 minutes raises concerns about potential inaccuracies. Accurate records are essential 
for maintaining public trust, as they serve as the official account of the commission’s deliberations 
and decisions. **Elaboration**: Inaccurate or incomplete minutes can erode confidence in the 
commission’s work, especially when sensitive issues like election integrity are at stake. For example, 
discrepancies in the August 27 minutes could affect how the public perceives the commission’s 
handling of complaints or audits. The video recordings and summaries provide valuable context, but 
written minutes are the primary legal record. Any concerns raised by Commissioner Cushnie must be 
thoroughly investigated to ensure the minutes reflect the true proceedings. **Recommendation**: 
Establish a formal process for reviewing and amending minutes when disputes arise, including 
public disclosure of any changes. I urge the commission to address Commissioner Cushnie’s 
concerns transparently during the October 1 meeting and provide a detailed explanation of any 
revisions. --- **Item V: Formal Complaints and Status of Independent Audit** The discussion of 
formal complaints (ECC-25-001, ECC-25-002, ECC-25-003) and the independent audit is of utmost 
importance to the people of Hawaii. These complaints, filed by AnnMarie Hamilton and Ralph 
Cushnie, highlight serious allegations that demand rigorous scrutiny. The Chief Election Officer’s 
update on procedures for addressing these complaints must be clear, comprehensive, and accessible 
to the public. Similarly, the status of the independent audit is critical, as it represents an opportunity 
to independently verify the integrity of our electoral processes. **Elaboration**: Formal complaints, 
such as those listed, often stem from public concerns about transparency, fairness, or procedural 
errors in elections. For instance, ECC-25-002 and ECC-25-003, both filed by Ralph Cushnie, may 

mailto:presidentbillionaire@gmail.com
mailto:elections.commission@hawaii.gov
https://elections.hawaii.gov/wp-content/uploads/2025-07-16-EC-Regular-Mtg-Minutes.pdf
https://elections.hawaii.gov/wp-content/uploads/2025-07-16-EC-Regular-Mtg-Minutes.pdf
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=zWvxtZwFKe8__;!!LIYSdFfckKA!wSdC6IW41LQlJeyVOdnV5ZPX08mJcq4nCPCy4QIsej2awfYrl33iVZLi9GE5_HuFW0NlZu8UPMqXGeT-IxTlCmNe9ltPYS5szCw$
https://elections.hawaii.gov/wp-content/uploads/2025-07-16-EC-Written-Summary.pdf


relate to issues raised in Item VI (chain of custody and malfeasance), suggesting systemic concerns 
that require coordinated responses. The independent audit, meanwhile, is a proactive step to identify 
and rectify vulnerabilities in election administration. Delays or lack of clarity in the audit process 
could fuel public skepticism, particularly given the high-profile nature of recent election-related 
controversies in Hawaii. **Recommendation**: The Chief Election Officer should provide a 
detailed report on the complaint resolution process, including timelines, responsible parties, and 
opportunities for public input. For the audit, I urge the commission to disclose its scope, 
methodology, and expected completion date. Public updates, perhaps through a dedicated section on 
the elections website, would enhance trust and accountability. --- **Item VI: Commissioner 
Andrion’s Permitted Interaction Group (PIG) Report** Commissioner Andrion’s PIG report 
addresses two critical issues: (a) complaints regarding the chain of custody of election ballots, and 
(b) claims of intentional malfeasance by County and State Clerks and Elections Officers during the 
2024 Kauai County Councilmember Race. These issues are not only significant for Kauai but 
resonate across the state, as they touch on the fundamental trust in our electoral system. The report’s 
relevance is underscored by its connection to legal proceedings in the Hawaii Supreme Court 
(#SCEC-24-0000797, Ralph S. Cushnie and more than thirty voters vs. Scott Nago and Jade 
Fountain-Tanigawa) and the 5th Circuit Court (#5CCV-25-0000041, Ralph S. Cushnie vs. Scott 
Nago and Jade K. Fountain-Tanigawa). **Elaboration**: The chain of custody for election ballots is 
a critical safeguard to ensure votes are accurately counted and protected from tampering. Allegations 
of lapses in this process, as raised in the PIG report and legal cases, suggest potential vulnerabilities 
that could undermine election outcomes. The claims of intentional malfeasance are even more 
alarming, as they imply deliberate misconduct by officials entrusted with upholding democracy. The 
Kauai County Councilmember Race in 2024 has become a focal point for these concerns, with court 
cases highlighting disputes over election administration. For example, the Hawaii Supreme Court 
case involves multiple plaintiffs, indicating widespread community concern, while the 5th Circuit 
Court case, pursued by Ralph Cushnie pro se, underscores the urgency of addressing these 
allegations. **Recommendation**: The commission must thoroughly review Commissioner 
Andrion’s report and prioritize actionable reforms, such as enhanced chain-of-custody protocols 
(e.g., real-time tracking or independent oversight) and mandatory training for election officials. I 
urge the commission to engage with affected communities, particularly in Kauai, through public 
hearings to address these concerns. Additionally, the commission should coordinate with judicial 
authorities to ensure its actions align with ongoing legal proceedings. --- **Item VIII: Commissioner 
Osterkamp’s PIG Report** Commissioner Osterkamp’s report on election results discrepancies on 
the Big Island is a critical issue that demands immediate attention. Discrepancies in election results, 
whether due to clerical errors, technical issues, or other factors, can erode public confidence and 
raise questions about the validity of outcomes. While discussion and decision-making on this report 
are scheduled for a future meeting, the commission must lay the groundwork for a robust response. 
**Elaboration**: Election results discrepancies, even if minor, can have significant consequences, 
particularly in close races or in communities with heightened scrutiny of election processes. The Big 
Island’s unique geographic and demographic challenges may contribute to such issues, but they must 
be addressed systematically to prevent recurrence. The PIG report’s findings could provide valuable 
insights into whether these discrepancies stem from procedural, technological, or human errors, and 
the commission’s response will set a precedent for how similar issues are handled statewide. 
**Recommendation**: The commission should publicly acknowledge receipt of Commissioner 
Osterkamp’s report and commit to a transparent review process. I recommend forming a task force 
to analyze the report’s findings and propose corrective measures before the next meeting. Engaging 
Big Island community leaders and stakeholders in this process would demonstrate the commission’s 
commitment to inclusivity. --- **Item IX: Discussion on Civility and Avoiding Improper Coercion** 
The discussion on civility and preventing improper coercion of commissioners’ votes is a vital step 
toward ensuring the Elections Commission operates with integrity and independence. As Chairman 
of the Ohana Unity Party, I believe that aloha and respect must guide all interactions, but these 
values must be balanced with robust protections against undue influence. **Elaboration**: 
Commissioners must feel free to vote their conscience without fear of external pressure, whether 



from other commissioners, public officials, or external groups. Improper coercion could manifest as 
lobbying, intimidation, or attempts to sway votes through non-transparent means. A culture of 
civility ensures that deliberations focus on facts and the public good, not personal or political 
agendas. This discussion is particularly timely given the contentious issues on this agenda, such as 
formal complaints and allegations of malfeasance. **Recommendation**: Adopt a formal code of 
conduct for commissioners, outlining expectations for respectful dialogue and prohibiting coercive 
behaviors. Additionally, implement mechanisms for reporting and addressing suspected coercion, 
such as an independent ethics advisor. Publicly reaffirming the commission’s commitment to 
impartiality would strengthen community trust. --- **General Comments** The agenda for the 
October 1, 2025 meeting addresses issues that strike at the heart of Hawaii’s democratic process. As 
Master Shelby "Pikachu" Billionaire, HRM, and Chairman of the Ohana Unity Party, I call on the 
Elections Commission to approach these matters with the utmost seriousness, guided by the 
principles of aloha, ohana, and pono. The people of Hawaii deserve an electoral system that is 
transparent, accountable, and free from doubt. The formal complaints, audit, and PIG reports 
highlight systemic challenges that require bold action. I urge the commission to engage with the 
public through town halls, live-streamed updates, and accessible reporting to ensure that every voice 
is heard. The Ohana Unity Party is committed to supporting these efforts and advocating for a 
stronger, fairer democracy. I respectfully request that this testimony be included in the official record 
for the October 1, 2025 meeting and that the commission provide a public response to the concerns 
raised. I am available to provide further testimony or participate in discussions to advance our shared 
goal of electoral integrity. Mahalo nui loa for your dedication to serving the people of Hawaii and 
safeguarding our democratic process. Sincerely, Master Shelby "Pikachu" Billionaire, HRM 
Kingdom of The Hawaiian Islands, H.I. Ohana Unity Party, Chairman www.Ohanaunityparty.com 
Presidentbillionaire@gmail.com Facebook @Keiki'okalani Instagram @Ohanaunityparty IG 
@Legendarybillionaire X @Ohanaunityparty X @AmericanpartyOG Support The Channel, Like, 
Subscribe, Donate YouTube Channel @PikachuBillionaire 
https://www.youtube.com/@pikachubillionaire Venmo @Presidentbillionaire CashApp 
$ShelbyBillionaire BTC Wallet 1sRfKDphW18hojoyTQVy9qQVSUtQgahYwj -

https://urldefense.com/v3/__http://www.Ohanaunityparty.com__;!!LIYSdFfckKA!wSdC6IW41LQlJeyVOdnV5ZPX08mJcq4nCPCy4QIsej2awfYrl33iVZLi9GE5_HuFW0NlZu8UPMqXGeT-IxTlCmNe9ltP6G65yt0$
mailto:Presidentbillionaire@gmail.com
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https://www.youtube.com/@pikachubillionaire__;!!LIYSdFfckKA!wSdC6IW41LQlJeyVOdnV5ZPX08mJcq4nCPCy4QIsej2awfYrl33iVZLi9GE5_HuFW0NlZu8UPMqXGeT-IxTlCmNe9ltPkZrFLEE$


From: D.A.Chappell
To: OE.Elections.Commission
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Election Integrity in Hawaii
Date: Sunday, September 28, 2025 1:22:28 AM

We need paper ballots going forward!  The rest can NOT be trusted.

Dale Ann Chappell

Maui resident 43 yrs

mailto:lotuslamp@gmail.com
mailto:elections.commission@hawaii.gov


From: Tom Berg
To: OE.Elections.Commission
Cc: Hamada Richard; GMAIL-mikebuckhawaii; CAPITOL2023-sengabbard; CAPITOL2023-senawa; Sen. Samantha

DeCorte; CAPITOL2023-repgarcia; CAPITOL2023-reppierick; Bob McDermott; CAPITOL2023-repalcos; Rep. Julie
Reyes Oda; Rep. Garner M. Shimizu; Rep. Christopher L. Muraoka; CAPITOL2023-repsouza; Art Hannemam New;
Steveholck; Tulsi Gabbard; The Clay Travis &amp; Buck Sexton Show; pags@joepags.com

Subject: [EXTERNAL] TESTIMONY OCT 1, 2025 = THE ELECTION FRAUD IS KILLING BABIES TOO
Date: Sunday, September 28, 2025 4:30:27 PM
Attachments: 10.1.2025.ELECTIONS COMMISSION MEETING.pdf

Aloha State of Hawaii Elections Commission-

Please accept my testimony for the 10/1/2025
meeting.  Mahalo-  Tom Berg.

Sideline comment-  I grew up with great friends who
many were adopted.  They were alive in my opinion because
back in the day-  people waited in line to vote as opposed
to today, where mail-in voting makes killing babies a breeze.

Had we had mail-in voting in the 60's....I think many of my 
friends might have been snuffed out because the system made it easy
to do it.  

https://elections.hawaii.gov/wp-content/uploads/2025-10-01-EC-Agenda-FINAL.pdf

mailto:tomberg00@yahoo.com
mailto:elections.commission@hawaii.gov
mailto:richardhamada@iheartmedia.com
mailto:mikebuckhawaii@gmail.com
mailto:sengabbard@capitol.hawaii.gov
mailto:senawa@capitol.hawaii.gov
mailto:sendecorte@capitol.hawaii.gov
mailto:sendecorte@capitol.hawaii.gov
mailto:repgarcia@capitol.hawaii.gov
mailto:reppierick@capitol.hawaii.gov
mailto:representativemcdermott@gmail.com
mailto:repalcos@capitol.hawaii.gov
mailto:repreyesoda@capitol.hawaii.gov
mailto:repreyesoda@capitol.hawaii.gov
mailto:repshimizu@capitol.hawaii.gov
mailto:repmuraoka@capitol.hawaii.gov
mailto:repsouza@capitol.hawaii.gov
mailto:adhannemann7@gmail.com
mailto:steveholck@aol.com
mailto:update@alerts.therepublicanteam.com
mailto:claytravisbucksexton@gmail.com
mailto:pags@joepags.com
https://elections.hawaii.gov/wp-content/uploads/2025-10-01-EC-Agenda-FINAL.pdf



ELECTIONS COMMISSION MEETING 
OCTOBER 1, 2025 


 
TESTIMONY IN SUPPORT OF ALL ACTIONS AS RECOMMENDED BY THE PIG PER 
AGENDA ITEMS # 6; # 7; AND # 8. 
 
There is a radio program that airs on Saturdays @ 8AM on KHVH; located on the 830 am 
dial-  it is called:   “THE FREEDOM HOUR.”  
 
On September’s 27th program, host Rick Hamada and guests provided discussion on 
the value of life / in reference to PRO LIFE (the egg and sperm when meet, is life) vs PRO 
DEATH (abortion).  
 
How does the subject of PRO LIFE intertwine with the October 1, 2025 ELECTIONS 
COMMISSION MEETING? Here is my answer: 
 
I and thousands more, endured waiting in line at least 3 hours plus to vote in-person on 
election day November 5, 2024.    
 
Point is-  the PRO LIFE candidate for U.S. Senate, Bob McDermott (R), creamed the 
PRO DEATH candidate Mazie Hirono (D), by almost a 2 to 1 margin applicable to the 
tally of those who voted in-person.  Hence, for those that waited in-line to vote, the line 
consisted of a 2-to-1 margin in support of PRO LIFE CANDIDATES. 
 
See, it is convenient, easy to do, in a matter of seconds, to put a checkmark next to 
candidates that are PRO DEATH and deposit such vote in the mail or drop box.   
 
If it were required the voter who was voting for the PRO DEATH candidates had to 
stand in line for hours, they would abort themselves from voting. 
 
If we want to protect life, value it, defend it, we must have SAME DAY VOTING with 
paper ballots BE THE PROTOCOL and mail-in voting (absentee) only permitted for those 
who qualify- i.e., military, the sick, the folks who are out-of-town or lack mobility.  
 
HAWAII is not the land of ALOHA- but the land of PRO DEATH.  Hawaii’s entire 
Congressional Delegation embraces, cherishes, and condones a system of voting 
protocol that is conducive for PRO DEATH ideologies to reign.   Imagine if we had same 
day voting-  the lives we would save in the womb! 
 
As Paul Harvey would say, “Now you know the rest of the truth, as to why Hawaii’s 
Democrats loathe a voting system that is accurate. Because Dems rejoice killing babies, 
they wallow in it as if it’s a right of passage. It has been said, that Hawaii’s Democrats in 
Congress are the cancer of today’s society.” 
 


Tom Berg; Ewa Beach, HI 
808-685-1932 







Read more here:

https://mailchi.mp/oahugop/election-commission-board-meeting-pig-probe-uncovers-votecount-discrepancies-
17587357?e=96b37785c2

ELECTIONS COMMISSION MEETING 
OCTOBER 1, 2025 

TESTIMONY IN SUPPORT OF ALL ACTIONS AS RECOMMENDED BY THE PIG PER 
AGENDA ITEMS # 6; # 7; AND # 8. 

There is a radio program that airs on Saturdays@ 8AM on KHVH; located on the 830 am 
dial- it is called: "THE FREEDOM HOUR." 

On September's 27th program, host Rick Hamada and guests provided discussion on 
the value of life/ in reference to PRO LIFE {the egg and sperm when meet, is life) vs PRO 
DEATH (abortion). 

How does the subject of PRO LIFE intertwine with the October 1, 2025 ELECTIONS 
COMMISSION MEETING? Here is my answer: 

I and thousands more, endured waiting in line at least 3 hours plus to vote in-person on 
election day November 5, 2024. 

Point is- the PRO LIFE candidate for U.S. Senate, Bob McDermott (R), creamed the 
PRO DEATH candidate Mazie Hirano (D), by almost a 2 to 1 margin applicable to the 
tally of those who voted in-person. Hence, for those that waited in-line to vote, the line 
consisted of a 2-to-1 margin in support of PRO LIFE CANDIDATES. 

See, it is convenient, easy to do, in a matter of seconds, to put a checkmark next to 
candidates that are PRO DEATH and deposit such vote in the mail or drop box. 

If it were required the voter who was voting for the PRO DEATH candidates had to 
stand in line for hours, they would abort themselves from voting. 

If we want to protect life, value it, defend it, we must have SAME DAY VOTING with 
paper ballots BE THE PROTOCOL and mail-in voting (absentee) only permitted for those 
who qualify- i.e. , military, the sick, the folks who are out-of-town or lack mobility. 

HAWAII is not the land of ALOHA- but the land of PRO DEATH. Hawaii's entire 
Congressional Delegation embraces, cherishes, and condones a system of voting 
protocol that is conducive for PRO DEATH ideologies to reign . Imagine if we had same 
day voting- the lives we would save in the womb! 

As Paul Harvey would say, "Now you know the rest of the truth, as to why Hawaii's 
Democrats loathe a voting system that is accurate. Because Dems rejoice killing babies, 
they wallow in it as if it's a right of passage. It has been said, that Hawaii's Democrats in 
Congress are the cancer of today's society." 

Tom Berg; Ewa Beach, HI 
808-685-1932 

https://urldefense.com/v3/__https://mailchi.mp/oahugop/election-commission-board-meeting-pig-probe-uncovers-votecount-discrepancies-17587357?e=96b37785c2__;!!LIYSdFfckKA!2CIh0DcZyRk1qtB1PZirSozIl1F3foj9FfcQ-OpVCxHeWyuW_1kvZlVi_0GcEXdQPxLcFw8vqpWXmr87KjDzGTAXrg$
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https://mailchi.mp/oahugop/election-commission-board-meeting-pig-probe-uncovers-votecount-discrepancies-17587357?e=96b37785c2__;!!LIYSdFfckKA!2CIh0DcZyRk1qtB1PZirSozIl1F3foj9FfcQ-OpVCxHeWyuW_1kvZlVi_0GcEXdQPxLcFw8vqpWXmr87KjDzGTAXrg$


From: L T
To: OE.Elections.Commission
Subject: [EXTERNAL] WRITTEN TESTIMONY FOR 10.01.25 BOARD MTG
Date: Monday, September 29, 2025 12:48:59 PM
Attachments: WRITTEN TESTIMONY by Laurie Thorson (10.01.25 BOARD MTG - ELECTIONS COMMISSIONS) pdf.pdf

Please forward my attached written testimony to all the Elections Commissioners before the
board meeting scheduled on 10.01.25.  

Please contact me if you have any questions or concerns.
Sincerely,
Laurie Thorson
Lthorson7@gmail.com
(808) 222-5885

mailto:lthorson7@gmail.com
mailto:elections.commission@hawaii.gov
mailto:Lthorson7@gmail.com



































































































































































WRITTEN TESTIMONY 

by Laurie Thorson 

10.01.25 ELECTIONS COMMISSION BOARD MEETING 

TO: ALL ELECTIONS COMMISSIONERS 

copies to: (VIA EMAIL AND FIRST CLASS MAIL) 

Donald Trump, President 
J.D. Vance, Vice President 
Pam Bondi, U.S. Attorney General 
Kash Patel, U.S. FBI Director 
Dan Bongino, U.S. FBI Deputy Director 
Scott Turner, HUD Secretary 
Brian Harrison, Acting Inspector General, HUD OIG 
Ken Sorenson, Hawaii Acting U.S. Attorney General 
David Porter, Special Agent In Charge, Hawaii FBI 
Josh Green, Hawaii Governor 

Dear Elections Commissioners: 

I am providing written testimony in response to Agenda Item VI. 

The purpose of my testimony is to encourage the Elections 
Commissioners to enforce fair and legal elections so that no particular 
party can illegally infiltrate Hawaii's government. This is the legal 
responsibility of the Elections Commissioners. 

It is my position that unfair and illegal elections have allowed the 
Democrat party to illegally infiltrate Hawaii's government. I am providing 
facts to prove the Democrat party is/has allowed state employees to 
divert federal funds from programs in which federal funds are allocated 
to serve the people of Hawaii. 

PAGE 1 OF4 



The purpose of my written testimony is to request that the Elections 
Commissioners enforce legal elections. By not enforcing legal elections, 
the Elections Commissioners is supporting the Democrat party's 
diversion of federal funds. This should be of great concern to the 
Elections Commissioners to understand why legal elections are so 
important. 

Fraud Scheme # 1 
The attached documents prove the Hawaii Public Housing Authority 
diverted $117,796,916 (see Attachments A-F) from the Section 8 Housing 
Choice Voucher Program, since January 2015, by refusing to issue all 
the Section 8 vouchers to the community, which allows the HPHA to 
divert the balance of unused subsidy (by altering their financial 
statements and providing false figures to HUD, for the purpose of hiding 
the steal of federal funds). The attached documents prove the diversion 
of federal funds from the Section 8 Program. HUD data actually proves 
three of five Hawaii PHAs (Public Housing Authorities) have diverted over 
$500,000,000 from the Section 8 program (since January 2015), and 
continue to divert over $17,000,000 every year. 

Fraud Scheme #2 
This fraud scheme pertains to Hawaii state employees enforcing illegal 
policies - to use low comparables against the contract rent in all rent 
reasonableness determinations - which allows the state employees to 
divert federal funds from each and every voucher. 

I filed a lawsuit against the Hawaii Public Housing Authority, Hakim 
Ouansafi (Executive Director), Ryan Akamine (Chief Compliance Officer), 
and Lyle Matsuura (Supervisor) - and my attempt to amend my 
complaint to add Bennett Liu (Chief Financial Officer) as a defendant. 

My lawsuit is currently before the 9th Circuit Court. I am appealing the 
ruling by Judge Micah W.J. Smith (Biden appointee) who dismissed my 
case by granting the state employees immunity, despite the fact that the 
Executive Director of the Hawaii Public Housing Authority, Hakim 
Ouansafi, admitted in his Declaration (attached to his Motion for 
Summary Judgment) that he indeed enforces the illegal policies (basis of 

PAGE 20F4 



my retaliation claim) . It should be noted that Hakim Ouansafi inputted 
liability for enforcing the illegal policies to his staff and to the HPHA 
Board of Directors, which the court ignored. 

It is my opinion that the Democrat judges have exhibited a pattern of 
behavior in consistently dismissing lawsuits against state employees 
who are guilty of fraud and government corruption, as is the case in 
my lawsuit against the state employees of the Hawaii Public Housing 
Authority, who retaliated against me by terminating my live in aide 
and 2-bedroom voucher AFTER I discovered they were implementing 
illegal policies that interfered with the payment standard of my 
Section 8 voucher, even intentionally caused me to be homeless 
( a 66 year old disabled woman). 

I appreciate your prayers that the 9 th Circuit Court will honor my appeal 
and remand my case back to Hawaii's district court for trial. I am 
currently acting as a pro se plaintiff and am searching for the right 
attorney to assist me. You can read my Opening Brief and Reply Brief at 
my website, which also documents in great detail the facts of my lawsuit: 
https: / / governmentcorruptioninhawaii. word press. com/ 

It is reasonable to expect the Elections Commissioners to provide 
oversight required to enforce legal elections, so that no one party is 
allowed to illegally infiltrate our government agencies, and to honor the 
people's right to vote for candidates they choose to represent them. 
This will allow the current Democrat government (DOJ, FBI, Governor, 
courts, etc.) to no longer control Hawaii, and to divert federal funds from 
Hawaii (as I have proven). I expect fair and legal elections will prove that 
Hawaii is predominantly a Republican state. 

You are welcome to contact me directly if you have any questions or 
concerns. God bless each of you! 

Sincerely, 
Laurie Thorson 
Lthorson 7@gmail.com 
(808) 222-5885 

PAGE 30F4 



P .S. It is crucial the Elections Commissioners are fully informed that my 
claims against current state employees, who are supported by our 
Democrat government, are true and accurate. Even though I am a 
registered Republican, I have never voted until recently when I voted for 
President Donald Trump. If I believed the Democrats best represented 
me, then I would have voted for them. The fact is, the people's voice 
should be honored by the Elections Commissioners. Please do what is 
right and make sure that Hawaii's elections are legal. 

Attachments: 
ATTACHMENTS A- F 
The attached documents prove my claims against the Hawaii Public 
Housing Authority are true and accurate, and to provide proof to the 
Elections Commissioners that Hawaii did not vote for the current 
Democrat party, who is not acting in the best interest of its citizens. 

PAGE40F4 



2009 

2010 

.2011 

.2012 

2013 

2014 

2015 

2016 

2017 

:2018 

2019 

2020 

2021 

022 

2023 

2024 

:refer lQ 

r-"fer to refec to :refer to r efei- -

ATTACHMENT A ATTACHMB T B ATTACHME TC AT'T CHME TD 
HPHA BPHA LIES TO HUD 
FlliANCIAL S1"ATEMENTS HUDiDATA HOU DATA mm DATA 

REVE NUE EXPENDlTURES . . . . . . . . A • "' • VOUCHERS . . . .. . . .. . . . . . .. . . .. . . .... ~ ... a , total subsid • used 
subsidy HPHA s ubsiid - HPHA subsidy HPHA HUD l:Il.!JJ. x % of unused 
received falsely claims falsel!:y claims issued confirms vouchers 
foJ:m HUD it u sed {HAPI it used (~ HIPHA.. ,_ HPHA used % used.,,_ % nnnsed = stolen subsidy 

s 0,578,390 $ 18,500.2 40 

s 0,691,067 $19,604,914 

S.21,347,287 $]9,36 , 135 

825,263,030 $23,441,9]3 

$25,346,599 $24,199,508 

$23,832,638 $24,03 ,9 50 

$26, 112,335 $24,598, 735 

$30,474,67 $27,701,265 

:S32,219,294 $,29,658,1 ] 6 

S3.2,782,655 S,31, 908,298 

$35 ,247,155 $ 33,396,488 

$38,451,300 $35,89 ,505 

$44,700,993 $ 4 1,019,011. 

$54,678,053 $48,,567,945 

$64 ,969,302 $ 57,109,283 

S60,543,31 $-6 l, 866,933 

(HUD DASHBOARD PRO DES D :A FOR .ALL PHAs BEGINNING JANUARY 2015} 

$25,724,663 3,690 / 2 .07s 56.2 % / 43.78% 11,431 ,980 

$28, 70,183 3 ,727 / 2 . 40 60.H% / 39 .. 89% 1 , 156,346 

$30,675 ,962 

$31l ,268,219 

$34, 147,959 

$36,124,168 

$44,742,783 

552,096,018 

$55,667,679 

$57, g 90,748 

3.785 / 2 ,31!.6 

3 ,785 / 2 ,325 

3 ,817 / 2 ,386 

3 .847 J 2 4 o 
3 ,853 J 3 2n 

4, os. / 3 ,5 17 

60 .. 21% / 38.?9% 

61.44% / ,38.56,% 

62.53% / 37 .. 4 7% 

62.65% / 37 .. 35% 

83.34% / 16.66% 

33.57% / 16.,43% 

4 . 64 / 3.512 82.37% / 17 .. 6·3-% 

4 ,329 / 3 ,355 77.51% / 22.49% 

SUBSIDY HPHA STOLE SINCE J ~ UARY 2015 

1 ,497 ,864 

1 ,640,991 

13,20 . 109 

14,361,560 

S 7447 185 

S 8 983 604 

11,454.087 

13.616, 190 

$ Jl 17,79'6,916 .if:--
ATTACHMENT E- HUD CO FIRMS HPHAHAS 0~ LY $4 1N RESERVES (had onlyS140, 120 

refer to 
ATTACHMENT F - HUD CO FrRMS HPHA. DOES OT ISSUE ALL VASH' VOUCHERS, FOR ·iETERAJ S ONLY, 643 / 421 {65. 7%) 



Attachment A 
Hawaii Public Housing Authority 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

STAIEl\,IB:r,.'T OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES POSmON 
Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2024 --

Capital Housing Section 8 Toti! 
General Fund 

Assistance Contr.ict Governmental 
Vouchers -MTW Administration Funds 

"7 R1wcnuo 
• HUD PHA Grants $ $ 47,987,10S $ 108,530,415 

PHA Administrative Fees Earned 1,692,151 7,767,153 
State allotted appropriations, net of lapsed funds of $149,863 13,936,264 24,699,065 38,635,329 
Other revenue 181 1141152 485 11:!z818 

Totalrovcnuc 13,936,445 24,699,065 66,732,46S 49,679,740 155,047,715 / ➔ Expendituro 
1,014,677 G:1,866,93:i) • Housing assistnnco payments 47,987,10S 110,868,715 

Administration 89,357 1,763,471 1,197,261 3,050,090 

Personnel services 98,176 2,843,441 2,941,617 

Professional services 21,S09 102,335 53,746 177,S90 
'fenant services 272 57,167 S1,439 

Utilities 1,462 39,431 40,893 

Repairs and mninwnance 1(,6 20,690 21,457 

Security 349 8,636 8,985 
Insurance 648 17,248 12,448 30,344 

Bad debt 7,508 7,508 

I Other e.i.:penses 441,246 441246 

Total expenditure 1227 216 67168 106 49,250,560 117,645,883 

Ei,cess (deficiency) of revenue over (under) expenditure 12,709,228 24,699,065 (435,641) 429,180 37,401,832 

Other Fm.111cing Uses - Not Transfers {8,119,505) (14,106,977) ~22,226,482) 

Net change in fund balanc~s 4,589,723 10,592,088 (435,641) 429,180 15,175,350 

Fund BDlances • Beginning 4,71S,158 621916,226 7,681?,475 4,54-2,241 79,862,099 

Fund Balances • Ending s 9,304,882 s 73,508,314 $ 71252,833 $ 4,971,421 s 95,037,449 



Hawaii Public Housing Authority 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

Year Ended June 30, 2023 -
Housing Section 8 Tot.I! 

Capital Assistance Contract Govemmental 
General Projects Vouchers MTW Administration Funds 

'7 Revenues: 
64,969,3§) ✓ Jntergovemmental - HUD W11111al contributions and others $ $ cC $ 45,747,459 $ 110,716,761 

State allotted appropriations, net oflapsed funds of$3,592,058 10,385,027 9,017,643 19,402,670 
Other 88 155,113 430 155,631 

Total revenues 10,385, 115 9,017,643 65,124,415 45,747,889 130,275,062 

Expenditures: / • Housing assistance payments 1,046,889 57,109,283 44,043,171 102,199,343 
Adminb1ration 22,631 1,srro~o,- 1,151,499 3,084,184 
Personnel services 68,534 1,954,859 2,023,393 
Professional services 23,105 46,411 44,331 113,847 
Tenant services 364,156 364,156 
Utilities 1,028 25,147 26,175 
Repairs and maintenance 440 12,490 12,930 
Security 145 3,503 3,648 
Recovery of losses (11,450) (11,450) 
Insurance 495 16,088 7,246 23,829 
Capital outlays 11,672,839 288,205 11,961,044 

Total expenditures 1,163,267 11,672,839 (E,718,74Y 45,246,247 119,801,099 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues owr expenditures 9,221,848 (2,655,196) 3,405,669 501,642 10,473,963 

Other Financing Uses • Net Transfers (5,471,709) (127,201) ~1,492,056~ (7,090,966) 

Net change in fund balances 3,750,139 (2, 782,397) 1,913,613 501,642 3,382,997 

Fund Balances at July 1, 2022 965,018 65,698,624 5,774,861 4,040,600 76,479,103 

Fund Balances at June 30, 2023 $ 4,715,157 $ 62,916,227 $ 7,688,474 $ 4,542,242 $ 79,862,100 

'I11e accompanying notes are an integral part oftl1is statement. 

33 



Hawaii Public Housing Authority 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

Year Ended June 30, 2022 

Housing Section 8 Total 
Capital Assistance Contract Governmental 

General Projects Voucher Administration Funds 

✓ Revenues: 

c 54,67~ Intergovennnental - HUD annual contributions and others $ $ $ 44,369,907 $ 99,047,960 
State allotted appropriations, net of lapsed funds of $863,980 5,296,373 17,038,398 22,334,771 
Other 26 670,128 389 670,543 

Total revenues 5,296,399 17,038,398 55,348,181 44,370,296 122,053,274 

'"7 Expenditures: ✓ o Housing assistance payments 1,129,458 48,567,945 42,755,086 92,452,489 
Administration 16,214 , 01,267 1,138,687 3,056,168 
Personnel services 67,558 1,984,100 2,051,658 
Professional services 46,460 270,803 31,982 349,245 
Tenant services 17,857 17,857 
Utilities 692 22,985 23,677 
Repairs and maintenance 528 26,659 27,187 
Security 96 2,415 2,511 
Bad debt expense 198,275 198,275 
Insurance 534 14,731 7,112 22,377 
Capital outlays 12,215,241 

(;s3,001,031J 

12,215,241 

Total expenditures 1,261,540 12,215,241 43,932,867 110,416,685 

Excess of revenues over expenditures 4,034,859 4,823,157 2,341,144 437,429 11,636,589 

Other Financing Uses - Transfers Out (3,642,442) (74,538~ (3,716,980) 

Net change in fund balances 392,417 4,748,619 2,341,144 437,429 7,919,609 

Fund Balances at July 1, 2021 572,601 60,950,005 3,433,717 3,603,171 68,559,494 

Fund Balances at June 30, 2022 $ 965,018 $ 65,698,624 $ 5,774,861 $ 4,040,600 $ 76,479,103 

TI1e accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 

33 



Hawaii Public Housing Authority 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

Year Ended June 30, 2021 -
Housing Section 8 Total 

Capital Choice Contract Governmental 
General Projects Voucher Administration Funds 

Revenues: cc 44,700,ii) ✓ Intergovernmental - HUD annual contributions and others $ $ $ 40,750,079 $ 85,451,072 
State allotted appropriations, 11et of lapsed funds of $1,580,357 9,239,834 18,667,941 27,907,775 
Other 49 551,365 342 551,756 

Total revenues 9,239,883 18,667,941 45,252,358 40,750,421 113,910,603 

➔ Expenditures: 
~ 19,011) / 0 Housing assistance payments 1,421,897 39,402,283 81,843,191 

Administration 33,304 1,356,408 888,497 2,278,209 
Personnel services 65,209 1,984,874 2,050,083 
Professional services 39,376 135,334 44,313 219,023 
Tenant services 3,923,113 7,211 3,930,324 
Utilities 702 17,735 18,437 
Repairs and maintenance 489 35,053 35,542 
Security 129 1,854 1,983 
Bad debt expense 91,287 91,287 
Insurance 477 10,169 4,778 15,424 
Capital outlays 9,676,423 160,235 9,836,658 

Total expenditures 5,484,696 9,676,423 (3:s19}TI) 40,339,871 100,320,161 

Excess of revenues over expenditures 3,755,187 8,991,518 433,187 410,550 13,590,442 

Other Financing Uses - Transfers Out ~3,615,445) pso,5242 p,995,969) 

Net change in fund balances 139,742 8,610,994 433,187 410,550 9,594,473 

Fund Balances nt July 1, 2020 432,859 52,339,011 3,000,530 3,192,621 58,965,021 

Fund Balances at June 30, 2021 $ 572,601 $ 60,950,005 $ 3,433,717 $ 3,603,171 $ 68,559,494 

The accompanying notes are m1 integral part of this statement. 

29 



Hawaii Public Housing Authority 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

Year Ended June 30, 2020 -- Housing Section 8 Total 
Capital Choice Contract Governmental 

General Projects Voucher Administration Fwid~ 
Revenues: ✓ C:C -h1tergovemmental - HUD annual contributions and others $ $ 38,451,~ $ 38,547,718 $ 76,999,018 

State allotted appropriations, net oflapscd funds of$1,672,539 5,821,506 2,947,392 . 8,768,898 

Other 60 514,210 304 514,574 

Total revenues 5,821,566 2,947,392 38,965,510 38,548,022 86,282,490 

➔ Expenditures: 
., Housing assistance payments 1,634,937 35,894,505 37,131,491 74,660,933 I 

Administration 25,301 1,031,7 4 1,073,624 2,130,689 

Personnel services 63,197 1,787,598 1,850,795 

Professional services 39,508 54,577 43,657 137,742 

Tenant services 7 6,917 6,924 

Utilities 846 20,725 21 ,571 

Repairs and maintenance 449 54,120 54,569 

Security 240 2,887 3,127 

Bad debt expense 332,937 332,937 

Insurance 522 10,132 4,599 15,253 

Capital outlays 28,152,494 28,152,494 

Total expenditures 1,765,007 28,152,494 G .196,162 ) 38,253,371 107,367,034 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures 4,056,559 (25,205,102) (230,652) 294,651 (21,084,544) 

Other Financing Uses - Transfers Out ~s,o64,464l {549,847J {5,614,3111 

Net change in fund balances (1,007,905) (25,754,949) (230,652) 294,651 (26,698,855) 

Fund Balances at July l, 2019 1,440,764 78,093,960 3,231,182 2,897,970 85,663,876 

Fund Balances at Jun,;: 30, 2020 $ 432,859 $ 52,339,011 $ 3,000,530 $ 3,192,621 $ 58,965,021 

The accompanying notes arc ru1 integral part of this statement. 

30 



Hawaii Public Housing Authority 

GOVERNMENT AL FUNDS 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

Year Ended June 30, 2019 ---- Housing Section 8 Total 
Capital Choice Contract Governmental 

General Projects Voucher Administration Funds 
Revenues: / Jntergovemmental - HUD annual contributions and others $ $ CT 35,247,1:v $ 35,973,350 $ 71,220,505 

State aUotted appropriations, net of lapsed funds of $761, 187 8,168,762 23,441,963 31,610,725 
Other 118 664,261 282 664,661 

Total revenues 8, 168,880 23,441,963 35,911,416 35,973,632 103,495,891 

7 Expenditures: 
O Housing assistance payments 1,947,653 33,396,488 34,527,286 69,871,427 ✓ 

Administration 32,669 
' 

, '5 1,103,081 2,202,435 
Personnel services 75,456 1,760,272 1,835,728 
Professional services 36,285 48,577 48,068 132,930 
Tenant services 35 76,172 76,207 
Utilities 1,971 21,768 23,739 
Repairs and mnintena11ce 1,243 27,507 28,750 
Security 157 1,645 1,802 
Insurance 809 9,808 4,576 15,193 
Capital outlays 1,352,416 29,124,981 30,477,397 

Total expenditures 3,448,694 29,124,981 G 6,408,9~ 35,683,011 104,665,608 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures 4,720,186 (5,683,018) (497,506) 290,621 (1,169,717) 

Other Financing Uses - Transfers Out (5,856,336~ ~3,636,389) ~9,492,7252 

Net change in fund balances (1,136,150) (9,319,407) (497,506) 290,621 (10,662,442) 

Fund Balrutces at July 1, 2018 2,576,914 87,413,367 3,728,688 2,607,349 96,326,318 

Fund Balances at June 30, 2019 $ 1,440,764 $ 78,093,960 $ 3,231,182 $ 2,897,970 $ 85,663,876 

1110 accompanying notes are rot integral part of this statement. 

25 



Hawaii Public Housing Authority 

GOVERWvIENTAL FUNDS 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EX1'ENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

Year Euded June 30, 2018 ____.... 

Housing Section 8 Total 
Capital Choice Contract Govemme11tal 

General Projects Voucher Administration Funds 
Revenues: 

c=32,782,~ 
✓ Intergovemmental --HUD annual contributions and others $ $ $ 34,178,006 $ 66,960,661 

State allotted a1>propriations, net of lapsed funds of $770,399 7,134,740 17,107,690 24,242,430 
Other 2,065 763,173 251 765,489 

Total revenues 7,136,805 17,107,690 33,545,828 34,178,257 91,968,580 

'7 Expenditures: / a Housing assistance payments 2,240,752 31,908,298 32,809,220 66,958,270 
Administration 48,329 846,970 1,042,727 1,938,026 
Personnel se1vices 104,719 1,563,645 1,668,364 
Professional services 32,267 34,769 32,053 99,089 
Tenant services 2,027 2,027 
Utilities 971 11,339 12,310 
Repairs and maintenance 771 55,561 56,332 
Security 48 998 1,046 
Insurance 787 10,392 4,379 15,558 
Capital outlays 23,139,503 39,791 23,179,294 

Total expenditures 2,428,644 23,139,503 ( 34,473,:,790) 33,888,379 93,930,316 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures 4,708,161 (6,031,813) (927,962) 289,878 (1,961,736) 

Other Hnancing Uses - Transfers Out (4,411,69sl (3,560,221) (7,971,9191 

Net changt.l in ftmd balances 296,463 (9,592,034) (927,962) 289,878 (9,933,655) 

Fund Balanc~s at July I, 2017 2,280,451 97,005,401 4,656,650 2,317,471 106,259,973 

I1und Balances nt June 30, 2018 $ 2,576,914 $ 87,413,367 $ 3,728,688 $ 2,607,349 $ 96,326,318 

Tho accompanying notes are ru1 integral part of this statement. 

28 



Ha\yaii Public Housing Authority 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

Year Ended June 30, 2017 -
Housing Section 8 Total 

Capital Choice Contract Governmental 
General Projects Voucher Administration Fw1ds 

Revenues: ✓ lntergovemmental - HUD annual contributions and others $ $ C[ 32,219,2~ $ 32,758,999 $ 64,978,293 
State allotted appropriations, net oflapsed funds of$1,515,532 8,714,416 33,783,211 42,497,627 
Other 470,130 521 470,651 

Total revenues 8,714,416 33,783,211 32,689,424 32,759,520 107,946,571 

➔ Expenditures: 

~ 58,1.!I) / o Housing assi~1ance payments 937,410 31,328,581 61,924,107 
Administration 50,072 866,666 1,104,165 2,020,903 
Pcrso1mel seivices 1,142,491 398,320 1,540,811 
Pt·ofessional services 25,983 86,238 65,594 177,815 
Tenant services 265,053 265,053 
Utilities 12,881 12,881 
Repairs 1md maintenance 3,447 41,040 44,487 
Security 1,982 806 2,788 
Insurance 237 4,430 4,667 
Capital outlays 30,573,078 30,573,078 

Total expenditures 2,161,622 30,573,078 0_1,333,5~ 32,498,340 96,566,590 

Excess ( deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures 6,552,794 3,210,133 1,355,874 261, 180 11,379,981 

Other Financing Uses - Transfers Out ~6,183,222) (4,748,446) (10,931,668) 

Net change in fund balances 369,572 (1,538,313) 1,355,874 261,180 448,313 

Fund Balances at July 1, 2016 1,910,879 98,543,714 3,300,776 2,056,291 105,811,660 

Fund Balances at June 3(), 2017 $ 2,280,451 $ 97,005,401 $ 4,656,650 $ 2,317,471 $ 106,259,973 

The accompanying notes are rut integral part of this statement. 

28 



Hav.:aii Public Housing Authority 

GOVERNMENI'AL FUNDS 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDffiJRES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

Year Ended June 30, 2016 -
Housing Section 8 Total 

Capital Choice Con1ract Governmental 
General Projects Voucher Ad mini strati on Funds 

Revenues: 
✓ lntergovemmentnl -- HUD nnnual contributions and others $ $ ce: 30,474,a, $ 32,381,851 $ 62,856,522 

State allotted appropriations, net of lapsed funds of$l,S 15,532 6,626,279 9,545,185 16,171,464 
Other 28,749 196 28,945 

Total revenues 6,626,279 9,545,185 30,503,420 32,382,047 79,056,931 

--,, Expenditures: 
G 1,101,2i) / <1 Housing assistance payments 405,632 31,180,118 59,287,015 

Administration 13,205 631,799 926,047 1,571,051 
Personnel services 55,269 1,219,928 1,275,197 
Professi onnl services 19,805 51 ,995 19,436 91,236 
Tenant services 134,082 134,082 
Utilities 43 14,094 14,137 
Repairs and maintenance 2,467 45,684 48,151 
Security 801 801 
Insurance 3,103 3,103 
Capital outlays 311968,960 31,9681960 

Total expenditures 496,421 311968,960 C:29,802,~ir) 32,125,601 94,393,733 

Excess (deficiency) ofrevenues over (under) expenditures 6,129,858 (22,423,775) 700,669 256,446 (15,336,802) 

Other Financing Uses - Transfers Out C4,848,752l ~5,805,440) o o,654.I 92l 

Net chnnge in fund bnlances 1,281,106 (28,229,215) 700,669 256,446 (25,990,994) 

Fund Balances at July 1, 2015 629,773 126,772,929 2,6001107 1,799,845 131,802,654 

Fund Balances at June 30, 2016 $ 1,910,879 $ 98,543,714 $ 3,300,776 $ 2,056,291 $ 105,811,660 

'The nccornpan:,,ing notes are an integral part of this statement. 

27 



mm;aii Public Housing Authority 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITIJR.ES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

Year Ended June 30, 2015 - Housing Section 8 Total 
Capital Choice Contract Governmental 

General Projects Voucher Administration Funds 
Revenues: ✓ lntergovenunental - HUD annuul contributions and others $ $ Ci 26.112,337) $ 31,345,995 $ 57,458,330 

State nllolted appropriations, net oflapsed funds of $727,989 5,065,920 20,491,865 25,557,785 
Other 35,663 202 35,865 

Total revenues 5,065,920 20,491,865 26,147,998 31,3461197 83,051,980 

7 Expenditures: ✓ 0 Housing assistance pa)met1ts 375,831 ~ s9_s.:i3u 30,191,484 55,166,050 
Personnel services 384,247 403,112 73,004 860,363 
Administration 119,330 685,099 2,524 806,953 
Professi 011a) services 45,807 29,294 19,818 94,919 
Security 220 587 807 
Repairs and mnintennnce 9,059 10,747 19,806 
Utilities 19,222 29,637 48,859 
Project 877,252 877,252 
Capital outlays 26,137 13,512,910 13,539,047 
Other 27,197 66,203 1,497 94,897 

Total expenditures 1,007,050 13,512,910 '3s23,4½) 31,165,579 71,508,953 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures 4,058,870 6,978,955 324,584 180,618 11,543,027 

Other Financing Uses • Transfers Out { 4,095,362~ (1,968,856~ ps1.034l (6,251,252} 

Net chnuge in fund balances (36,492) 5,010,099 324,584 (6,416) 5,291,775 

Fuud Balances at July I, 2014 666,265 121z762.830 2,275,523 1,806,261 126,510,879 

Fund Balances at June 30, 2015 $ 629,773 $ 126?72,929 $ 2,6001107 $ 1,799,845 $ 1312802,654 

TI1e nccompan.ying notes are an integral part of this statement. 

26 



Ha\\'.nii Public Housing Authority 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPEND11URES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

Year ended June 30, 2014 ---
Housing Section 8 Total 

Capitnl Choice Contract Governmental 
General Projects Voucher Administration Funds 

✓ Revenues: 

<r" Intergovernmental - HUD annual contributions and others $ $ 23,832,63.i) $ 28,800,635 $ 52,633,273 
State allotted appropriations, nct oflapsed funds of$729,459 5,031,490 44,598,403 49,629,893 
Other 28,4 14 191 28,605 

Total revenues 5,03 1,490 44,598,403 23,861,052 28,800,826 102,291,771 

➔ Expenditures: 
(I Housing assistance payments 456,380 27,645,657 52,136,987 / 

Personnel services 395,484 60,066 1,079,611 
Admini~iration 163,190 886,673 1,733,lll 
Professional services 32,531 39,988 1()2,031 

Security 235 235 
Repairs imd maintenance 279 279 
Capital outlays 10,662 14,626,430 14,637,092 
Other 29,629 64,345 93,974 

Total expenditures 1,088,390 14,626,430 U5,436,1ii) 28,632,384 69,783,320 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures 3,943,100 29,971,973 (1,575,064) 168,442 32,508,451 

Other Financing Uses - Transfers Out !4:270.5212 (2,201,929} (209,6 112 (6,682,06 12 

Net change in fond balances (327,421) 27,770,044 (1,575,064) (41,169) 25,826,390 

Fund Balances at July 1, 201.3 993,686 93,992,786 3,850,587 1,847,430 100,684,489 

Fund Bnlnnces 11t Jtme 30, 2014 $ 666,265 $ 121,762,830 $ 2,275,523 $ 1,806,261 $ 126,510,879 

'The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 

26 



1-Ia'Vaii Public Housing Authority 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

Year ended June 30, 2013 - Housing Section 8 Total 
Capital Choice Contract Govenunental 

General Projects Voucher Administration Funds 
Revenues: 

~ ✓ Intcrgovemmeittal - HUD annual contributions and others $ $ $ 25,551,741 $ 50,898,340 
State allotted appropriations, net oflapsed fu11ds of$3,366,246 4,827,015 88,236,288 93,063,303 
Other 11,987 185 12,172 

Total revenues 4,827,015 88,236,288 25,358,586 25,551,926 143,973,815 

➔ 
Expenditures: 

q ,199,508.J I c Housing assistance payments 523,786 24,380,061 49,103,355 
Personnel services 228,038 ,137,574 1,365,612 
Administration 99,352 1,007,811 950,464 2,057,627 
Professional services 29,298 26,647 46,013 101,958 
Security 12,311 12,311 
Repairs and maintenance 5,132 5,132 
Cnpital outlays 1,382 7,761,494 7,762,876 
Other 38,483 88,300 126,783 

Total expenditures 937,782 7,761,494 (Kf§v 25,376,538 60,535,654 

Excess (deficiency) ofrevenues over (under) expenditures 3,889,233 80,474,794 (1,101,254) 175,388 83,438,161 

Other Financing Uses - Transfers Out (3,742,519i (2,889,645) ~177,774) ~6,809,938) 

Net change in fond balances 146,714 77,585,149 (1,101,254) (2,386) 76,628,223 

Fund Balances at Jnly I, 2012 846,972 16,407,637 4,951,841 1,849,816 24,056,266 

Fund Bnlauces at June 30, 2013 $ 993,686 $ 93,992,786 $ 3,850,587 $ 1,847,430 $ 100,684,489 

'I11e accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 

27 



Hawaii Public Housing Authority 

GOVERNMENT AL FUNDS 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

Year ended June 30, 2012 --
Housing Section 8 Totul 

Capital Choice Contrnol Other Govemmentnl 
General Projects Voucher Administration Funds Funds 

Revenues: 

~ 25,263~ Intergovemmentnl - HUD annual contributions and others $ $ $ 27,011,608 $ $ 52,274,638 
State allotted appropriations, net of lapsed funds of $10,873,763 4,972,730 (10,388,061) (5,415,331) 
Other 16,825 184 17,009 

Total revenues 4,972,730 (10,388,061) 25,279,855 27,0111792 46,876,316 

Expenditures: 
t> Housing assistance payments 626,169 23,441,913 25,704,769 49,772,851 

Personnel services 63,160 ,170,978 1,234,138 
Admini~tration 47,865 791,037 1,009,676 1,848,578 
Professional Bervices 30,373 62,675 40,262 133,310 
Capital outlays 8,521,033 8,521,033 
Other 8,494 13,924 74,136 96,554 

Total expenditures 776,061 8,534,957 ( 2s,s§D 26,')54,707 61,606.464 

Ex:cess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expendil11res 4,196,669 (18,923,018) (260,884) 257,085 (14,730,148) 

Other Financing Uses - Transfers Out ! 4,S 40,628) (1,032,450~ (148,156) ~S,721,234)_ 

Net change in fund balances (343,959) (19,955,468) (260,884) 108,929 (20,451,382) 

Fund Balances at July 1, 2011 1,190,931 36,363,105 5,212,725 1,740,887 44,507,648 

Fund Balances at June 30, 2012 $ 846,972 $ 16,407,637 $ 4,951 ,841 $ 1,849,816 $ $ 24,056,266 
m 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 

27 



Hawaii Publio Housing Authority 

GOVERNNIBNTALFUNDS 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

Year ended June 30~ 

Housing Section 8 Total 
Capital Choice Contract Other Governmental 

General Projects Voucher Administration Funds Funds 
Revenues: 

~ 21,347,~ ✓ Intergovemmcn!lll - HUD annual contributions nnd others $ $ $ 26,879,928 $ 143,998 $ 48,371,213 
State allotted appropriations, net of lapsed funds of $690,489 5,179,140 4,094,436 9,273,576 
Other 33,956 114 34,070 

Total revenues 5,179,140 4,094,436 21,381,243 26,880,o42 143,998 57,678,859 

-t E.xpenditures: / • Housing assistance payment9 725,279 6 ,362,BV 25,155,731 45,243,145 
Personnel services 62,422 1,141,723 1,204,145 
Administration 18,974 840,966 1,209,676 78,998 2,148,614 
Professional services 24,570 45,911 38,763 109,244 
Security 240 803 1,043 
Repairs and mnintenanoe 1,781 1,781 
hlsurance 3,885 3,885 
Capital outlays 12,773,703 12,773,703 
Other 15,273 494 57,329 73,096 

Total expe11diturcH 848,539 12,774,197 C:21,4;;-;LJ 26,404,170 78,998 61,558,656 

Excess (deficiency) ofnwenues over (under) expenditures 4,330,601 (8,679,761) (71,509) 475,872 65,000 (3,879,797) 

Nonoperating Expenditure - IntCTest Income 3,718 3,718' 

Intergovernmental Transfer (1,813,362) (1,813,362) 

Other Financing (Uses) Sources • Transfers (Out) In (4,566,482) (264,897) 97,983 (65,oooi (4,798,396~ 

Net change in fund balances (2,049,243) (8,944,658) 30,192 475,872 (10,487,837) 

Fund Balanoes at July 1, 2010 3!240,174 45,307,763 5,182,533 1!265!015 54,995,485 

Fund Balances at June 30, 2011 $ 1,190,931 $ 36,363,105 $ 5,212,725 $ 1,740,887 $ $ 44,507,648 

The accompanying notes are an integral prut of this statement. 

25 



Ha>,yaii Public Housing Authority 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

Year ended June 30, 2010 -- Housing Section 8 Total 
Capital Choice c~mtrnct Other Govenuncntnl 

General Projects Voucher Administration Funds Funds 

7 Revenues: ([_ ✓ lntergovelllln entnl - HUD annual contributions 11nd others $ $ 20,691,06u $ 25,235,780 $ 2,305,599 $ 48,232,446 

Stale allotted appropriations, net of lapsed funds of $1,120,026 24,529,142 24,323,000 48,852,142 

Other 79288 39,776 160 119,224 

Total revenues 24,6081430 24,323,000 201730,843 25,235,940 2,305,599 97,203,812 

'-7 Expenditures: 
G ,604.91J ✓ 848,606 23,548,385 44,001,905 o Housing assistance payments 

Homeless services 17,891,737 17,891,737 

Personnel services 451,634 1,135,673 1,587,307 

Administration 83,243 832,877 1,178,749 2,240,099 4,334,968 

Professional services 85,545 65,852 42,541 193,938 

Security 605 605 

Repairs and maintenance 3,836 912 4,748 

lnsurn11ce 6,376 14,463 20,839 

Capital outlays 2,473,800 7,788,278 10,262,078 

Other 79,609 281097 107,706 

Total expenditures 21,924,386 7,788,278 Q ,683,39~ 24,769,675 2,240,099 78,405,831 

Excess (d:ficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures 2,684,044 16,534,722 (952,550) 466,265 65,500 18,797,981 

Nonopernting Expenditun, - Jillerest Jiloome 76,475 76,475 

Intergovernmental Traru,fer (117,639) (117,639) 

Other Financing (Uses) Sources - Transfers (Out) In (3,440,957) 65,500 (51,882) (65,500) (3,492,839) 

Net change in fund balances (756,913) 16,417,083 (810,575) 414,383 15,263,978 

Fund Balances at July 1, 2009 4,001,686 28,890,680 6,044,060 850,632 39,787,058 

Fund Balances at Juno 30, 2010 $ 3,244,773 $ 45,307,763 $ 5,233,485 s 1,265,015 $ $ = 55,051,036 

The accompanying notes ere an integral part of this statement. 

24 



Ha~aii Public Housing Authority 

GOVERNMENT AL FUNDS 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

Revenues 
, Intergovernmental - HUD annual contributions and others 

State allotted appropriations, net of lapsed funds of $488,203 

Other 

Total revenues 

~ Expenditures 
{ o Housing assistance payments 

Homeless services 
Grants 
Personnel services 
Administration 
Professional services 
Security 
Repairs and maintenance 
Insurance 
Capital outlays 

Other 

Total expenditures 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 

OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES 

Nonoperating EXpenditure • Interest Expense 

Other Financing (Uses) Sources • Transfers (Out) In 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 

Fund Bnlances at July 1, 2008 

Fund Bnlances at June 30, 2009 

$ 

$ 

Year ended June 30, 2009 

-------
General 

21,445,740 

426,496 

21,872,236 

866,497 
16,779,427 

865,637 
882,637 

54,140 

6,165 
10,959 
22,386 

19,487,848 

2,384,388 

(205) 

(4,172,384) 

(1 ,788,201) 

5,789,887 

4,001,686 $ 

Capital 

Projects 

300,000 

675,587 

4,648,290 

5,623,877 

(5,623,877) 

(1,048,624) 

(6,672,501) 

35,563,181 

28,890,680 $ 

Housing 

Choice 
Voucher 

20,578~ 

32,170 

20,610,560 

1,260,910 
812,071 
65,615 

840 
780 

17,068 

16,805 

$ 

Section 8 
Contract 

Administration 

23,632,408 

191 

23,632,599 

22,021,594 

5,331 
1,335,292 

4,636 

ug,674,32!) ___ 23-,3_6_6 __ ,8_53_ 

(63,769) 

(78,857) 

45,011 

(97,615) 

6,141,675 

6,044,060 

265,746 

(385,124) 

(119,378) 

970,010 

$ 850,632 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 

24 

$ 

$ 

Other 
Funds 

2,120,065 

2,120,065 

2,075,054 

2,075,054 

45,011 

(45,011) 

Total 
Governmental 

Funds 

$ 46,330,863 
21,445,740 

458,857 

68,235,460 

✓ 

41,388,331 / 

16,779,427 
300,000 

2,131,878 
5,105,054 

124,391 
840 

682,532 

28,027 
4,670,676 

16,805 

71,227,961 

(2,992,501) 

(79,062) 

(5,606,132) 

{8,677,695) 

48,464,753 

$ 39,787,058 



Attachment B 

< Back to report HOUSING ASSISTANCE PAYMENTS COMPARED TO BUDGET AUTHORITY SINCE 2015 SU BSIDY ~l PHA SUBSIDY HPHA 
RECEIVED FROM HUD FALSElV REPORTED TO HU 

Month Date ® G)IT USED(w ,THEST 

;a. Wednesday. May 31 , 2023 $4,724,816 $4,581,858 

Friday, June 30, 2023 $4,724,816 $4,602,981 

Monday, July 31. 2023 $4,724,816 $4,771 ,388 

Thursday, August 31, 2023 $4,724.816 $4,754,983 

Saturday, September 30, 2023 $4,750.418 $4,758,458 

Tuesday, October 31, 2023 $4,770,195 $4,799.029 

Thursday, November 30, 2023 $4,779,483 $4,700,666 

Sunday, December 31, 2023 $4,779,483 $4,654,048 -Wednesday, January 31 , 2024 $4,792,046 $4,910,268 

Thursday, February 29, 2024 $4,782,859 $4,936,301 

Sunday, March 31, 2024 $4,782,859 $5,001,460 

Tuesday, April 30, 2024 $4,772,962 $5,022,167 

Friday, May 31 , 2024 $4,784,161 $4,946,118 

Sunday, June 30, 2024 $4,772,962 $4,872,663 

Wednesday, JulY, 31 , 2024 $4,772.962 $4,783,226 
A. Saturday, August 31 , 2024 $4,772,962 $4,798,785 

Monday, September 30, 2024 $4,747.360 $4,747,784 

Thursday, October 31 , 2024 $4,721 ,563 $4,763,203 

Saturday, November 30, 2024 $5,335.1 17 $4,584.465 

Tuesday, December 31. 2024 $4,797,035 $4,624,308 

~ lay, January 31 , 2025 $5,527.214 $4,816,742 

Friday, February 28, 2025 $5,527,214 $4,802,322 

Monday. March 31, 2025 $5,527,214 $4,776,397 

Wednesday, April 30, 2025 $5,527,214 $4,715,657 

Saturday, May 31 , 2025 $5,527,214 $4,596,494 

Monday, June 30, 2025 $5,527,214 $4,600,267 

Thursday, July 31 , 2025 $5,527,214 $4,587,468 
16 2018 2020 2022 2024 



( Back to report 

e BA e HAP 

$8M 

i?M 

$6M 

~SM 

S4M 

$3M 

52M 

$1M 
2016 

HOUSING ASSISTANCE PAYMENTS COMPARED TO BUDGET AUTHORITY SINCE 2015 

2018 2020 2022 2024 

Month Date BA HAP 

Wednesday, March 3i , 2021 $3,143,356 $3,735,667 

Friday, April 30, 2021 $3,143,356 $3,688,093 

Monday, May 31 , 2021 $3,143,427 $3,691 ,644 

Wednesday, June 30. 2021 $3,143,427 $3,687,684 

Saturday, July 31 , 2021 $3,143,427 $3 ,785,797 

Tuesday, August31 , 2021 $3,144,722 $3,850,409 

Thursday, September 30, 2021 $3,223,754 $3 ,701.784 

Sunday, October 31 , 2021 $3,144,722 $3,748,537 

Tuesday, NJvember 30, 2021 $3,143,499 $3,743,025 

Friday, December 31 , 2021 $7,927,909 $3 ,725,851 

Monday, January 31 , 2022 $4,299,418 $4,099,244 

Monday, February 28, 2022 $4,298,123 $4,074,367 

Thursday, March 31 , 2022 $4,298,123 $4,050,772 

Saturday, April 30, 2022 $4,405,258 $4.033,839 

Tuesday, May 31 , 2022 $4,296,829 $4,028,864 

Thursday, JJne 30, 2022 $4,296,829 $4,191 ,632 

Sunday, July 31 , 2022 $4,296,829 $4,058,262 

Wednesday, August 31 , 2022 $4,295,534 $4,171,866 

Friday, September 30, 2022 $4,295,534 $4,565,794-

Monday, O:tober 31, 2022 $4,330,802 $4,255,915 

Wednesday, November 30, 2022 $4,330,802 $4,540,804 

Saturday, December 31 , 2022 $4,516,282 $6,024,659 

Tuesday, January 31 , 2023 $4,705,732 $4,514,040 

Tuesday, February 28, 2023 $4,714,919 $4,507,374 

Friday, March 31 , 2023 $4,714,919 $4,505,074 

Sunday, April 30, 2023 $4,724,816 $4,517,780 

Wednesday, May 31 , 2023 $4,724,816 $4,581 ,858 



< Back to report HOUSING ASSISTANCE PAYMENTS COMPARED TO BUDGET AUTHORITY SINCE 2015 

Month Date BA HAP 

Thursday, January 31 , 2019 $2,648,969 $2,912,769 

Thursday, February 28, 2019 $2,682,012 $2,778,792 

Sunday, March 31 , 2019 $2,682,012 $2,799,906 

Tuesday, April 30, 2019 $2,682,012 $2,829,560 

HM Frida~May31, 2019 $2,682,012 $2,857,890 

Sunday, June 30, 2019 $2,682,012 $2,792,960 

Wednesday, July 31, 2019 $2,682,012 $2,969,266 

Saturday, August 31 , 2019 $2,682,012 $2,837,151 

$6M Monday, September 30, 2019 $2,682,012 $2,894,388 

Thursday, October 31, 2019 $2,682,012 $2,945,298 

Saturday, November 30, 2019 $2,682,012 $2,940,218 

Tuesday, December 31 , 2019 $2,682,012 $2,913,761 
$SM Friday, January 31 , 2020 $2,967,625 $2,902,836 

Saturday, February 29, 2020 $2,958,179 $2,937,364 

Tuesday, March 31 , 2020 $2,959,293 $2,896,156 

$4M 
Thursday, April 30, 2020 $2,959,293 $3,033.422 

Sunday, May 31 , 2020 $2,961 ,222 $3,084,678 

Tuesday, June 30, 2020 $2,960,516 $3,103,575 

Friday, July 31 , 2020 $2,960,516 $3,036,446 

$3M Monday, August 31 , 2020 $2,960,516 $3,067,238 

Wednesday, September 30, 2020 $4,960,516 $3,068,734 

Saturday, October 31, 2020 $2,960,516 $3,039,654 

Monday, November 30, 2020 $3,992,348 $3,016,979 

$2M TI1ursday1 December 31 , 2020 $2,961 ,739 $2,937,086 

Sunday, January 31 , 2021 $3,166,772 $3,657,151 

Sunday, February 28, 2021 $3,144,470 $3,727,141 

Wednesday, March 31 , 2021 $3,143,356 $3,735,667 
$1M !J:...-j,...".:llu /\n.-il 'lfl "lf\"J1 .<t':! 1 , 1'.! ,i;_h <t, e;:QQ no:i 

2016 2018 2020 2022 2024 



< Back to report 

e sA . HAP 

S8M 

S7M 

$6M 

SSM 

$4M 

BM 

52M 

$1M 
2016 

HOUSING ASSISTANCE PAYMENTS COMPARED TO BUDGET AUTHORITY SINCE 2015 

2018 2020 2022 2024 

Month Date BA HAP 

Wednesday, November 30, 2016 $2,216,742 $2,414,761 

Saturday, December 31 , 2016 $2,216,742 $2,367,201 

Tuesday, January 31 , 2017 $2,394,727 $2,442,589 

Tuesday, February 28, 2017 $2,410,485 $2,491 ,800 

Friday, March 31 , 2017 $2,410,485 $2,522,717 

Sunda¼April30,2017 $2,410,485 $2,518,316 

Wednesday, May 31 , 2017 $2,410,485 $2,495,352 

Friday, Ju ne 30, 2017 $2,410,485 $2,457,568 

Monday, Ju ly 31 , 2017 $2,410,485 $2,661 ,951 

Thursday, August 31, 2017 $2,410,485 $2,599,039 

Saturday, September 30, 2017 $2,365,569 $2,624,012 

Tuesday, October 31, 2017 $2,454,813 $2,622,478 

Thursday, November 30, 2017 $2,365,569 $2,623,593 

Sunday, December 31 , 2017 $2,365,569 $2,616,547 

Wednesday, January 31 , 2018 $2,821,513 $2,623,618 

Wednesday, February 28, 2018 $2,805,755 $2,599,270 

Saturday, March 31 , 2018 $2,805,755 $2,594,409 

Monday, April 30, 2018 $2,805,755 $2,575,525 

Thursday, May 31 , 2018 $2,805,755 $2,570,811 

Saturday, June 30, 2018 $2,830,174 $2,471 ,266 

Tuesday, July 31 , 2018 $2,805,755 $2,705,959 

Friday, August 31 , 2018 $2,805,755 $2,587,505 

Sunday, September 30, 2018 $2,805,755 $2,559,297 

Wednesday, October 31 , 2018 $2,805,755 $2,667,340 

Friday, November 30, 2018 $2,805,755 $2,665,572 

Monday, December 31 , 2018 $2,805,755 $2,647,647 

Thursday, January 31 , 2019 $2,648,969 $2,912,769 



( Back to report HOUSING ASSISTANCE PAYMENTS COMPARED TO BUDGET AUTHORITY SINCE 2015 

Month Date BA HAP 

Saturday, January 31 , 2015 $2,119,059 $2,006,408 

Saturday, February 28, 2015 $2,119,059 $1.974.470 

Tuesday, March 31 , 2015 $2,119,059 $2,002,958 

Thursday, April 30, 2015 $2,119,059 $2,089,317 

$7M Sunday, May 31, 2015 $2,119,059 $2,157,804 

Tuesday, June 30, 2015 $2,119,059 $2,143.496 

Friday, Ju ly 31 , 2015 $2,143,521 $2,200,578 

Monday, August 31, 2015 $2,141,945 $2,244,5-84 
S6M Wednesday, September 30, 2015 $2,127,255 $2,179,043 

Saturday, October 31 , 2015 $2,071.432 $2,327,518 

Monday, November 30, 2015 $2,071.432 $2,168,116 

$SM 
Thursday, December 31, 2015 $2,079,015 $2,230.371 

Sunday, January 31 , 2016 $2,194,712 $2,335,1 50 

Monday, February 29, 2016 $2,194,712 $2,303,614 

Thursday, March 31 , 2016 $2,194,712 $2,288,099 

$4M Saturday, April 30, 2016 $2,194,712 $2,326,072 

Tuesday, May 31, 2016 $2,194,712 $2,342,657 

Thursday, June 30, 2016 $2,194,712 $2,351,782 

Sunday, July 31 , 2016 $2,194.712 $2,386,543 

$3M Wednesday, August 31 , 2016 $2,171 ,826 $2,371 ,478 

Friday, September 30, 2016 $2,216,742 $2,393,815 

Monday, October 31 , 2016 $2,216,742 $2,389,011 

Wednesday, November 30, 2016 $2,216,742 $2,414,761 
$2M Saturday, December 31, 2016 $2,216,742 $2,367,201 

Tuesday, January 31 , 2017 $2,394,727 $2,442,589 

Tuesday, Febrnary28, 2017 $2,410,485 $2,491 ,800 

Friday, March 31 , 2017 $2,410,485 $2,522,717 
$1M .. - - -- . - -- - - - - - - --- - -- - -

2016 2018 2020 2022 2024 



< Back to report UMAS AND UMLS FOR HCV PROGRAM SINCE 2015 

t u~. A • u L • % Leasing Utilization 

500 

00 

500 

000 

00 

0 

500 
2016 2018 2. 20 2022 20 4 

Attachment C 

VOUCHERS 
HUD ISSUED • USED 

85% Wednesday, May 31, 2023 

Friday, June 30, 2023 

Monday. July 31. 2023 

Thursday. August 31, 2023 

Saturday, September 30, 2023 

Tuesday, October 31, 2023 

Thursday, November 30. 2023 

759~ 1day, December 31, 2023 

Wednesday, January 31 , 2024 

Thursday, February 29, 2024 

Sunday, March 31. 2024 

O-'o Tuesday, April 30, 2024 

Friday, May 31, 2024 

Sunday, June 30, 2024 

Wednesday, July 31 , 2024 

65"'o Saturday, August 31, 2024 

Monday, September 30, 2024 

Thursday, October 31 , 2024 

Saturday, November 30, 2024 
O"o Tuesday, December 31, 2024 -. 

Friday, January 31 , 2025 

SS ~o 

Friday, February 28, 2025 

Monday, March 31, 2025 

Wednesday, April 30, 2025 

Saturday, May 31, 2025 

Monday, June 30, 2025 

50'Jo Thursday, July 31, 2025 

% Leasing Utilization 

4,248 3,521 82.89% 

4,248 3,526 83.00% 

4,248 3,5 15 82.74% 

4,248 3,515 82.74% 

4,268 3,514 82.33%· 

4,311 3,522 81.70% 

4,321 3,527 81.62% 

4.321 3,521 81.49% 

4,319 3,380 78.26% 

4,319 3,375 78.14% 

4,319 3.373 78.10% 

4,3 19 3,367 77.96% 

4,319 3,359 77.77% 

4,319 3,363 77.87% 

4,319 3,359 77.77% 

4,319 3,346 77.47% 

4,319 3,346 77.47% 

4,341 3,341 76.96% 

4.360 3,340 76.61 % 

4,379 3,321 75.84% 

4,379 3,223 73.60% 

4,379 3,221 73 .56% 

4,379 3.205 73.19% 

4.379 3,199 73.05% 

4,379 3,193 72.92% 

4,379 3,112 71.07% 

4,379 3,086 70.47% 



< Back to report LIMAS AND UMLS FOR HCV PROGRAM SINCE 2015 

t UMA e u~ L % Leasing Utilization MonthDate UMA UML % Leasing Utilization 

1,500 85°0 Saturday. July 31, 2021 3,853 3.233 83.91 % 

Tuesday, August 31 , 2021 3,854 3,229 83.78% 

Thursday, September 30, 2021 3,854 3,232 83.86% 

Sunday, October 31, 2021 3,854 3,223 83.63% 

80% Tuesday, November 30, 2021 3,854 3,219 83.52% 
1000 

Friday, December 31, 2021 3,854 3,212 83.34% -, ,! Monday, January 31, 2022 4.201 3,508 83.50% 

--., r-' Monday. February 28, 2022 4,201 3,501 83.34% 
"?r.:. . · 
I :) J1,) Thursday, March 31, 2022 4,201 3,515 83.67% 

l, 00 Saturday, April 30, 2022 4,201 3,518 83.74% 

Tuesday. May 31 , 2022 4,201 3,517 83.72% 

Thursday, June 30, 2022 4,201 3,516 83.69% 
70% 

SLrnday, July 31, 2022 4,201 3,519 83.77% 

woo Wednesday, August 31, 2022 4,201 3,517 83.72% 

Friday, September 30, 2022 4,201 3,520 83.79% 

65% Monday, October 31, 2022 4,229 3,520 83.23% 

Wednesday, November 30, 2022 4,229 3,524 83.33% 

Saturday. December 31, 2022 4,229 3,529 83.45% 
' ,500 -Tuesday. January 31. 2023 4,230 3.493 82.58% 

60g, Tuesday, February 28, 2023 4,240 3.498 82.50% 

Friday, March 31, 2023 4,240 3,497 82.48% 

Sunday, April 30, 2023 4,248 3,501 82.42% 

UJOO Wednesday, May 31, 2023 4,248 3,521 82.89% 
55,o Friday, June 30, 2023 4,248 3,526 83.00% 

Monday. July 31, 2023 4,248 3,515 82.74% 
Thursday, August 31 , 2023 4,248 3,515 82.74% 

Saturday, September 30, 2023 4,268 3,514 82.33% 
1.5 0 50<}~ -

2016 2018 2020 l022 202·1 



< Back to report UMAS AND UMLS FOR HCV PROGRAM SINCE 2015 

8 UMA • UML . % Leasi ng Uti lization 

1500 

l 000 

) 500 

l,000 

!,000 

.500 
2016 20'18 2020 2022 2024 

MonthDate 

85% Friday, May 31 , 2019 

Sunday. June 30, 2019 

Wednesday, July 31, 2019 

SatLirday, August 31, 2019 
BO<;a Monday, September 30, 2019 

Thursday, October 31 , 2019 

Saturday, November 30, 2019 

Tuesday, December 31. 2019 
75-· -

'lo Friday, January 31 , 2020 

70% 

Saturday, February 29, 2020 

Tuesday, March 31 , 2020 

Thursday, April 30, 2020 

Sunday, May 31 , 2020 

Tuesday, June 30, 2020 

Friday, July 31. 2020 

65% Monday, August 31 , 2020 
Wed11esd ay, September 30, 2020 

Saturday, October 31 , 2020 

Monday, November 30. 2020 

60% Thursday, December 31 , 2020 ---Sunday, January 31, 2021 

Sunday, Februa1y 28, 2021 

Wednesday, March 31, 2021 
5S% Friday, April 30, 2021 

Monday, May 31 , 2021 

Wednesday, June 30, 2021 

Saturday, July 31 , 2021 
50% 

UMA UML % Leasing Utilization 

3,820 2,397 62.75% 

3,820 2,405 62.96% 

3,820 2,389 62.54% 

3,820 2,381 62.33% 

3,820 2,379 62.28% 

3,820 2,390 62.snb 

3,820 2,41 3 63.17% 

3,820 2,408 63.04% 
3,820 2,404 62.93% 

3,848 2,393 62.19% 

3,849 2,403 62.43% 

3,849 2,411 62.64% 
3,850 2,410 62.60% 

3,850 2,428 63.06% 
3,850 2,409 62.57% 

3,850 2,408 62.55% 

3.850 2,414 62.70% 

3,850 2,414 62.70% 

3,851 2,417 62.76% 
3,851 2,416 62.74% 

3,851 3,044 79:04% 

3,852 3,205 83.20% 

3,852 3,227 83.77% 

3,852 3,231 83.88% 

3,853 3,235 83.96% 
3,853 3,245 84.22% 
3,853 3,233 83.91 % 



< Back to report UMAS AND UMLS FOR HCV PROGRAM SINCE 2015 

t UMA e urvll • o Leasing Utilization 

,500 

000 

"00 

000 

' 00 
2016 20'18 2020 2022 .W24 

859& 

SO% 

75% 

Month Date 

Friday, March 31, 2017 

Sunday, April 30, 2017 

Wednesday, May 31, 2017 

Friday, June 30, 2017 

Monday, My 31, 2017 

Thursday, AugL1st 31 , 2017 

Saturday, September 30, 2017 

Tuesday. October 31, 2017 

Thursday, November 30. 2017 

Sunday, December 31, 2017 -Wednesday, January 31, 2018 

JO% Wednesday, February 28. 2018 

Saturday. March 31, 2018 

Monday, April 30, 2018 

Thursday, May 31 , 2018 

65% Saturday, June 30. 2018 

Tuesday, JLily 31, 2018 

Friday, August 31, 2018 

Sunday, September 30, 2018 

60:o Wednesday, October 31 , 2018 

Friday, November 30, 2018 

Monday, December 31 , 2018 

1 ursday, January 31. 2019 
55% Thursday, February 28, 2019 

Sunday, March 31 , 2019 

Tuesday. April 30, 2019 

Friday, May 31 , 2019 
50:'o 

UMA UML % Leasing Utilization 

3,785 2,298 60.71 % 

3,785 2,313 61 .11% 

3.785 2,309 61.00% 

3,785 2,294 60,61% 

3,785 2,294 60.61% 

3,785 2,339 61.80% 

3,785 2,363 62.43% 

3,785 2,356 62.25% 

3,785 2.343 61 .90% 

3,785 2,341 61.85% 

3,785 2,348 62.03% 

3,785 2,347 62.01 % 

3,785 2,335 61.69% 

3,785 2,319 61.27% 

3,785 2,323 61 .37% 

3,785 2,315 61.16% 

3,785 2.298 60.71 % 

3,785 2,286 60.40% 

3,785 2,274 60.08% 

3,785 2,335 61.69% 

3,785 2,375 62.75% 

3,785 2,355 62.22% 

3,785 2,351 62.11% 

3,820 2.363 61.86% 

3,820 2,375 62.17% 

3,820 2,392 62.62% 

3,820 2,397 62.75% 



( Back to report UMAS AND UMLS FOR HCV PROGRAM SINCE 2015 

t u v!A • uML 

1,500 

% Leasing Uti lization 

l 000 

),500 

:,coo 

'500 

'U(",(i 

20'16 2018 2020 2022 2024 

85% 

80% 

Month Date 

Saturday, January 31. 2015 
Saturday, Februa1y 28, 2015 
Tuesday, March 31, 2015 
Thursday, April 30, 2015 

Sur1day, May 31 , 2015 

Tuesday. June 30, 2015 

Friday, July 31 , 2015 

Monday, August 31, 2015 

Wednesday. September 30, 2015 

Saturday, October 31, 2015 

Monday, November 30, 2015 

Thursday, December 31, 2015 
70% -

Sunday, January 31 , 2016 

Monday, Febrw,ry 29, 2016 

Thursday, March 31 , 2016 

Saturday, April 30, 2016 

Tuesday, May 31, 2016 

Thursday, June 30, 2016 

Sunday, July 31, 2016 

0% Wednesday, August 31 , 2016 
Friday, September 30, 2016 

Monday, October 31 , 2016 

Wednesday, November 30, 2016 
55% Saturday, December 31 , 2016 -Tuesday. January 31 , 2017 

Tuesday, February 28, 2017 

Friday, March 31 , 2017 
50% - .. - - - . -

UMA UML % Leasing Utilization 

3,678 1,933 52.56% 

3,678 1,940 52.75% 
3,678 1,956 53.18% 

3,678 2,027 55.11 % 

3,678 2,073 56,36% 

3,678 2,098 57,04% 

3,678 2,116 57.53% 

3,708 2,11 9 57.15% 

3,708 2,156 58.14% 

3,708 2,160 58.25% 

3,708 2,167 58.44% 

3,708 2,159 58.23% 

3,708 2,217 59.79% 

3,708 2,219 59.84% 

3,708 2,213 59.68% 

3,708 2,215 59.74% 

3,708 2,219 59.84% 

3,708 2,229 60.11 % 

3,708 2,244 60.52% 

3,708 2,250 60.68% 

3,765 2,252 59.81 % 

3,765 2.261 60.05% 

3,765 2,299 61.06% 

3,765 2,269 60.27% 

3,765 2,256 59.92% 

3,785 2,287 60.42% 

3,785 2,298 60.71 % 



9/20/25, 9:30 AM 

< Back to repo rt BUDGET AND UNIT UTILIZATION SINCE 2015 

% Budget Utiliza tion • % Leasing Utilization 

"140% 

120% 

100% 

80% 

O¾ 

40% 
2016 20 B 

Microsoft Power Bl 

2020 2022 2024 

Microsoft Power Bl 

Attachment D 
L \. G ✓ o wJ.vV }- tA,µJ/ 

MonthDate % Budget Utilization % Leasing Utilization 
-rntrml""", "!1Tfl..-rn!,....-,r-:,i,.,-,---,--..;e:=.=-===---r,nrn"7l"1::----0 0.64 o/o 62, /4 % 

Saturday, September 30, 2023 
Tuesday, October 31, 2023 

Thursday, November 30, 2023 
Sunday, December 31, 2023 

~ nesday, January 31, 2024 
Thursday, February 29, 2024 
Sunday, March 31, 2024 
Tuesday, April 30, 2024 

Friday, May 31 , 2024 
Sunday, June 30, 2024 
Wednesday, Jl1ly 31 , 2024 

Saturday, August 31 , 2024 

Monday, September 30, 2024 
Thursday, October 31, 2024 
Saturday, November 30, 2024 

Tuesday, December 31, 2024 

~ . January 31, 2025 
Friday, February 28, 2025 
Monday, March 31 , 2025 

Wednesday, April 30, 2025 
Saturday, May 31, 2025 
Monday, June 30, 2025 

< 12 of 14 > 

100.17% 
100.60% 

98.35% 
97.38% 

102.47% 
103.21 % 
104.57% 

105.22% 
103.39% 
102.09% 
100.22% 

100.54% 

100.01 % 
100.88% 
85.93% 
96.40% 

87.15% 
86.89% 
86.42% 

85.32% 
83.16% 
83.23% 

82.33% 
81.70% 

ai.62% 

81.49% 
78.26% 
78.14% o~~ 78.10% 
77.96% Pr~~-\ 0 lo 77.77% 
77.87% .l\s 
77.77% /\ 
77.47% 

77.47% 
76.96% 

76.61% 
75.84% 
73.60% 
73.56% 

73 .1 9% 
73.05% 
72.92% 
71.07% 

https://app.powerblgov.us/vlew?r=eyJrljolM2Y2OTQ2MTAtODVkNC00YmM2LThhOWEtZWY 4MGU5YWFmZDFmliwldCl6ljYxNTUyNGM 1 LTlyZTktNGJJZC 1 hODkzL TExODBhNTNmYzdiMiJ9 1/1 



9/20/25, 9:31 AM 

< Back to report BUDGET AND UNIT UTILIZATION SINCE 2015 

% Budget Utilization •% Leasing Ut ilization 

140% 

120% 

00% 

80% 

60% 

40% 
20 6 20 8 

Microsoft Power Bl 

2020 2D22 2024 

Microsoft Power Bl 

MonthDate % Budget Utilization % Leasing Utilization 

Friday, December 31, 2021 47,00% 83.34% 
~ day, January 31, 2022 95.34% 83.50% 

Monday, February 28, 2022 94.79% 83.34% 
Thursday, March 31, 2022 94.25% 83.67% 
Saturday, April 30, 2022 91 .57% 83.74% 

Tuesday, May 31, 2022 93.76% 83.72% 
Thursday, June 30, 2022 97.55% 83.69% 
Sunday, July 31, 2022 94.45% 83.77% 
Wednesday, August 31 , 2022 97.12% 83.72% 
Friday, September 30, 2022 106.29% 83.79% 
Monday, October 31 , 2022 98.27% 83.23% 
Wednesday, November 30, 2022 104.85% 83.33% 
Saturday, December 31, 2022 133.40% 83.45% 
~ 

82.58% Tuesday, January 31, 2023 95.93% 
Tuesday, February 28, 2023 95.60% 82.50% 
Friday, March 31, 2023 95.55% 82.48% 
Sunday, April 30, 2023 95.62% 82.42% 
Wednesday, May 31 , 2023 96.97% 82.89% 
Friday, June 30, 2023 97.42% 83.00% 
Monday, July 31, 2023 100.99% 82.74% 
Thursday, August 31, 2023 100.64% 82,74% 

Saturday, September 30, 2023 100.17% 82.33% 

< 12 of 14 > 
https://app.powerbigov.us/view?r=eyJ rljol M2Y20TQ2MTAtODVkNCOOYmM2L ThhOWEtZWY 4MGU5YWFmZD Fm liwldCl61jYxNTUyNGM 1 L TlyZTktNGJJZC 1 hODkzL TExO DBhNTNm YzdlMiJ9 

"'2,.-, 
J_o~ 

f 0~t t~rs 

1,,-'? r 
f<°°r:. ol 

/\ 0 

{b/{j;i 

il' 

1/1 



9/20/25, 9:31 AM 

< Back to report BUDGET AND UNIT UTILIZATION SINCE 2015 

• % Budget Utilization• % Leasing Utilization 

140% 

20Yn 

00% 

80% 

60% 

40% 
20 6 2018 

Microsoft Power Bl 

2020 2022 2024 

Microsoft Power Bl 

Month Date % Budget Utilization % Leasing Utilization 

Saturday, February 29, 2020 99.30% 62.19% 
Tuesday, March 31, 2020 97.87% 62.43% 
Thursday, April 30, 2020 102.50% 62.64% 
Sunday, May 31, 2020 104.17% 62.60% 
Tuesday, June 30, 2020 104.83% 63.06% 
Friday, July 31 , 2020 102.56% 62.57% 
Monday, August 31 , 2020 103.60% 62.S5% 
Wednesday, September 30, 2020 61.86% 62.70% 
Saturday, October 31 , 2020 102.67% 62.70% 
Monday, November 30, 2020 75.57% 62.76% 
Thursday, December 31, 2020 99.17% 62.74% --Sunday, January 31, 2021 115.49% 79.04% 
Sunday, February 28, 2021 118.53% 83.20% 
Wednesday, March 31, 2021 118.84% 83.77% 
Friday, April 30, 2021 117.33% 83.88% 
Monday, May 31, 2021 117.44% 83.96% 
Wednesday, June 30, 2021 117.31% 84.22% 
Saturday, July 31, 2021 120.44% 83.91% 
Tuesday, August 31, 2021 122.44% 83.78% 
Thursday, September 30, 2021 114.83% 83.86% 
Sunday, October 31, 2021 119.20% 83.63% 
Tuesday, November 30, 2021 119.07% 83.52% 
~rlrfa11 n,,,-,,mh"r ~1 ?n?1 d.711110/,. 1n~,1o;,. 

< 12 of 14 > 
ht1ps://app.powerblgov.us/view?r=eyJrljoiM2Y2OTQ2MTAtODVkNC00YmM2L ThhOWEtZWY 4MGU5YWFmZDFmliwidCl6IjYxNTUyNGM 1 LTlyZTktNGJJZC1 hODkzLTExODBhNTNmYzdlMIJ9 

i.o 1,,P 

rrs~ 
"'1-, · 

\ 
1,.01/ . 

tb*i 
~'7-~ 

1/1 



9/20/25, 9:31 AM 

< Back to report BUDGET AND UNIT UTILIZATION SINCE 2015 

% Budget Utilization • % Leasing Utilization 

140% 

120% 

i00% 

80% 

40 ¾, 
2016 2018 

Microsoft Power Bl 

2020 2022 2024 

Microsoft Power Bl 

Month Date % BL1dget Utilization % Leasing Utilization 

Thursday, May 31, 2018 91.63% 61.37% 
Saturday, June 30, 2018 87.32% 61.16% 
Tuesday, July 31, 2018 96.44% 60.71% 
Friday, August 31, 2018 92.22% 60.40% 
Sunday, September 30, 2018 91 .22% 60.08% 
Wednesday, October 31, 2018 95.07% 61.69% 
Friday, November 30, 2018 95.00% 62.75% 

~ ,day, December 31, 2018 94.36% 62.22% 
Thursday, January 31, 2019 109.96% 62.11% 
Thursday, February 28, 2019 103.61% 61.86% 
Sunday, March 31, 2019 104.40% 62.17% 
Tuesday, April 30, 2019 105.50% 62.62% 
Friday, May 31, 2019 106.56% 62.75% 
Sunday, June 30, 2019 104.14% 62,96% 
Wednesday, July 31, 2019 110.71% 62.54% 
Saturday, August 31, 2019 105.78% 62.33% 
Monday, September 30, 2019 107.92% 62.28% 
Thursday, October 31, 2019 109.82% 62.57% 
Saturday, November 30, 2019 109.63% 63.17% 
Tuesday, December 31, 2019 108.64% 63.04% 

...---rrrday, January 31, 2020 97.82% 62.93% 
Saturday, February 29, 2020 99.30% 62.19% 

< 12 of 14 > 
https:ffapp.powerblgov.us/vlew?r=eyJrljolM2Y2OTQ2MTAtO DVkNC00YmM2L ThhOWEtZWY 4MGU5YWFmZDFmliwidCl61JYxNTUyNGM 1 LT lyZTktNGJ JZC 1 hODkzL TExODBhNTNmYzdlMiJ9 

~\~ 
;}q;·~a~ 
~1,· 

~ 

1/1 



9/20/25, 9:32 AM 

< Back to report BUDGET AND UNIT UTILIZATION SINCE 2015 

• % Budget Utilization •% Leasing Utilizatio n 

140% 

120% 

100% 

60% 

40% 
2016 20 8 

Microsoft Power Bl 

2020 2022 2024 

Microsoft Power Bl 

Month Date % BLtdget Utilization % Leasing Utilization 
Jt!Tl 0 

Wednesday, August 31, 2016 109.19% 60.68% 
Friday, September 30, 2016 107.99% 59.81% 
Monday, October 31, 2016 107.77% 60.05% 
Wednesday, November 30, 2016 108.93% 61.06% 
Saturday, December 31, 2016 106.79% 60.27% ....-::-

102.00% Tuesday, January 31, 2017 59.92% 
Tuesday, February 28, 2017 103.37% 60.42% 
Friday, March 31, 2017 104.66% 60.71% 
Sunday, April 30, 2017 104.47% 61.11% 
Wednesday, May 31, 2017 103.52% 61.00% 
Friday, June 30, 2017 101.95% 60.61% 
Monday, July 31, 2017 110.43% 60.61% 
Thursday, August 31, 2017 107.82% 61,80% 
Saturday, September 30, 2017 110.93% 62.43% 
Tuesday, October 31, 2017 106.83% 62.25% 
Thursday, November 30, 2017 110.91% 61.90% 
Sunday, December 31, 2017 110.61% 61 .85% 

-we'dnesday, January 31, 2018 92.99% 62.03% 
Wednesday, February 28, 2018 92.64% 62.01% 
Saturday, March 31, 2018 92.47% 61.69% 
Monday, April 30, 2018 91.79% 61.27% 
Thursday, May 31, 2018 91 .63% 61.37% 

< 12 of 14 > 
https://app.powerblgov.us/view?r=eyJrljoiM2Y20TQ2MTAtODVkNC00YmM2LThhOWEtZWY 4MGU5YWFmZDFmliwidCl6ljYxNTUyNGM 1 LTlyZTktNGJjZC 1 hODkzL TExODBhNTNmYzdlMiJ9 

\/] 

ff°;!o ' 
\ o/o 

b ,.1--

o\Lt> 
J) 

~•\. 
~\.~ 

1/1 



9/20/25, 9:32 AM 

< Back to report BUDGET AND UNIT UTILIZATION SINCE 2015 

% 8ud9et Utilization •% Leasing Utilization 

140% 

12.0% 

100% 

GO% 

40% 
2016 20 8 

Microsoft Power Bl 

2020 2022 2024 

Microsoft Power Bl 

MonthDate % Budget Utilization % Leasing Utilization 

Saturday, January 31, 2015 94.68% 52.56% 
Saturday, February 28, 2015 93.18% 52.75% 
Tuesday, March 31, 2015 94.52% 53.18% 
Thursday, April 30, 2015 98.60% 55.11% 
Sunday, May 31, 2015 101.83% 56.36% 
Tuesday, June 30, 2015 101.15% 57.04% 
Friday, July 31, 2015 102.66% 57.53% 
Monday, August 31, 2015 104.79% 57.15% 
Wednesday, September 30, 2015 102.43% 58.14% 
Saturday, October 31, 2015 112.36% 58.25% 
Monday, November 30, 2015 104.67% 58.44% 
Thursday, December 31, 2015 107.28% 58.23% ...---
Sunday, January 31 , 2016 106.40% 59.79% 
Monday, February 29, 2016 104.96% 59.84% 
Thursday, March 31, 2016 104.26% 59.68% 
Saturday, April 30, 2016 105.99% 59.74% 
Tuesday, May 31, 2016 106.74% 59.84% 
Thursday, June 30, 2016 107.16% 60.11% 
Sunday, July 31, 2016 108.74% 60.52% 
Wednesday, August 31, 2016 109.19% 60.68% 
Friday, September 30, 2016 107.99% 59.81% 
Monday, October 31, 2016 107.77% 60.05% 
'~' -••• .. --•- ·· "'- ,_, •• 1 .. .. ""l n "'\f\,tr '11'\n n""ln, r <1 nrn1 

< 12 of 14 > 
https://app.powerblgov.us/vlew?r=eyJrljolM2Y2OTQ2MTAtODVkNC00YmM2LThhOWEtZWY 4MGU5YWFmZDFm llwidCl6IjYxNTUyNGM 1 LTlyZTktNGJJZC 1 hODkzL TExODBhNTNmYzdIMiJ9 

i,o \5 

P<v<3 ; le 
t; IQ. t 

'JP\ \f. 

r'D \ '\, 
~o ,\ 

il' 

1/1 



Attachment E 

PIH Housing Choice Voucher - Budget & Reserves 

Select a State: Select a Public Housing Authority: MTW?: 

h i Hl9 . - Ha ·1aii Pubr c Ho,1sing A ithority All 

2025 Total Budget Autt,o ri tyfor HCV Program - HCV Total Res111Ves as of 12/ 31/24 

$66,163,047 ~ 

Clear All Filters: 

~ 

Reserves % of BA 

0.00% 

( Total Reserves J [ % Reserves J ---- ----- * 
Top 20 Publk Housing Authorities Based on HCV Total Reserves 

Tot;I 202S 6udgel 
A thori {E-A 

S66 163 04 

4,37:1 VOUCHERS• HUD I55UEO TO HPHA (100"6) 
3,112 VQl!CHERS • HPHA !$SUED TO SiCTiON 8 REC!PiENTS (72.SO~) 

72.S'O S VOUCHERS USED = $d8,232,661 

27.10 S VOU(H£RS fl!OT USED = $17,!H0,18; 

$17,930,185 OISAPHARS • ~IN f\:SER ES 

$44 IN 1-ES~R ES {J une 2025) 
$1"0,120 IN RESERVES Dec 2024) 

HCV Total 
R.eJerv1;s .. 

544 

;; 6u<lget F2.1:-serves ~;. 
A thority 

es.m.; o. -;. :, 

Housing Assistance Payments Compared to Budget Authority since 2015 

~ ~ ~ . , 

Budget Utilization Spent Year over Year 



Housing Choice Voucher - Summary Page 
Summary Page: 
lh1s µa3e ,leri!;d!s t<>a 1en: o•iolv.ew Plenia ~!e,l the St~!e □ ntl Pt,ul.c Hm.~~9 ,,111i:n111qrm ,lfP. 
1/\tC-rf:Slr.d tn v:C-.Vi"";J ti~-"!l 1f-e ri .. cr.da-:m mrnu-; t:m:-.\•.: The da1t1 ·:w.U i?C;\.o~: <:as~t! er, lO~-r s~1t,.::1r::m 

D~ta c; current as of Decembe 

Scle,ct a St.rte: Select a Public Housing Authority: MTW?: C"1ar All Filters, 

HI Hl901 Hawau Public HOIIStni) Authonty All 

Vouchers Leased and Budget Utilization since 2015 

:, ',>il 

,.._.,,... 

Microsoft Power Bl < 2 of14 

Bllf!get & Leasi09 Overview: 

Current RepolTl!1:I J.e;wng 2024 YTO Spending as" Porccnt,ge at Annual Budgot Auth:,r\ly 

® QOo.22§)-
/weragePullnit Cost * 

$1,391.60 

& HAP Expenditures vs 2024 YTD Budget Authority (BA) 

S:JOOM 

> 

$57.99M 

Re.--suv-l-q, 

PrS ©-~ 

\'2.~'3t.~3 



9/14/25, 11 :58 AM Microsoft Power Bl 

Attachment F 

HCV - Special Purpose Vouchers 
Select a State: Select a Public Housing Authority: MTW?: Current Special Purpose Voucher Utilization as of June 2025. 

Special Purpose Vouchers are included in the ACC of a Public 
Ho 1sing Authori ty with the exception of Mainstream. 

HI v Hl901 • Hawaii Public Housing Authority V All 

Mainstream Vouchers 

PHAName PHA Code MS Total MS Total MS% 
Effective Awards Leased Leasing 

Hawaii Public Housing Authority Hl901 78 57 73.08% 

Total 78 57 

Non-Elderly Disabled Vouchers (t;.!,Elli). 

PHA Name PHA Code Total NED 
Awards ... 

Hawaii Pl1bllc Housing Authority Hl901 175 

Total 175 

Microsoft Power Bl 

Total NED 
Leased 

170 
170 

NED 
Leasing % 

97.14% 
97.14% 

< 7 of 14 

PHA Name 

Hawaii Public Housing Authority 
Total 

PHA Name 

Hawaii Public Housing Authority 

Total 

> 

Clear All Filters: Data is current as of Jun@ 

V 

Family Unification Program Vouchers (FUP). 

PHA Code FUP Total 
Effective Awards .. 

Hl901 4 
4 

Hl901 

FUPTotal FLIP% 
Leased Leasing 

0 0.00% 
0 0.00% 

Effective Awards Leased Leasing% 

~~ 65.47% 
\_J ~ ' 65.47% 

https://app.powerblgov.us/view?r=eyJrljolM2Y2OTQ2MTAtODVkNC00YmM2L ThhOWEtZWY 4MGU5YWFmZDFmliwidCl6IjYxNTUyNGM 1 LTlyZTktNGJJZC 1 hODkzL TExODBhNTNmYzdiMiJ9 1/1 



From: Hawaii State LGBTQ Plus Commission
To: OE.Elections.Commission
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Testimony for Oct 1 Meeting.
Date: Monday, September 29, 2025 1:18:01 PM
Attachments: HiStateLGBTQComm.Oct1.pdf

Aloha,

Please find attached the Hawai‘i State LGBTQ+ Commission's testimony for the OCt 1 meeting. 

Please let me know if you have any questions or concerns.

Mahalo,

Michael Golojuch, Jr. (he/him)
Vice Chair
Hawai‘i State LGBTQ+ Commission
Established by HRS 369
Inaugural confirmation on June 28, 2024
Website

Social Media Platforms:
Facebook /hawaiistatelgbtqpluscommission
Instagram @hawaiistatelgbtqpluscommission
Threads @hawaiistatelgbtqpluscommission
YouTube: @HawaiiStateLGBTQPlusCommission

[g] 

mailto:hawaiistatelgbtqpluscommission@gmail.com
mailto:elections.commission@hawaii.gov
https://www.capitol.hawaii.gov/hrscurrent/Vol07_Ch0346-0398/HRS0369/HRS_0369-.htm
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https://www.instagram.com/reel/C82bIC0S3Du/?utm_source=ig_web_copy_link&igsh=MzRlODBiNWFlZA==__;!!LIYSdFfckKA!wFeiheM4sazvW7veeeK9PUStipwPqA1jfA7pZt0nFBuwJpiqhebZHFY-3LUaXSvzMKfozaoXYrOxiOltxIyoBfvCBx6zRYQNaQc$
https://humanservices.hawaii.gov/lgbtq-commission/
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https://www.facebook.com/hawaiistatelgbtqpluscommission__;!!LIYSdFfckKA!wFeiheM4sazvW7veeeK9PUStipwPqA1jfA7pZt0nFBuwJpiqhebZHFY-3LUaXSvzMKfozaoXYrOxiOltxIyoBfvCBx6z52YYUbs$
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https://www.instagram.com/hawaiistatelgbtqpluscommission/__;!!LIYSdFfckKA!wFeiheM4sazvW7veeeK9PUStipwPqA1jfA7pZt0nFBuwJpiqhebZHFY-3LUaXSvzMKfozaoXYrOxiOltxIyoBfvCBx6zN4Jjhqg$
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https://www.threads.net/@hawaiistatelgbtqpluscommission__;!!LIYSdFfckKA!wFeiheM4sazvW7veeeK9PUStipwPqA1jfA7pZt0nFBuwJpiqhebZHFY-3LUaXSvzMKfozaoXYrOxiOltxIyoBfvCBx6zufQ97l4$
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https://www.youtube.com/@HawaiiStateLGBTQPlusCommission__;!!LIYSdFfckKA!wFeiheM4sazvW7veeeK9PUStipwPqA1jfA7pZt0nFBuwJpiqhebZHFY-3LUaXSvzMKfozaoXYrOxiOltxIyoBfvCBx6zLHihMF8$



Hawai‘i State Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual, 


Transgender, Queer Plus Commission 


Advocating for the Hawai‘i LGBTQIA+ Community 


 
Mailing Address:   LGBTQ+ Commission, c/o The Department of Human Services, Email: hawaiistatelgbtqpluscommission@gmail.com  


            P.O. Box 339, Honolulu, Hawai‘i 96809-0339                   Web: https://humanservices.hawaii.gov/lgbtq-commission/  


Proudly established pursuant to Hawai‘i Revised Statutes Chapter 369, as enacted through Act 41, Session Laws of Hawai‘i 2022 


    


   /hawaiistatelgbtqpluscommission        @hawaiistatelgbtqpluscommission         @hawaiistatelgbtqpluscommission           @HawaiiStateLGBTQPlusCommission 


 


 


 


 


 


 


September 29, 2025 
 
Elections Commission 
c/o Office of Elections 
802 Lehua Avenue 
Pearl City, HI 96782 
 
Email: elections.commission@hawaii.gov   
 
Re: Submission of Statement in Support of Hawaiʻi’s All Mail-In Voting System 
 
Aloha Chairperson Curtis and Members of the Commission: 
 
On behalf of the Hawaiʻi State LGBTQ+ Commission, mahalo for the opportunity to 
submit this letter and attached statement in support of maintaining and strengthening 
Hawaiʻi’s all mail-in voting system (Act 136 / HB 1248, 2019), adopted statewide 
beginning with the 2020 elections.   
 
We write to respectfully request that this submission be included in the public record 
and considered at your upcoming meetings, and urge the Commission to adopt a formal 
resolution in support of the all mail-in voting system. 
 
Enclosed is our full Statement in Support of All Mail-In Voting, which outlines the 
Commission’s rationale rooted in economic justice, access to voting, and equity for 
marginalized communities. In summary: 


• Economic justice: Mail-in voting alleviates financial and logistical burdens on 
individuals balancing work, caregiving, and transportation challenges. 


• Access and inclusion: The system reduces barriers that disproportionately 
affect māhū, LGBTQIA+, QTPI+ individuals, low-income persons, rural residents, 
persons with disabilities, and other marginalized groups. 


• Democratic participation: A more accessible system for minorities that helps 
strengthen civic engagement and ensures that all voices can be heard. 


• State leadership: Hawaiʻi’s experience with vote-by-mail demonstrates 
innovation in inclusive elections. Rather than rolling back, the system should be 
refined to address any disparities. 


 
We respectfully offer to provide oral testimony during the meeting, or to respond to 
questions or requests for further data or community input. 
 



mailto:hawaiistatelgbtqpluscommission@gmail.com

https://humanservices.hawaii.gov/lgbtq-commission/

https://humanservices.hawaii.gov/lgbtq-commission/

https://humanservices.hawaii.gov/lgbtqiaplus-glossary/





Re: HI State LGBTQ+ Commission Statement in Support of All Mail-In Voting 


2 


 


Mahalo nui loa for your consideration of this important matter. We stand ready to 
collaborate with the Commission and the Office of Elections to ensure that Hawaiʻi 
continues to lead in equitable and accessible democratic practices. 
 
With respect and aloha, 
 
Michael Golojuch, Jr. (he/him) 
Vice Chair 
Hawaiʻi State LGBTQ+ Commission 
 
Email: hawaiistatelgbtqpluscommission@gmail.com 
 
Enclosure: Statement in Support of All Mail-In Voting 



mailto:hawaiistatelgbtqpluscommission@gmail.com





Hawai‘i State Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual, 


Transgender, Queer Plus Commission 


Advocating for the Hawai‘i LGBTQIA+ Community 


 
Mailing Address:   LGBTQ+ Commission, c/o The Department of Human Services, Email: hawaiistatelgbtqpluscommission@gmail.com  


            P.O. Box 339, Honolulu, Hawai‘i 96809-0339                   Web: https://humanservices.hawaii.gov/lgbtq-commission/  


Proudly established pursuant to Hawai‘i Revised Statutes Chapter 369, as enacted through Act 41, Session Laws of Hawai‘i 2022 


    


   /hawaiistatelgbtqpluscommission        @hawaiistatelgbtqpluscommission         @hawaiistatelgbtqpluscommission           @HawaiiStateLGBTQPlusCommission 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Statement from the Hawaiʻi State LGBTQ+ Commission in Support of All Mail-In Voting 
 
Approved on: September 8, 2025 
 
The Hawaiʻi State LGBTQ+ Commission firmly supports the continuation and enhancement of 
Hawaiʻi’s statewide all-mail voting system, enacted via Act 136 (HB 1248) in 2019 and first 
implemented in the 2020 elections—beginning with the primary. (elections.hawaii.gov, Honolulu 
Civil Beat) 
 
Mail-in voting is more than a convenience; it is a tool for equity, economic justice, and inclusive 
democracy. 
 
1. Economic Justice: Reducing Financial Obstacles to Voting 
 
By enabling voters to cast ballots securely from home, all-mail voting eliminates burdens that 
disproportionately impact individuals balancing low-wage work, caregiving responsibilities, 
transportation challenges, and unpredictable schedules. It ensures no one must choose 
between earning a living and exercising their right to vote. 
 
A 2019 analysis estimated that statewide mail-in voting could save Hawai‘I tax-payers 
approximately $750,000 per election cycle by reducing the need for polling-place staffing, 
facilities, and equipment including its maintenance and emergency replacements. (Hawaii 
Business Magazine) 
 
2. Expanding Access for Marginalized Voters especially the LGBTQIA+ Community 
 
The māhū, LGBTQIA+, QTPI+, and MVPFAFF+ community includes many individuals facing 
economic precarity, unstable housing, and discrimination—factors that make in-person voting 
logistically and emotionally taxing. Mail-in voting helps level the playing field by mitigating those 
barriers. 
 
Even while turnout improved in 2020—with 99% of roughly 406,000 voters using mail-in 
ballots for the primary (Center for Public Integrity)—we recognize that some populations still 
face challenges. Those experiencing homelessness or limited English proficiency are at risk of 
being under-served by this system. (Center for Public Integrity) The Commission, therefore, 
urges sustained enhancements—such as expanded language assistance, improved outreach, 
and targeted support—to ensure true equity in access. 
 
3. Enhancing Civic Participation Through Inclusion 
 
As advocates for inclusive representation, we recognize that accessible voting strengthens our 
democracy. All-mail voting provides every citizen—from kūpuna to working families, from active 
service members to youth—with consistent access to civic participation. That foundation 



mailto:hawaiistatelgbtqpluscommission@gmail.com

https://humanservices.hawaii.gov/lgbtq-commission/

https://elections.hawaii.gov/news-release/election-bills-passed-during-the-2019-legislative-session/?utm_source=chatgpt.com

https://www.civilbeat.org/beat/bills-for-all-mail-voting-mandatory-recounts-clear-legislature/?utm_source=chatgpt.com

https://www.civilbeat.org/beat/bills-for-all-mail-voting-mandatory-recounts-clear-legislature/?utm_source=chatgpt.com

https://www.hawaiibusiness.com/change-government-civics/3/?utm_source=chatgpt.com

https://www.hawaiibusiness.com/change-government-civics/3/?utm_source=chatgpt.com

https://publicintegrity.org/politics/elections/us-polling-places/hawaii-switch-to-mail-in-voting-not-a-cure-all/?utm_source=chatgpt.com

https://publicintegrity.org/politics/elections/us-polling-places/hawaii-switch-to-mail-in-voting-not-a-cure-all/?utm_source=chatgpt.com





Hawaiʻi State LGBTQ+ Commission responds to multiple SCOTUS decisions 


2 


 


benefits māhū, LGBTQIA+, QTPI+, and MVPFAFF+ individuals, who too often face systemic 
disenfranchisement. 
 
4. Preserving Hawaiʻi’s Leadership in Inclusive Elections 
 
Hawaiʻi pioneered universal vote-by-mail ahead of many other states—and remains among a 
small group adopting this model.(Wikipedia, elections.hawaii.gov) By reaffirming support for 
mail-in voting, the Commission underscores Hawaiʻi’s values of fairness, aloha, and community 
accountability. We also affirm that the system should evolve to address persistent 
inequalities rather than revert to outdated models that limit access. 
 


 
 
Conclusion and Call to Action 
 
The Hawaiʻi State LGBTQ+ Commission calls on state and local officials to: 


• Safeguard and strengthen the all-mail voting system as a cornerstone of accessible, 
equitable democracy. 


• Invest in targeted support—including expanded translation services, and assistance 
for unhoused voters—to ensure no one is left behind. 


• Monitor and address disparities in turnout and ballot access, especially among māhū, 
LGBTQIA+, QTPI+, and MVPFAFF+ and other marginalized communities. 


 
Our democracy thrives when every voice is heard. All-mail voting is a powerful equalizer—an 
essential step toward full inclusion, justice, and participation in our shared civic life. 



https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Postal_voting_in_the_United_States?utm_source=chatgpt.com

https://elections.hawaii.gov/news-release/election-bills-passed-during-the-2019-legislative-session/?utm_source=chatgpt.com





Hawai‘i State Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual, 

Transgender, Queer Plus Commission 

Advocating for the Hawai‘i LGBTQIA+ Community 

 
Mailing Address:   LGBTQ+ Commission, c/o The Department of Human Services, Email: hawaiistatelgbtqpluscommission@gmail.com  

            P.O. Box 339, Honolulu, Hawai‘i 96809-0339                   Web: https://humanservices.hawaii.gov/lgbtq-commission/  

Proudly established pursuant to Hawai‘i Revised Statutes Chapter 369, as enacted through Act 41, Session Laws of Hawai‘i 2022 

    

   /hawaiistatelgbtqpluscommission        @hawaiistatelgbtqpluscommission         @hawaiistatelgbtqpluscommission           @HawaiiStateLGBTQPlusCommission 

 

 

 

 

 

 

September 29, 2025 
 
Elections Commission 
c/o Office of Elections 
802 Lehua Avenue 
Pearl City, HI 96782 
 
Email: elections.commission@hawaii.gov   
 
Re: Submission of Statement in Support of Hawaiʻi’s All Mail-In Voting System 
 
Aloha Chairperson Curtis and Members of the Commission: 
 
On behalf of the Hawaiʻi State LGBTQ+ Commission, mahalo for the opportunity to 
submit this letter and attached statement in support of maintaining and strengthening 
Hawaiʻi’s all mail-in voting system (Act 136 / HB 1248, 2019), adopted statewide 
beginning with the 2020 elections.   
 
We write to respectfully request that this submission be included in the public record 
and considered at your upcoming meetings, and urge the Commission to adopt a formal 
resolution in support of the all mail-in voting system. 
 
Enclosed is our full Statement in Support of All Mail-In Voting, which outlines the 
Commission’s rationale rooted in economic justice, access to voting, and equity for 
marginalized communities. In summary: 

• Economic justice: Mail-in voting alleviates financial and logistical burdens on 
individuals balancing work, caregiving, and transportation challenges. 

• Access and inclusion: The system reduces barriers that disproportionately 
affect māhū, LGBTQIA+, QTPI+ individuals, low-income persons, rural residents, 
persons with disabilities, and other marginalized groups. 

• Democratic participation: A more accessible system for minorities that helps 
strengthen civic engagement and ensures that all voices can be heard. 

• State leadership: Hawaiʻi’s experience with vote-by-mail demonstrates 
innovation in inclusive elections. Rather than rolling back, the system should be 
refined to address any disparities. 

 
We respectfully offer to provide oral testimony during the meeting, or to respond to 
questions or requests for further data or community input. 
 

0 a 

mailto:hawaiistatelgbtqpluscommission@gmail.com
https://humanservices.hawaii.gov/lgbtq-commission/
https://humanservices.hawaii.gov/lgbtq-commission/
https://humanservices.hawaii.gov/lgbtqiaplus-glossary/


Re: HI State LGBTQ+ Commission Statement in Support of All Mail-In Voting 

2 

 

Mahalo nui loa for your consideration of this important matter. We stand ready to 
collaborate with the Commission and the Office of Elections to ensure that Hawaiʻi 
continues to lead in equitable and accessible democratic practices. 
 
With respect and aloha, 
 
Michael Golojuch, Jr. (he/him) 
Vice Chair 
Hawaiʻi State LGBTQ+ Commission 
 
Email: hawaiistatelgbtqpluscommission@gmail.com 
 
Enclosure: Statement in Support of All Mail-In Voting 

mailto:hawaiistatelgbtqpluscommission@gmail.com


Hawai‘i State Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual, 

Transgender, Queer Plus Commission 

Advocating for the Hawai‘i LGBTQIA+ Community 

 
Mailing Address:   LGBTQ+ Commission, c/o The Department of Human Services, Email: hawaiistatelgbtqpluscommission@gmail.com  

            P.O. Box 339, Honolulu, Hawai‘i 96809-0339                   Web: https://humanservices.hawaii.gov/lgbtq-commission/  

Proudly established pursuant to Hawai‘i Revised Statutes Chapter 369, as enacted through Act 41, Session Laws of Hawai‘i 2022 

    

   /hawaiistatelgbtqpluscommission        @hawaiistatelgbtqpluscommission         @hawaiistatelgbtqpluscommission           @HawaiiStateLGBTQPlusCommission 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Statement from the Hawaiʻi State LGBTQ+ Commission in Support of All Mail-In Voting 
 
Approved on: September 8, 2025 
 
The Hawaiʻi State LGBTQ+ Commission firmly supports the continuation and enhancement of 
Hawaiʻi’s statewide all-mail voting system, enacted via Act 136 (HB 1248) in 2019 and first 
implemented in the 2020 elections—beginning with the primary. (elections.hawaii.gov, Honolulu 
Civil Beat) 
 
Mail-in voting is more than a convenience; it is a tool for equity, economic justice, and inclusive 
democracy. 
 
1. Economic Justice: Reducing Financial Obstacles to Voting 
 
By enabling voters to cast ballots securely from home, all-mail voting eliminates burdens that 
disproportionately impact individuals balancing low-wage work, caregiving responsibilities, 
transportation challenges, and unpredictable schedules. It ensures no one must choose 
between earning a living and exercising their right to vote. 
 
A 2019 analysis estimated that statewide mail-in voting could save Hawai‘I tax-payers 
approximately $750,000 per election cycle by reducing the need for polling-place staffing, 
facilities, and equipment including its maintenance and emergency replacements. (Hawaii 
Business Magazine) 
 
2. Expanding Access for Marginalized Voters especially the LGBTQIA+ Community 
 
The māhū, LGBTQIA+, QTPI+, and MVPFAFF+ community includes many individuals facing 
economic precarity, unstable housing, and discrimination—factors that make in-person voting 
logistically and emotionally taxing. Mail-in voting helps level the playing field by mitigating those 
barriers. 
 
Even while turnout improved in 2020—with 99% of roughly 406,000 voters using mail-in 
ballots for the primary (Center for Public Integrity)—we recognize that some populations still 
face challenges. Those experiencing homelessness or limited English proficiency are at risk of 
being under-served by this system. (Center for Public Integrity) The Commission, therefore, 
urges sustained enhancements—such as expanded language assistance, improved outreach, 
and targeted support—to ensure true equity in access. 
 
3. Enhancing Civic Participation Through Inclusion 
 
As advocates for inclusive representation, we recognize that accessible voting strengthens our 
democracy. All-mail voting provides every citizen—from kūpuna to working families, from active 
service members to youth—with consistent access to civic participation. That foundation 

0 a 

mailto:hawaiistatelgbtqpluscommission@gmail.com
https://humanservices.hawaii.gov/lgbtq-commission/
https://elections.hawaii.gov/news-release/election-bills-passed-during-the-2019-legislative-session/?utm_source=chatgpt.com
https://www.civilbeat.org/beat/bills-for-all-mail-voting-mandatory-recounts-clear-legislature/?utm_source=chatgpt.com
https://www.civilbeat.org/beat/bills-for-all-mail-voting-mandatory-recounts-clear-legislature/?utm_source=chatgpt.com
https://www.hawaiibusiness.com/change-government-civics/3/?utm_source=chatgpt.com
https://www.hawaiibusiness.com/change-government-civics/3/?utm_source=chatgpt.com
https://publicintegrity.org/politics/elections/us-polling-places/hawaii-switch-to-mail-in-voting-not-a-cure-all/?utm_source=chatgpt.com
https://publicintegrity.org/politics/elections/us-polling-places/hawaii-switch-to-mail-in-voting-not-a-cure-all/?utm_source=chatgpt.com


Hawaiʻi State LGBTQ+ Commission responds to multiple SCOTUS decisions 

2 

 

benefits māhū, LGBTQIA+, QTPI+, and MVPFAFF+ individuals, who too often face systemic 
disenfranchisement. 
 
4. Preserving Hawaiʻi’s Leadership in Inclusive Elections 
 
Hawaiʻi pioneered universal vote-by-mail ahead of many other states—and remains among a 
small group adopting this model.(Wikipedia, elections.hawaii.gov) By reaffirming support for 
mail-in voting, the Commission underscores Hawaiʻi’s values of fairness, aloha, and community 
accountability. We also affirm that the system should evolve to address persistent 
inequalities rather than revert to outdated models that limit access. 
 

 
 
Conclusion and Call to Action 
 
The Hawaiʻi State LGBTQ+ Commission calls on state and local officials to: 

• Safeguard and strengthen the all-mail voting system as a cornerstone of accessible, 
equitable democracy. 

• Invest in targeted support—including expanded translation services, and assistance 
for unhoused voters—to ensure no one is left behind. 

• Monitor and address disparities in turnout and ballot access, especially among māhū, 
LGBTQIA+, QTPI+, and MVPFAFF+ and other marginalized communities. 

 
Our democracy thrives when every voice is heard. All-mail voting is a powerful equalizer—an 
essential step toward full inclusion, justice, and participation in our shared civic life. 

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Postal_voting_in_the_United_States?utm_source=chatgpt.com
https://elections.hawaii.gov/news-release/election-bills-passed-during-the-2019-legislative-session/?utm_source=chatgpt.com


From: Janet Mason
To: OE.Elections.Commission
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Testimony for October 1, 2025 Elections Commission meeting
Date: Monday, September 29, 2025 2:57:50 PM
Attachments: LWVHI Oct 2025 testimony Elections Commission.pdf

Attached is testimony from the League of Women Voters of Hawaii for Wednesday’s meeting. 
Thank you.

mailto:janet@janetfoxmason.org
mailto:elections.commission@hawaii.gov



 
P. O. Box 235026  Honolulu, HI 96823-3500 
808.531.7448  voters@lwvhi.org 


 
 
 


Hawaii Elections Commission 
October 1, 2025 


Janet Mason, Member, League of Women Voters of Hawaii 


Chair Curtis and Commissioners: 
 
I am Janet Mason, testifying on behalf of the League of Women Voters of Hawaii.   
2025 has been a tumultuous year for the Elections Commission, bringing us to the point 
where you are considering an external audit of the 2024 election vote counts, calls for 
elimination of voting by mail, termination of our Chief Elections Officer, and charges of 
malfeasance by County and State elections officials. 
 
The League of Women Voters supports the legitimate oversight of our elections by the 
State’s Elections Commission. In March 2025, once your Commission established the 
Commission subcommittees known as Permitted Interaction Groups (PIG’s), concerns 
about 2024 vote counts were publicly documented in reports for each county.  But missing 
from your reports was clear evidence about the cause of any flaws in these operations and 
suggestions for improvement.   
 
League members are experienced Election Observers and have considerable firsthand 
understanding of complicated elections and voting administration.  Like members of your 
Commission, (for security reasons) we do not have access to the State voter registration 
database, which contains voting records and vote counts.  We believe this resource is 
essential, well protected and accurate.  But this situation no doubt hampered the earnest 
work of your PIG’s. 
 
Appropriately, our state and county elections officials reviewed reports from the PIG’s and 
responded on August 27, 2025, and September 26, 2025.   We hope these detailed reports 
resolve all questions that might justify an external audit, as proposed in last month’s 
Commission meeting. The reports have solid explanations about apparent counting 
discrepancies.  We call on the Commission to accept how the Office of Elections and 
County elections offices reconcile ballot counts using Hawaii’s legal rules for maintaining a 
count of ballots. 1 Any flaws in manual record-keeping or procedures can be addressed by 
officials, strengthening the operation.   
 
Much public testimony to the Commission in 2025 relied on undocumented claims of fraud 
or incompetence that was partisan; this undermined the work of both your Commission and 
elections officials. From the beginning of this year, such scrutiny of the 2024 elections has 
escalated toward punitive removal of the Chief Elections Officer rather than process reform.   
 
In your August meeting, there were also calls for eliminating voting by mail because there 
are no paper ballots available for verification of vote counts.  This is not true; original paper 
ballots are retained by the Office of Elections for at least 22 months as required by Federal 


 
1 HI Admin Rules 3-177-453. 







law. What is true is that paper ballots are not handled to compile a vote count; rather a 
scanned replica of each ballot is read and tabulated using equipment and software 
approved by the U.S. Elections Assistance Commission.  Otherwise, how could Hawaii 
count its 400-500 thousand plus ballots2 accurately and in a timely manner?  Hawaii voters 
like voting by mail, the League supports this, and we think it unlikely that our Legislature will 
rescind this law, despite calls to do this.  
 
This Commission is considering an extraordinary remedy of charging State and County 
voting officials with malfeasance. This idea should be rejected, as nowhere have we seen 
any evidence of intentional wrongdoing. 
 
Thank you for the opportunity to submit testimony. 


 


2 https://elections.hawaii.gov/resources/registration-voter-turnout-statistics/ 
 







 
P. O. Box 235026  Honolulu, HI 96823-3500 
808.531.7448  voters@lwvhi.org 

 
 
 

Hawaii Elections Commission 
October 1, 2025 

Janet Mason, Member, League of Women Voters of Hawaii 

Chair Curtis and Commissioners: 
 
I am Janet Mason, testifying on behalf of the League of Women Voters of Hawaii.   
2025 has been a tumultuous year for the Elections Commission, bringing us to the point 
where you are considering an external audit of the 2024 election vote counts, calls for 
elimination of voting by mail, termination of our Chief Elections Officer, and charges of 
malfeasance by County and State elections officials. 
 
The League of Women Voters supports the legitimate oversight of our elections by the 
State’s Elections Commission. In March 2025, once your Commission established the 
Commission subcommittees known as Permitted Interaction Groups (PIG’s), concerns 
about 2024 vote counts were publicly documented in reports for each county.  But missing 
from your reports was clear evidence about the cause of any flaws in these operations and 
suggestions for improvement.   
 
League members are experienced Election Observers and have considerable firsthand 
understanding of complicated elections and voting administration.  Like members of your 
Commission, (for security reasons) we do not have access to the State voter registration 
database, which contains voting records and vote counts.  We believe this resource is 
essential, well protected and accurate.  But this situation no doubt hampered the earnest 
work of your PIG’s. 
 
Appropriately, our state and county elections officials reviewed reports from the PIG’s and 
responded on August 27, 2025, and September 26, 2025.   We hope these detailed reports 
resolve all questions that might justify an external audit, as proposed in last month’s 
Commission meeting. The reports have solid explanations about apparent counting 
discrepancies.  We call on the Commission to accept how the Office of Elections and 
County elections offices reconcile ballot counts using Hawaii’s legal rules for maintaining a 
count of ballots. 1 Any flaws in manual record-keeping or procedures can be addressed by 
officials, strengthening the operation.   
 
Much public testimony to the Commission in 2025 relied on undocumented claims of fraud 
or incompetence that was partisan; this undermined the work of both your Commission and 
elections officials. From the beginning of this year, such scrutiny of the 2024 elections has 
escalated toward punitive removal of the Chief Elections Officer rather than process reform.   
 
In your August meeting, there were also calls for eliminating voting by mail because there 
are no paper ballots available for verification of vote counts.  This is not true; original paper 
ballots are retained by the Office of Elections for at least 22 months as required by Federal 

 
1 HI Admin Rules 3-177-453. 

LEAGUE OF WOMEN VOTERS" 
_ OFHAWAII 



law. What is true is that paper ballots are not handled to compile a vote count; rather a 
scanned replica of each ballot is read and tabulated using equipment and software 
approved by the U.S. Elections Assistance Commission.  Otherwise, how could Hawaii 
count its 400-500 thousand plus ballots2 accurately and in a timely manner?  Hawaii voters 
like voting by mail, the League supports this, and we think it unlikely that our Legislature will 
rescind this law, despite calls to do this.  
 
This Commission is considering an extraordinary remedy of charging State and County 
voting officials with malfeasance. This idea should be rejected, as nowhere have we seen 
any evidence of intentional wrongdoing. 
 
Thank you for the opportunity to submit testimony. 

 

2 https://elections.hawaii.gov/resources/registration-voter-turnout-statistics/ 
 



From: Casey Riemer
To: OE.Elections.Commission
Subject: [EXTERNAL] voting in Hawaii
Date: Tuesday, September 30, 2025 7:59:41 AM

I am writing to express my concerns about the current voting system utilized in the State of
Hawaii.  I would like the voting system in Hawaii to go back to the system we used to have. 
Voter registration needs to require proof of legal qualification to vote by presenting one of the
legally permitted forms of identification.  The voting process needs to be verifiable, in-person,
and done on paper ballots that are kept until a certain date in order to be able to verify the
results of an election.  

-- 
Casey Riemer
808-652-6982 
6731 Waipouli Rd. 
Kapaa, HI 96746

mailto:criemer61@gmail.com
mailto:elections.commission@hawaii.gov


From: Casey Riemer
To: OE.Elections.Commission
Subject: [EXTERNAL] voting in Hawaii Elections
Date: Tuesday, September 30, 2025 8:05:49 AM

I am writing to express my concerns about the current voting system utilized in the
State of Hawaii.  I would like the voting system in Hawaii to go back to the system we
used to have.  Voter registration needs to require proof of legal qualification to vote by
presenting one of the legally permitted forms of identification.  The voting process
needs to be verifiable, in-person, and done on paper ballots that are kept until a
certain date in order to be able to verify the results of an election.  

It is clear that mail-in election ballots are not verifiable and the current voter
registration process is fraught with potential means of illegal registrations.  

 

Christopher Riemer

mailto:criemer61@yahoo.com
mailto:elections.commission@hawaii.gov

	^ Permitted Interaction Group - Big Island report - 9-29-25_Redacted
	^^ OE-25-117
	OE-25-117 B
	OE-25-117 A
	ECC-25-001
	ECC-25-001 a


	^^ OE-25-118
	OE-25-118 A
	OE-25-118 B

	^^ OE-25-119
	OE-25-119 A
	OE-25-119 B

	01 Manzon
	02 Onaga
	03 Billionaire
	04 Chappell
	05 Berg
	06 Thorson
	06 Thorson
	06 Thorson a

	06 Thorson a

	07 Hawaii State LGBTQ+ Commission
	[EXTERNAL] Testimony for Oct 1 Meeting.
	07 Hawaii State LGBTQ+ Commission b

	08 League of Women Voters of Hawaii
	08 League of Women Voters of Hawaii
	08 League of Women Voters of Hawaii a

	09 Casey Riemer
	10 Christopher Riemer



